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Accessing the Online Electronic Course Materials
Program materials will be distributed exclusively online in PDF format. It is strongly recommended
that you save the course materials in advance, in the event that you will be bringing a computer or
tablet with you to the program.

Printing the complete materials is not required for attending the program.

The course materials may be accessed online
at: www.nysba.org/TICLTRIAAM18Materials

A hard copy NotePad will be provided to attendees at the live program site, which contains lined
pages for taking notes on each topic, speaker biographies, and presentation slides or outlines if
available.

Please note:

e You must have Adobe Acrobat on your computer in order to view, save, and/or print the
files. If you do not already have this software, you can download a free copy of Adobe
Acrobat Reader at https:/get.adobe.com/reader/

e If you are bringing a laptop, tablet or other mobile device with you to the program, please
be sure that your batteries are fully charged in advance, as electrical outlets may not be
available.

e NYSBA cannot guarantee that free or paid Wi-Fi access will be available for your use at the
program location.







= g, W p—"" v

NEW YORK STATE BAR ASSOCIATION

Torts, Insurance & Compensation Law

| and Trial Lawyers Sections
ol The Mechanics of a Trial: From Jury Selection to Verdict -
How to Improve Your Litigation Skills & Make Your Case

January 25, 2018 | New York Hilton Midtown | NYC

Offsite Reception and Dinner — Wednesday, January 24, 2018
6:30 pm to 10:00 pm | The Edison Ballroom, 240 West 47t Street - NEW VENUE!
Honoree/Speaker: Honorable Rowan D. Wilson, Associate Judge, New York Court of Appeals

MCLE Program — Thursday, January 25, 2018
8:45 am to 4:30 pm | Regent, 2" Floor

TORTS, INSURANCE & COMPENSATION LAW SECTION CHAIR
Elizabeth A. Fitzpatrick, Esq., Island Companies, Calverton

TRIAL LAWYERS SECTION CHAIR
Noreen DeWire Grimmick, Esq., Hodgson Russ LLP, Albany

TORTS, INSURANCE & COMPENSATION LAW PROGRAM CO-CHAIR
Charles J. Siegel, Esq., Law Office of Charles J. Siegel, New York City

TRIAL LAWYERS SECTION PROGRAM CO-CHAIR
Violet Samuels, Esq., Samuels & Associates, PC, Rosedale

8:45 am
Business Meeting and Election of Officers and District Representatives of the Torts, Insurance and Compensation Law Section and
Business Meeting and Election of Officers and District Representatives of the Trial Lawyers Section

9:00 am —9:50 am
Jury Selection

Speaker:
Peter S. Thomas, Esq., Peter S. Thomas, P.C., Forest Hills

9:50 am — 10:40 am
Motions in Limine

Speaker:
Hon. Michelle Weston, Supreme Court Justice, Kings County, Brooklyn

10:40 am — 11:00 am
Refreshment Break

11:00 am - 11:50 am
Opening Statements

Speaker:
William Pagan, Esq., The Pagan Law Firm, P.C., New York City

11:50 am - 1:15 pm
Lunch on Your Own
1:15 pm — 2:05 pm
Expert Witnesses

Speaker:
Hon. Michelle Weston, Supreme Court Justice, Kings County, Brooklyn

Get Social: #NYSBA18 W F [TT1T}




2:05 pm - 3:20 pm

Direct & Cross Examination

Panelists:

Hon. Carmen Victoria St. George, Supreme Court Justice, New York County, New York City
Heather Palmore, Esq., Law Office of Charles J. Siegel, New York City

Michael C. Tromello, Esq., Tromello, McDonnell & Kehoe, Melville

Hon. Shawndya Simpson, Supreme Court Justice, Kings County, Brooklyn

Thomas P. Valet, Esq., Rappaport, Glass, Levine & Zullo, LLP, Islandia

3:20 pm - 3:40 pm

Refreshment Break @Physician Life Care Planning”

America’s Leading Life Care Planner
3:40 pm —4:30 pm

Closing Arguments

Speaker:

Jesus M. Zeno, Esq., Jesus M. Zeno, P.C., Brooklyn

4:30 pm
Adjourn

Register Online www.nysba.org/AM2018 | Get Social: #NYSBA18 , f

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Under New York’s MCLE rule, this program has been approved for a total of 6.5 credit hours in Skills. This program is transitional and is
suitable for MCLE credit for both newly-admitted attorney and experienced attorneys.

Discounts and Scholarships: New York State Bar Association members and non-members may apply for a discount or scholarship to attend
this program, based on financial hardship. This discount applies to the educational portion of the program only. Under this policy, any member
of our Association or non-member who has a genuine basis for their hardship, if approved, can receive a discount or scholarship, depending on
the circumstances. Request for discounts or scholarships must be received prior to January 12, 2018. For more details, please contact Catheryn
Teeter in writing at New York State Bar Association, One Elk Street, Albany, New York 12207 or cteeter@nysba.org.

with all applicable laws that prohibit discrimination against individuals on the basis of disability in the full and equal enjoyment of its goods, services,
programs, activities, facilities, privileges, advantages, or accommodations. To request auxiliary aids or services or if you have any questions regarding
accessibility, please contact Catheryn Teeter at 518-487-5573 or cteeter@nysba.org.

.‘ Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities: NYSBA welcomes participation by individuals with disabilities. NYSBA is committed to complying

For overnight room accommodations, please call the New York Hilton Midtown at 1-800-445-8667 and identify yourself as a member of the New
“><, York State Bar Assodiation or on the web at www.nysba.org/am18accomm. The rate will be based on room selection (single/double occupancy) and
('—I} arrival/departure dates with additional taxes and hotel fees. The discounted rate for January 21st and January 22nd is $179 per night. The discounted
rate for January 23rd through January 28th is $229 per night. A rate of $209 will be offered to those with overlapping dates. Reservations must be
made by December 29, 2017.

For questions about this specific program, please contact Catheryn Teeter at 518-487-5573. For registration questions only, please call the
Member Resource Center at 800-582-2452. Fax registration form to 518-463-5993.



MCLE INFORMATION

Program Title: Torts, Insurance & Compensation Law and Trial lawyers Sections Annual Meeting 2018
Dates: January 25, 2018 Location: New York Hilton Midtown, NYC

Evaluation: www.Nysba.org/am2018-ticO
This evaluation survey link will be emailed to registrants following the program.

Total Credits: 6.5 New York CLE credit hours

Credit Category:
6.5 Skills

This course is approved for credit for both experienced attorneys and newly

admitted attorneys (admitted to the New York Bar for less than two years). Newly admitted
attorneys attending via webcast should refer to Additional Information and Policies regarding
permitted formats.

Attendance Verification for New York MCLE Credit

In order to receive MCLE credit, attendees must:

1) Sign in with registration staff

2) Complete and return a Verification of Presence form (included with course materials) at
the end of the program or session. For multi-day programs, you will receive a separate form
for each day of the program, to be returned each day.

Partial credit for program segments is not allowed. Under New York State Continuing Legal
Education Regulations and Guidelines, credit shall be awarded only for attendance at an entire
course or program, or for attendance at an entire session of a course or program. Persons who
arrive late, depart early, or are absent for any portion of a segment will not receive credit for that
segment. The Verification of Presence form certifies presence for the entire presentation. Any
exceptions where full educational benefit of the presentation is not received should be indicated on
the form and noted with registration personnel.

Program Evaluation

The New York State Bar Association is committed to providing high quality continuing legal
education courses, and your feedback regarding speakers and program accommodations is
important to us. Following the program, an email will be sent to registrants with a link to complete
an online evaluation survey. The link is also listed above.



Additional Information and Policies

Recording of NYSBA seminars, meetings and events is not permitted.

Accredited Provider

The New York State Bar Association’s Section and Meeting Services Department has been
certified by the New York State Continuing Legal Education Board as an accredited provider of
continuing legal education courses and programs.

Credit Application Outside of New York State

Attorneys who wish to apply for credit outside of New York State should contact the governing
body for MCLE in the respective jurisdiction.

MCLE Certificates

MCLE Certificates will be emailed to attendees a few weeks after the program, or mailed to those
without an email address on file. To update your contact information with NYSBA,

visit www.nysba.org/MyProfile, or contact the Member Resource Center at (800) 582-2452

or MRC@nysba.org.

Newly Admitted Attorneys—Permitted Formats

In accordance with New York CLE Board Regulations and Guidelines (section 2, part C), newly
admitted attorneys (admitted to the New York Bar for less than two years) must complete Skills
credit in the traditional live classroom setting or by fully interactive videoconference. Ethics and
Professionalism credit may be completed in the traditional live classroom setting; by fully
interactive videoconference; or by simultaneous transmission with synchronous interactivity, such as
a live-streamed webcast that allows questions during the program. Law Practice Management
and Areas of Professional Practice credit may be completed in any approved format.

Tuition Assistance

New York State Bar Association members and non-members may apply for a discount or
scholarship to attend MCLE programs, based on financial hardship. This discount applies to the
educational portion of the program only. Application details can be found

at www.nysba.org/SectionCLEAssistance.

Questions

For questions, contact the NYSBA Section and Meeting Services Department
at SectionCLE@nysba.org, or (800) 582-2452 (or (518) 463-3724 in the Albany area).
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NEW YORK STATE BAR ASSOCIATION

Lawyer Assistance
Program 800.255.0569 m

Q. What is LAP?

A\. The Lawyer Assistance Program is a program of the New York State Bar Association established to help attorneys, judges, and law
students in New York State (NYSBA members and non-members) who are affected by alcoholism, drug abuse, gambling, depression,
other mental health issues, or debilitating stress.

Q. What services does LAP provide?
A. Services are free and include:

e Early identification of impairment

e Intervention and motivation to seek help

e Assessment, evaluation and development of an appropriate treatment plan

e Referral to community resources, self-help groups, inpatient treatment, outpatient counseling, and rehabilitation services

e Referral to a trained peer assistant — attorneys who have faced their own difficulties and volunteer to assist a struggling
colleague by providing support, understanding, guidance, and good listening

e Information and consultation for those (family, firm, and judges) concerned about an attorney

e Training programs on recognizing, preventing, and dealing with addiction, stress, depression, and other mental
health issues

Q. Are LAP services confidential?

A. Absolutely, this wouldn't work any other way. In fact your confidentiality is guaranteed and protected under Section 499 of
the Judiciary Law. Confidentiality is the hallmark of the program and the reason it has remained viable for almost 20 years.

Judiciary Law Section 499 Lawyer Assistance Committees Chapter 327 of the Laws of 1993

Confidential information privileged. The confidential relations and communications between a member or authorized
agent of a lawyer assistance committee sponsored by a state or local bar association and any person, firm or corporation
communicating with such a committee, its members or authorized agents shall be deemed to be privileged on the
same basis as those provided by law between attorney and client. Such privileges may be waived only by the person,
firm or corporation who has furnished information to the committee.

Q. How do | access LAP services?
A. LAP services are accessed voluntarily by calling 800.255.0569 or connecting to our website ﬁww.ngsba.org/lad

Q. What can | expect when | contact LAP?

A. You can expect to speak to a Lawyer Assistance professional who has extensive experience with the issues and with the
lawyer population. You can expect the undivided attention you deserve to share what's on your mind and to explore
options for addressing your concerns. You will receive referrals, suggestions, and support. The LAP professional will ask
your permission to check in with you in the weeks following your initial call to the LAP office.

Q. Can | expect resolution of my problem?

A. The LAP instills hope through the peer assistant volunteers, many of whom have triumphed over their own significant
personal problems. Also there is evidence that appropriate treatment and support is effective in most cases of mental
health problems. For example, a combination of medication and therapy effectively treats depression in 85% of the cases.



http://www.nysba.org/lap

Personal Inventory

Personal problems such as alcoholism, substance abuse, depression and stress affect one’s ability to
practice law. Take time to review the following questions and consider whether you or a colleague
would benefit from the available Lawyer Assistance Program services. If you answer “yes” to any of
these questions, you may need help.

1. Are my associates, clients or family saying that my behavior has changed or that |
don’t seem myself?

Is it difficult for me to maintain a routine and stay on top of responsibilities?
Have | experienced memory problems or an inability to concentrate?

Am | having difficulty managing emotions such as anger and sadness?

i & W N

Have | missed appointments or appearances or failed to return phone calls?
Am | keeping up with correspondence?

6. Have my sleeping and eating habits changed?

7. Am | experiencing a pattern of relationship problems with significant people in my life
(spouse/parent, children, partners/associates)?

8. Does my family have a history of alcoholism, substance abuse or depression?
9. Do I drink or take drugs to deal with my problems?

10. In the last few months, have | had more drinks or drugs than | intended, or felt that
| should cut back or quit, but could not?

11. Is gambling making me careless of my financial responsibilities?

12. Do | feel so stressed, burned out and depressed that | have thoughts of suicide?

There Is Hope

CONTACT LAP TODAY FOR FREE CONFIDENTIAL ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT
The sooner the better!

1.800.255.0569




NEW YORK STATE BAR ASSOCIATION

JOIN OUR SECTION

[0 As a NYSBA member, PLEASE BILL ME $40 for Torts,
Insurance and Compensation Law Section dues. (law
student rate is $5)

1 wish to become a member of the NYSBA (please see
Association membership dues categories) and the Torts,
Insurance and Compensation Law Section. PLEASE BILL
ME for both.

[J I'am a Section member — please consider me for
appointment to committees marked.

Name

Address

City State Zip

The above address is my [ Home [ office [ Both

Please supply us with an additional address.

Name

Address

City State Zip
Office phone ()

Home phone ()

(—)

Fax number

E-mail address

Date of birth / /

Law school

Graduation date

States and dates of admission to Bar:

Please return this application to:

MEMBER RESOURCE CENTER,

New York State Bar Association, One Elk Street, Albany NY 12207
Phone 800.582.2452/518.463.3200 & FAX 518.463.5993

E-mail mrc@nysba.org ® www.nysba.org

JOIN A TORTS, INSURANCE AND

COMPENSATION LAW SECTION COMMITTEE(S)

All active Section members are welcome and encouraged to join one
or more Committees at no additional cost. Please indicate the
Committee(s) you would like to join in order of preference (1, 2, 3
and so on):

___ Alternative Dispute Resolution (TICL3100)

___ Automobile Liability (TICL1100)

___ Business Torts and Employment Litigation
(TICL1300)

__ Class Action (TICL1400)

___ Continuing Legal Education (TICL1020)

___ Diversity (TICL4200)

__ Ethics and Professionalism (TICL3000)

__ General Awards (TICL1600)

___ Governmental Liability (TICL1700)

___ Information Technology (TICL2900)

___ Insurance Coverage (TICL2800)

__ Laws and Practices (TICL1800)

___ Membership (TICL1040)

___ Municipal Law (TICL2100)

__ No Fault (TICL4400)

___ Premises Liability/Labor Law (TICL2700)

___ Products Liability (TICL2200)

___ Professional Liability (TICL2300)

__ Social Media (TICL4600)

___ Sponsorships (TICL4500)

___ Task Force on TICL Committees (TICL2400)

__ Toxic Tort (TICL4300)

2018 MEMBERSHIP DUES
Class based on first year of admission to bar of any state.
Membership year runs January through December.

ACTIVE/ASSOCIATE IN-STATE ATTORNEY MEMBERSHIP

Attorneys admitted 2010 and prior $275
Attorneys admitted 2011-2012 185
Attorneys admitted 2013-2014 125
Attorneys admitted 2015 - 3.31.2017 60
ACTIVE/ASSOCIATE OUT-OF-STATE ATTORNEY MEMBERSHIP
Attorneys admitted 2010 and prior $180
Attorneys admitted 2011-2012 150
Attorneys admitted 2013-2014 120
Attorneys admitted 2015 - 3.31.2017 60
OTHER

Sustaining Member $400
Affiliate Member 185
Newly Admitted Member* FREE
DEFINITIONS

Active In-State = Attorneys admitted in NYS, who work and/or reside in NYS

Associate In-State = Attorneys not admitted in NYS, who work and/or reside in NYS
Active Out-of-State = Attorneys admitted in NYS, who neither work nor reside in NYS
Associate Out-of-State = Attorneys not admitted in NYS, who neither work nor reside in NYS

Sustaining = Attorney members who voluntarily provide additional funds to further
support the work of the Association

Affiliate = Person(s) holding a JD, not admitted to practice, who work for a law school
or bar association

*Newly admitted = Attorneys admitted on or after April 1, 2016
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NEW YORK STATE

BAR ASSOCIATION

JOIN OUR SECTION

[0 As a NYSBA member, PLEASE BILL ME $40 for Trial
Lawyers Section dues. (law student rate is $15)

1 wish to become a member of the NYSBA (please see
Association membership dues categories) and the Trial
Lawyers Section. PLEASE BILL ME for both.

[ I'am a Section member — please consider me for
appointment to committees marked.

Name

Address

City State Zip
The above address is my [ Home [ office L Both

Please supply us with an additional address.

Name

Address

City State Zip

Office phone ()

Home phone ()

(—)

Fax number

E-mail address

Date of birth / /

Law school

Graduation date

States and dates of admission to Bar:

Please return this application to:

MEMBER RESOURCE CENTER,

New York State Bar Association, One Elk Street, Albany NY 12207
Phone 800.582.2452/518.463.3200 e FAX 518.463.5993

E-mail mrc@nysba.org ® www.nysba.org

JOIN A TRIAL LAWYERS

SECTION COMMITTEE(S)

Please designate in order of choice (1, 2, 3) from the list below, a
maximum of three committees in which you are interested. You are
assured of at least one committee appointment, however, all appoint-
ments are made as space availability permits.

___Appellate Practice (TRIA1100)
___Arbitration and Alternatives to Dispute Resolution (TRIA1200)
___Commercial Collections (TRIA4200)
___Construction Law (TRIA3000)
___Continuing Legal Education (TRIA1020)
___Criminal Law (TRIA3300)

___Diversity (TRIA4100)

___Employment Law (TRIA3700)
___Family Law (TRIA4000)

___Lawyers Professional Liability and Ethics (TRIA3800)
___Legal Affairs (TRIA2900)

___Legislation (TRIA1030)

___Medical Malpractice (TRIA2200)
___Membership (TRIA3200)

___Motor Vehicle Law (TRIA3400)

___No Fault Law (TRIA3500)

___Real Property Law (TRIA3900)

___Trial Advocacy Competition (TRIA2700)
___Trial Practice (TRIA2800)

___ Website (TRIA4400)

___Workers Compensation (TRIA3600)

2018 MEMBERSHIP DUES
Class based on first year of admission to bar of any state.
Membership year runs January through December.

ACTIVE/ASSOCIATE IN-STATE ATTORNEY MEMBERSHIP

Attorneys admitted 2010 and prior $275
Attorneys admitted 2011-2012 185
Attorneys admitted 2013-2014 125
Attorneys admitted 2015 - 3.31.2017 60
ACTIVE/ASSOCIATE OUT-OF-STATE ATTORNEY MEMBERSHIP
Attorneys admitted 2010 and prior $180
Attorneys admitted 2011-2012 150
Attorneys admitted 2013-2014 120
Attorneys admitted 2015 - 3.31.2017 60
OTHER

Sustaining Member $400
Affiliate Member 185
Newly Admitted Member* FREE
DEFINITIONS

Active In-State = Attorneys admitted in NYS, who work and/or reside in NYS

Associate In-State = Attorneys not admitted in NYS, who work and/or reside in NYS
Active Out-of-State = Attorneys admitted in NYS, who neither work nor reside in NYS
Associate Out-of-State = Attorneys not admitted in NYS, who neither work nor reside in NYS

Sustaining = Attorney members who voluntarily provide additional funds to further
support the work of the Association

Affiliate = Person(s) holding a JD, not admitted to practice, who work for a law school
or bar association

*Newly admitted = Attorneys admitted on or after April 1, 2016
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JURY SELECTION/VOIR DIRE OUTLINE

By PETER S. THOMAS, P.C.
Attorney at Law / Trial Counsel
108-18 Queens Blvd., 6" Floor
Forest Hills, NY 11375
718-896-7200
www.QueensTrials@gmail.com
VOIR DIRE literally translated means, to “See and to Tell.” This will be your
tirst and best opportunity to have a direct conversation and open discourse with your
prospective jurors. Don’t let this opportunity be wasted. Be prepared and confident
when addressing your panel. Have an idea of what type of juror you are looking for
before you get to court. Knowing the facts of your case is not enough, you also need to
know who your client is, where they come from, and the impression they will make
when they take the witness stand. The general rule is to select jurors who are similarly

situated to your client, if possible. Jurors can be easily convinced of your arguments if

they can relate to your clients” condition or circumstance.

SUMMONING THE JURY

It is the duty of the court to impanel a fair and impartial jury. When a jury is
needed the court shall summon the panel, a group of citizens from which the jury in a
specific trial will be chosen. The court will not sustain a challenge to the jury pool unless
there has been a radical departure from the statutory scheme, fraud or bad faith is

shown.

PRE-VOIR DIRE

The concept of a pre-voir dire stage of the proceeding, while not statutorily
enunciated, is clearly a recognized part of the jury selection process. A determination
that a prospective juror should be discharged during pre-voir dire screening because of
physical impairments, family obligations, juror convenience, or work commitments is a

matter within the sole discretion of the court. Thus, though a defendant has a right to a



particular jury chosen, according to law in whose selection he or she has had a voice,
that right is subject to the broad discretion of the trial court to examine and excuse
prospective jurors before voir dire and to prevent a time-consuming phase of a jury trial
from becoming unduly protracted. Prospective jurors who have been sworn to answer
questions truthfully, but have not been individually questioned by counsel or selected
and sworn as trial jurors can be dismissed by the trial court sua sponte without the
exercise of a challenge. The dismissal of jurors in the pre-voir dire phase of trial does
not impinge on either party’s rights and is warranted out of concern for the burden on
jurors.

Thus, it is error for a court to refuse to swear a panel of prospective jurors prior
to the beginning of voir dire and the initial screening of the jurors, regarding their
knowledge of the case, familiarity with the parties and attorneys, potential witnesses,

and their ability to impartially serve on the jury.

QUALIFICATIONS OF PROSPECTIVE JURORS

In order to qualify as a juror, a person must:
* be a citizen of the United States and a resident of the County;
* be not less than 18 years of age;
* not have been convicted of a felony;
* be able to understand and communicate in the English language.
A deaf prospective juror who communicates in signed English is qualified for

jury service. Also, a person with significant visual impairment may also serve on a jury.

WHO MAY BE A JUROR?

All litigants in the courts of the state entitled to a trial by jury must have the right
to a jury selected at random from a fair cross-section of the community in the county or
other governmental subdivision wherein the court convenes. All eligible citizens must
have the opportunity to serve on juries in the courts of the state and will have an

obligation to serve when summoned for that purpose unless excused.



The Commissioner of Jurors must cause the names of prospective jurors to be
selected at random from the voter registration lists, as well as other available lists of the
residents of the county as the Chief Administrator of the Courts must specify. Such lists
include utility subscribers, licensed operators of motor vehicles, registered owners of
motor vehicles, state and local taxpayers, persons applying for or receiving family
assistance, medical assistance or safety net assistance, persons receiving state
unemployment benefits, and persons who have volunteered to serve as jurors by filing
with the Commissioner their names and places of residence. The Commissioner of
Jurors must select the names of prospective jurors or cause them to be selected at
random from the sources provided by such provision. The selection may be
accomplished by mechanical means or by any other method designed to implement the

purposes of the article regarding the selection of jurors.

NUMBER OF JURORS IN A CIVIL CASE

Generally, a total of eight jurors including two alternates shall be selected in a
civil case. The court may permit a greater number of alternates if a lengthy trial is
expected, or for any appropriate reason. Counsel may consent to the use of "non-
designated" alternate jurors in which event no distinction shall be made during jury
selection between jurors and alternates, but the number of peremptory challenges in
such cases shall consist of the sum of the peremptory challenges that would have been

available to challenge both jurors and designated alternates.

ALTERNATE JURORS

Whether or not alternate jurors are impaneled is within the trial judge's
discretion. Alternate jurors shall be drawn in the same manner as regular jurors, have
the same qualifications, and be subject to the same examination and challenges for
cause.

Alternate jurors are chosen after the regular panel is completed. They are chosen

in the same manner as the main panel and one additional peremptory challenge is



allowed for each two alternate jurors. Such peremptory challenges for alternate jurors
cannot be used to strike regular jurors.

An alternate juror shall replace a regular juror who, prior to the time the jury
retires to consider its verdict, becomes unable or disqualified to perform its duties. An
alternate juror who does not replace a regular juror shall be discharged at the time the
jury retires to consider its verdict. It is within the trial court's discretion to dismiss a

juror for cause and replace that juror with an alternate.

VOIR DIRE

Once the panel is established and the prospective jurors are summoned, the court
should establish that the prospective jurors are competent. The court has discretion to
question the jury pool or to allow the parties or their attorneys to question the
prospective jurors regarding their qualifications. The parties have a right to question the
prospective jurors with reference to challenges for cause and peremptory challenges in
addition to the court's inquiry into the qualifications. The method and control of the
voir dire exam is within the discretion of the court. The judge will normally question
the panel regarding the general qualifications and allow the attorneys to question the
panel regarding challenges for cause and peremptory challenges. The court's discretion
is, however, not unlimited, and if clear prejudice is found on appeal an abuse of
discretion may be grounds for reversal. Objections to voir dire not made at trial will be
deemed waived for purposes of appeal.

Individual jurors may be examined regarding answers given to the general
questions or for other good cause as allowed by the court. Questions on voir dire are
prepared to elicit information upon which to base a decision to challenge the
prospective juror for cause or to exercise a peremptory challenge.

A party may inquire into whether or not the prospective juror would be opposed
to awarding punitive damages in a negligence action if the court instructed them that
punitive damages might be considered.

During voir dire any reference to insurance should be made with caution.

Generally, any reference made to the fact that the defendant is covered by insurance



may result in a mistrial. An attorney, however, may determine whether a prospective
juror works for an insurance company doing business with the defendant, such
questions should be confined to those necessary to qualify the juror on the particular
facts of the case. An attorney should pose questions so as not to bring the subject of
insurance before the jury. One method approved by the courts allows the attorney to
inquire into a juror's business and upon responses that a juror works for an insurance
company the attorney may inquire further. If an improper question is posed, and is not
objected to at that time, such objection may be considered waived if the court gives

proper jury instructions.

METHOD OF JURY SELECTION

All prospective jurors shall complete a background questionnaire supplied by
the court in a form approved by the Chief Administrator. Prior to the commencement of
jury selection, completed questionnaires shall be made available to counsel. Upon
completion of jury selection, or upon removal of a prospective juror, the questionnaires
shall be either returned to the respective jurors or collected and discarded by court staff
in a manner that ensures juror privacy. With Court approval, which shall take into
consideration concern for juror privacy, the parties may supplement the questionnaire
to address concerns unique to a specific case.

Counsel must select prospective jurors in accordance with the general principles
applicable to jury selection and using the method designated by the judge. The methods
that may be used are:

(1) "White's method," as set forth by Part 202 of the Uniform Civil Rules of the

Supreme Court and County Court Section 202.33. Conduct of the Voir Dire;

(1) Prior to the identification of the prospective jurors to be seated in the
jury box, counsel shall ask questions generally to all of the jurors in the
room to determine whether any prospective juror in the room has
knowledge of the subject matter, the parties, their attorneys or the
prospective witnesses. A response from a juror that requires elaboration
may be the subject of further questioning of that juror by counsel on an
individual basis. Counsel may exercise challenges for cause at this time.



(2) After general questions have been asked to the group of prospective
jurors, jury selection shall continue in rounds, with each round to consist
of the following: (1) seating prospective jurors in the jury box; (2)
guestioning of seated prospective jurors; and (3) removal of seated
prospective jurors upon exercise of challenges. Jurors removed for cause
shall immediately be replaced during each round. The first round shall
begin initially with the seating of six prospective jurors (where
undesignated alternates are used, additional prospective jurors equal to
the number of alternate jurors shall be seated as well).

(3) In each round, the questioning of the seated prospective jurors shall
be conducted first by counsel for the plaintiff, followed by counsel for
the remaining parties in the order in which their names appear in the
caption. Counsel may be permitted to ask follow-up questions. Within
each round, challenges for cause shall be exercised by any party prior to
the exercise of peremptory challenges and as soon as the reason
therefore becomes apparent. Upon replacement of a prospective juror
removed for cause, questioning shall revert to the plaintiff.

(4) Following questioning and the exercise of challenges for cause,
peremptory challenges shall be exercised one at a time and alternately as
follows: In the first round, in caption order, each attorney shall exercise
one peremptory challenge by removing a prospective juror's name from a
"board" passed back and forth between or among counsel. An attorney
alternatively may waive the making of a peremptory challenge. An
attorney may exercise a second, single peremptory challenge within the
round only after all other attorneys have either exercised or waived their
first peremptory challenges. The board shall continue to circulate among
the attorneys until no other peremptory challenges are exercised. An
attorney who waives a challenge may not thereafter exercise a
peremptory challenge within the round, but may exercise remaining
peremptory challenges in subsequent rounds. The counsel last able to
exercise a peremptory challenge in a round is not confined to the
exercise of a single challenge but may then exercise one or more
peremptory challenges.

(5) In subsequent rounds, the first exercise of peremptory challenges
shall alternate from side to side. Where a side consists of multiple
parties, commencement of the exercise of peremptory challenges in
subsequent rounds shall rotate among the parties within the side. In each
such round, before the board is to be passed to the other side, the board
must be passed to all remaining parties within the side, in caption order,
starting from the first party in the rotation for that round.

(6) At the end of each round, those seated jurors who remain
unchallenged shall be sworn and removed from the room. The
challenged jurors shall be replaced, and a new round shall commence.

(7) The selection of designated alternate jurors shall take place after the
selection of the six jurors. Designated alternate jurors shall be selected
in the same manner as described above, with the order of exercise of



peremptory challenges continuing as the next round following the last
completed round of challenges to regular jurors. The total number of
peremptory challenges to alternates may be exercised against any
alternate, regardless of seat.

(2) "Struck method," as set forth by Part 202 of the Uniform Civil Rules of the

Supreme Court and County Court Section 202.33. Conduct of the Voir Dire;

(1) Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, selection of jurors shall be
made from an initial panel of 25 prospective jurors, who shall be seated
randomly and who shall maintain the order of seating throughout the
voir dire. If fewer prospective jurors are needed due to the use of
designated alternate jurors or for any other reason, the size of the panel
may be decreased.

(2) Counsel first shall ask questions generally to the prospective jurors
as a group to determine whether any prospective juror has knowledge of
the subject matter, the parties, their attorneys or the prospective
witnesses. A response from a juror that requires further elaboration may
be the subject of further questioning of that juror by counsel on an
individual basis. Counsel may exercise challenges for cause at this time.

(3) After the general questioning has been completed, in an action with
one plaintiff and one defendant, counsel for the plaintiff initially shall
guestion the prospective jurors, followed by questioning by defendant's
counsel. Counsel may be permitted to ask follow-up questions. In cases
with multiple parties, questioning shall be undertaken by counsel in the
order in which the parties' names appear in the caption. A challenge for
cause may be made by counsel to any party as soon as the reason
therefore becomes apparent. At the end of the period, all challenges for
cause to any prospective juror on the panel must have been exercised by
respective counsel.

(4) After challenges for cause are exercised, the number of prospective
jurors remaining shall be counted. If that number is less than the total
number of jurors to be selected (including alternates, where non-
designated alternates are being used) plus the maximum number of
peremptory challenges allowed by the court or by statute that may be
exercised by the parties (such sum shall be referred to as the "jury panel
number"), additional prospective jurors shall be added until the number
of prospective jurors not subject to challenge for cause equals or exceeds
the jury panel number. Counsel for each party then shall question each
replacement juror pursuant to the procedure set forth in paragraph (3).

(5) After all prospective jurors in the panel have been questioned, and all
challenges for cause have been made, counsel for each party, one at a
time beginning with counsel for the plaintiff, shall then exercise
allowable peremptory challenges by alternately striking a single juror's
name from a list or ballot passed back and forth between or among
counsel until all challenges are exhausted or waived. In cases with
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multiple plaintiffs and/or defendants, peremptory challenges shall be
exercised by counsel in the order in which the parties' names appear in
the caption, unless following that order would, in the opinion of the
court, unduly favor a side. In that event, the court, after consulting with
the parties, shall specify the order in which the peremptory challenges
shall be exercised in a manner that shall balance the interests of the
parties. An attorney who waives a challenge may not thereafter exercise
a peremptory challenge. Any Batson or other objections shall be
resolved by the court before any of the struck jurors are dismissed.

(6) After all peremptory challenges have been made, the trial jurors
(including alternates when non-designated alternates are used) then shall
be selected in the order in which they have been seated from those
prospective jurors remaining on the panel.

(7) The selection of designated alternate jurors shall take place after the
selection of the six jurors. Counsel shall select designated alternates in
the same manner set forth in these rules, but with an initial panel of not
more than 10 prospective alternates unless otherwise directed by the
court. The jury panel number for designated alternate jurors shall be
equal to the number of alternates plus the maximum number of
peremptory challenges allowed by the court or by statute that may be
exercised by the parties. The total number of peremptory challenges to
alternates may be exercised against any alternate, regardless of seat.

(3) "Strike and Replace method," in districts where the specifics of that method
have been submitted to the Chief Administrator by the Administrative Judge and
approved by the Chief Administrator for that district. The strike-and-replace method
must be approved only in those districts where the Chief Administrator, in his or her
discretion, has determined that experience with the method in the district has resulted
in an efficient and orderly selection process; or

(4) other methods that may be submitted to the Chief Administrator for use on
an experimental basis by the appropriate Administrative Judge and approved by the
Chief Administrator.

The trial judge must direct the method of jury selection that will be used for the

voir dire from among such methods.

CHALLENGES FOR CAUSE

A judge has an absolute duty to see that the jury selected is fair and impartial. A

juror may be removed for cause if a challenge against him exists which would likely
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affect his competency at trial. A juror's ability to be fair and impartial is impaired if,
because of his or her relationship to one of the parties, occupation, past experiences, or
any other reason, the juror would normally lean in favor of one party. To strike for
cause there must be a clear showing that a juror would not be able to follow the court's
instruction. When there are circumstances raising some question regarding a
prospective juror's qualifications, and such prospective juror assures the court that the
circumstances in question will not affect his or her judgment, the prospective juror's

promise is entitled to considerable deference.

PEREMPTORY CHALLENGES

After both parties have had an opportunity to challenge for cause, the court must
permit them to peremptorily challenge any remaining prospective juror, and such juror
must be excluded from service. Counsel shall exercise peremptory challenges outside of
the presence of the panel of prospective jurors. The plaintiff must exercise his
peremptory challenges first and may not, after the defendant has exercised his or her
peremptory challenges, make such a challenge to any remaining prospective juror who
is then in the jury box.

A peremptory challenge is an objection to a prospective juror for which no
reason need be given. Upon any peremptory challenge, the court must exclude the
person challenged from service. Peremptory challenges are not required by the United
States Constitution. Thus, without more, the loss of a peremptory challenge does not
constitute a violation of the constitutional right to an impartial jury.

The sole purpose of peremptory challenges is to permit litigants to assist the
government in the selection of an impartial jury. Thus, it is for the state to determine the
number of peremptory challenges allowed and to define their purpose and the manner
of their exercise.

Caution: A sworn juror may be challenged only for cause and not peremptorily.

If a district court's ruling on a peremptory challenge results in the seating of a juror
who should have been dismissed for cause, reversal is required. However, a defendant's

exercise of peremptory challenges is not denied or impaired when the defendant
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chooses to use a peremptory challenge to remove a juror who should have been excused
for cause. So long as the jury that sits is impartial, the fact that the defendant had to use
a peremptory challenge to achieve that result does not mean the Sixth Amendment was
violated.

CPLR § 4109, dealing with peremptory challenges, indicates, “the plaintiff or
plaintiffs shall have a combined total of three peremptory challenges plus one
peremptory challenge for every two alternate jurors. The defendant or defendants
(other than any third-party defendant or defendants) shall have a combined total of
three peremptory challenges, plus one peremptory challenge for every two alternate
jurors. The court, in its discretion before the examination of jurors begins, may grant an
equal number of additional challenges to both sides as may be appropriate. In any case
where a side has two or more parties, the court, in its discretion, may allocate that side's
combined total of peremptory challenges among those parties in such manner as may
be appropriate.”

The peremptory challenge also bolsters confidence in the system for the parties,
those to whom such confidence matters most. The mere appearance of impartiality
created by the peremptory challenge process can reassure parties of a trial's integrity.
Additionally, the process of weeding out bias in the jury may impress on the remaining

jurors their duty to remain impartial.

PREPARATION

The key to any voir dire is preparation. The lawyer should be intimately familiar
with the facts and issues in the case. Prior to the trial, a lawyer should develop themes
to proceed along and present during the case. Themes for the case should be based on
the facts and personalities of that specific case and present an easily understood and
believable view of the facts to the jury. Once the themes of the case are identified, this
will aid the lawyer in determining which type of jurors would be best suited for his or
her case. Several different themes should be explored and developed, however. Many

times the jury that is empaneled will be quite different from the jury the lawyer was
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trying to seat, and it may be necessary to change the emphasis of the lawyer's

presentation to appeal to the jurors selected.

MAKING JURORS FEEL AT EASE

One should remember that all people are prejudiced, and it is the lawyer's job to
discover the prejudices of the prospective jurors. Determining such prejudices in a
courtroom setting is a difficult task. The courtroom is an intimidating place for most
people. The trial will be many people's first exposure to the court system, and most
prospective jurors will be apprehensive about what is going to happen. An anxious
juror will not open up to an attorney. In order to perform a productive voir dire, the
lawyer's first job should be to put the jury at ease.

A lawyer should take the time in the beginning of jury selection to explain the
procedures and functions of the court, the lawyers, and the jury itself. A lawyer should
also explain the reason for the questions which must be asked in voir dire. It should be
clear to the jury that the lawyer is not asking questions for personal curiosity or trying
to pry into a prospective juror's private life unnecessarily. The function of voir dire is to
determine if there is anything in a person's background which could affect that person's
fairness in the case. The lawyer is trying to confirm that each person selected could
consider the evidence presented, and set aside any prejudices to render a verdict based
only on the evidence. The purpose and necessity of objections should also be explained
to the jurors. Once the prospective jurors understand what will happen and why, they

will be less anxious and more willing to listen.

CREATE A RELATIONSHIP WITH THE JURY

When conducting the voir dire, the lawyer should take every opportunity to
personalize the client and himself or herself. Use the client's first name when referring
to him or her. If the client is a corporation, personalize the representative, allow the jury
to form a relationship with him or her. The atmosphere should be somewhat informal
allowing the lawyer to create a relationship between the client and the jury and also

between the lawyer and the jury. One must be careful, however, not to over-dramatize
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the informality. The manner of the lawyer should be matter-of-fact so that the jury does
not consciously realize that the lawyer is working to create a relationship with the jury.

The lawyer may reveal something about himself or herself when first addressing
the jury. Such a disclosure may facilitate the relationship with the jury and let them
know that disclosures of a personal nature are expected and acceptable during the voir
dire. The lawyer provides a model for the potential jurors. If the lawyer does not appear
interested or open, the jurors will respond in the same manner. Also, if a potential juror
reveals an interest or a circumstance, which the lawyer shares, the lawyer should not
hesitate to mention this. Any identification between the lawyer and potential jurors
serves to build the rapport between the two.

Empathy with the jurors' situation is also necessary to develop a relationship.
The lawyer should emphasize the special job of a jury and let the potential jurors know
that the lawyer understands that their lives have been interrupted. Most people have a
negative impression of lawyers in general, and are anxious to have such an idea
confirmed. When questioning the jury the lawyer should be open and willing to listen
without judging. It may be beneficial to memorize the names and occupations of the
potential jurors, if possible. Although some consider memorizing the names of potential
jurors to be a contrived ploy, it is an early sign to the potential jurors that the lawyer
has worked hard and is prepared for the case. Also, calling people by their name will

appeal to their ego and communicate a sense of friendliness.

ESTABLISH CREDIBILITY

In the initial stage of voir dire, a lawyer should also strive to establish credibility
with the jury panel. The lawyer should not try to put the jury in awe of his or her
abilities. If the prospective jury perceives the lawyer as clever and brilliant, this may
alienate some, and they may develop sympathy for the other side. A lawyer may
consider cultivating the image of the underdog and ask for the jurors' help in
overcoming the clever, opposite counsel. However, any appearance of unfairness to the
opposite counsel should be avoided. The lawyer should be polite and courteous at all

times.
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Preparation and an intimate working knowledge of the case are the keys to
establishing credibility. Potential jurors will be able to tell if the lawyer is operating
without sufficient knowledge of the case. Also, preparation will allow the lawyer to
stand confident before the court and the potential jurors. Even if a totally unexpected
event takes place, the lawyer should handle it with an air of confidence and ease. A
lawyer's own insecurity or lack of ease can be a fatal blow to credibility with potential
jurors.

The lawyer should incorporate the above suggestions into his or her own
personal style. It will usually be apparent when a lawyer is affecting a characteristic for
the jury's benefit. Most people are unable to consistently and believably maintain an
uncomfortable style. Part of the jury's credibility assessment will be whether or not the
lawyer seems authentic and honest. If the jury does not believe that the lawyer is

authentic, much of the lawyer's credibility is lost.

DECLARE WEAKNESSES

The lawyer should also declare any weaknesses in the case or in the client's
character during voir dire. This conveys sincerity and softens the impact of the
information when presented by opposite counsel. Such a disclosure may also assist the
lawyer in picking the jury. If the client is a corporation, which has been the subject of
negative publicity, or an individual which has been convicted of a felony, the attorney
will want to address such issues and make the jurors commit to deciding the case fairly
despite such weaknesses. Hiding the weaknesses during jury selection only allows the
opposite counsel to bring them out during trial, when such revelations can be much

more damaging to the case and to the credibility of the lawyer.

TYPES OF QUESTIONS

The attorney should make it clear that he or she cares about the client and is
interested in each juror individually. Voir dire allows jurors to express their attitudes
and thoughts on issues. Voir dire is the only opportunity for the jurors to express their

opinions, except when they render the verdict. Open-ended questions allow jurors to
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tell the lawyer about their experiences and background. Many will consider it flattering
when an attorney takes a personal interest in their opinions and experiences. Closed
questions, however, may be useful when the questions are directed at the entire panel
to seek out specific opinions or when attempting to pin a juror down on an issue.

Unnecessary or embarrassing questions should be avoided whenever possible. If
an embarrassing question is necessary it should always be prefaced with an explanation
regarding why such information is needed. The lawyers should avoid words like bias,
prejudice or prejudgment when questioning the jury panel. Such words have a negative
connotation and will usually draw an automatic negative response. The attorneys
should not use complex language, and any legal terms should be defined.

Many times a lawyer will be able to identify a potential juror with strong
opinions against the client's position. If the lawyer questions the potential juror in an
attempt to have the juror disqualified, many fear that the opinions would influence the
rest of the panel. The influence, however, would be much greater if that person is left on
the panel and takes part in rendering the verdict. Allowing the potential juror to voice
his or her opinions may result in a dismissal for cause, thus preserving a peremptory
challenge. Also, the lawyer may be able to defuse potentially dangerous ideas or
opinions, which could otherwise influence other potential jurors.

The plaintiff's lawyer should also anticipate opposite counsel's questions when
developing the voir dire questions. If defense counsel's question can be predicted, the
plaintiff may be able to mitigate the input somewhat. For example, in a case with a
large corporation as a defendant, defendant's counsel may elicit commitments from the
panel that they will not decide the case based on sympathy. A plaintiff may defuse this
somewhat by asking if the prospective jurors understand that the purpose of putting on
evidence is to develop the facts of the case and not to create sympathy.

During the questioning the lawyer may determine that it would be beneficial to
have one of the jurors serve as foreperson of the jury. The lawyer may consider
directing subtle questions at such a juror to bring out the leadership qualities of the

juror.
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When phrasing the questions for voir dire the lawyer should avoid the use of
overbroad statements. For example, if a lawyer represents an insurance company in a
case involving the refusal of benefits and asks the panel if they feel that insurance
companies sometimes deny valid claims, most of the panel will raise their hands. Those
that do not respond are jurors who would favor the lawyer's position. The lawyer has
now identified his or her strongest jurors for the other side to strike. A more effective
course would be to narrow the question, replacing "sometimes" with "always" or
"routinely.” Narrow phrasing may identify jurors who would be dangerous to your case

without revealing your strongest jurors.

RELUCTANT OR SHY MEMBERS OF THE PANEL

Often a potential juror will be reluctant to answer questions with more than yes
or no answers. This may happen despite a lawyer's best attempts to create a friendly
conversational atmosphere. In order to put such people at ease a lawyer should
demonstrate empathy with the person's situation and show genuine interest in the
person's answers. After putting the person at ease start out with easy questions, like
questions about his or her employment and hometown. Once the person starts talking

carefully return to the opinion questions.

DIFFICULT MEMBERS OF THE PANEL

Another problem may occur if a person is openly hostile or defensive to the
lawyer's questions. In such a situation it is very easy to get into argument with the
potential juror and become frustrated. Both responses can be deadly injuries to the
lawyer's credibility. Never argue with a member of the jury panel. Always be polite and
courteous. Showing anger or insecurity will only diminish the lawyer in the minds of
the other potential jurors. If a person presents an openly hostile attitude the lawyer
must deal with it at that time. Avoiding a hostile member of the panel will also cause a
loss of credibility. The lawyer should politely, yet firmly, inquire into the reason for the

potential juror's hostility and allow the juror to talk. Many times the judge will dismiss
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such a juror for cause and the lawyer may gain credibility by tactfully handling a

situation.

FAVORABLE MEMBERS OF THE PANEL

Many lawyers will avoid questioning a favorable member of the panel hoping
that the opposite counsel will overlook the juror when making peremptory strikes. Such
a ploy may work in certain circumstances. Often it is obvious to all sides when a person
holds opinions favorable to one side, and a peremptory challenge of such a person is
almost guaranteed. When such a situation arises the lawyer must accept that such a
juror will be dismissed. The lawyer, however, may still want to give the juror an
opportunity to voice his or her opinions as to why someone should favor the lawyer's

position.

DISQUALIFYING A POTENTIAL JUROR

If the questions reveal a prejudice held by a potential juror the lawyer should
attempt to make the potential juror disqualify himself or herself. In order for such a
potential juror to be dismissed for cause the lawyer must extract a statement from the
potential juror affirming that he or she could not set aside his or her prejudice and give
fair consideration to the evidence.

A sympathetic approach to the potential juror is usually the most successful in
acquiring a disqualifying statement. Such a statement is difficult to acquire and must be
coaxed out of a juror. Questions should be phrased regarding the jurors "beliefs" and
"opinions." The juror must admit that it would take more evidence than that required
by the law in order for the juror to find against his or her prejudice.

If a potential juror does not believe that punitive damages or damages for pain
and suffering should be awarded, the plaintiff's attorney would want to have the
person removed. An attempt to have the person disqualify himself or herself as a juror
may be conducted as follows:

Q. As a juror, you understand that you are obligated to follow the law as

instructed by the judge?
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Q. Many people, including myself, disagree with different aspects of the law, and
don't you agree that it would be difficult for someone who strongly disagrees with a
point of law to render a verdict based on that law?

Q. It is fair to the parties in this action for them to know that each juror will
discharge their duties in accordance with the law, based on the evidence presented.
Don't you agree?

Q. You understand, don't you, that my client, Izveri Painful, is asking for
monetary compensation (punitive damages) for the injuries he received?

Q. Mr. Painful is entitled to know that you will apply the law in this case
objectively, even if you disagree with the law. That is fair isn't it?

Q. Part of the damages includes pain and suffering (punitive damages), and as a
juror you would be responsible for awarding such damages. If you feel it would be
difficult for you to consider these damages as a valid part of the claim, that is perfectly
understandable, but Mr. Painful is entitled to a jury that can apply the law as instructed
by the judge. Do you think that your feelings toward this type of damages would make
it difficult for you to accept the law regarding such damages?

Q. It would probably have to be an exceptional case for you to consider
awarding such damages wouldn't it?

Another situation where an attorney may attempt to disqualify a potential juror
occurs when the client is a defendant in a case where the plaintiff's situation could
invoke the sympathy of a potential juror who has experienced similar circumstances.
An attempt to disqualify such a person may be conducted as follows:

Q. I understand that because of your experiences you may have sympathy for
the plaintiff's situation. That is certainly understandable, but you understand, don't
you, that a juror must not let sympathy interfere with his or her decision in the case?

Q. We all feel some sympathy for the plaintiff because he was injured, but if that
were allowed to influence the decision, then my client would not be getting a fair trial,
would he?

Q. Don't you agree that my client is entitled to have the case decided on the facts

of the case?
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Q. If you felt that your previous experiences or any natural sympathy you feel
toward the plaintiff would influence your decision as a juror, you would tell us,
wouldn't you?

Q. Do you feel that due to your previous experience and any natural sympathy
that it would be difficult for you to decide this case, based only on the facts?

The lawyer should tread lightly when pursuing the disqualification of a potential
juror. If the prospective juror states firmly that he or she can be fair, further questioning
may alienate that prospective juror and others. If the juror will not disqualify himself or
herself, make the juror commit to setting aside prejudices and deciding the case fairly.
Also make such a juror promise not to influence other jurors regarding such a prejudice.
The lawyer may want to add that if someone else attempts to influence the juror

regarding such prejudice, the juror will recognize such an attempt and disregard it.

SEEKING COMMITMENTS FROM JURORS

During voir dire, the lawyer will also want to have the jurors commit to
following the law and awarding the client a judgment if the client's case is proven. Such
a commitment may be inquired into when questioning the panel generally, but it is
more effective when an affirmative promise is extracted from an individual juror. The
plaintiff's lawyer may also inquire as to whether or not a prospective juror would
award a large verdict if the evidence substantiated a large verdict. Many people feel
that it is unethical for someone to collect a large amount of punitive damages in a case.

As noted above, if such a prospective juror will admit that he or she could not
award money damages if the case is proven, the judge may dismiss that prospective
juror for cause. Even if the judge will not dismiss the prospective juror, a peremptory
strike may be appropriate. If counsel does not wish to use a peremptory challenge, then
the potential juror must commit to set aside his or her prejudices and decide the case
fairly.

Defense counsel, especially those representing large or wealthy defendants, may
seek a commitment that any award will be based only on the facts, and comparative

wealth will not be considered. Pursuing such a commitment, however, should be
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carefully considered and formulated. It is possible that such a line of questioning could
emphasize the wealth of the defendant in the jurors' minds rather than minimize that

factor.

CATCHALL QUESTIONS

At the end of the voir dire a lawyer should always indicate that he is about to
finish and ask the panel if there is anything that has not been mentioned which could
affect a juror's ability to be fair and impartial. No matter how complete the voir dire
someone may hold information back waiting for the lawyers to ask specifically about
such information. If the lawyer makes it clear that voir dire is almost complete a general
open-ended question gives a prospective juror an opportunity to reveal any

information that they may have withheld.

ANTICIPATING JURORS’” REACTIONS

Predicting others' behavior is always an uncertain business, but there are general
principles which a lawyer may rely on. It has been suggested that the facts of the case
are the most important predictors of a jury's decision. The next variable considered is
the credibility of the witnesses, then the effectiveness of the lawyers, and finally the
jury's own internal factors. The attorney must work with the facts and present them in
an effective clear manner to the jury. The lawyer should also attempt to personalize the
client and his or her witness and begin to build up their credibility in jury selection. The
effectiveness of the lawyer will depend on the considerations mentioned above. The
lawyer may be able to manipulate the last factor by selecting jurors during voir dire that
will be open to the client's case.

Generally, a lawyer should look for characteristics which allow a prospective
juror to identify with the client. People will naturally favor a side if they can imagine
themselves in the same position. However, if a prospective juror identifies with the
client through a shared occupation, through race or ethnic background, or some other
factor obvious to the other jurors, it may not be wise to pick that juror. Such a person

may normally be an excellent juror for the client, but if that person is the only one
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sharing that characteristic with the client, he or she will be self-conscious of the
similarity. Such a juror may actually lean towards the other side in an effort to illustrate
his fairness and impartiality.

If a person was previously a party to a lawsuit, that person will most likely favor
that same side of the case. In a personal injury case, a person who was previously
injured will require some probing. If the person did not employ a lawyer and settled the
case satisfactorily with the insurance company, that person may be more favorable for
the defense. Also, if the person was unable to collect due to a lack of insurance, this may
favor the defense. If the person hired a lawyer to pursue the claim, that person would
probably favor the plaintiff. A person who has been a defendant in a lawsuit will
generally be a defendant's juror, but proper investigation into the circumstances should
always be explored.

Another factor to consider is gender. In certain cases a person may favor another
of the same gender if the injury is one which may be unique to people of that gender.
Examples of such a case would be sexual harassment charges made against men
wherein other men may be more sympathetic toward the defendant than women. Also,
women may favor a woman who has been the victim of a defective birth control device.
Generally, however, it appears that men and women both tend to be less forgiving

toward those of the same gender rather than someone of the opposite gender.

NONVERBARL COMMUNICATION

A key to determining the attitudes and beliefs of potential jurors is nonverbal
behavior. Many times a juror's underlying feelings are communicated more clearly
though his or her facial expressions or movements rather than his or her verbal
answers. Also, a person's dress and carriage can assist an attorney in identifying
background similarities between the juror and the client. Frequent eye contact and
affirmative nods or smiles tend to reveal a juror's disposition toward a certain side.

There are many different nonverbal signals which could reveal a potential juror's
attitudes. The following is a list of some nonverbal cues which may be revealing;:

(1) eye contact;
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(2) facial expressions;
(3) posture;

(4) gestures;

(5) speech;

(6) dress and accessories (e.g. briefcases, purses, books, etc.).

GROUP DYNAMICS OF THE JURY

Although much focus is placed on an individual juror's beliefs and opinions, the
jury should also be viewed as a whole. The jury may be considered as a group of people
engaged in a multi-party negotiation. Keeping this view in mind, a lawyer should
exercise challenges based on how a potential juror would affect jury functioning along
with the potential juror's background and opinions. Categorizing jurors may help a
lawyer predict how a juror will affect the group dynamics of the jury. Four categories
may be used to classify potential jurors' personalities:

(1) Leaders exert the most control over the other jurors. Leaders are
usually talkative, sociable and initiate interaction with others.

(2) Followers are usually submissive and support members of the jury
that appeal to them. Followers may be easily influenced, lack assertive and verbal skills,
and respond with short answers.

(3) Negotiators seek compromise and the maintenance of order. They act
as arbitrators and attempt to resolve conflicts. They may see both sides of an issue and
seek a compromise based on others' feelings rather than their own view of the facts.

(4) Resisters will not change their views once they have formulated an
opinion. They are rigid people who are often outspoken and develop opinions quickly.

They are articulate and do not waffle in their opinions.

GRADING SYSTEM

It is a good idea to develop some type of system for ranking or grading potential
jurors. Such systems vary from lawyer to lawyer. Some use plus and minus signs; some

use numbers or letters to indicate a potential juror's attitudes. Such a system is
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important to provide a shorthand method for recording impressions of the potential
jurors. When evaluating the members of the panel the following factors should be
considered:

(1) physical appearance;

(2) economic status;

(3) similar experiences;

(4) attitudes expressed;

(5) leadership qualities.

COURTROOM/JURY CONSULTANTS

In the last decade trial lawyers across America have found it very useful to retain
the expertise of courtroom consultants. More often than not consultants are
psychologists or sociologists who have expertise in linguistics and have had extensive
research and experience in the judicial process. Consultants offer services ranging from
conducting mock trials to countywide surveys based upon potential jury voir dire.
Experience in jury trials will often allow attorneys to develop skills to determine the
teelings and responses of potential jurors simply by the body language demonstrated
during voir dire. Consultants, however, often sit anonymously in the courtroom during
jury selection in order to view juror responses. The consultant's views can be immensely
valuable in choosing those persons who are best suited for the case.

When preparing a case lawyers usually become so immersed in the facts and
their arguments that it is difficult to maintain objectivity. Such a response is normal
because the more people are exposed to information the more likely they are to believe
it is true. Trial consultants can provide an objective viewpoint to develop strategy and
evaluate reactions of potential jurors.

Many consultants observe that they are often brought into the case too late.
Consultants may work best when retained six months before trial in order to evaluate
the strength of a case. One type of case that consultants believe will benefit least from

research is one where everything rests on a party's credibility. A consultant in that case,
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however, may still be valuable to assist the attorney when choosing a jury which may
believe the party's story.

A consultant is usually helpful, but the relative cost of a consultant, when
compared to the damages involved, should be kept in mind by the lawyer. A
convenient rule of thumb is that a consultant may not be justified if the damages
involved are less than $500,000. Other factors, however, may justify the use of a
consultant. The case may be the first of many similar cases against a defendant, and a
victory for the plaintiff could set a precedent. Another case which may justify the use of
a consultant would be one which involved a party whose reputation would be greatly

affected by the outcome of the case.

CONCLUSION

Many times the best tool in jury selection is the lawyer's intuition combined with
thoughtful case-specific questions posed to the jury panel. Such questions are the result
of careful preparation by the lawyer. The lawyer should look at the facts and
personalities involved in the case and develop a "theme" which the lawyer will use to
present the case. The lawyer should then develop a profile of the "ideal juror" for that
case. Once the previously mentioned projects are completed it should be apparent
which factors will be important in the jury selection process and these factors should be

used to develop the questions for voir dire.
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Motion Practice During Trial (Motions in limine through Post Trial Motions)

l. Motions that should be made before trial

1. Summary Judgment Motions.

a.

Timing. CPLR 3212(a) provides that a summary
judgment shall be made no later than a date set by the
court, which shall be no earlier than 30 days after the
filing of the note of issue. In the event no such date is
set, a summary judgment motion shall be made no later
than 120 days after the note of issue has been filed. This
deadline is strictly enforced and cannot be extended
without leave of the court upon a finding of good cause
(see Birill v City of New York, 2 NY3d 648, 652 [2004]; but
see Bennett v St. John's Home, 128 AD3d 1428 [4"
Dept.] [plaintiff waived claim that defendant’s summary
judgment motion was untimely by stipulating to extend the
120-day period before the motion was made and where
the court accepted the stipulation], affd 26 NY3d 1033
[2015] [declining to consider the timeliness issue as
unpreserved]). Good cause requires a “satisfactory
explanation for the untimeliness” of the motion,
regardiess of the merits of the motion (Brill v City of New
York, 2 NY3d at 652; see Miceli v State Farm Automobile
Ins. Co., 3 NY3d 725 [2004]). Thus, an untimely, but
meritorious, summary judgment motion will not be
considered absent a showing of good cause for the delay.
To be considered, an argument for good cause must be
raised in the initial moving papers, and not for the first
time in reply papers (see Nationstar Mortgage LLC v
Weisblum, 143 AD3d 866 [2d Dept. 2016]; Goldin v New
York and Presbyterian Hosp., 112 AD3d 578 [2d Dept.

2013]; Bissell v New York State Dept. of Transp., 122
AD3d 1434 [4" Dept. 2014]; Cabibel v XYZ Assoc., LP,

36 AD3d 498 [1%! Dept. 2007]). Note 1: A local rule or a
judge’s part rules may shorten the 120-day period. In
Kings County, Uniform Civil Term Rules of the Supreme

1
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Court, Part C, Rule 6 requires litigants to move for
summary judgment no later than 60 days after filing of the
note of issue. The Second Department has upheld the
60-day deadline and has refused to extend it without a
showing of good cause (see Goldin v New York and
Presbyterian Hosp., 112 AD3d 578 [2d Dept. 2013]). In
some cases, a preliminary conference order setting forth
a date by which summary judgment motions must be filed
will trump other rules (see Crawford v Liz Claiborne, 11
NY3d 810 [2008] [where local rule and judge’s rule
differed, local rule prevailed since the preliminary
conference order directed summary judgment motions to
be filed in accordance with the local rule]; Waxman v
Hallen Construction Company, Inc., 139 AD3d 597 [1*
Dept. 2016] [no good cause to extend the 60-day
deadline set forth in a preliminary conference order of one
judge simply because the reassigned judge’s rules
allowed for 120 days]). Note 2: A court can consider an
untimely cross-motion for summary judgment if (1) the
initial motion is timely, (2) the cross-motion involves the
same or substantially similar issues as the initial motion,
and (3) the cross-motion is a true cross-motion under
CPLR 2215 (see Kershaw v Hospital for Special Surgery,
114 AD3d 75 [1° Dept. 2013]).

Substance. The movant must make a prima facie
showing of entitiement to judgment as a matter of law by
submitting proof, in admissible form, demonstrating the
absence of any material issues of fact (Pullman v
Silverman, 28 NY3d 1060, 1062 [2016], citing Alvarez v
Prospect Hosp., 68 NY2d 320, 324 [1986]). If this initial
burden has not been met, the motion must be denied
regardless of the sufficiency of the opposing papers (see
Pullman v Silverman, 28 NY3d at 1062, citing Winegrad v
New York Univ. Med. Ctr., 64 NY2d 851, 853 [1985]; but

see Oleg Barshays D.C., P.C. v State Farm Insurance
Co., 14 Misc.3d 74, 76 [App. Term, 2d & 11" Jud. Dists.
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2006] [although movant's submissions did not establish a
prima facie case, the court invoked its power to search
the record and considered the opposition papers in
determining that a prima facie case existed]). However, if
this initial burden has been met, the burden then shifts to
opponent to present proof, in admissible form, showing
the existence of a triable issue of fact (see Alvarez v
Prospect Hosp., 68 NY2d at 324). With respect to the
submissions of both the movant and the opponent, bare,
conclusory assertions are insufficient (see Pullman v
Silverman, 28 NY3d at 1062, citing Winegrad v New York
Univ. Med. Ctr., 64 NY2d at 853). Also insufficient are
expert conclusions that assume facts not supported by
the evidence (see Abrams v Bute, 138 AD3d 179, 195 [2d
Dept.], v denied 28 NY3d 910 [2016] [internal citations
omitted]). Note: Any movant for summary judgment runs
the risk that the court will invoke its power to search the
record and grant summary judgment in the opponent’s
favor without the need for a cross motion (see CPLR
3212[b]). This power, however, is limited to issues that
were presented to the court on the motion (see Dunham v
Hilco Construction Co., 89 NY2d 425 [1996]).

2. Motions pursuant to Frye v United States (293 F. 1013 [1923])

a.

Timing. While there is no prescribed time period within
which to move for a Frye hearing, it is highly advisable
that such a motion be made well in advance of trial to
avoid delaying the proceedings and wasting the jury’s
time (see Larose v Pathare, 29 Misc3d 1203[A] [Sup.
Court Richmond County] [2010]; Drago v Tishman, 4
Misc3d 354 [Sup. Court, N.Y. County 2004)).

General Acceptance. Frye sets forth the threshold
standard for admissibility of novel scientific evidence in
New York State. Novel scientific evidence is admissible

3
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as long as it is based upon “a principle or procedure [that]
has ‘gained general acceptance’ in its specified field”
(People v Wesley, 83 NY2d 417, 422 [1994], quoting Frye
v United States, 293 F 1013, 1014). “[T]he particular
procedure need not be ‘unanimously endorsed’ by the
scientific community but must be ‘generally accepted as
reliable’ (People v Wesley, 84 NY2d at 423, quoting
People v Middleton, 54 NY2d 42, 49 [1981]). ‘Deduction,
extrapolation, drawing inferences from existing data, and
analysis are not novel methodologies and are accepted
stages of the scientific process” (id. quoting Ratner v
McNeil-PPC, Inc., 91 AD3d 63, 71 [2d Dept. 2011]).

The burden of establishing general acceptance rests on
the party seeking to introduce the scientific evidence (see
Del Maestro v Greco, 16 AD3d 364 [2d Dept. 2005]). In
assessing the reliability of novel scientific evidence,
courts must not be concerned with the conclusions
themselves, but rather the reliability of the scientific
principles and methodologies on which those conclusions
are based (see Parker v Mobil Qil Corp., 7 NY3d 434,
446-447 [2006]; Lugo v New York City Health & Hospitals
Corp., 89 AD3d 42, 56 [2d Dept. 2011]). While the
absence of textual support directly on point is relevant in
assessing a theory’s weight, it is irrelevant in determining
the theory’s admissibility (LaRose v Corrao, 105 AD3d at
1009-1010, citing Zito v Zabarsky, 28 AD3d at 46). As
long as a “synthesis of various studies or cases
reasonably permits the conclusion reached by the . . .
expert,” the reliability of the expert’s theory will have
been demonstrated (LaRose v Corrao, 105 AD3d at
1010, quoting Zito v Zabarsky, 28 AD3d 42, 44 [2d Dept.
2006)).

Underscoring the reliability component is the Second
Department’s decision in Krackmalnik v Maimonides
Medical Center (142 AD3d 1143 [2d Dept. 2016]). In
Krackmalnick, plaintiff's expert espoused a novel theory
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of causation relating to infant plaintiff's cerebral palsy
(2014 WL 12625065 [Sup Ct, Kings County 2014]). Infant
plaintiff was born with normal Apgar scores, no
respiratory distress, no organ damage and no spasticity.
She had a normal brain CT scan shortly after birth
followed by a normal brain MRI four months later.
Nevertheless, she began to exhibit neurological deficits,
which became more profound and catastrophic over time.
After holding a Frye hearing, Supreme Court rejected, as
scientifically unreliable, plaintiff's expert's proposed
theory that the child’s neurological deficits were caused
by perinatal hypoxic ischemic encephalopathy. In doing
so, the Court rejected plaintiff's expert’s theory that infant
plaintiffs normal MRI four months after birth was the
result of pseudonormalization. In the absence of any
radiologic proof of brain atrophy months after infant
plaintiff's birth, Supreme Court dismissed the scientific
reliability of Dr. Adler’s theory that infant plaintiff's
progressive neurological disability was due to cerebral
palsy associated with intrapartum hypoxia.

On appeal, the Second Department reversed. The Court
noted that scientific reliability is not measured by whether
“‘a majority of the scientists involved subscribe to the
conclusion,” but by whether the theory espoused follows
“‘generally accepted scientific principles and methodology
in evaluating clinical data to reach [the] conclusion[]” (142
AD3d at 1144, quoting Zito v Zabarsky, 28 AD3d at 44).
The Second Department concluded that plaintiff's expert's
testimony was not based on novel theories and, in fact,
did not even warrant a Frye hearing (id.).

Foundation. Even if novel scientific evidence meets the
threshold “general acceptance” test under Frye, it still
must meet the requirement for a proper foundation, i.e., a
determination that “the accepted methods were
appropriately employed in a particular case” (Parker v
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3.

a.

Mobil Qil Corp., 7 NY3d at 447). “[E]ven though [an]
expert is using reliable principles and methods and is
extrapolating from reliable data, a court may exclude the
expert's opinion if ‘there is simply too great an analytical
gap between the data and the opinion proffered” (Cornell
v 360 West 51% Street Realty, LLC, 22 NY3d 762, 781
[2014], quoting General Electric Co. V Joiner, 522 US
136, 146 [1997]). Thus, where the scientific studies do
not show causation, but rather support a “risk,” “linkage”
or “association” between the scientific theory and the
claimed injury, the expert's testimony should be
precluded as without foundation (see Cornell v 360 West
51% Street Realty, LLC, 22 NY3d at 781).

Motions to Preclude Expert Testimony.

Timing. CPLR 3101(d)(1)(i) provides that, upon request,
“‘each party shall identify each person upon whom the party
expects to call as an expert witness at trial and shall
disclose in reasonable detail the subject matter on which
each expert is expected to testify, the substance of the
facts and opinions on which each expert is expected to
testify, the qualifications of each expert witness and a
summary of the grounds for each expert’s opinion.” The
ostensible purpose of the statute is to promote satisfactory
disclosure so that the parties may adequately prepare for
trial (see Silverberg v Community General Hosp. of
Sullivan County, 290 AD2d 788 [3d Dept. 2002]).
Contradictory testimony at trial may surprise and prejudice
adversaries who have the right to rely on the expert
disclosure in preparation of their defense (see Caccioppoli
v City of New York, 50 AD3d 1079 [2d Dept. 2008];
Gregory v Mulligan, 266 AD2d 344 [2d Dept. 1999]). The
problem is that there is no prescribed time within which a
party is required to respond to a demand for an expert
disclosure notice (see Rivers v Birnbaum, 102 AD3d 26 [2d
Dept. 2012]). Indeed, a party can wait until the eve of trial
to submit a CPLR 3101(d) notice, which effectively defeats
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the purpose of the statute. A late CPLR 3101(d) notice
precludes a party from effectively moving for summary
judgment. Moreover, it may prompt a late request for a
Erye hearing, or a late motion to preclude an expert from
testifying on the ground that the proposed testimony
contained in the expert disclosure notice is outside the
scope of the pleadings. Such motions should be made in
advance of trial if the basis for the motion is evident before
the trial begins (see Rivera v Montefiore Medical Center,
28 NY3d 999 [2016] [trial court did not abuse its discretion
in denying, as untimely, plaintiff's mid-trial motion to
preclude defendant’s expert testimony on the ground that
the expert's CPLR 3101[d] notice was deficient]).
However, in the absence of timely disclosure, it is almost
impossible for the opponent to make such motions before
jury selection begins.

(i)  InRivers v Birnbaum (102 AD3d 26), the Second
Department acknowledged that there is no time
within which a party must comply with a demand
pursuant to CPLR 3101(d)(1)(i). There,
defendants failed to respond to plaintiffs’ request
for expert disclosure more than a year after the
request had been made. Plaintiffs had submitted
their own expert disclosure notice and filed a note
of issue before receiving any response to their
request. When defendants moved for summary
judgment, plaintiffs sought to preclude defendants’
expert affirmations on the ground that defendants
failed to respond to plaintiff's demand for expert
disclosure pursuant to CPLR 3101(d)(1)(i) before
the note of issue was filed. In rejecting plaintiff's
argument, the Second Department concluded that
CPLR 3101(d)(1)(i) “does not specify when a party
must disclose its expected trial experts upon
receiving a demand,” nor does it set forth any
sanction for noncompliance (id. at 35). Citing to
the statute’s language and its purpose of
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b.

promoting prompt settlements, the Court opined
that the statute contemplates that disclosure might
not occur until close to the commencement of trial
(id. at 37-38). Nevertheless, the Court
acknowledged the possibility that a trial court, in
its discretion and under its authority to supervise
discovery, may impose its own deadline for
complying with a demand pursuant to CPLR
3101(d)(1(i), as well as its own sanctions for
noncompliance (id. at 39)

Qualifications. A witness need not be a specialist in a
particular field in order to qualify as an expert. As long as
the witness is skilled in a particular field through
experience, study or observation, the witness is qualified
to render an expert opinion in that field (Meiselman v
Crown Hts. Hosp., 285 NY 389, 398-399 [1941]; de
Hernandez v Lutheran Medical Center, 46 AD3d 517 [2d
Dept. 2007]). In the end, it is left to the trial court’s
discretion to determine whether an expert is qualified to
testify (see People v Jones, 171 AD2d 691 [2d Dept.
1991)).

Admissibility. The decision to admit expert testimony
remains within the trial court’s discretion (see People v
LeGrand, 8 NY3d 449, 455-456 [2007]; De Long v County
of Erie, 60 NY2d 296 [1983]). To be admissible, an
expert’s testimony must be (1) necessary to explain
something that is outside the ken of the jury and from
which the jury would benefit and, (2) relevant. Expert
testimony is admissible “where the conclusions to be drawn
from the facts ‘depend upon professional or scientific
knowledge or skill not within the range of ordinary training
or intelligence”™ (People v Cronin, 60 NY2d 430, 432
[1983], quoting Dougherty v Milliken, 163 NY 527, 533
[1900]). Thus, issues that call for a professional opinion or
technical knowledge will often require testimony from an
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expert. In cases that turn on eyewitness identification, with
no corroborating evidence, a jury would benefit from expert
testimony on the accuracy of the eyewitness identification
(see People v LeGrand, 8 NY3d 449, 456-457 [2007]; see
also People vBoone _ NY3d __, 2017 NY Slip Op
08713 [December 14, 2017] [where a witness'’s
identification of defendant is at issue, and the witness and
the defendant are of different races, the court, upon
request, is required to charge the jury on the cross-race
effect, even in the absence of expert testimonyy).

At Trial Ruling-An example

Plaintiffs sought to supplement their CPLR 3101(d)
notice, after openings, to include expert testimony as to
two theories of negligence against defendants. The
theories would be in the alternative placing liability either
vicariously or as a specific act of negligence.

Defendants argued that plaintiffs were improperly
attempting to add a new theory against them after the
commencement of the trial. Defendants further claimed
they were not on notice and that they prepared their
defense based solely upon one type of liability-vicarious
liability. Therefore, defendants argued that either
plaintiffs be precluded from supplementing the 3101(d)
notice to include a new theory of liability, or due to the
prejudice to the defendants, a mistrial should be granted.

This issue arose following opening statements. In his
opening statement, co-defendant asserted that he
properly removed plaintiff's decedent’s lymph node and
that it was the hospital, not him, that was responsible for
fixing the specimen for pathology. Immediately following
openings, plaintiffs requested to amend the 3101(d)
notice to include, based upon co-defendant’s opening,
whether it was the hospital's or the surgeon’s decision to
send a non-fixed specimen to pathology so that a flow
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cytometry could be conducted. Plaintiffs contend this was
always their theory and it was not a surprise, since the
prior pleadings in this case had set forth this theory of
liability.

The intent of CPLR 3101(d)(1)(i) is to provide all parties
timely disclosure of expert witness information so that
they may adequately and thoroughly prepare for trial (see
Silverberg v. Community General Hosp. of Sullivan
County, 290 A.D.2d 788 [3d Dept. 2002]). When a party
wishes to supplement their disclosure, especially during
the trial, a court must consider whether the belated
disclosure is willful or intentional and whether it is
prejudicial to the opposing party (see Young v. Long
Island University, 297 A.D.2d 320 [2" Dept. 2002}).
CPLR3101(d)(1)(i) does not mandate that a party be
precluded from proffering expert testimony merely
because of noncompliance (see 1861 Capital Master
Fund, LP v. Wachovia Capital Mkts., LLC, 95 A.D.3d 620
[1% Dept 2012)). It is left to the sound discretion of the
trial court to address expert disclosure issues (SCG
Architects v. Smith, Buss & Jacobs, LLP, 100 A.D.3d 619
[2" Dept 2012]; McColgan v. Brewer, 84 A.D.3d 1573 [3"
Dept 2011]).

The potential prejudice from this ruling is obvious to both
sides; however, in weighing the relevant factors in this
particular case plaintiffs were allowed to supplement the
3101(d) notice.

Rationale: Plaintiffs’ theory of liability did not change.
Even if plaintiffs’ original intent was to offer evidence of
the doctor’'s negligence, based upon the deposition
testimony of the hospital witness, which demonstrated
joint responsibility between the doctor and the hospital
staff, the hospital should have anticipated the possible
supplement to the expert’s testimony. Thus, the
argument of “trial by ambush” was without merit. Plaintiffs
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were merely buttressing their theory in light of the
statements made during openings (Sadek v. Wesley, 117
A.D.3d 193 [1*' Dept 2014]).

In addition, any prejudice would be alleviated by the
granting of an adjournment or by the fact that the hospital
had ample time to discuss this issue with an expert if
desired (see McCluskey v. Shapiro, 273 A.D.2d 284 [2™
Dept 2000]).

In conclusion, plaintiffs’ conduct was neither willful nor
intentional, but rather the consequence of reacting to the
proposed testimony alluded to in opening statements.

1. In Limine Motions

a.

Definition. An in limine motion is a motion that seeks an
evidentiary ruling. It does not involve the merits of the
underlying controversy and does not affect a substantial right of
a party (see Rondout Elec. v Dover Union Free School Dist.,
304 AD2d 808, 811 [2d Dept. 2003]). Thus, a motion that
effectively seeks dismissal should never be made at trial before
a plaintiff has rested. Such a motion is not an in limine motion,
but rather is akin to a summary judgment motion, the
submission of which would be untimely (see Ofman v Ginsberg,
89 AD3d 908 [2d Dept. 2011]; West Broadway Funding
Associates v Friedman, 74 AD3d 798 [2d Dept. 2010]; City of
New York v Mobil Oil Corp., 12 AD3d 77 [2d Dept. 2004}).

Motions to Preclude Testimony- Hearsay

Any out-of-court statement offered for its truth is inadmissible
hearsay. A party may seek an evidentiary ruling on the
admissibility of a statement prior to the testimony being
received at trial. An out-of-court statement may be received
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under one of the following recognized exceptions, provided that
the evidence is reliable and the probative worth of the
statement is not outweighed by its prejudicial effect (see Nucci
v Proper, 95 NY2d 597, 602 [2001]).

(i) Declaration Against Interest. A party may seek to introduce
an out-of-court statement made by a nonparty on the ground
that it is a declaration against interest. To qualify as a
declaration against interest, the following four criteria must be
satisfied:

“(1) the declarant is unavailable; (2) the declaration when
made was against the pecuniary, proprietary or penal
interest of the declarant; (3) the declarant had competent
knowledge of the facts; and (4) there was no probable
motive to misrepresent the facts” (Basile v Huntington
Utilities Fuel Corp., 60 AD2d 616, 617 [2d Dept. 1977],
citing Richardson, Evidence [Prince, 10" ed.], §257).

The moving party may assert that any statement contrary to the
position taken during the trial should be admissible for its truth.
The counter argument of course is that the statement
constitutes hearsay and would not qualify as a declaration
against interest

(il) Excited Utterance. To qualify under the excited utterance
exception to the hearsay rule, the statement must be made
while under the influence of a startling event that is “sufficiently
powerful to render [the declarant’'s] normal reflective processes
inoperative’ (People v Cantave, 21 NY3d 374, 381 [2013],
quoting People v Vasquez, 88 NY2d 561, 574 [1996]; see
People v Leach, 137 AD3d 1300 [2d Dept. 2016]). Essential to
this exception “is that the declarant spoke while under the
stress or influence of the excitement caused by the event, so
that [the declarant’s] reflective capacity was stilled’”” (People v
Cantave, 21 NY3d at 381, quoting People v Nieves, 67 NY2d
125, 135 [19886]).
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(iii) Present Sense Impression. “[S]pontaneous descriptions of
events made substantially contemporaneously” with the
observation of the events are admissible, provided that there is
sufficient corroboration (People v Brown, 80 NY2d 729, 734-
735 [1993]; see People v Jones, 28 NY3d 1037 [2016]).

(iv) Business Record Exception. Records generated in the
regular course of business pursuant to CPLR 4518(a) or
certified pursuant to CPLR 4518(c) fall within a recognized
exception to the hearsay rule (see e.g. Berkovits v Chaaya, 138
AD3d 1050, 1051 [2d Dept. 2016] [‘A hearsay entry in a
hospital record is admissible under the business record
exception to the hearsay rule if the entry is germane to the
diagnosis or treatment of the patient"]).

(v) Dying Declaration. Statements that are made with “a sense
of impending death, with no hope of recovery” (People v
Nieves, 67 NY2d 125, 132 [1986]; see also People v Elder, 108
AD3d 1117 [4™ Dept. 2013]). Expressions of belief or
suspicions, as opposed to factual statements, are inadmissible
(see People v Gumbs, 143 AD3d 403 [1% Dept. 2016], Iv.
denied 28 NY3d 1145 [2017]).

Party Admission

Unlike a declaration against interest, a party admission does
not have to be against the declarant’s interest at the time it was
made (see People v Swart, 273 AD2d 503, 505 [3d Dept.
2000]). As long as the statement is inconsistent with a party’s
position at trial and there is proof connecting the party to the
statement, the statement is admissible as a party admission
(see Coker v Bakkal Foods, Inc., 52 AD3d 765, 766 [2d Dept.
2008); see also Kamolov v BIA Group, LLC, 79 AD3d 1101,
1102 [2d Dept. 2010)).

Even assuming the statement is inconsistent with the position
at trial, there must be sufficient proof linking the statement to
party (see Cuevas v Alexander’s, Inc., 23 AD3d 428, 429 [2d
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Dept. 2005]; Gunn v City of New York, 104 AD2d 848, 849-850
[2d Dept. 1984]). “[S]ince the source of the statement remains,
at best, unclear, [movant] failed to establish that [defendant’s]
records contain an admission so as to otherwise justify the

statement’s disclosure to the jury” (Echeverria v City of New
York, 166 AD2d 409,410 [2d Dept. 1990)).

Motion in Limine - Attempting to limit damages

A defendant may move to preclude a plaintiff from pursuing a
loss-of-chance theory, i.e. limit damages. Generally, such a
basis for the motion in limine would be considered premature.

Initially, it should be noted that whether New York has adopted
a loss-of-chance theory of liability remains an unresolved
question of law (see e.g. Wild v Catholic Health System, 21
NY3d 951 [2013] [declining to review, as unpreserved,
defendant’s claim that New York State has not yet adopted the
loss-of-chance theory of liability]). Nevertheless, a plaintiff's
inquiries into whether a defendant’s actions deprived plaintiff of
an appreciable chance of a cure are proper to establish
proximate cause. In determining proximate cause, a “plaintiff's
expert need not quantify the exact extent to which a particular
act or omission decreased a patient’s chances of survival or
cure, as long as the jury can infer that it was probable that
some diminution in the chance of survival had occurred” (Jump
v Facelle, 275 AD2d 345, 346 [2d Dept. 2000]; see also D.Y. v
Catskill Regional Medical Center, AD3d __ , 2017 N.Y.
Slip Op. 08577 [3d Dept. 2017]; Clune v Moore, 142 AD3d
1330 [4™ Dept. 2016]; Fellin v Sahgal, 35 AD3d 900 [2d Dept.
2006]).

Thus, in proving proximate cause, a plaintiff may show that a
failure to diagnose diminished plaintiff's chance of a better
outcome (see Goldberg v Horowitz, 73 AD3d 691, 694 [2d
Dept. 2010]; Alicea v Ligouri, 54 AD3d 784, 786 [2d
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Dept.2008]). In contrast, a defendant may urge the court to
adopt the proportionate recovery standard set forth in Birkbeck
v Central Brooklyn Medical Group, (2001 N.Y. Slip Op.
40133[U] [Sup. Ct. Kings County]). However, nothing in the
New York cases cited by Birkbeck require a plaintiff to quantify,
in percentages, the loss of a chance of a cure. Of course, a
jury may consider what impact a plaintiff's poor prognosis or
diminished life expectancy may have on any pecuniary loss
(see Schneider v Memorial Hospital for Cancer and Allied
Diseases, 100 AD2d 583, 584 [2d Dept. 1984]). However,
there is no requirement that a plaintiff's recovery be specifically
limited to a percentage of chance of survival.

1.  Trial Motions

1.

Motion for Judgment During Trial (Directed Verdict). CPLR
Rule 4401 provides, in part, that “[a]ny party may move for
judgment with respect to a cause of action or issue upon the
ground that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter
of law, after the close of the evidence presented by an
opposing party with respect to such cause of action or issue, or
at any time on the basis of admissions. Grounds for the motion
shall be specified.” Thus, unless the basis for the motion is a
damaging admission, a motion made by either a plaintiff or a
defendant for a directed verdict must be made at the close of
the adversary’s case. If it is made prior to the close of the
opponent’s case, the motion will be denied as premature, even
if there is merit to the motion (see Griffin v Clinton Green South,
LLC, 98 AD3d 41 [1° Dept. 2012]); Cass v County Coop Ins.
Co., 94 AD2d 822 [3d Dept. 1983)).

Example - Medical Malpractice Cases. Sometimes a defendant
will move for an order granting a directed verdict pursuant to
CPLR § 4401 on the grounds that the evidence submitted is
legally insufficient to establish proximate cause. Specifically,
defendant may claim that nothing in plaintiffs’ proof

15



44

demonstrates that the departures deprived plaintiff of a
substantial loss of chance of survival, or that an earlier
diagnosis would have increased the chance of survival.

In cases alleging medical malpractice, a plaintiff must establish
proximate cause by presenting sufficient medical evidence from
which a reasonable person might conclude that it was more
probable than not that the defendant’s departure was a
substantial factor in causing plaintiff's injury (see Johnson v
Jamaica Hosp. Med. Ctr., 21 AD3d 881, 883 [2d Dept. 2005]).
The fact that an “expert cannot quantify the extent to which the
defendant’s act or omission decreased the plaintiff's chance of
a better outcome or increased [the] injury’” is irrelevant, “as
long as evidence is presented from which the jury may infer
that the defendant’s conduct diminished plaintiff's chance of a
better outcome or increased [the] injury’” (Alicea v Ligouri, 54
AD3d 784, 786 [2d Dept. 2008], quoting Flaherty v Fromberg,
46 AD3d 743, 745 [2d Dept. 2007]; see Semel v Guzman, 84
AD3d 1054, 1055-1056 [2d Dept. 2011]).

Where there is sufficient proof from which the jury may infer
that defendant’s negligence resulted in a delayed diagnosis
which, in turn, decreased plaintiff's chance for a better outcome
(see Semel v Guzman, 84 AD3d at 1056), that is sufficient. A
jury can infer that plaintiff would have had a better outcome had
defendant’s omissions not delayed the diagnosis (see Goldberg
v Horowitz, 73 AD3d 691 [2d Dept. 2010]).

Motion for Judgment (Lack of Informed Consent). CPLR Rule

4401-a provides that after a plaintiff's case, a court must grant
a defendant’s motion to dismiss a plaintiff's lack of informed
consent claim if the plaintiff has failed to present expert
testimony. The difference between this Rule and CPLR Rule
4401 is that it applies only to lack of informed consent claims
and requires mandatory dismissal in the absence of expert
testimony.

16
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Motion for a Continuance or a Mistrial. “At any time during the
trial, the court, on motion of any party, may order a continuance
or a new trial in the interest of justice” (CPLR 4402). A motion
for a mistrial or a continuance is committed to the sound
discretion of the trial court. Motions for a continuance are
usually granted when an unexpected event arises at trial and
an adjournment is a reasonable remedy (see Notrica v North
Hills Holding Co., LLC, 43 AD3d 1119 [2007]).

Motion for a New Trial or to Confirm or Reject or Grant Other
Relief after Reference to Report or Verdict of Advisory Jury.
CPLR Rule 4403 refers to the verdict of an advisory jury or the
report of a referee. The Court may accept or reject the verdict
or recommendation and can make its own findings. A party
moving to confirm, rehear or reject the findings has 15 days
from the rendering of the advisory verdict or recommendation
within which to do so.

Post-Trial Motion for Judgment and New Trial (CPLR Rule
4404[a]). Such motions shall be made “before the judge who
presided at the trial within fifteen days after decision, verdict or
discharge of the jury” (CPLR Rule 4405). This limitation is
inapplicable where the relief is granted on the court’s own
motion.

There are five types of relief contemplated under a motion
pursuant to CPLR Rule 4404(a):

(a) Judgment Notwithstanding the Verdict (JNOV). CPLR Rule
4404(a) provides that a court, upon motion or on its own
initiative, may set aside a verdict and direct judgment in favor of
a party entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

“To sustain a determination that a jury verdict is not supported
by sufficient evidence, as a matter of law, there must be ‘no
valid line of reasoning and permissible inferences which could
possibly lead rational men to the conclusion reached by the jury

17
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(b)

(c)

on the basis of the evidence presented at trial’”” (Nicastro v
Park, 113 AD2d 129, 132 [2d Dept. 1985], quoting Cohen v
Hallmark Cards, Inc., 45 NY2d 493, 499 [1978]). In deciding
whether a jury’s verdict is legally sufficient, the trial court must
view the evidence in a light most favorable to the prevailing
party, giving the prevailing party the benefit of every favorable
inference that can reasonably be drawn from the evidence
(Szczerbiak v Pilat, 90 NY2d 553, 556 [1997]).

It is not the function of the court to weigh the evidence when
making this determination, but rather it is a question of law.
The motion must be determined whether, as a matter of law,
judgment should be awarded in the movant's favor.

Setting Aside the Verdict as Against the Weight of the
Evidence. CPLR Rule 4404(a) permits a judge to set aside a
verdict as against the weight of the evidence.

Whether a jury’s verdict is against the weight of the evidence
involves a discretionary determination. A jury verdict is against
the weight of the evidence if the jury could not have reached
the verdict based on “any fair interpretation of the evidence”
(Ramirez v Mezzacappa, 121 AD3d 770 [2d Dept. 2014]).
“Only where the jury’s resolution of a factual issue is clearly at
variance with the proffered testimony does the failure to set
aside the verdict and direct a new trial constitute an abuse of
discretion” (Eisk v City of New York, 74 AD3d 658, 659 [1*
Dept. 1990]). Where a court finds that the verdict is against the
weight of the evidence, the relief is a new trial.

New Trial on Damages. The amount of damages to be
awarded is a question for the jury, “whose determination is
entitled to great deference” (Fryer v Maimonides Medical
Center, 31 AD3d 604, 608 [2d Dept. 2006]). A court may order
a new trial on damages only where the court finds that the
jury’s award deviates materially from reasonable compensation

18
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(d)

(e)

(see CPLR 5501[c]; Quijano v American Transit Ins. Co., 155
AD3d 981 [2d Dept. 2017]). In determining what is reasonable
compensation, courts may look to comparable cases for

guidance (Quijano v American Transit Ins. Co., 155 AD3d 881).

Hung Jury. CPLR Rule 4404(a) authorizes a court to order a
new trial when “the jury cannot agree after being kept together
for as long as is deemed reasonable by the court.”

Interest of Justice. A court may order a new trial in the interest
of justice.

IV.  Timing of Motions - Preservation

A motion will effectively preserve an issue for appeal if it is specific
and is made contemporaneously with the alleged error so that the trial
court has the opportunity to remedy the error (see People v Balls, 69 NY2d
641 [1986]).

Examples:

(a) Mistrial Motions. A motion for a mistrial should be
preceded by a specific, contemporaneous objection in order to
preserve an issue for appeal (see People v Romero, 7 NY3d
911 [2006]; People v White, 153 AD3d 1369 [2d Dept. 2017];
Rivera v Bronx-Lebanon Hosp. Ctr., 70 AD2d 794 [1* Dept.
1979]; Schein v Chest Serv. Co., 38 AD2d 929 [1° Dept.
1972]). Thus, an attorney who objects to comments on
summation should not wait until the end of summation to voice
his or her objection in a motion for a mistrial. While some
attorneys may not wish to disrupt the flow of an adversary’s
summation, it is crucial that the attorney nonetheless challenge
any objectionable remarks in a timely fashion in order to
preserve an error on summation. However, in certain civil
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cases, a court may entertain an untimely motion for a mistrial in
the interest of justice (see Smith v Rudolph, 151 AD3d 58 [1*
Dept. 2017]).

(b) Motion for a Trial Order of Dismissal. A general motion for
a trial order of dismissal will not preserve a specific claim on
appeal (see CPL 470.05[2]; People v Gray, 86 NY2d 10
[1995]).

VI. Tips on How to Write an Effective Motion.

1.

2.

Clarity
Specificity
Brevity
Principled

Disclose Adverse Authority

20
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Opening Statements

William Pagan, Esq.
The Pagan Law Firm, P.C., NYC
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By: William Pagan, Esq.
The Pagan Law Firm, P.C.
805 Third Avenue, Suite 1205
New York, New York 10022

WPagan@thepaganlawfirm.com
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Law: CPLR R 4016. Opening and Closing Statements

(a) Before any evidence is offered, an attorney for each plaintiff having a separate right, and
an attorney for each defendant having a separate right, may make an opening statement. At
the close of all the evidence on the issues tried, an attorney for each such party may make a
closing statement in inverse order to opening statements.

First Opportunity to Present the Case to The Jury (other than Voir Dire):

e Shape the jury’s perspective of the entire trial

e Establish credibility (enables jurors to trust the testimony, documents, and other
evidence you will submit to them)

Purpose:
e Peak further interest: movie trailer
e Present most compelling parts of your claim rather than entire claim

e Not mundane recitation of facts

e Not argument (arguments may not precede the introduction of evidence)

Theme of The Case:

e What does the case center around? i.e., Personal responsibility? Unheeded
complaints?

e All evidence should fit around theme

e Theme should resonate with people
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Opening of The Opening:
e Cut to the chase - Shows Confidence and preparation

e Set up: story of people, events and evidence

e Once is enough: “I will prove....”, “the evidence will establish....”

Presentation:

e Present facts in a manner that leaves only one conclusion (don’t misstate facts)
e Personalize your client

e Your client suffered real harm and is entitled to compensation

e Who are the players

e Ultimate responsibility (Argument?)

e Don’t refer to inadmissible evidence

e Don’t discuss opponent’s evidence

Style:

e Contract between you and jury — “I promise | will...; you promise you will....”

e But beware, Broken Promises

Weaknesses In Your Case:

e NoO witnesses
e Accident not reported
e Failure to continue medical treatment

e Failure to seek medical treatment immediately after accident
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Harmful Facts:

e Surveillance video

e Criminal convictions (recent in time)

e Prior injury/claim to/for same body part being claimed in this case
e Admissions in hospital records/police reports

e Contradicting witness(es)

Visual Aids:

e Picture tells a thousand words
e Already pre-marked in evidence?
e Notice to court?

e Notice to adversary?

Defense Opening:

e Must address issues raised by plaintiff’s opening — silence is a tacit admission
e Clear denial of liability

e Plaintiff’s omissions

Damages:

e Todiscuss or not to discuss — depends on you and your jury

e And if you do, how specific will you be
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e Hard vs. soft damages

e Specific amount of money damages? Will you turn the jury off?

Will Great Opening Win Your Case? Bad Opening Lose Your Case?

e Jurors do not make up their minds either way after opening. Claim that 80% of jurors
decide case at opening is false. See, William L. Burke, Ronald L. Poulson, and Michael

J. Brondino, Fact or Fiction: The Effect of the Opening Statements, 18 J. Contemp. L.
195 (1992).




56

FAILURE TO TIMELY OBJECT

The plaintiffs' challenge to comments made by defense counsel in his opening statement is
unpreserved for appellate review, since the plaintiffs failed to seek curative instructions or
immediately move for a mistrial. Crosby v Barry, 2017 NY Slip Op 07705 (2d Dep’t.)

Defendant did not preserve his challenges to the prosecutor's opening statement and
summation.

Defendant either failed to object, made generalized objections, or, when his objections were
sustained, did not request any further relief.... People v Perez (David), 2017 NY Slip Op
51434(U) (App. Term 1% Dep’t).

The defendant's contention that he was deprived of a fair trial by certain comments made by
the prosecutor during his opening statement and summation is unpreserved for appellate
review, since the defendant either failed to object to the challenged remarks or made only a
general one-word objection. People v Spigner, 2017 NY Slip Op 06468 (2d Dep’t.)

The defendant's contention that he was deprived of a fair trial by statements made by the
prosecutor during her opening statement and on summation is unpreserved for appellate
review because defense counsel did not object to the challenged remarks. People v Lopez-
Miralles, 2017 NY Slip Op 06377 (2d Dep’t.)

The defendant's contention that he was deprived of his right to a fair trial due to improper
remarks made by the prosecutor during his opening statement and summation is unpreserved
for appellate review since the defendant failed to object to any of the remarks he now
challenges. People v. King, 2016 NY Slip Op 08092 (2d Dep’t.)

OPENING THE DOOR IN OPENING

The defense counsel opened the door to the admission of those statements in his opening
statement. People v. Santos, 2017 NY Slip Op 04300 (2d Dep’t.)

Here, defense counsel opened the door during his opening statement by describing defendant
and LaDuke as "basically mirror images of each other." Therefore, it was proper for the
People to submit evidence that Shedd identified defendant in a photo array and that, when
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given a separate photo array containing LaDuke's picture, he did not recognize any
photographs. People v. LaDuke, 2016 NY Slip Op 04978 (3d Dep’t.).

Defense counsel opened the door to this testimony by emphasizing during her opening
statement that the girls were not the only witnesses to the Brown murder, and that in fact 8 to
10 people had witnessed the shooting, thus suggesting that there would be no reason for the
defendant to single out just three of the witnesses against his brother. People v. Harris, 117
A.D.3d 847, 985 N.Y.S.2d 643 (2d Dep’t. 2014)

DIRECTED VERDICT AFTER OPENING (but see, Judicial Admissions)

Plaintiffs' opening statement warranted dismissal of the negligence and negligent battery
claims, because the claim that defendant Shepard used excessive force in handcuffing plaintiff
Vaynshelbaum is fatally inconsistent with the negligence claims. However, plaintiffs' opening
statement did not make any factual admissions that were fatal to their intentional battery claim
based on Officer Shepard's alleged use of excessive force. Vaynshelbaum v City of New York,
2016 NY Slip Op 04302 (1% Dep’t.).

During his opening statement, the workers' counsel admitted that the worker had removed his
eye gear just prior to the accident, and, after he did so, he was struck by the flying debris. The
appellate court held that this admission absolved the owner of liability under 12 NYCRR 23-
1.8(a) and § 241(6). Accordingly, this cause of action was properly dismissed. Beshay v
Eberhart L.P. #1, 69 A.D.3d 779, 893 N.Y.S.2d 242 (2d Dep’t. 2010).

Dismissal of negligence complaint immediately after plaintiff’s opening statement was
appropriate, even though such dismissals are disfavored, where complaint, as amplified by
bill of particulars and opening statement, did not demonstrate that defendants had breached
duty owed to plaintiff. Perretti v New York, 132 A.D.2d 537, 517 N.Y.S.2d 272 (2d Dep't
1987).

Court properly dismissed complaint at completion of plaintiff’s opening statement for failure
to state cause of action where plaintiff’s counsel, by admissions and statements, subverted
plaintiff’s alleged cause of action. Musso v St. Thomas Aquinas Church, 213 A.D.2d 529, 624
N.Y.S.2d 912 (2d Dep't 1995).
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[T]he court should not dismiss [after opening] unless there is "no doubt"” that the plaintiff
cannot recover....If, nonetheless, on the opening it becomes obvious that the suit cannot be
maintained because it lacks a legal basis or, when taken in its strongest light, cannot succeed,
the court has the power to dismiss and such rulings have been upheld. De Vito v. Katsch, 157
A.D.2d 413, 556 N.Y.S.2d 649 (2d Dep’t. 1990).

JUDICIAL ADMISSION ON OPENING

A factual assertion made by an attorney during an opening statementis a judicial
admission. A judicial admission is not itself dispositive but merely evidence of the fact
admitted. Tullett Prebon Fin. Servs. v. BGC Fin., L.P., 111 A.D.3d 480, 975 N.Y.S.2d 18 (1
Dep’t. 2013)

The trial court properly directed a verdict in plaintiffs' favor on the issue of defendants'
negligent maintenance of the steps on which the injured plaintiff fell, based on defense
counsel's admissions of negligence during his opening statement, which were not refuted by
the evidence presented at trial, and were "fatal" and "ruinous™ to any defense on this issue.
Echavarria v. Cromwell Assocs., 232 A.D.2d 347, 347, 648 N.Y.S.2d 600 (1% Dep’t. 1996).

Formal judicial admissions take the place of evidence and are concessions, for the purposes
of the litigation, of the truth of a fact alleged by an adversary. Informal judicial admissions
are facts incidentally admitted during the trial. These are not conclusive, being merely
evidence of the fact or facts admitted. Wheeler v. Citizens Telcoms. Co. of N.Y., Inc., 18
A.D.3d 1002, 795 N.Y.S.2d 370 (3d Dep’t. 2005)
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Direct & Cross Examination
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NYS BAR ASSOCIATION
NOENESNINSERANCE COMPENSATION LAW (TICL)
ANNUAEMEETING JANUARY 25, 2018

Trial Techniques
Direct and Cross Examination

By:
Heather Palmore
Michael C. Tromello
Thomas Valet

“Yes, there’s such a thing as luck in trial law, but it only comes at
3 o’clock in the morning. You'll still find me in the library looking for
luck at 3 o’clock in the morning.”
Louis Nizer

Preparation

> Convey a sense of confidence (aka “swagger”).

> Organize your evidence in advance —where permitted, pre-mark the
evidence - know which witness will be the foundation for the
introduction of that evidence.

If the evidence is not admitted during the trial, you it cannot be
mentioned during summation.

Know your theme. Know what you need to prove and know which
witness and / or evidence will get you to your destination - What is
your theme?????

A good theme should be brief, interesting, obvious and easy to
remember. “This case is about a greedy general contractor who put profits
over safety.”

1/19/2018
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Direct & Cross Examination

Direct

Properly prepare your witness -- but don’t over prepare - you don’t want
your witness to sound rehearsed - know what you want to accomplish
with each witness and how each witness fits into your overall theme.

Ask short, direct, open ended questions - “who, what, where, when and how”
are good leads.

During direct, the witness is the star - stay in the background.
Avoid leading questions - Questions that suggest an answer - Use
transitional questions to get to the facts of your case. “I direct your

attention to September 20, 2017” - then go back to “who, what, where, when
and how” (See Exhibit A).

Direct & Cross Examination cont’d
Direct
> Listen carefully to the witness” answer -- make sure that they have
adequately responded to the question - if necessary ask follow up

questions to clarify.

» Explain non-verbal responses to preserve the record. Make sure you
make a record of all judicial decisions.

Freeze frame the event - be patient but not boring. (See Exhibit B)

Know the rules of evidence and the predicate questions that need to be
asked and answered in order to move something into evidence.

Properly voir dire the expert witness to enhance their testimony whether
you want it admitted or want it excluded. (Exhibit C)
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Direct & Cross Examination cont’d

Cross

Remember, unlike direct, the attorney is the star —ask leading
questions only.

Have a plan - know what you want to accomplish - don’t allow the
witness to recite a narrative - be patient - don’t jump the gun - be
prepared when the Judge curtails the cross to move the case along. (See
Exhibit D)

Not every witness needs to be cross-examined.

Getting the witness to agree with generally accepted principles along
with their prior statements - clearly identify any inconsistencies in the
testimony.

Be nice until it’s time not to be nice - set up the witness before attacking -
make sure you end on high note. (Exhibit D)
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Mr. Mar-Direct-Defendant 107

THE COURT: oOkay. Even though the Plaintiff
hasn't yet rested, we're shifting now to the
Defendant's case. Just understand that the Plaintiff

may have additional evidence to present. Okay.

Ms. PALMORE: The defense calls [N
S @ itness called on behalf of

Defendant, after having first been duly sworn by the Court
Clerk, was examined and testified as follows:
THE CLERK: State your name and address for

the record.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. PALMORE:

Q Good afternoon.
A Good afternoon.
Q I'm going to ask you to keep your voice up so the

jury can here you.

A okay.

Q If I can't hear you, that means the jurors can't
hear you. Back on February 12, 2012 were you employed?

A Green Bay Sanitation.

Q And how long were you employed there?
A It's going to be 30 years.
Q

And what is your position at Green Bay Sanitation?
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Mr. Mar-Direct-Defendant 108

I'm a truck driver.

And what does those duties and responsibilities

what are the duties?
Yes.

Picking up garbage, driving, help -- my help.

That's what I do.

Q
A

And what region or area do you pick up garbage?

So many areas, different places 1ike Queens, some

days Great Neck, different routes.

Q
the jurors
A
Q
that day?

A

= 0 r L

Boulevard.

I'm going to ask that you keep your voice up so
can hear you. oOkay?
Okay.

Now back on February 12, 2012, were you working

where did I work?

where were you working?

In Queens.

And what part of Queens were you assigned to?
well, we started -- the garage 1is on Merrick

So I drive delivery. I come down Liberty Avenue

to sutphin Boulevard. I make a left turn on Sutphin

Boulevard.

Q

I make a right turn at 105th Avenue.

Let me stop you there. My question to you 1is what

area or region were you supposed to be picking up garbage on
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Mr. Mar-Direct-Defendant 109
February 12, 20127
A Started work on Liverpool Street.
Q And can you describe to the jury or share with the

jury the route that you took from your garage at Green Bay
Sanitation in route to Liverpool?

A Yes. I come down Merrick Boulevard to Liberty
Avenue. I made a right turn on Liberty Avenue. I drove
down to Sutphin Boulevard. At Sutphin Boulevard, I turned
Teft and on 105th Avenue, I made a right turn. I passed
waltham Street and Liverpool Street. I made a right turn
and stopped in the middle of the block.

Q That would be the first stop?

A Stop.

Q The middle block of Liverpool?

A Right.

Q And that would be between 105th and Sutphin;
correct?

A Liberty Avenue.

Q Liberty Avenue; correct?

A Correct,

Q Now on the date of February 12, 2012, can you
share with this jury what time you began work?

A I start work 1ike 6:00, 6:30.

Q was there anybody with you at about 6:00 or 6:30
on February 12, 20127
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My, Mar-Direct-Defendant

A Yes, my helper.

Q who is your helper?

A Fabian Yunger. I don't know if I pronounced it
correctly.

Q Can you share with the jury what Fabian Yunger's

job is, if you know?

A He's my helper.

Q what is he supposed to do?

A He's supposed to pick up garbage.

Q while you drive the truck?

A Not exactly. We help each other because he's my
helper. That doesn't mean he has to work by himself on the
back of the truck. I get out of the truck and move
containers also. we help each other.

Q Now back on February 12, 2012, did there come a
time when Fabian Younger proceeded to your first stop at
Liverpool? Yes or no?

A Yes.

Q And can you share with the jury from the time you
Teft the garage at Merrick Boulevard, the route that you
took to Liverpool on February 12, 20127

MR. OGEN: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE COURT: Yes. This is about the third
time. Move on.

MS. PALMORE: Your Honor, I asked him what
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Mr. Mar-Direct-bDefendant

his route was?
THE COURT: And he answered.
MS. PALMORE: That was in general. Now I'm

asking specifically as to February 12, 2012.

THE COURT: Followed the same route?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Next guestion.

Q once you arrived at sutphin Boulevard, can you
share with this jury what you observed when you got to
sutphin Boulevard on February 12, 20127

A I was at a traffic light. I saw the blue van in
front of me, and I drove west, and he drove east.

Q stop there. And so at the traffic light, you
observed a blue van facing you?

A Yes.

Q And when you saw this blue van facing you on
sutphin Boulevard, did you make any observations as to how

many people were in the vehicle?

A Yes.

Q And how many people were in the vehicle?

A Three persons.

Q And can you describe them?

A Yes.

Q what did they Took 1ike?

A It was two males, one female in the middle.

111
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Mr. Mar-Direct-Defendant

A female in the middle?

Yes.

And there was a male driver?
A male driver.

And a male closer to the passenger door?

> o0 » O P O

Exactly.

Q And once you made this observation of these
individuals in this blue van on Sutphin Boulevard, what did
you see next?

A well, I see they make a left -- right turn on
sutphin Boulevard. And I make left turn right behind this
vehicle.

Q And when they made their right, you made your

Teft. You were behind them?

A Yes.
Q And what street was this that you turned on from
Sutphin?

A From Liberty to Sutphin.

Q And did there come a point in time when you saw
this vehicle turn again?

A 105th Avenue.

Q And did that car make a right or left?

A He made a right turn.

Q And is it the same car that you saw back on

sutphin?

112
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Mr. Mar-pDirect-Defendant 113

A Exactly the same.

Q And when you saw the car make that right on 105th,
were you behind that car?

A Yes.

Q And that's the next thing that you observed as the
car made a right turn on to 105th Avenue?

A As he drove on 105th, I make a right on 105th
Avenue right behind the vehicle. He stopped at the stop
sign at waltham Street.

Q The stop sign on wWaltham and 105th controls the
traffic on 105th?

A Exactly.

Q And did that blue car come to a stop?

A Yes.

Q And what did you observe the blue car do after it
came to a stop?

A He pulls on the side of the road on 105th Avenue
and parked right on the right side.

Q The right side of 105th after you crossed over
waltham?

A Exactly.

Q Do you know how far distance-wise from the corner
that car parked from 105th?

A From the corner?

Q Yes.
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A There is a fire hydrant right there. So I figure
from the fire hydrant to the corner, it's 20 feet.

Q And did that car park in front of the fire
hydrant?

A Yes.

MS. PALMORE: I would Tike to show the
witness what has been received in evidence as
Plaintiff's Exhibit No 1.

(officer handing witness exhibit.)

Q Mr. Mar, I'm showing you what has been marked as
Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 in evidence. Do you recognize what 1is
depicted in that photograph?

A Yes, I do.

Q And what is that?

A This is the corner from the intersection of
waltham Street and 105th Avenue?

Q And we can agree that the cars that are there 1in
this photograph are not the same cars that were there that
day; correct?

A Correct.

Q Is the area where the Plaintiff parked his car
indicated on that photograph?

A Right here is a UPS truck parked right in the same
spot.

MS. PALMORE: Can I ask the witness to take
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his pen and mark with an X where he saw the Plaintiff
park his vehicle.
Q And put your initials there, Mr. Mar.
A EXcuse me?
Q Put your initials.
THE COURT: You asked him to mark with a X?
MS. PALMORE: Yes.
THE COURT: Either an X or his initials is
fine.
THE WITNESS: I'11 put an X first.
THE COURT: That's fine.
MS. PALMORE: Your Honor, may I have this
published to the jury?
THE COURT: Go ahead.
(officer showing the jury photograph.)
MS. PALMORE: Thank you.
Q After you saw the blue van park in front of the
hydrant, what did you do?
A I proceeded ~- I passed the intersection. I
stopped at the stop sign. I continued to drive.
Q And when you stopped at the stop sign, did you
come to a complete stop, a rolling stop, or something else?
A A real stop, a full stop.
Q And when you were at the stop sign, was this blue

van already parked, or was it still moving?

115
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It was parked.

And did you make any observations while you were

at the stop sign?

A

Q
A

Q

Yes.
Please tell the jury what you observed.
I saw a male come from the right side of the van.

when you say the right side of the van, is that

the passenger's side?

A

0 P L0

Exactly.

Closest to the curb?

Exactly.

Did you see anybody else exit the vehicle?

The driver was out of the vehicle, and the lady

come out of the van too.

2 rr O >

do?
A

Q

where did they come out of the van?
From the right side.

Did you see the driver's door open?
No.

After you stopped at the stop sign, what did you

I proceeded to continue to drive.

And as you passed the blue van -- withdrawn.

Approximately from the stop sign to where the blue van was,

how far was it away?

A

Like 25 feet.

116
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Q And at the point where you proceeded through the
stop sign, can you estimate your speed?

A I just come out of the stop sign. How fast the
truck was going, five miles,.

Q And, by the way, can you describe the truck that
you were driving in terms of dimensions?

A My truck is a Mack truck. 1It's 36 feet long,

8 feet wide, and 12 feet high.

Q And can you describe the layout of the truck,
meaning are there any devices or anything that protrudes or
anything like that?

A NoO.

Q Is there a piece of the truck that is available to

let water out?

A Yes.
Q And can you describe that piece?
A That's a valve, a water valve on the side of the

truck, on the right side, 1ike, one or two feet higher from
the ground where the step for the helper right there.

Q And what's the purpose of that valve?

A To drain the water.

Q And when you say drain water, that's when you put
garbage in, and people may have to get the compactor to come
down and press and water comes out?

MR. OGEN: Objection.
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THE COURT: Sustained.

Q what's the purpose of that valve?

A Drain the water when it's too much water when we
dump, the truck is full of water. when we have to dump, we
drain the water.

MS. PALMORE: Can I have the witness shown
Plaintiff's Exhibit 67

(officer handing the witness exhibit.)

THE COURT: 1I'm showing what has been
received +into evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit 6. Do
you recognize that photograph?

A Yes, I do.

Q And what does that photograph depict?

A The back of the truck. After the rear wheels,
there are four feet. After the rear wheels, five feet.

Q So approximately 30 feet back from the front of
the vehicle?

A Exactly.

Q And what apparatus is depicted in that photograph?
what is 1in that photograph?

A That's a step for the helper to hang on and the
valve.

Q That's the valve you were talking about with the
water?

A Exactly.
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MS. PALMORE: Your Honor, may I have that
photograph published to the jury?

THE COURT: Go ahead.

(Jury looking at the photograph.)

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Mar. Again, I've just handed
you what has been received in evidence as Plaintiff's
Exhibit 3, 4 and 5.

Do you recognize the photographs?
Yes.

what do they depict?

My truck.

when you say my truck --

» o0 r O Fr

My truck that I work with.

Q Is that the truck that was involved in the

accident?
A Exactly.
Q and is the area which you just described in --

MS. PALMORE: Can I see the photographs to my
Teft with the valve?
Q And do any of those photographs depict the valve
that you were talking about earlier?
A Yes.
Q Which one of those photographs?
A This one. This 1is number 5.

MS. PALMORE: Your Honor, can I have
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Plaintiff's 3, 4 and 5 published to the jury?

THE COURT: Yes, you may. But can we do it

all at once? Let's go.

Q

sign until

(Photographs being shown to the jury)
Mr. Mar, from the time that you were at the stop

the time that you proceeded down 105th, at any

time did you ever see the driver's door open?

A
Q
105th?

A

NO.

Did you feel anything as you were passing down

when I drive on 105th I feel something like the

truck drive in a hole, it shake a 1ittle, that's what I

felt.
Q

And at any point in time while you were driving

down 105th after you passed the car did you Took back?

A

Q
A

door open.

Q

» O P O F

I looked 1in the mirror, yes.
what did you see?

A person standing on the side of the van with the

and at some point in time did get to Liverpool?
Yes.

And did make a right or Teft?

I make a right.

and did you come to a stop at Liverpool?

Yes.

120
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what was the purpose of that stop?
The purpose?

What was the purpose of stopping?

>0 r 0

Picking up the garbage.

Q Finally, I'm going to show you what has been
received no evidence as Plaintiff's 9, 10 and 11. I'm going
to ask that you look at Plaintiff's Exhibit 9 first. Do
you recognize that photograph?

A I never see before, but I recognize the van.
That's the van.

Q And how do you know it to be the van that was
involved in the accident?

A This part of the door.

Q when you say this part, what are you pointing to?
A Because that's the part of the van, the door
when -- with the valve. when he came to me and he told me

you hit my van, I look at the van. I Tlook where I hit it.
I didn't see anything on door. The door was -- I got to the
door I saw a little dent. So I look at that spot. I look
at the highest; I went to my truck. I saw the valve was a
Tittle tip of blue paint on the valve.

Q That's the value that you were talking about
earlier?

A Yes.,

Q And is that the only damage you observed to the
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door?
A Exactly the same. Even that was not much -- this
is changed. This 1is not true.
Q So what you're saying is what is depicted in that

photograph at the bottom --

A That much damage, it wasn't at the time of the
accident.

Q And did you see the damage to Mr. Sclomon's
vehicle on the night of the accident?

A Yes, I did.

Q So with respect to that photograph all the other
damage that you see on the door that was not as a result of

this accident?

A No.

Q At some point in time did the police come?

A It was two hours after, yes, police came.

Q And during those two hours that you were waiting

for the police, did you talk to the Plaintiff in this case,

yes or no?

A Yes,

Q And did you observe him doing anything?
A Yes.

Q what was he doing?

MR. OGEN: Objection.

THE COURT: Overruled.

122
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A He tried to close his door because the door was

stuck. It was not closed. It was 1ike this space, and he
forced the door to close because that night was freezing and
he couldn't stand up with the door open. So he fix his door
and make it close.

Q And did you see him taking any photographs?

A Yes.

Q And was there a passenger in his car?

A Yes.

Q Did you speak to the passenger?

A Yes.

Q Did the passenger take any photos?

A A1l over the car, the truck, he take pictures of

everything from the front of the truck to the rear, and his
vehicle too.
Q So let me get this correct. The passenger took
photographs of both vehicles?
A Both vehicles. Even Mr. Solomon, he take pictures
of his vehicle and my vehicle.
MS. PALMORE: I have no further questions,
your Honor.
THE COURT: Counsel.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. OGEN:

Q Good afternoon, Mr., Mar.
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A Good afternoon.
Q You and I have met before; right?
A Yes.,
Q That was -- you were at a deposition, do you

recall that?

A Yes.

Q And in that deposition you also testified Tike you
did today?

A Yes.

Q And in that deposition you had an interpreter,
didn't you?

A Yes.

Q Portuguese interpreter?

A Yes. Brazilian, exactly.

Q And today you're here to testify without the help
of an interpreter; correct?

A Yes.

Q okay. And is that because your English has gotten
much better for the last year?

A I'm not saying it got much better, but interpreter
I get, I can tell is not help me.

Q You didn't like the way the interpreter
interpreted?

A Yes.

THE COURT: Ask him a question.
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New York, WNew York,

having been first duly sworn/affirmed,,testified as follows:
THE COURT: Thank you.
You maf be seated.
You may inquire.

DIRECT EXAMINATION |

sy vr. ‘P

Q. Good morning, Dr.

A. Good morning.
Q. "Sor. i‘;his morning I introduced you to Mr. —
plaintiff's cbunsel.
This is @ W ot the plaintiff's table.

e who you met forrﬁhe first
time this morning.

A. Yes.

Q. All right.

This is a small room. Speak maybe a little bit
1oqder than your normal speaking voice so that the jurors
can alllheér you. Fair enough?

A, Yes.
Q: - All right.
First I will bring out some of youf credentials.

Are you a physician licensed to practice medicine

and/or surgery in the State of New York?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Re?orter
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A.  Yes.

Q. Can vyou, and Ilwill segment this, could you tell
us a littlé bit about where you went to medical school, and
give us the year of graduation, and some of your
post—gradqﬁte studies, internship, residency, that type of
thihg?

AL I went to the (HEENEE

|, and spent four years as a medical student
there.

| Uponrgraduation I came to Néw York City and became
‘an intern, and then that was folléwed by a residency in
general surgery and chief resident in géneral surgery. That
was followed by a fesidency in plastic and reconstructive
éﬁigerf and chief resident in plastic and reconstructive
sﬁrgery.

At the completion of my training, I opened medical

offices in Connecticut as well as in New York.

Q. Okay. How many years was the training in general

surgery of that residency?

A, It was théAinternship plus four years of general
surgery.

Q. So five in total?

A. | Yes.

0. And the plastic -- and am I saying it correctly,

plastic and reconstructive residency?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CBR, CRR, Official Court Reportexr




85

10

12
13
14

15

16

17

19

i8

20

21

(22

23

24

25

- 26

11

896
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A. Yes. |
Q. How many years was that residency?
A .%wo,
0 And was that after the sufgical regsidency?
A fes. '.
Q- Did there come a time when you became boa;d
certified?
"A." Yes.
d, " Board éertified by the National Board of Examiners
in Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery?
a. The American Board of Medical Specialties, and
plastic and reconstructive surgery belongs to that board.
Q‘ Okay. Now, during the course of your career, not

currently, but during.the course of your career, did you‘
maintain hospital privileges where you were able, had the
ability to admit a patient for your particular surgiéal
specialty to do work on a particular patient? |

A.r lYes.

Q. Give 1us a sense of the hospitals that you have

been affiliated with historically.

Q. Are you licensed to practice currently in

Connecticut?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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A. Yés.

Q. Now, we've heard, at least as part of a question
anﬁ ansﬁer, that sometimes_plastic and reconstructive
surgeons maintain their own surgical operating suité'as part
of théir office. Do you do that or do you do all of your

work at a hospital®?

A. I work in the hospital, and I alsc work in two
surxgicenters.
Q. Tell us what the surgical centers are?

Q. Is the first one New York and the second one
Connecticﬁt? |

A. Yes.

Q. For how many years have yoﬁ been in private
practice?

A. Since

0. Did you always have a desire to become a %%astic

and reconstructive surgeon?

A . No. -
Q. How did that evolve, give us a sense?
A T always wanted to be a doctor. Then as I was

axposed t5 medicine with that desire to be a physician, 'T
&

gravitated to surgery, and during my general surgery T was

introduced to various subspecialties, and plastic and

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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reconstructive surgery was a goal, and I focused on that as

what I wanted to do with my medical career.

Q. Okay. And_havé you within that specialty from the
time you became board certified had various offices ﬁp until

the present time?

A. Since "when I went into private préctice I
practiced plastic and reconétrucfive surgery}

Q“ Other tﬁan hospital affiliations -- let me
withdraw that.

What hospitals do you maintain as potential places

where you'can-admit patients currently as a doctor?

Aa. The hospitals I méntioned.

Q. _And other tham the hospitals, you have a private
office in the State of New:York? -

A. Yes.

Q. Where is that? What's the address in'ﬁﬁé State of
New York? |

A, New York, New York.

Q. That's the office where I met you most recently

over the last couple of weeks to discuss the issues of this

case?
A. Yeas.
Q. You have an office in Conneéticut, also?
AL I do.
Q- Ballpark, on average, tell us how much time do you

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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® - by Defendant - Direct |
spend in the City of New York in tﬁe office and how much
time do you Spend in Connecticut, so we have a sense?

-A, ',Approximately 50/50. |

MQ. Now, during of course of your professional life
have you submitted‘any articlesz that have been peer-reviewed
ana'actually been published?
| HA- I did a few.

Q. During the course of your professional life, have
yoﬁ received any honors or awards or grants or_anything of
that nature?

A. I did:

Q. Your cuxrent surgical, I use the word; 1oad,‘your
qﬁrrent surgical schedule, has it tapered down at all? Are
you still.in active practice?

A. I'm in active practice.

Q. Give us a sense Eurrently in the lasf year or two,
what ﬁype of procedures do you do from the ﬁost frequent, if
you can, to the most minimal; ag far as statisﬁical?

Al Well, my focus is cosmetic surgery, but that's a
broad specialtf. So it includes the head and neck, eyelid
tucks, facélifts, nose jobs, reconstructing the ear, and the
body islbréast surgery, breast lifts; breast reduction,
breast augmentation, liposuction of every par£ of the body'
probably, and abdeminoplasty, body contouring.

Q. Fair snough.

Terry-Aun Volberg, CSR, CRR, Ofificial Courit Reporter
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Now, before -- withdrawn.
' Did there come a time when my office and I asked

you to review issues pertaining to this case, the Goldstein

AL Yes.

Q. By the way, do you know of Dr.| boersonally or in
any fashion?
A. No.

Q. Do you have any connection with the pediatric

plastic and surgical division up at g

A. No.

-

Q. Now, did there come a time several years ago when

materials were given to you in relationship to this case to

review?
A. Yes.
Q. ' And am I correct that you have never examined Mara

or any of her breast configurations or anything of that

regard?
A. No.
Q. I'm allowed to ask you this and lead you.

‘Did you review a document known as a Bill of
Particulars which outlines the claims of the plaintifif?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you review the hospital record from

- Terry-Ann Volberg, C3SR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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as well as Dr. -office records which we are going to get
to dﬁ?ing‘this trial? | | '

A. ?es.
Q. Did vou review éhg deposition testimony that was

taken of the plaintiff,affv?ﬁ her mother, as well as Dr.

A. Yes.
Q. And did you review the office records and the

operative reports, the three, by the subsequent primary

doctox,
A. Yas.
Q.- Now, let me just get away from this case and ask

you, over the course of your professicnal life, have you
been asked by lawyers, whether they be lawyers prosecuting a
case or lawyers like myself defending the doctor, to review
records pertaining to any type of co;metic or plastic or
reconstructive surgery and give the lawyers your opinion?

A. Yes.

Q.r Let's say in the last five years, how many
assignments would you say you get.a year? I dén't mean
trial testimony, but lawyers who say, Doctor, would you take
a look at this case and let me know what you think as your
opinions, how many times does that happen per year, let's
say, over the last five years? k

A. Two to three times a year,'perhaps less.

Terry-Ann Volbexrg, CSR, CRR, Oificial Couxrt Reporter
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Q. All right. |
2nd if you find merit to the claims for the
plaintiff or if you find merit --

Objection. Now he is

leading.

Fairﬂenough.
Q. Tell us -- |

' . Sorry. I should stand. I

apologize.

That's okay.

That's fine.
Q. Tell us, how does it work? Does there come a

point in time when you speak to the lawyer on one side or

the other and give your opinion?

Objection to leading, yes or

no.
THE COURT;\ Sustained.
Q. Yes or no, how doeé it work, as far as your
review?
THE COURT: That's what makes it leading,

that it can be answered with a yeé or no.

Fair enough.
THE COURT: We have certain rules about
whether it's your witness or the other side's witness,

and what kind of questions you can ask, and if it’'s

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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cross-examination wé allow the lawyer to ask questions
that require a yes or no answer, but on direct
examination when it's your witness you have to let the
witness do the talking,mthat‘s whexe the testimony will
come from. |
So let's not have 1eading“questions.

Q. Let's talk about this case.

Did there come a point several years ago when you

met with a lawyer from my office, a Ms. {iliMg» to discuss

"these issues?

A. Yes.
Q. And most recently, did --

MR. B ¢ This is part of the

preliminary, the legal basis --
THE COURT: He is just getting ready.

He is getting ready, okay.

Q. Did you and I meet several times over the last
several weeks where I delivered daily testimony, not daily,

records, copies for you, and you and I chatted about the

issues?
A- Yes.
Q; Lastly, did I provide you the testimony of Dr. Wu

that was taken on Tuesday that I've ordered, as well as the

the plaintiff's expert witness? Did

testimony of Dr.§

I provide that to you?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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A. Yes.

Q. Now, are you familiar with the Inverted-T surgical

proceduie with regard to performing breast reduction

surgery?
A. Yes.
Q. Are you familiar with the procedure known as the

Hall-Findlay 1éllipop or veftical incision technique?

I object. He is leading.
' THE COURT: I'll allow these two preliminary
queétions, but then stop leading the witness.

Okay.

MR..ﬁ__
Let me withdraw thét.
.Q‘- What is the Hall-Findlay procedure, és far as
breast reduction? |
" A. To put it in simple terms, it's a lollipop
inéision so the incisions go around the nipple and it ends
up with a-ﬁertical scar. |
Q. Is there any difference, if any, between the
Inverted~T procédﬁre and the Hall-Findlay with régard to the

extent of the incision?

Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained as to form.
Q. Describe for us the incisions that are made as
?art of the Inverted-T operation, not the Hall-Findlay.

A. Wwith the Inverted-T incisions, the result is a

© Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter




94

10

11 |

12

13

- 14

221

151,

16
17
18
19
20

21

23

54

25

26

905

- by Defendant - Directj “

" scar around the nipple areola, and a vertical limb, which is

a scar, and then a scar in the region of the inframammary

‘crease. BSo there's more scarring secondary to the

Inverted-T than there is to the Hall-Findlay.

{(Continued on next page.)

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR.

Q. Now, what{s the goal of breast reduction surgery,
Doctor, in your opinion?

A. Primarily it's considered -- a reduction

mammoplasty is considered reconstruction. It's done to

relieve symptoms secondary to overly large breaéts.
Q. Now, I'm going to ask you to assume that in this

P had various

case, before the surgery,-as al

symptoms. You are aware of that from reviewing the records,

correct?
A. Yes.
“Q} The symptoms included, among other things, back

pain that required her to have chiropractic treatment and
annoyance w%th regard to these large, pendulous b?easts.
The bras that she was wéaring would cause indentations in
the shoulders and she had pain.

Is that something, those symptoﬁs, something
that you're familiar with with regard to, based on this

trial record, preoperatively the need for breast reduction

surgexry?

MR . Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained as to form.
Q. What are some of the sympﬁoms with regard to

pendulous breast, particularly in an adolescent, that would
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allow the patient to be a candidate for breast reduction?

A The symptémsAreiated to the younger person, but
alsolacross the board, any wémaﬁ that has large, penduloﬁs
breast generaily complain of shoulder, meck and back pain.
into the shoulders, difficulty wearing clothing, difficulty
with participating in normal daily activities and workingrin

those activities, rashes.

Q. Now, I1'm going to ask you to assume that when |

was taken to surgery duriné Augqust of calendar year 2010,

that Dr

ade some preoperative markings on both breasts.
My first question is are you familiar with such type of
preoperative markings?

A. Yeas.

Can I set the eésels up, Judge;
it will just take a secogd?
| THE COURT: Yes.
(Paﬁée.)
Q. Doctor, I'm going to put before you -~ Doctor, TI'm
going Eo show you, so the record is clear, what's marked as

Plaintiff's 2 in evidence. It's a series of all of the

photographs pertinent t and this case. I'm going to

"jJust focus you to the packet behind the pinkﬁSheet, which we

agree are the preoperative photographs.
\ The first guestion: As you look at those

photographs, the preoperativé photographs, do you have an

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter




97

io0

-11

.16

12

13

14

15

i7

18

18

20

21
22
23

24

25

26

mafkings that has some data here that Dr.

908
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opinion'as to wheéher or not they demonstrate breast
hypertrophy?

A. fés.

MR. Your Honor, he continues to

lead, what do they show.
THE COURT: Don't sﬁggest the answér in the
queétion, that's what makes it a leading questionm.
Please déﬁ‘t lead.
Q. _We've had testimony, Doctor, during this tria;
record from every witness that the patient had hypertrophy

breasts or large breasts. Do you agree?

A. Yes.

Q. What is breast hypertrophy?

A It's an enlargement of the breast.

Q. . Can you turn to the last photograph that has the

preoperative markings, please? Doctox, as I think I've told

you, we have a rather large depiction of the preoperative

drew just
yvesterday. I'ﬁ going to put this up in front of the jury as
I question you. |

Doctor, is there any purpose to the

preoperative markings?

A Yes.
Q. Tell us what it is, what they are?
L. The preoperative markings are an indication of the

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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location of the nipples-areola from the ﬁidclavicuiar line
to the nipple and the supper.sternal notch down_through the
mid line. 'The new location of the nipp1e~afeola complex is
designated and Ehe length of the infra-mammary cieésa is
indicated, which you can't see here. And in essence, the
template, which is the-mosqué template, indicates the area
thét ig to be created as the pedicle.

Q. Could I ask you to come down here. I'm not going
to have yoﬁ come down and go back and forth, but could I ask
you to come down here, with the Court's permission, in front
of this drawing? If I could ask you to stay on this side of
the drawing and use this pen as an indicater. |

Can you show the jury, given your last
ansﬁér;"ﬁhat the markings demonstfate, the black lines, what
do they demonstrate.

A. The black lines indicate anatomical léndmarks, and
wiﬁhin'the'désign from the mosque is the pedicle that is to
be cregted to pérform the reduction and to relocate the
nipple-areola complex.

Q. .Now; is there -- do you have an 6pinion as to
whether or not the nipple, of necessity, will be elevated as

a result of a surgical procedure such as this?

Objection, leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. Is the nipple elevated as part and parcel of a
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proéedure such é% this?
_ Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
We have this on the recexrd
already.

Q. What happens to the hipple'as part and parcel of
the operétiAH, Doctor?

A. The nipple is relocated to be centered at the apex
-of‘fhe breasE.

“Q. What happens to the areas to Fhe left and right of
ﬁedial and iateral to the tissue that's supposed to be
removed, what happens to those areas?

A: . Well, as the surgery procéeds, the medial aspect
beneath the skin, which is breast tissue and, the lateral
aspect, which is lateral to the flap, is dissected and
breast tissue is removed. |

Q. You can go back. Thank you very much.

- (Pause.)

Q. Are you familiar with a term known as an en bloc

resection? ‘
Oﬁjection.
THE COURT: Sustained. )

Q. What is a en bloc resection of tissue given breast
surgery?

A An en bloc resection of breast tissue means that
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the major portiop of the tissue that's removed, in this
iﬁstance breast tissue is taken away, connected £6 each
other. So thé ﬁedial and the lateral aspects of the breast
are removed in unity.
0. The breast tissue removed in a surgery such as

this, Doctor, what is breast.tissue made of?

| A. Breast tisSue ig called stromé. So it's -~ it
conéists of glandular tissue. To ggt down to a microscopic
level, there are glands that m;ke milk, but évery breast is
also a unit that consists of other structures, primarily
fat. So depending upon the unique wariability of that
particular pqtient, there could be more fat and less stroma,

which is the breast gland or there could be more gland and

~less fat. But generally it comprises a significant amount

of bétp breast tissue and fat, which are intermixed, so you
don't dissect out every bit of fat or breast separate from
the other structure.
a0 en bloc designates that you remove that

designated‘portion of breast and fat that's intermixed with
one another. : | o

Q. Doctor, I'm going to ask you to assume that we've
heard that in the preoperative discussions the potential for
diminishéd or absent Sreast‘feeding ability postoperative,

if the patient were to become pregnant and have a child

ta¥ar on might be impaired. That was the teatimony of
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Do'you have aﬁropinion as to whether or not
that situation can develop postoperatively later om in a
bréast'that's operated upon such as these breasts were’
operated upon?
A. Yes.

Q. Why is that? Why does the breast feeding ability

be diminished or absent as a result of the breast tissue

5eing removed?

A; Many times an enlarged breast presses around all
of the breast tissue and the dgctal sygstem is impaired,‘so
that even though milk is produced it can't come out through
the breast. 8o that's just a normal event that can occur.
And from surgery it could just be a disruption of the gland
ﬁaking milk and having access ta thértubules that eventually
lead to the nipple where the baby can suckle.

Q. Now, during the course of this surgery, the

~pathology department received tissue from the right and left

breast --

Objection, leading.

This record is in evidence.

THE COﬁRT: I aon‘t know what the guestion is
going to be, but obvicusly counsel's very sensitive to
the 1g§ding nature of the qpestion. S0 please be

careful about the way you word it.
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Yes, your Honqrq
Q. | Doctor, I'm going to read from part of the
pathology report with regard to the right breast-first of
all. Department received breast tissue that weighed
968 grams. .Do you have a sense in relationship to pounds as

_to how that relates, grams to pounds?

A. Close to 2 pounds.
Q. Okay. It says the tissue consists of
approximately 20, irreqularly shaped pieces of fibro adipose

tigsue. What is fibro adipose tissue, Doctor?

A. Well, there are septa within the breast and
‘ahétomy.

Q. How do you spell that?

A. Septa, S~-E~-P-T-A. So there's divisipns, and

that's fibrous tissue. There are several divisions that

separate the lobules from the next lobule from the next
lobule. So that's part of the sﬁructure, the basic
structure of the breast. TIt's a significant portion Sécause
it's what supports and suspends the breast, so the
ligaments, the fibrous tissue, are just part of the breast
anatomy .

Q. Now, I'm going to ask you to assume that these
records from the hospital that are in evidence for the ;%ght

and the left breast mention various piéces of tissue ranging

~in size, and they range in size from 2.0 by 1.8 by
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.6 centimeters to the largest at 26 by 16 by 4 centimeters.

I'm goingatolask you to assume that Dr.§

that the.larger piece represented the en bloc resection and
that the smaller pieces within that range represented
refinement of removed fissue, g0 as to maintain symmetry
between the right and left operative Ereast.

- My first question is: Do you have an opinion
as to the operating surgeon to achieve symmetry, as best as

possible, if that's consistent with proper-éurgical

practice?
Al Yes, it is.
Q. Now, I'm going to ask you to assume that during

the course of the operation after one breast, in this case
the right breast first, was opérated ﬁpon, the breast tissue
was tacked temporarily, the other breast, in this case the
ileft breast, was then operated upon with regard to the gross
removal of fissue, and then after that there were several
compgrisons with the patient being elevated on the operating
table to achieve syﬁﬁetry by means of removing additioﬁal
pieces of tissue.

My question is: Do you have an opinion with
a reasonable degree of medical certainty, as to whether such
technique to achieve symmetry by removal of additional

pieces, other than the en bloc regsection, is consistent with

proper surgical breast reduction practice?

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter



104

10
11
12
13

14

15

16
17

18

18

20|

21
22
23
24
25

26

915

Direct

- by Defendant

A Yes, it is.

0. By the way,‘whenever I ask for an opinioh, if I
don't put the phrase reasonable medical probability or
certainty, you understand that you will only give an opinion
with théﬁ-férce and effect, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. You've been asked questions like that in the few
timeé you've been in court before, correct?

A. Yes. |

0. Now, why is it aE all important to achieve
symmetry during the course of the breast reduction surgery?

AL Well, the symmetry is important bécausa that's the
Q?thﬁay to symﬁetry postgperatively.

Q. &ust g0 we're clear on the récérd: ¥f a patient
has somewhat asymmetric breasts, one size larger than the
other preoperétively, why is éymmetry important even during
the opgration to achieve it postoperatively?

A. Rarely will breasts be exactly symmetrical. The
goal is to make them more equal than they were beforehand.
That lends itself to a better looking breast
postoperatively.

Q. While we're on the operation T want to ask you
direct your attention to the elapsed time of the surgexy.
The anesthesia, general anesthesia, was supplemented and I'm

going to ask you to assume, according te the hospital record
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in.evidence,'there's no dispute about it, the general
anesthesia was suppleménted'by what's known as an additional
local, regional block. The testimeny was that was done to

possibly diminish the postoperative pain?

Can I note my objection?

This is ﬁestimony in the record.
Judge, can we approach on this?
THE COURT: Take the jury out, please.
(Whereupon, thé jury retired from the
courtrooﬁ.)
THE COURT: Doctor, could you step out?
(Whereupon the witness stepped out of the
courtroom.)
THE COURT: It appears one of the jurors is
taking notes. | |

MR. she may be drawing.

MR'i other day juror number
2, is it the woman?
THE COURT: That's the juror we'wve noticed

take notes.

MR .

I saw her doodling, making
circles, and I had a little concern. I didn*t address
it because I didn't know if it had to do with your
gquestioning when you were Cross examining.

I think she's just doodling.
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1If you want to not have the doodling that's fine, I

don't care. Some people work better when they are
doing that. I don't care, whatever you guys want.
MR. I don't care if she doocdles.

MS.ffhw I don't either.

MR. My concern is on this issue i=

- that if she's the only one taking notes then we're

going to have a scribe as opPosad to they all taking
notes.
THE COURT: If ydu're asking me to give them

a charge on note taking and provide pads and pencils I

‘will, if you're not then I won't. Just tell me what

you want to do.

I have no objection.

D

Actually, I'm just speaking
because it takes me by surprise. That's the only
reason I'm speaking.

It doesn't take youuby

‘surprise because you saw her doing it yesterday you

said.

No, I saw her doodling, like as
if you're nervously doing things like this while she
sat oﬁ her feet. That's what I meant.

MS. T hadn't noticed.

Whatever inquiry you want to
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make, Judge, is fine by me, I have no objéctiona

Going back, if I may, to my objectién. Why
doesn't he just ask what is your understanding as to
the type of anesthesia, why was this type of anesthesia
used, why is he always leading and telling her &hat the
information is?

THE COURT: Counsel, I told you if you object
T will absolutely keep him in line.

Do not lead.

May I be heard? I totally agree
I shogld not lead, however, when there is a record, a
trial record, with a hospital record that talks about
the elapse time of the surgery and anesthesia, that
talks about generai anesthesié, and talks about not
only the hospital record in evidence but the testimony

as well ast® that

from &

there was a supplemental regional block. My position
is at this point in the trial I'm allowed to refer to
the teétimbny in the record as a hypotheticai as
obposed to ﬁust saying what's a regibnal block.

THE COURT: Then pose it that way, but you
don't pose it that way. In fact, you inieﬁt a lot of
other thingé. Therae is no dispute, we all agree on

this, you'll see --

Ti1ll leave that out.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter




108

10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17+

i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

919

THE COURT: No, you don't leave it out, you
put it into almost every single question.

I will leave that.out, but I'm

' referring to the trial record, I will not put any issue

with regard to agreement or disagreement on it. I'1l
be guided in that regard.

THE COURT: Mr. if he leads and you

object I will sustain your objection.
MR . T Thank you, your Honor.

MR . G

We're geing to leave the
doodling alone? It's fine with me. »
(Whereupon, the jurors entered the courtroom
and resumeé their respective seats in tﬁe Jjury box.)
THE COURT: So in trials, 1f jurors like to
take notes we saj, sure, you can take notes, but there

are some rules about the notes. So if any of you wants

" to take notes we'll provide you with pads, we'll

provide you with pens. During any break you leave the
notes in the courtroom, when you come back to the
courtroom the notes will be thefe for‘you to resume
your note taking, and when you deliberate is the first
time you'll be allowed to take youf notes with you into
the jury room.

Here's the thing, note taking should not

become a distraction from the proceedings. Notes may
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be inaccurate. The only record that you camn rely on in

.. the trial is our official record, that's why we have

court reporters taking down all of the questions, all
of the answers, éll of the thiﬁgs that are said.

In your delibefations you can use the notes
to réfresh your own recollection of the testimony, an
aid to your own memory, if you will, but you'shouldn't
use your notes to try to convince somebody else who's
memory is failing on the jury that that's what was
éaidﬁ

Any quegﬁion about what the testimony was
should.ba'reconciled by having the Court Reporter read
that testimony back to you. That's the official
recorﬁ.‘ For those of you who don't take notes, you
shoﬁldn't‘rely onn. another peisbn's notes because
someoﬁe else took notes that maybe they have a better
recollectiﬁﬁ.

Agaiﬁ,'the only notes that should be used to

“refresh your recollection would be the Court Reporter's

record read back to you on that point. So we did
notice somebody's been writing and we're going to have
to ask ?ou to not‘do that, unléss you want note pads
and pens provided by us and you leave the notes in the
couf%room whenever you go into the jury rcom.

Is there anybody who would like to take
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2 ., hotes?
3 Can we get note pads, please?
4 e (Pause.) o
5 THE COURT: Let's get the witness, please.
6 ‘ (Whereupon, the witﬁess resumed therwitness
7 stand.) |
8 ‘ : MITHE COURT: All r;ght, you may inquire.
9 | Thank'You, Judge.
10 Q. Doctor, before we had this little break we were
11| talking about the elapse timeé of the surgery.
12 _ I'm going to ask you to assume.that from the

13 total operating time, including the administration of
,_314 anesthes%g, that the trial reco;d, our trial record as well
15| as the.hospital record in evidence, indicates that there was
16 general anesthesia and.thare wasg also a supplemental
47| regional block:A Are you familiar with the term regional
18 block, even though you're not an anesthesiologist?
1719 A Yes. |
20 Q. Tell the jury what it is in the context of this
21 surgery while the patiént is getting general anesthesia?
22 ‘ A. It's isblating the nerve supply te the breast
23 tissue itself. So by doing the regional block, the pain

24|  fibers were targeted and it would preduce less pain

25 postoperatively than otherwise the patient would experience.

‘251 ' Q. Now, I want to focus on the actual surgical elapse
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time. The surgical elapse time is slightly more than-four
and a half hours. We have documentation in_the hospital
record when sﬁrgery starts, in militar& time, and when it
ends in military time. Given the nature of this operation
and all aspects of the operation, do you have an opinion és

to whether or not four and a half hours, a 1ittlie bit extra

time, is con51stent with proper opexative techn1que°

Objection, leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. Doctor, do you have an opinioh with regard to the

four and a half hours elapse time in this case?

b  Objection sustained -- oh, T
made the ruling, Judge.
THE COURT: That's okay. I will allow it.

My ruliné trumps his.

Trumps, that‘s the-first time
that's in this tfial.record.

Q. Do you have an opinion with regard to the surgical
time of four and a half hours, in relationship to what was
done on both of these breasts and this reduction
technique --

A.r Yes.

Qf e: as to whether it's consistent with proper
practice?

A. It is.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

- 20

21

227

23

24

25|

268

8923

- By Defendant{ i1 ) Direct

Q. Why do you say that, give us the benefiﬁ of your
opinion fleshing it out?
| A. It's a meticuléus surgery. It's required for
atteﬂtié# to detail and control of bleeding, creating a
flap, maintaining the blood supply to the: flap, rotatlng
tlssue in and closing the wound. It is very COmmon to take
three and a half, five, even six hours, that's not uncommon.

Q. In your experience, given this type-of surgery, do
fou have an opinion as to whether it could be competently
performed in two andla half hours?

- Objection, leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. We've had testimony in this trial record from

Dr. Jane Petro who indicated and testified that in her hands

she could probably do the surgery in two and a half hours.
My question is, given that surgeon's technique and her
abilities and her mind set and speed, can an operation be

done in two and a half hours?

Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q.  Doctor, is there variability, in your opinion,
with regard to different qualified surgeons, in the elapse

time potential that an operation like this would take?

Objection.

THE COURT: Sustained.
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Q.  Consistent with prober surgical practice, is there

V.any variability in the elapsed time that surgery like this

would take, in your opinion?

Objection.
THE COURT: That I*1l allow.

'THE WITNESS: Yes.

Q. Why do you say that? What goes into your answer
of yes?

A It depends upon the surgeon's technique, the use
of what instruments they use. T, quite”frankiy, have.ﬁever
participated in a breasﬁ reduction or done a breast
reduction by myself that took two and half hours. I just
haven't ever had that experience. I don't know anyone that
does this type of surgery in two and a half hours.

Q. Noﬁ, I'd)iike to ask you about postoperative
situationsrwith regard to the operating breast, the
operative breasts and the concept of healing.

The trial record reflects the testimony 6f
Dr. Wu that a minimum of six months is something that she
entertains with regard to the healing proceés for operations
such as this.

Objection.

THE COURT: I haven't heard the question yet.
Q. Do you have an opinion as to whether or not such

thinking of a minimum of six months for postcperative

Ponna EBEwvans - Official Court Reporter
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healing is consistent with plastic and reconstruction

thinking concerning the healing period?

Objection. Same.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. Doctor, is there a fange of variabiliﬁy at'ali
with regard to postoperative healing for breasts that have
been reduced?A

A. Objection.

THEchURT: Sustained.
0. Doctor, do you have an opinion with régard.to
postoparatife healing time periods?

AL Yes.

Q. Could you give us your opinion in the lapse time?

A The opinion that's”expected on the part of
surgical wouﬁd healing is six to 12 ﬁonﬁhs. It is usually a
1ittle bit more thén even 12 months. It is rare for -- Trve
never seen it, that woundlhealing occurs within six months.

(Continued on next page.)
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é: Now, whenryou use the phrase "wound healing" in
relaﬁibnship to the bréasts that have beén operated upon,
what are ydﬁ talking about? |
A. Well, the breast has been injured, it's an

intentional injury by making incisions, removing tissue,

closing the area that was operated upon, and that's

considered a wound.
Q. Now, during the course of this surgery. Doctor,
what physiologically, if anything, happens to the tissue

within the breast that has been removed and the tissue

adjacent to that tissue that has been removed? What happens'

to it?

A. Well, the tissue that's removed is gone, so it's
removed from the body, it's handed uéually to the scrub
nurse who then gives it to the circulating nurse, and the
operation continqes. So attention it.directed to
controlling the bleeding} maintaining a dry operative site,
and éontihuing the operation.
tissue.£hat’s remaining within the breast that has been the
subject of.the cutting with the scalpel, there'’s been
testi;ony in this record, the cutting with the Bovie

aelactric cautery, that's been tegtified to in this record,

and this tissue that will be reapproximated as part of the

dperative procedure that's been testified to in this case by

Q. . What hébpens physiologically, if anything, to the
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) What happens to that tissue physiologically?

A. Well, the tissue is approximated, and it's sewn

tqgether, and it begins to heal.

Q. In what fashion does it begin to heal from the
moment it begins to heal throughout the time frame that you
AL Well, collagen formation begins, fibroplasia,
which is scarring, develops, and there's a whole cascade of
other healing elements that.Pour into the site in order to

start the healing process, and it continues during the
surgery, and it'srgoiné on after the surgery, and actually
continues for the rest of the éatient's 1ife;

| So the wound, which is what we just discussed,
bringing the edges together, both of the breasts, and-
ultimately the skin, is forming collagen, and there.is an
enzyme which melts the collagén; and more collagen is

formed, so it's remodeling, and healing, and improving over

" the courge of the patient's life.

Q. Postoperative ﬁain: What happens to the patient's
appreciation of postoperative'pain immediately and as the
weeks and mpnths go by?

A. Pain is variable. The perception of pain is
variable. There are many patients who reguire only Extra
Strength Tylenol for pain management immediately following a

surgery. There are other paople”who need something

Terry-Ann Volberqg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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) stronger. Today‘with the hydrocodone crisis pain management
3 is Strictly monitored, and.vary'small amounts of a narcotic F
4| are prescribed in the imﬁediate post-op period; and

' 5| substitute marcotics are prescribed if the patient persists
6 in modérate to éévere pain, but that is unusual.

70 Q. 7 I want to talk to you about wascular supply to the
8 remaininé tissues of the breast as part and parcel of thé

9 dgeration.

10 First question: Is there a vaécular supply to the
11| nipple andmépeola complex of the breast beforé it's opefated
15 upon?

13 " A Therg is a very rich arterial wvascular supply to
14 the éntire breast including the nipple-areocla complex?

15| Q. Doctor, do you hawve an oﬁinion as to whether or

16| not there is aﬁf risk intraoperatively to the bioéd supply
17 to the nipple and areplg complex as part and parcel of the

18 operative procedure?

19 AL There is always a risk.

20 | Q. What is the risk?

21 A, Well, thelsupply could be totally cut away, cut
22 off.

23 Q. How can the -- surgically how can the supply be

24 interrupted, in your opinion?
25 A There would have to be extensive, non-customary

26| approaches surgically to ihjure pafts of the breast that
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shouldn't“bé touched.
Q. Ckay. Now,Aam I correct that you have an
awareness that there was nipple retraction after this

surgery for both breasts?

i,

Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. Doctor, nipple retraction, is that a subject

matter that you reviewed in this case?

Objection.
" THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. Well, what postoperative conditions did you review
in this case? |

a. T reviewed the appearance of the patient's
breasts, the sdarringrthat resulted, and the nipple areola

eomplex with the nipplés t+hat had been reconstructed, and at

the moment, from the review of the photographs, the nipples

are now erect and prominent.

Q. -Now, in reviewing this case, did you arxrive at ény
opinion with regard to the cause or causes of the nipple
retraction that occurred in this case?

A; I did.

Q. What did you take into consideration?

A. I tocok into consideration the vascular supply to
the nipple -~ I'm just going to say nipple, but it's that

whole complex -- to the nipple, and there was no evidence
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that the blood supply to or from the nipple had occurred.

_ The nipple was pink, it was roey, there is no indication

during the surgery that the blood supply had been damaged at
all. Tt wasn't bluish. It wasn't darker than a light blue,
violaceous color. So that was an assurance that the
integrity cof the blood supply to the nippie had beenl
maintained to the'cémpletion of the surgical procedure.

Q. Did you arrive at any opinion as to the cause or

causes of the nipple retraction that occurred in both

breasts?.

A.‘ (There was no verbal response.)

Q. Did you arrive at an opinion?

A. .  Yes.

Q. And what is or was your opinioh as to the cause or
causes?

a. Well, I alluded torsep;ae which are fibroﬁs bands

that run throughout the bfeast. And part of wound healiné
can be a contraction of the fibrous network which is very,
very extensive, permeating beneath the nipple throughout the
entire breast tissue, supporting the neurovascular-supply to
the nipple. And part of wound healing is the formation of
scar and contracticn of“thét scar sao the scar pulls in.

It's not centrifugal where it goas out, but, rather, it
pulls iﬁ}"ﬁnd as those bands shrunk, that affected the

appearance of the nipple and pulling that inward.
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Q. Doctor, what you just described, do you have an

__opinion as to whether or not that takes time or can happen

immediately in your opinion?

A. Tt would --

Objection.

THE COURT: Overruled.
A. It would take time.
Q. Okay. Now with the nipples being retracted

immediately post-op, I will ask you to assume that when {1

first locked at her breasts when the bandages were ramoﬁeﬂ‘

she saw the nipples not being out, and that when she went to

@8 office about six days later, that was the

condition. Dr. as no note about that, but then in

October, less than two months later, Dr.

postoperativé notes, nipples still retracted.

Do you have an opinion as to how the nipéles
became refiactéd in this case in the immediate postoperative
period, Doctor?

MR. 4§ Objection.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Judge, so that I can address an
{ssue with the court, T hate to do this, could we
approach and have the jury leave?

THE COURT: Sure.

Thank you.
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(The jury exited the courtroom and
‘the following occurred:)
THE COUﬁT: Doctor, you héve to step
outside.
(Thg'witness exits the céurtroom-)

Your Honor, I submit that the

last question had absoiufely nothing-that was not
contained in the trial record. We have an admission
and téstimony from the plﬁintiff that she saw.hef
nipples retracted frém the first time she saw them.
The defense admiés that, we are not contesting that,

that they were retracted when she came to Dr.

office."Although there is no notation, we don't
contest the fact that they are not retracted.
In October the doctor says they are still

.retracted, and based upon that information. which has

not been challenged, and is part of the "foundation™ of

this case there is absolutely no way that I can
possibly think other than to adopt that clinical

situation and ask my expert witness if she has an

- opinion, I am not suggesting anything, as to the reason

or reasons, if any, as to why those nipples were
retracted in the early time frame.
THE COURT: Counsel, I am not sure what you

are asking. The question had been asked and answered

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter




122

10

11

12

13

14

g

.18
17

18

- 1?,

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

933

- by Defendant |

at the point when counsel objected.

I am not following you, Judge.

I am really not following you.

THE COURT: pid you want to add something?

What I want to add, not only
was it asked and answered, Judge, but additionally he
keeps on doing this, he keeps on telling the witness
what he wants to say, and rather than sayinglwhat is
your understanding as to this patient, as to what
happened postoperative, and what do you mean by‘that,
and why did it happen like that, and then say -- he

wants to, he wants to jump-start this. He wants to say

this, this, this, this, this, and then he wants to say

 what do you think rather than developing it from his

7witness as to what her.uhderstanding is. He's
injecting hisﬁquerstanding of the evidence, his
intérpretation of the evidence, rather than asking this
witness what do you know.

Let me respond.

He is doing her job.

Let me respond to that.

The witnesé haé just given an answex that the
concept of fibrosis and bank takes_time and --

'.EHE CQURT : That'!s right. That's what the

witness said.
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Judge, --

What do yvou mean by that?

How much-time? Could you please --

MR.

Thig is my examination,

And once the witness talks about how it
“happens with regard to the finalization of contracture,
I want to ask her, is there an element that allows it
to happen in an earlier time frame. She can say yes oY
ﬁo. I am suggesting nothing to this witness.
We have teétimony in the record, Judge,
that --
THE COURT: You have to stop telling her
what the record has already established because the
record -- no, no, no -- you can go with the.hospital

records‘thét she has seen.

And the testimony.
THE COURT: You can even say there has been
testimony, but what you do, you conclude what the

record -- basically you usurp the role of the jury as

to what all of this information means.

-

MR. I don't want to argue with you,
Judge.

THE CQURT: So you can't keep teiling her
what's already established in our record. If you want
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to point to testimony, point to testimony. If you want
to point to a record, point to a record, but stop
taking the rolé of the jury and telling this witness

what the testimony has already established.

Judge, bear with me a second.
How can I possibly focus the witness on an
" element of a pathology happening, namely the retracted
nipples from the immediéte postoperative period, and
elicit an ppinion physiologically with the witness
telling us if she has an opinion; and then the basis of
the opinion, so that counsel can qross—examine her onr
it without establishing the fact that the trial record,
the questions and answers, and the hospitAI record, and
the doctors records, have established that there was
retracted nipples in the immediate postoperative
period? What am I supposed to say, what did you £ind?

Yeah.

T have to focus her on this

on the hypotheticals.

just like he focused Dr.3
THE COURT: Counsel, 1 realize you have a

style.

Tt's a hypothetical basis.

THE COURT: I will agree with Mr.

that the style is objectionable at certain points in

time.
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You can ask the witness to assume a fact --

That's what I'm doing.

THE COURT: No, that's not what you are
doing.

You can ask the witness to assume a fact.
You know what the charge is that the jury gets at the
conclusion of this case, that if they find the facts
différent from tﬁéé@ffacts which you asked the witness
to assume, then they can feel free ﬁb reject the
expert's testimony.

Of course.

THE COURT: But you do not just ask her to
assume a fact. You ask her to assume a conclusion
that's already been reached on the basis of the record

that's been established in this courtroom;

Okay. Maybe --
THE COURT: So just ask her to assume
certain facts, that's all. Is that so difficult?

Let me just, so we can have the

guestion early without chopping up my direct, I don't
mean you, counsel chopping up my direct, T am askiné
her to éssume that there was an early notation of
nipple retraction that persisted, and with that, doég
she have an opinion as to what the cause or causes are.

I put the word --
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THE COURT: That question in that form would

be permissible.

I submit then other than using
the word assume, and making the question:éhorter,
I'm -- I'm not going to argue with you.

THE COURT: You made it a lot shorter. You
didn't iﬁject a lot of othéf things into it.

MR. T am not being facetious when

T say this. I am not -- I wouldn't haﬁe objected to
that question.

Of course not.

And the fact that I put in the guestion that
Mara -- B

THE COURT: Counsel, do yoﬁ want, do you
want that read back to you so you know exactly what

yvour gquestion will be?

No, I think I have the ability
to be able to do it on my own, quite frankly.
THE COURT OFFICER: Jury entering.
(The jury entered the courtroom and
the following occurred:)
THE COURT: Let's continue.

Q. Dr ? - T will ask you to assume that the

nipples of @ during the immediate postoperative

period when the bandages were first removed and noticed by
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the patient, that the nipples were, in fact, retracted.
With that assumption I will ask you, do you have
ah.opinion, given the nature of this reduction surgery. as

to any cause or causes of that immediate nipple retraction

bilaterally?
A. I don't.
Q. Okay. Now, Doctor, what is scax tissue in

relétionship to the operative breasts? What is it?

A; It's fibrosis. Itfs the layingrdown of collagen.
_It';-other héaling factors that are dttracted to the injured
site. And that's how the body meﬁds itself.

Q. Now, preoperatively there was a diagnosis in the
operative report of massive pubertél hypertréphy of the
breast with a code number of 611.1:

Do you have an opinibn as to what is massive

pubertal hypertrophy?

Ob-jection. Asked and

answared.
THE COURT: I assume this is preliminary.
Yas.
THE COURT: Go ahead.
Q. What is massive pubertal hypertrophy?
A It'a an enlargement of the female breast at the

- time of puberty which is responsive to the hormones, and

it*s an overgrowth of breast tissue. So it's a young giri,
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2 can happen as early as 12 in this these days, even younger,
3 where the breasts enlafge to massive proportions; and they

4 are not on birth control pills, and they are going through a
5 normal phase of theif 1ive$, but the breast is a target for
6 the influence of thé'horﬁones.

7 | Q. Now, do you'have any opinion with regaxd to the

8 concept'of density of young patients breasts, the concépt of
9 denéity?

10 A. The density is that the breast consisfs of more

1i élandular tigsue than fat. So, aslI mentioned befére,‘the
12 bréast-consists of various tissue types, but a deﬁse breast
13 is primérily the glandular tissue itself called the stroma
14 of the breast.

15 'Q;‘ When the stroma is operated upon such as a

" 16 _‘technique of the Hall-Findlay and the reduction technique,
17 What happens, if anythiﬁg, in your opinion to the stroma in
18 the immediafe postoperativé beriod?

19 A. Well, the stroma that remains'béﬁind is there,

20 it's physically present, it has his blood supply intact, and
21 the tissue, the breast tissue that's brought together begins
h22 the healing process. .

23 Q. All righ£. Now I want to ask yourabout some

24 aspects of the breast reduction, and it's going to be a

25 hypothetical so‘jﬁst bear with me,-

26 T will ask you to assume based upon the testimony
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of the operating surgeon, Dr.

mosque pattern with the template, and the line that she drew
down medial and lateral from the mosque template, and she

incised by means of going deep down with a scalpel and Bovie

First question: Are you familiar with the term
scalpel and Bovie cautery in that setting?

I object to the preliminary.

I am missing the basis for
. this. ~

THE COURT: I'll allow it.

The best way for him to elicit an opinion.is
to ask the expért to assume certain facts. Now at the
end of this case I will be giving you a charge, and it
talks about expert teétimony, aﬁd it's going to say.
that if yoﬁ find the facts different from the fécts
that the expert is asked Fg'assume, then you are frée
to.reject theiopinion of the expert. BSo, counsel is
going tb ask the witness to assume certain facts which

may or may not be the same as the facts that you find.

Go ahead.

Agreed.
Q. I am asking to you assume the facts, factual

ho was here

picture, based upon the testimony of Dr

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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yééte;day talking about the various steps of the operation;

“you understand that?
4 A. 1 do.
5 Q. Okay. Now 1 was asking you before 1 was

" interrupted the concept of using a scalpel‘as wall as a
Bovie to go deep down in the inecision 1ines not only to get
deeﬁ down, but also to incidentally stop bleeding.
‘ THE COURT: Sustained.
a1l right. Now you are adding things, all

right. If you have a gquestion, ask a question.

10
11

12 Q. T am going to agk you to assume that Dr

13 testified that she utilized the scalpel to go deep down

14| toward the chest wall, and utilized the Bovie to also cut
. 15| tissue, and_incidentally used the Bovie to create or allow

16 for hemostasis.

370 - Are you familiar with those terminologies?
A. Yes.
19 Q. What do they mean in the concept of a breast

20 reduction surgery, cutting deep down and using the Bovie for

21| hemostasis?
22 A. It's how you separate the tissues that are to be
removed from the tissues that stay behind. Tt's an incision

23

24 1ine, and whether vou use a scalpel, which does not create

25| hemostasis, OTr Yyou augment it with the electric cautery that

26| cuts, but as it cuts, it also cauterizes. So that's
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commonly used in many surgeries 1nclud1ng breast reductiomn.
Q. Now I will go further and ask you to assume that
after making the planes, P-L,-A-N-E-8, of cutting, Dr. Wu

testified that she removed an en bloc piece of tissue, and

that she then, on the pillar, on medial and lateral sides,

went underneath to scoop out additional pieces of tissue
that she testified was reflected in the additional pieces of
the right breast and the left breast in our pathology
department report that we have in the hospital recﬁrd.

Objection.

THE COURT: Can we take the jury out,
please?
(The jury exited the courtroom and
the following occurred:)
(The witnéss exits the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Mx .

MR. PIRROTTI: Yes, ydur Honorx .

Why isn't he just asking on direct, what is
your understanding as to what was done with this
surgery? What happened next to your uﬁderstanding?
ﬁhy is he injecting himself and saying this was domne,
that was done, this was done, that was done?

THE COURT: So here's the problem: 'The

fis that she had no recollection of

testimony of Dr.

this individual surgery, and if it's not reflected in
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_2. her operative report, and it wasn'trrefleated in her

3 téséimony,rthen it's additionéi to that which we have

4 before this jury.

5 T e tThis idea of, and then she went down and

6 scooped out, she doesn't remember the order that she
71 did this. She doesn't remember which direction sﬁe did
81 any incisions. She doesn't remember this particular

9 7 surgery. So if you are basing it on the operative

10 report,lgive the ddctor the operative reportrand ask

1i | ~her to look at it. Ask her-to see the way the surgery
12 . was done because if it wasn't in the operative report,
i3 there's no -- the doctor, Dr. had no recollection
14  of it.

15 Your Honor, I disagree with

' 15 . gou. -

17 1f I may be heafd,'number one, yesferday

18 there was testimony subject to cross-examine -- look,
15 | the last thing T want to do is chop up my direct here.
20 I really am not doing this purposely.
21 l__Yestéiday the doctor was aéked, givéﬁ the

22 nature of what she understood this operation to entail,
23 -she used her operative'report with regard to prdfecting
24 7 thé pedicle, making the planes, using the scalpél,

25 using the Bovie. It's right in there. And she

25 described what that opérative report, which was
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2 - gontemporaneous with the August.zs, 2010 operation,

3 was. So the fact -- RS

4 THE COURT: Maybe I missed it. Show me the

5 - operative report, and show me the part where it says

6 shé Fhaq went down underneath and scooped out

7 additional tissue.

8 Judge -~-

9 . o THE COURT: - I'm sorxry. That's what you just
10 said to this witness. -.

11 Yes, your Honor. You are

12 - usurping the fact that the jﬁry -- you will find that
13 because;the doctor hag‘no recollection in ?014 and 2017
14 ' of the technique of what she did, and why she is |

15 ) describing -- counsél can say on his summation she has
16 ﬁo rgeollection,'and she's making it up, but we have a
17 trial record where he did not object and say that she
18 can't testify to the technique that she was_trained in,
19 and what she would do as part of her custom and
20 practice of doing the operation.
21 . So it would -- let me finish -- it would be
22 impossiﬁle, Judge,“to have a defense expert comment on
23 . the operative technique in ény case where the doctor

24 says that;s how T did it and how I always did it
25 begause-the doctor can't remember everything going back
26L ‘-to 2010 by 2014 or '17.
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THE COURT: So show me where she indicates
that after dissecting that en bloc piece she then went
in and underneath and scooped out.

“"Inferiorly breasﬁ skin flaps

,wera raiéed with Mayo scissors and scalpelled down to
the pectoris fascia. All breast tissue inferior to the
pedicle was removed. Superiorly the mosque markings
were incised, and breast tissue lateral to the pedicile
were excised taking care not to undermine superiorly,
to preserve superior --*

THE COURT: Why is it that you're not just

giving the operative report or what's contained ia the

' operative report to the witness?

MR. "Because I --

THE CQOURT: Because I don't take that to be
what you -just said, but let £he expert opine about what
the operative report indicates. 2As a lay person T
don;t read that to be "and then I went back in and
scooped out from undermeath." So let's let the witness

giﬁe testimony. Why are you adding testimony?

MR Very simply, 1 am not giving
testimony. I am recalling a trial record without an
cbjection, without a motion to strike. I am recalling

the substance of a trial record, which I might add at

this point --
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THE COURT: Show me the testimony then.

May we have a moment, your Honor?

us.§
THE COURT: Yes. I just got the testimony
this morming. I am happy to look at it.

I didn’'t print it yet because

my printer was down at 6:00 o'clock this moxrning, but I

az it. This technique was

am certain that Ms.
done in excruciating detail over the lecture for the

one houq¥that Mr. & mentioned yesterday.

Yeé.

MS. NUNN: T have it.

o MR. € If I could mention one thing,
your Honor, --

THE COURT: Ms. you and I would have a

much briefer record.

T think so.

THE COURT: I do think that's true.

I have an opportunity to be

heard, please.

Irknow but let me just
finish --
THE COURT: No, no, no. You know what,
reélly, let's just isolaﬁé the issue before us and
~discuss it to its conclusion. |

T take it you used the word index as did I

Terry-aAnn Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter




136

10
11
12

13
14
15

16

- 217
18
19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26

‘and found the wo¥d- "scoop® or "scooping?"

947

Yes, wyour Honor.

Your Honor, I'm at page 767. I am going to
line 21. I am happy to read it for your Homor, I am
happy to wait for counsel to find it, but it is, in
fact, part of the trial record.

Yeah, I don't dispute --

THE COURT: Then read the testimony to the

witness.

Also, please, your Honor, one
thing he said T didn't object to, I said specifically
she is talking about-custom and practice, not what she
did. |

As she's entitled to.

THE COURT: Right, but that's not what was
represented to the expert.

Right, that she actually did

this.

THE COURT: So confine yourself to that
which truly was elicited. You can read -- you can ask
the expert to assume that there was testimony, and read
from page 767. You can ask the expert to assume, and
show her the cperative report, and show her the
language cof the operative report. That you are

permitted to do.
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" Let's continue.

I respectfully object to your
Honor's ruling.
THE COURT: So noted.

{Continued on next page.)

948
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(Whereupon, the jurors entered the courtroom

and resumed their respective seats in the jury box.)

(Whereupon, the witness resumed the witness

stand.)
THE COURT: Please sit down.
Rephrase your question, please.

I'd like to get the records

marked in evidence first, please.
(Pause.)

BY MR

been marked as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 in evidence. Part of

those records have the doctor's operative report, the

two-page operative report. I'm going to leave page 2 in

front of you, ?articularly the first paragraph.

I'm going to put before you what's

Can you take a look at that operative report?

My first question is: Is that the report
that I'd asked yod when we first started your review
qualifications that you had actﬁ#lly reviewéd as part of
this case?

A I did.
. Could you tell our jury quantity of information

and particularity of an operative report consistent with

. Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter




139

10

11

12

13
14

15

i6

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

248

950
by Defeﬁdant'
propeér surgical practice iﬁ calendar year 2010, as to
whether that operative report has, in your oPinion,
appropriate or inaﬁpropriate.details.
B, It's é standard operative report.
Q. I'm going to ask you to assume that the template

‘which has standard operative descriptions supplemented by

the particular markings or --
THE COURT: I don't know what his question is
going to be.

MR. May I continue with it?

THE COURT: I have to hear it.

MR. He's already given me the
finger, -Judge.

THE COURT: WNot that kind of finger.

No, this finger.
THE COURT: The néughty finger.

He's telling her.

THE COURT: Thank vyou.

Go ahead.

BY MR.

Q. Doctor, I'm going to ask you to assume that the

testimony in this trial record is that Dr.
testified during this trial, had no independent recollection
of doing this operation and she testified that in her

opinion she has no recollection whether this operation went
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swimmingly and by the book.“ And I'm going to ask you to
assume that the doctor had‘creaéed in testimony that the
template for this operation, and then she testified as to
thérdetails of her operation, according to custom and
practice, without an independent reccllecticn that what's
described in the operative report was actually

contemporaneous with this operation for Mara Goldstein.

Objection.

THE COﬁRT: Maybe there's a subtlety that I
didn*t gét but so far I didn't hear anytﬁing ‘ |
objecticnable.

Template. He's telling her --

Judge, he --

THE COURT: GCGo ahead.

Judge, I would jﬁst like the
courtesy of doing my examination without the

gesticulation from my adversary, which I never did to

"him while he had Dr. bon the stand.
THE COURT: You both have very distinect
styles.

And I'm happy with mine,

frankly.

Q. ' Doctor, I'm going to ask you to assume that

operative report is that operative report, and I'm going to
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as I just said before I was

ask you to assume that Drx.

interrupted, had no specific recollection. A&All rigﬁt.
; The technique,.according to custom and
practice, that the doctor testified‘to vesterday. of
incising with the scalpel and usiﬁg the bovie, and I'm going
to go furthér; on the pillars, lateral and medial, séooping
out, we have testimony in“the record that she scooped out
tissue that's reflected that went to pathology. Do you have

an dpinidn as to whether or not that represents proper

technique or not?

MR. Objection.
'THE COURT: Overruled.
A, Yes. )
Q. V:Ihanks for bearing with the length of that
qﬁestion, by the way.

By the way, whenever you've appsared in court

-béfore, have lawyers put hypothetical questions to you?

MR.

Objection.
'THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. Now, duringithe course of this operation, Dr. Wu
testified according to custom and practice that after the
large pilece of tissue was rémoved, thé en bloc, from both
breasts, that she instructed anesthesia -- according to
custom and practice, with no specific recollection, to

elevate the electric bed, maintain the anesthetic
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propensities and check for symmetry of the right breast and

left breast several times, in addition to removing extra

tissue, as is reflected in the path report, te achieve
symmetry. You with me thus fax?
A . I am.

MR.

ijection-

THE COURT: This is a fair question he's
asking her to assume. IEf the'jury finds the facts to
be aifferent from those which the expert has been aéked
to agsume, they are free to reject the opinion and the

conclusions to be drawn from the opinion.

Q. Now, Doctor, do you have an opinion, with
reasonable medical certainty or probability, as tc the
concept of elevating the bed and checking several times, as

estified to is her custom and practice, without a

specific memory going back to August of 2010, represents

proper surgical intraoperative processes? Do you have an

opinion?
A. Yes.
Q. What is your opinion?
A. That behavior is appropriate. It adhere's to ﬁhe

standard of care.
Q. What is the function or benefit, if any, to such

behavior intraoperatively, that we just were addressing,

.Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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2 elevating the bed, checking for symmetry, potentially
3 _réﬁéﬁing tissue several times; what's the beneﬁit?
4 “ A. To reaching the optimal final result.
5 Q. May I ask you, are the photographs still in front

-64 of you?

7 A, Yes.
8 ~ Q. I'm goiﬁg to address you not to bra photographs --
49— -
10 Yes, sir.
11 Don‘t feel you have to call me
“12 sir. |
13 N MR.?H }: I didn't mean any disrespect.
14 THE COURT: All this is an aside, it has
‘15 nothing to do with the case. It goes along with what I
16 . once tqld you, whatevef the attormneys say in the course
- 17 of their examination is not evidence in the case.
18 BY MR.
19 Q. Dr that photograph that I‘ﬁe.outlined

20 in the postdperative, I'm going to ask you to assume that it

21 is a frontal photograph after Dr. /s three procedures.

22 rhe patient is bare breasted in that photograph,'correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 .Q. Could you hold it up to-the jury so they see which
25 one I'm specifically referring to, the top photograph.

26 , My question to you is: Given the nature of
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the preoperative status and size of this patient's breast,

given the operations performed by Dr. | ; and given the

revisions as described by Dr. do you have an opinicn
as to the appearance, quality and result ultimately achieved

with regard to this patient’'s breasts, left and right?

A. Yes.

Q. What is your opinion?

A. I think the breasts are beautiful.

Q. Let me direct your opinioh to some aspects of the

breasts. Can you look specifically at the lollypop vertical
scar?
AL Yes.

Q. I'm going to ask you to assume that the vertical

scar was created by Dr. laccording to her recollection --
no recollection, according to her custom and practice, she
cut the skin. I'm going to ask you to assume that on

several occasions, namely, two, the trial recorxd reflects,

according to Dr. s records in evidence, that he
opened up partially the wvertical scar on both breasts on twe

occasions to get rid of the redundant skin under the

breasts. You're familiar with those procedures?
A. Yes.
Q. With the initial incision and opening up the

incisions two times, partially to remove that tissue, do you

have an opinion as to the quality or lack of guality or
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egrggiousnesgjor lack of egregiousness of the vertical,
lollipop scar by those postoperative photogrgphs?

AL The scar is acceptable.

Q. I want to address the position of the nipple and
areola complex, I'll call it the nipples even though I'm
referring to both parts of that tissue, fair enough?

A Yes.

Q. What is your oéinion, if anything, with regaxd to

the ultimate placement of those nipples after this sqrgery?

A. Théy are in the proper position, it's the apex of
the breast.

Q. Wheﬁ you say asg a surgeon “ﬁhe apex of the
breast," what does apex of the breast mean in 1éy language?

A, Well} the breast is a three—dimensional stru;ture,
it’s a pyramid. So frequently it's referred to as a
pyramid-like structure. So the chest wall is the base of
the pyramid and the breast rises off of it in three

dimensions, so it has height, it has length and it has width

‘and at the top of the breast is situated the nipple. So

this is a refleaction of that.
T cant see the clavicle but I can see the
super sternal notch and the distances that are visible with

the photo cut off are compatible with what's esthetically

acceptable in this particular type of surgery.

Q. I'm going to skip ahead. I want to --
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referring to, please?

(Pause.)_

I"11 put my initials and a check

mark so you know I referred to it.

MR. Thank you so much.
{Pause.)
Q. ‘Now, I'm going to refer -- and put before the
witness -- the two photographs of the patient in the red and

black bras.

— Now, Doctor, the same gquestion I asked you
with regard to the breasts without a garment on- them, the
garment being thé brés. First, do you see a portion of the

nipple and arecla complex being visible in both of those

photographs?
AL Yes.

Q. - Does that affect in any fashion the opinion that

' ydu gave to the jury that the nipple-areola complexes were

in an elevated but proper position?

AL Not from these photds.
QL' Why do you say not from these photos?
A, Because the bra could be manipulated to move the

breast tissue around. There's pushup bras, bras that
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.minimize the'b;east, there's clothing that accentuates,
there's clothing that camouf;ageé. So the leocation of the
bra and the underwire does not appear appropriate in

either -- from what I can discern from this photograph, in

either picture"

Q. There has been testimony. aithough Dr. has no
ihdependent racollection of what she did on August 25, 2010,
but according tguthe custom and practice and the aspects of
the Hall-Findlay operative procedure, that the original
placement preoperatively of the nipple and areola. complex as

a result of the technique of the surgery, Dr. testified,

it allows, after the tissue resected and the pillars or
flaps are brought together, for a natural elevation of the
nipple compiexw

My first question is: Are you aware of such

movement as part and parcel of this operation?

A Yes.

Q. When I say movement, I mean of the nipple?

A7 ges. |

Q. is theré any way to abéolutely, I mean in your

opinion, within millimeters, to predict where the nipple
will reszide postoperatively, notﬁithstanding the

preoperative mosque markings, in your opinion?

Objection.

THE COURT: Overruled.
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A. I don't quite understand that question.
Q. | Let me téll you; I almost don't understand it
ﬁyself'so let me give it to you againa.

I waﬁted to know, with the mosque markings,
the preoperative mérkings of the template, the drawings on
the breast, together with the preoperative measurement -
let me just get to thém so you‘don't have any question.

(Pause.)

Q. Given the mosque markings as part of my question,

.and the following measurement according to the operative

fepoxt in evidénce, the new nipple position was mérked at
the level of the intrawmammafy fold, IMF, approximately
22 centiméters from the sternal notch. The standard skin
markings for a vertical reduction mammoplasty were marked on
thelpatient using a keyhole temﬁlate. "A nipple marker was
used to ﬁark the new dimensions of thé areola.

My question is: Do you have an opinion with
reasonable medical certainty, aside from the mosqﬁe |

template, marking the new nipple position potentially at

22 centimeters from the sternal notch; do you have an

opinion as to whether or not that measurement comports with
appropriate surgical practice, Doctor?

Al Yes, it does.

Q. Reflecting on the anatomy and reflecting on the

distance, what is the basis of your opinion teo our jury?
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A. - The basis7ié the ideal locatién‘of the nipple.
And there's a range. So it could be 139 inches, it could be
22 inches, so it's generally ﬁot less than 12 and not more
than 22, 23.

Q. Are you familiar with the term called ptosis of
the nipple preoperatively?

A. Ptosis of the nipple or ptosis of the breast.

Q. df the breast, together with the nipple?

A. Yes.

Q. What is meant by that, ptosis?.

A - Droopy.

Q- - We have testimony in this trial record from Dr. Wu

Ehét the grading of ptosis can be from one to three, this
was a grade two. First of all, do you have an opinion as to
whether or not the grading of ome to three, three being more
severe than one, as shé‘testified to, is an appropriate

presurgical texrm?

AL Yes.
Q.  What is grade two, Doctor?
A. ~Grade two is where the nipple is at the level of

the crease and not below the key. It's still on the breast
mound buf it is now sagging to the level of the crease.

Q. | Eow, with regard to the questicons that I put
before you thus far, I want to ask vyou globally: Doiyou

have an opinion with a reasonable degree of medical
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certainty as to whether or not the preoperative assessment

and markings, before we get to the surgery and the'cutting,

-&orgpu have an opinion as to whether or not what's reflected

in this operative report and on the preoperative photograph,
;s to whether or not those preoperative markings'comported
with proper, preoperative assessments before the patien£ wWas
cut?

a. .Yes.

Q. - What's the basis -- what goes into your opinion
that you said yes?

A. It's based on the anatomical location of the
breasts and therlocation of the nipple in reference to the
breast, the excessive tissue, the ptosis that's preseant and
the mass of the bréast to be removed and the relocation of
the nipple. )

Q. Now, I want to ask you: Some aspects that were

testified to with regard to the intraoperative cutting and

manipulation, once again so we're clear, Dr. Wu had no

independent recollection of what she did and she based hex
description that I'm going to incorporate, that we had
ygsterday, on custom and practice and that she created to
whatever degree this surgical template and dascriptioﬁ.

| I'm going to ask you to agsume that she cut
&eep down with the scalpel and the bovie that we talked

about already, she removed tissue that's reflected in the
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pathology report, en bloc and multiple small piécés right
breast and left breast, she undermined and scooped out,
according tc the trial record she testifiedt on the pillars
on the medial and lateral and at.éome point'approximatéé the
left and right pillars, and as a result of that the
nipple-areola complex in the pedicle was elevated up and the
nipple, she teétified, wag placed within the upper part of
the mosque template.

Do you have an opinion with reasomnable

medical certainty as to whether those aspects of the

intraoperative manipulation maneuvers and cutting comported
with appropriate breast reduction surgical practice for the
whole technigue?

MR. Objection.

THE COURT: Overruled.

AL Yes.

Q. May I ask you what's the basis for the opiniocn
that it comported? |

A. It's normal anatomy. The desired result is
achieved by following the road map.

Qv I'm going to ask you to assume, and I'm reflecting
now on Dr. Sultan‘s'results. I'm not reflecting, I'm
referring to the removal of the excess skin that he
addressed. I'm going to talk about his addressing the

retracted nipples.
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- His operative reports indicate that, among
5ther thingé,‘ﬁe introduced cutting devices to free up‘
glandular and fibroﬁs bandé and he was not completely
successful on the first operation, left or right.'

| The second operagion, the left nipple was

somewhat elevated out but the right was persistently
retracted.

And then the third operation in Janﬁary“of
2012, even after harvesting fat from the earlier opération,
he utilized a purse string on the right nipple to hold it
up, then he used something known and described as donuts,
according to the plaintiff, that éhe wore for a number of
months; té keep the nipples protected. She didn't wear a
bra and she had to walk around for a number of months
without anything that would push the nipples in. |

What ié your aésessment of what he did to

evert or get the'nipples out? Just summation, what did bhe

do?

A In essence everything he did is appropriate.

Q. | And the technique dealt with what, in successive
féshion to release the inverted nipples -- retracted
nipples?

Al The-attempt initially was to release banding,

fibrotic tissue and to allow the nipple to evert, and
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look at his op report -- which is anothex appfoach._

Finally he resorted to autologous fat, whichl
is taking fat out of omne part of the body, putting it under
the nipple to have it avert, and protecting the mnipple
subsequently so that no trauma interrupted the healing
process of all of those procedures, particulariy the last
one.

Q. Now, I'm going to ask you to assume the retracted
nipples, I'd.like to know if yvou have an opinion as to
whether or notlthe recurrence of the retracted nipplés
indicated some type of surgical departure on the paft of br.
Wu deoing this dperation?

A, That's not obvious from reviewing the records.

Q. Now, I'm going to ask you to assume that wé had a

witness here on Wednesday. Dr. And Dr.

offered an opinion and two theories as to why the retracted
nipples happened.

One theory was that Dr.

he operating
surgeon, must have undermined tissue under the nipplé and
areoia complex o cause a spade to allow the nipple to
retract.

And the second theory, that she must havé put
sutures arouﬁd the nipple area deep into the tissue to allow
fér some constriction of tissue to allow the nipples to

ratract.
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The second part of my question, I'm going to

ask vou to assume.that Dx estified, according to her
custom and practice with no independentlrecollection, that
she nevexr went near the underside of thebﬁipple andrareola
complex and altered the tissue whatscever, and that the only
suturing she did was on the medial and lateral pillars to

bring them togethei as a skin envelope and gently tacked the

reduced areola tissue to the surrounding skin.

Objection.
THE COURT: This is subject to

crogs-examination.

AL Yes._
Q. What is your opinion?
A. My opinion is that --
Q. Could you kéep.your volice up?
A Yes.. |
So I do have an opinion.
Q. What is your opin&cn?
AL It's based upon the pedicle. 2aAnd the pedicle is

primary to the success of the surgery. The pedicle is the

beginning and the end of a successful operation. So if it

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter




155 -

- by Defendant

2 ﬁas undermining of the nipple it would have compromiged tﬁe
3| bloed supply to the nipple. BAnd that didn't happen here.
4 At the end of the operation the nipple was healthy, it was
) pink, it was everted. And as far aé closing the skin of the
6 areola to'the adjacent skin, thét's done very géntly and
7 very éaréfully where the edges are approximated, they aren’t
8 big chunks of tissue that are pulled together tightly. It
9 just waéh't in the accepfable way to do the surgery‘sb that
| 10 didn't happen. |

11 Q. ' Wow, I want to focus before I f£inish on the
12 ppsto?erative period. I'm gding to ask you to assume that

13| after the patient came back six days later, on August 31,

_;4 the operation being August 25, the patient came back in
15 October. 1In October of 2010. Let me just get the record g0
16| I'm accurate.
17 ' ) (Pause.)

18 Q. I'm going to pull up October so you have it in

19 front of you.

20 ' ‘ In October, Dr.

_gqmpﬁter.was down. It
21 says Crown is down again. She puts down ﬁhat the nipple

22 still retracted. And then at the bottom, I may need

23 revision of nipple. Scheduling something for February 2011.

24 Later on the patient came back, in January of

25 2011. In January 2011, Dr hys: Among other things in

26 | - the note T am happy to revise the nipple and the dog ears.
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This can be done in the operating room, which I prefer, as

it will be more comfortable for the patieht, or in the

office.

I WOuld.prefer to do this after she is one
yéér out;.August 2011, but she's going off to college and
she haswsummer camp, where she's a counselof, therefore, it
looks like June 2011 is.going to be more feasible.

I'm going to ask you to assume that the

patient did not return to Dr. My question is: Do you

have an opinion with regard to the elapse time of, as you
told us earlier, six months ox a year; as to whether or not
that plays any role in scheduling properly when a revision
of these nipples, as well as the dog ears, will be
undertaken?

A. Coula you say that again?

Q. Undertaken.

Al Say the whole thing again.

Could I ask you to read it back?

THE COURT: Please read it back.

(Record read.)

Q. Understand or shall I rephrasé?
AL I believe I understand it.
Tt's the clinical judgment of the examining

physician that healing has progressed and within another
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2 three months, which would be June, or six months, depending
3| upon what she saw and felt on the examination, the tissue
-4 would be ready for revision.

Could we take a short break. I

6 think I'm almost finished, I just want to check my
1 " notes.

8 - THE COURT: Yes.

Thank you, your Honor.
10 , (Whereupon, the jury retired from the
11 courtfoom.)
12 : (Recess.)
13
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"THE COURT OFFICER: Jury entering.
{(The jury entered the courtroom and
the following occurred:)

Q. Doctor, I will ask vou some guestions that arxe

969

independent of the actual facts or suppositions or testimony

in this case.

In your practice, in your professicnal life, have

you had patients who you haveroperated upon in plastic and

reconatructive surgeries who have needed revisions?

AL Yes.

Q. Have you had complications in your surgerxries?
AL Yes.

Q. Have you had patients who you knew had been

operated upon by other plastic and reconstructive surgeons,

and came to you for second opinions or secondary revisions,
and left the first doctor?

AL Yes.

Q. To your knowledge, héve‘patients who after you
operated upon‘them,left your care for revisions or
complications happening, and went to other doctors in the
metropolitan communify?A

AL Probably.

Q.- Okay. Now, as you reviewed this case and the

circumstances of this case, did you determine any departures

from surgical technigue on the part of the attending

Terxry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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surgeon, Dx. ¢

AB No.

Q. As a practical mattexr, you chérge for the time
spent reviewing the matexrials?

A. . Yes.

Q. Can you tell the jury in 2017 what you would be'-
charging on an hourly basis?

A. 8350.

. And if you're here, let's assume you are here
until 4:00 ;'ciock Eoday or 4:30, how will you compute the
day?

AL The day is charged at 5,000.
Q. dkay. All right.

Have you e&er reviewed a case for the law firm
where I am sgenior partner, before
this case, according to your recollection?

AL Yes.
Q. Okay. Did you and i work -- do you have a memory

of you and I actually working on a trial in 2006 or so on a
caseae?

A, Yes.

Q. All right. Between 2006 and this particular case,
have you and I had any cases together individually?

Al No.

Thank you so much.

Terry-Ann Volberg, C8R, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Direct/Cross Exercise

Fact Pattern: On November 21, 2008, Clumsy Joe was involved in a slip and fall accident
at Macy’s due to a wet floor. He has chronic back problems. Dr. Pain is an orthopedist
that has treated Clumsy Joe for back pain for the past 10 years.

Direct-

Q: What is your full name?
A: Clumsy Joe

Q: Where do you live?
A: 69 Lottery Drive, Brooklyn, New York.

Q: How long have you lived at this address?
A: All my life.

: Do you live with anyone?
: My mother, father, wife and son.

0

: What are your parents’ names?
: Rich Joe and Mary Joe.

L)

: What is your wife’s name?
: Golddigger Joe.

> o

: What is your son’s name?
: Clumsy Joe Jr.

: How old is Clumsy Joe Jr.?
5

: What is your educational background?
: High School Diploma

PO PO PO PO

: Are you employed? ? e L 6 Llael€
 UsedGarSatesmam:  Chovac v - clentloprte Ty

Transition from background information to date of accident.

Transitional Question: Now, [ would like to direct your attention to November 21, 2008,
at approximately 12:00 pm. Where were you?
A: At Macy’s.

Q: Which Macy’s?
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A: The one on 34" Street and 7" Avenue, NYC.

Q: Why were you at Macy’s?

A: Shopping for a birthday present for my wife, Golddigger.
Q: Was anyone with you?

A: No, I was alone.

Q: Where you shopping for anything in particular?
A: I was shopping for a diamond necklace for Golddigger.

Q: What floor were you on?
A: The first floor.

Q: What department were you in?
A: The jewelry department.

Q: What happened next?

A: The sales clerk was showing me necklaces. Many were very expensive. [ asked him
if there were any cheaper ones. H e asked me to come to the end of the counter where a
bunch of boxes were piled up. I had to walk around the boxes when I slipped and fell and
landed on my back.

Q: Do you know the name of the store clerk?

A: Yes, he was a young man about 20 years old. I believe his name was Jimmy. [ don’t
remember his last name.

Q: How did you know his name was Jimmy?

A: He told me and he had a name plate on his shirt pocket.

Q: What caused you to slip?
A: After slipping and falling, [ felt water seeping through my pants. [ saw that [ was
sitting in a puddle of water.

Q: After you slipped on the water, what happened?
A: I fell on my back.

Q: Please describe the puddle.
A. I was clear water covering an area of about 18 inches just in front of the counter to the
left of the stack of boxes.

Q: Describe for us how you slipped.

A: While looking at the diamond necklaces for my wife Golddigger, I had to take a step
around the boxes. I moved with my right foot slid and I fell backwards landing on my
lower back and then flat on my entire back.

Q: How did you feel as you sat in the puddle of water?
A: [ felt so much pain in my back shooting down my left leg.
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Q: Can you describe the pain?
A: I felt like someone had taken 10,000 pins and pushed them into my back at one time.
I felt sharp pains throughout my back shooting down my leg.

Q: What happened next?

A: The sales clerk, who was showing me the jewelry, came from behind the counter and
tried to help me up. He had to move the boxes to get to me. When [ tried to move, the
pain became intense. So he told me to sit still while he called for help. As I sat there [
notice that behind the boxes was a water fountain that appeared to be leaking.

Q: What happened next?

A: The store manager arrived and asked me how [ felt and whether I could move. The
store clerk brought a chair over and both of them helped me up so I could sit in the chair.
Q: Then what happened?

A: The store manager asked me if [ wanted an ambulance called and [ told them yes. The
store clerk brought me over a towel to dry off my pants and gave me a glass of water.

Transition from actual event to treatment.

Q: Did there come a time that an ambulance arrived?

A: Yes, it took about 20 minutes for the ambulance to arrive.

Q: What, if anything happened during that 20 minutes?

A: Jimmy, the store clerk stayed with me. We made some small talk about buying
jewelry. He was getting ready to go back to college. [ pointed out to him that the water
fountain was leaking. He said it’s been leaking for weeks.

Q: What happened next?
A: The medical personnel came and asked me questions.

Q: What did you tell them in response to their questions?

A: [ slipped and fell due to water while looking at diamond necklaces for my wife
Golddigger. I told them I could hardly move without intense pain in my lower back. I
told them that the pain was shooting down my leg.

Q: Without telling us what they said, tell us what they did?
A: They put a back brace on me; put me on a stretcher and transported me to the hospital.

Q: What hospital?
A: Windfall University Hospital.

Q: What happened once you arrived at Windfall University?

A: X-rays and an MRI were taken of my back.

Q: Did you discuss the results of the x-rays and MRI with the medical personnel at
Windfall University Hospital?

A: Yes, they told me [ had a herniated disc and that I need to see a neurologist.
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Q: What happened next?

A: [ was given some pain medication.

Q: Where you admitted to the hospital or treated and released?
A: [ was treated and released

Q: Where you given any instructions for follow-up care?

A: Yes, I was told to see Dr. Pain for follow-up care

Q: Did you go to see Dr. Pain?

A Yes, that afternoon.

CROSS OF DR. PAIN- Assume Dr. Pain testified that Clumsey Joe has a herniated disc
that is impinging on his nerve causing shooting pain going down his leg. Assume Dr.
Pain attributes this to the slip and fall in Macy’s. I want to show that Dr. Pain knew
Clumsy Joe had chronic back pain prior to accident and attempt to cast doubt on the
causal connection as stated by Dr. Pain.

Good Morning Dr. Pain.

Q: You would agree that not every fall causes acute back pain?
A: Yes.

Q: You agree that it is important to discuss a patient’s prior medical history before
rendering a diagnosis, correct?
A: Yes.

Q: You would agree that it is important to keep accurate records concerning a patient,

correct?
A: Yes.

Q: Dr. Pain, you treated Clumsy Joe on November 21, 2008, true?
A:Yes.

Q: You treated Clumsy Joe prior to November 21, 2008, correct?
A: Yes.

Q: In fact you treated Clumsy Joe a week before November 21, 2008, true?
Yes.

Q: More specifically, you treated him for back pain a week before November 21, 2008,
correct?

Yes.

Q: More specifically, you treated Clumsy Joe on November 14, 2008

Q: At the request of plaintiff’s counsel you provided him with a written report regarding
Clumsey’s Joe’s back problems, correct?

A: Yes

Q: He told you he needed the report to give to Macy’s attorney?
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A. [ don’t recall what he needed it for

Q: And that report is dated, May 5, 2009, correct?

A:Yes

Q: This report was about Clumsy Joe’s accident in Macy’s?
A: Yes and his physical condition as a result

Q: Despite the fact that you treated Clumsy Joe on November 14, 2008, a week before his
accident in Macy’s, your report to the plaintiff’s attorney makes no reference of any
treatment by you of Clumsy Joe prior to his accident in Macy’s on November 21, 2008,

correct?
A: Yes, he didn’t ask me to comment about any prior treatment.

Q: In fact, you have been treating Clumsy Joe intermittently for back pain for the past 10
years?
A: Yes.

Q: Yet, you make no mention of this on your report of November 21, 2008?
A: No.

Q: Clumsy Joe has suffered from back pain for several years?
A: Yes.
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COURT OFFICER: Part 9 Hearing Calendar. In the
Matter of Sawaran Singh versus Aslam Siddique Index Number
12842 of 2012. counsels, appearance for the record, starting

‘with the plaintiff.

vr. S ror the plaintiff. The Taw firm of

THE COURT: Good morning.’

vr. D cood morning, your Honor.
vR. WP Good morning.
THE COURT: We are here to have a hearing on the

_ p1a‘i_nt1'ff's motion inlimine to preclude defendant's expert

. witness.

That's correct, your Honor,

~ THE COURT: ‘And in support, I have a mot{on and
exhibits A through L, from the plaintiff, which I am going to
mark as Court Exhibit 1 in the damages phase of the trial.
Because we've Finished 1iability a few months ago. Then, I have
an opposition from defense counsel, along with Exhibits A

through U, and T will mark this as Court Exhibit 2. And I am

ready to proceed. Except, Mr. & B said he had a motion

with regard to the motion. So, what?
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Thank you, judge. Actually, it's

fwormotions- The fﬁrstlmntionsu— excuse me one second. I now
haﬁe had a.chanée to review p1aﬁntiff's ;ounse1's papers, your
Honor, and it is our contention that fhere was no affidavit or
expert evidence whatsoever in the motion; X asked a]ternatiVeTy

that the motion not be considered because of that, thqt it be

tabled. oOr, in the alternative, that any personal opinions

plaintiff's counsel expresses as 10 what he thinks the

biomechamical expert should go about doing, their duty, should

not be considered by the Court.
THE COURT: TIs there a requirement that the motion

inlimine even be in writing?

In this case, there was, because
you've ordered it.
THE COURT: I did not.

The phone call that we had, i asked

you —— T said'to'you, I don't even have papers, and you said
yes, you have to get in papers by such a day. I am entitled to
kriow whether you want the papers to be exchanged --

THE COURT: I did not.

vou absolutely did.

Judge, in that conference, you did.

vou've stated that I should put together a written motion to
explain the parameters that| I am going against. There was such

a conversation, your onoer.




proceedings

4
1 ‘. THE .COURT : Ir embér thaf M. SR scnt e a
21 copy of or. SRS report| and we scheduled a hearing, but T
3 don't recall ever redui ring anybody to put anything in wﬁting.
4t But, in any event, it's he pful that you béth have, bécause now
5 we have a‘-record, Tn the meantime, there is no requi reﬁaent 1_:ha:t
6 an attomey who requests athearing with regard to the pr‘ecTusmn
7 of an expert w1tness has to have an expert w11:ness in order to
8 support that motion.

9 VR . T Note my exception.

10 THE COljRT,: okéy

11 vr. GEEEENSMEES: he second motion is, I ha\lle marked
12 ;—'p1-e§se bear with me, Yo r Honor, I do this as respectfully as
13 I can, I lhave marked as Defiense Exhibit for Identification A, "
- 14 maybe you can mark it as a next court exhibit, and your article
15 ent11:1ed "The use of bmmeham cal engineers in motor vehiicle
16 accidents and trials.” And I want to quote from the paragraph
17 and Page 2, it says as follows: Some biomechanical engineers

18 retained to testify are unwj‘i"ﬂihg to admit they cannot form a

.19- trustworthy conclusion from the information given to them.

"20 Nonetheless, they use dedud ive reasoning, extrapo1at10n and

21 inference, and report their concussions as based on sound

22 science. Unfdrtun'a*.ce“iy, wilth what appears to be a good deal of

23 hocds pocus, and use of com Ticated and intimidating

24 mathematical formulas, they|can sometimes ﬁ)o'l a judge and jury.

25 Tt is the judge's role to p eclude testimony that will not be
L
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useful to the j-i-.ll"‘y, which nd_udeé testimony that is misleading,
inaccurate, or irrelevant.

Let the record reflect fh;t I have quoted.the entire
paragraph without any reda tions whatsoever. I would offer this

—~ 1 don't know what the next exhibit number is.

THE COURT: Three.

vr. CEEEE: Mo ‘I‘ respond?

. R b1 I ha\(en't finished my application.
v . N 1

THE COURT: He hasn't said what his application is, he

Sorry.

just said he wants to mark |my article from the New York State
Bar Journal. _
MR . GEERIER: Fair enough.

COURT OFFICER: his is going to be a court exhibit?

THE COURT: I gu ss 0. This is Court Exhibit 3, a
copy of the article that I'ye submitted to the February 2016 New

vork State Bar Association Journal, that was an article that I

modified from a report thatl T wrote for the science for Judge’s

program, which is a national program. Proceed.

s there an applifcation related to this?

ves, Judge. As I've moved before
.thé 1iability trial, on the\ record, and 1 move again, I think

that this; paragraph has_ giv;i n me great caﬁse, because the truth
of the matter is, is that description that you've used in that

paragraph, s far as experts committing hocus pocus, I think
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that’s something to be said about every biomechanical expert.

and T think that I have to|respectfully protect the record and

ask your Honor to setiously consider recusal.
#

May I be heard on that, your Honor?

THE COURT: I just want to understand. 1 should

. recuse myself on the basis |that I have an opinion?

well, not just hecause you have an
opinion just haﬁing an opinion would not give me a concern.
what concerns me is that your opinion seems to be, how shall I
said it, hardened and abso]ute wh1ch may not allow you the
whergwitha1 to be flexible should you actually hear someth1ng
that was good and acceptable under the law.

THE COURT: Okay. I take'th1s as a motion that I
should recuse myself because I am not stupid enough for you to

take advantage of. Okay, your opposition?

I object to that characterization.

THE COURT: That'ls all I can take it as.

I have read your entire articié, at
.1ength, several times, that| is one paragraph, a éertain context.
vour Honor went out of her ay, in my opinion, to give both
sides -- 1in fact your Honor cited case law from New Jersey
indicating that where appr03r1ate, and where the proper,

evidentiary foundations are laid, and proper scientific

information and background information is given to the expert,

that it is not junk sciencei Your Honor has gone through the
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1 history of these type of mdtions inlimine, where some are
. -2 originally considered junk|science andl now they_;re not |
3 necessarily considered so.| so, I found the article to be
4 overwhelmingly fair. And to read one paragraph where your Honor
5 tiid say that there are times vhen biomechahica‘l.s come in without
6 fuﬂ' information at their disposal, if is hocus pocus, and other
7 _ judges have found the sa;me thing. Irth'ink the whole purpose of
8l a2 Frye hgarin'g here, as outlined 'i‘n your Honof's artidg, is to
9 get to the root” of the infdrmation to see if the expert has an
10 ' ‘édequate basis for forming jhis or her opinion, and make a ruling
14 thereon. I find no biaS whatsoever. I find this to be a very

12| even-handed article.
13 " THE COURT: TIf I Were to agree with you, Mr.
. i4 SRR, it would k;er chilling effect on the entire
15 judiciary that they have no right to Have any writings
16 pﬁbh’shed. gecause whatever they write about, will result in a
17 ~ barrage of motions that thely recuse themselves. This is a jury
18 ootrid zﬂ. not a bench trial.
19 : vr. G| For purposes of this hearing, this
20 is a bench trial, because ypu make the final deci sioﬁ.
21 | . THE COURT :’ T understand that. I am denying your
22 motio;'l. and we need to move on, and actually have our hearing.
23 ‘ so, is your witness here?
24 .| ves, your Honor.

25 vour Honor, may we go off the record for
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ofie secand?
THE COURT: Of course.
“(whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)
THE WITNESS: " cood morning, your Homor. |
THE COURT: 'Good“éorning.
COURT OFFICER: Raise your right'héﬁd,fsir

D R.

B, after having‘fﬁrst been
duly sworn was examined and testified as follows:

THE WITNESS: I dé).

COURT OFFICER: Please, state your name and address
for the record.

' THE WI“INESS:. vy name is GENENGED. T am an "Adjruncrt

professor in the Department of gioengineering in the 5 S

B - i ormechanical Engineering'Consu1tant. My

business address is G

COURT OFFICER: Thank you. would you Tike some water?

~ THE WITNESS: Yes, please.

may I ask the doctor to keep his voice
up?
THE COURT: Yes, please.

THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Brhis is an evidentiary hearing, please keep
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your answers_aud1b1e, And if you don't undgrstand the question,
please et me know.

‘A. 1 do.

Q I would 1ike to start out with your educational

background, sir?

A sure.
Q- Starting wfthrhow long have you been in the uni ted
States? '_ -
A. I have been here since 1999.
Q. Before that, whéreAwere you born?
A. I was born in .
Q. and while you were in GEEE® did go to a medical schoo'l'?
A. ves. I attended medical school, and T graduated from

school of medicine in 1994.

Q. whét is the name of that medical school?

A

Q. and after YOu graduatéd, did you practice medicine?
A, I did practice medicine for five years.

é Andrp1ea5e tell the Court, for the record, what type of

medicine’ you practiced?

A I was a general practitibner, P.C.P..

Q. ~In your capacity as.genera1 practitioner, did you also
from vime-to-time treat victims of trauma?

A. I did.

Q. | okay. And after you came to the united States, did you
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begin a new course of study?

A. ves, I did.

Q. . And was that course of thdy in the field of
bioengineeriﬁg? | .

A. Yes.

Q. please explain, for the Court's benefit, what is the
fﬁeid.of bicengineering, or biomechanics? )

AL Biqmechani#s is a branch of science that_app]ies the.
laws. of physics and principles of engineering tov1iving systems in
general and the human body in particular.

Q. ﬁow; d%dIYOu take a course of study and at some point
graduate with a Master's ofHSCignce?

A ves, I did. I got my Bachelor's of Sciencé first, and
then I went on to get my Master's degree in Biomechanicsrfrom the

Q. after that, did you then get a Doctorate from the
pepartment of Bioengineerihg'at the € :

A _Yes. In 2011, 1 graduated with my Ph.p., which is-a
Doctorate dégree, in the field of biomechanics.

Q Do you currently hold any teaching positions?

A That is correct. I am Adjunct professor in the Department

of Bioengineering at the TR

Q. " And does the ¢ B have a medical
school?

A Yes.
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/ 11
Q. And do you lecture or interact with medica1 students?
A Yes.
Q. please explain, for the court's benefit, your
interaction or lecturing of medical students at the University of
pittshurgh Medical school?
A. | The students that I deal with are either undergrads or

graduate students in the schqu of engineering. And at sometimes in

the courses and seminars that we have in the school of Engineering,

Departmént of Biocengineering, we also have attendees from the school

of medicine. And for some research projects, we also have
participants -- medical students participaﬁing in our fesearch
studies, supervised;

Q. S0, we are clear. Does medical students rotate throuQH'
and sif through lectures in your area of expertise?

A.‘ ‘ Yes.

Q And are you also a principal —- president and principal

scientist of a particular type of LLC?

A. Yes .
Q. please tell the Court what that is?
A. and as I mentioned, I am

a biomechanics engineering consultant, and T perform those tasks as a

consultant under the name

Q. Are you a member of any societies or organizations?
Al Yes, I.am.
Q please tell us some of them, what they are?
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15

A. I am a member of biomedical —- I am sorry. I ama
member of American Society of Mechanical Engineers. I am a member of
the American society of Biomechanics. I am a member of the

Biomedical Engineering Society. I am also member of S.A.E.

International, which stands for Society of Automotive Engineers.

Q. - Now, in terms of car safety, would you briefly describe
some q?.the safety devices that biomechanicaT engineers deﬁe1op and
imp?ement in terms of car safety?

' A.‘ Absolutely. Actually, we will start with the designing

of the model of the car itself, the exterior and the features that

are included in terms of the crush, stiffness, and crumple zone, that

" basically the car is designed to absorb the energy as a result of the

impact. And the interior of the vehicle, we have_deyices such as air
bags, and seat belts, headrests, and also the design of the new seats
are also a byproddct of biomechanical engineering studies, and

obviously the purpose is to make the vehicle safer for the occupént

inside.
Q. Have you testified before in the State of New vork?
A. Yes.
Q. About how many times have your testimony been réceived,A

to testifying to, in the State of New York?

A. More than 30 times.

For the record, your Honor, I will
just note that although I could not attach all 35 examples, I

did attach certain Appellate Term, §
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B cxhibits 0 and E in my exhibit package.

THE COURT: D is --

THE COURT: Appellate Term First Department. And E is

Supreme Court Bronx County, which is in the First Department.

Right.

THE COURT: We are in the Second Department.

T am well aware of that.

Q And you testified in Kings County, sBrooklyn, before?
A. . Yes. |

Q. And.have you testified in Queens County?

A. Yes, sir. m

Q As a matter of fact, you have testified before Justice

Francois Rivera in a case called CEGu Db

A. I bhelieve so.

Q. - And last year you testified in a case called & 0

BB in Queens before Judge €

A, . Yes.

Q. Did-you also testify in front of CEIEEE

~another case where you'were involved here in Kings County not too

long ago?
A. That's correct.
Q. and that would be
A. 1 believe so.

Q. T would Tike to go into, briefly, an explanation for
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the Court's benefit, as to the overall plan, or design, of the modern

American automobile vehicle. what is the intention, that you are

aware of, that biomechanical science lends to the design of the

modern American autcmobile?

vr. G Objection.

what's the objection?

MR . _ No relevance to what we are dealing with

~or whether or not he is qualified to testify.

I am laying the foundat'ion.

THE COURT: I don't understand the guestion. Are you
talking about the Model T7 whaf are you asking him to say?

vR . I 1 said the modern automobile,
obviously I am not tal king about -the model T, Judge, from the
1920s.

THE COURT:  There isr-;clvri'lruge difference between
different .automobﬂes currently on the market with regard to
their safety features, their ~- yéu know, I mean, a generic

question isn't really hel pﬁﬂ“ .

T will réphrase the guestion.

Q In terms of the biomechani‘ca‘lrcontribt_ation fo car safety
in the last 10 to 15 years, are you aware of any mim'rﬁum' Standards
that are set by the Federal Government?

A Yes. ;}There are multiple standards that are bé*ing set by
the Federal Government; and as such, car manufacturers are mandated

to perform SpéC”i fic tests for the safety of the vehicles they make,
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and sometimes those tests are done by federal agencies themselves,
sometimes those tests are done by third parties. But it is my

understanding that there are multiple federal guidelines that

fanufacturers have to adhere to and comply with in order to be able

to actua]1y sell their product.

Note my objection to hearsay, on simply

relying on what other people do, and what other agencies do.

It's a Frye hearing, Judge.

I am preservihg my record. -

Q. 1n terms of those federal requirements, are you aware
that some automobiles are required to adhere to them or to your
knowledge do all have to adhere t6 them?

A. Every single car that is peing marketed in the United
states has to pass those tests and those guidelines.

Q would that inc]ude the Chrysler Pacific& that the

plaintiff was sitting in on the day of the subject accident?

A. Absolutely.

Q T would 11ke ro discuss with you the specifics of this
case -~

A. sure.

Q. -- and run‘through some of your opinions, the basis for

them, and your conclusions. Now, did you receive certain materials
in order to prepare for your opimian?
Al - Yes.

Q. And did you issue a report?
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begin the substance of my discussion with Dr.

A. Yes.

Your Honor, for the record, that

report is Exhibit B, the packets of materials, and the doctor's

" curriculum vitae is Exhibit C to those packets of materials

provided. Also, I would Tike the Court to take judicié] notice

of Exhibit A in the defendant's packagé of submissions, an

excerpt of the reference manual on Scientific Evidence Third-

Edition of the Federa1_Judicia] Center; where it says, as
annexed,';iting Page 942: Common personal injqry cases may also
present issues on which engineering testimony may be helpful.
such disputes often tufh on testimony as to how a-particu1ar
trauma occufred. our discussion Bf biomechanical engineering
highlights some of those issues. In a car accidgnt case,
properly qualified engineers may provide opinion testimony
regarding how an accident occurred, puttizé reConséruction of
‘the conduct of each of the parties and how the conduct affected

the accident. I would like to point out that before I actually

7 that will

be our position which I will reiterate on a summations that I
would Tike to gfve, that under the Frye standard, which New York
has used and continues to use, that it is not an inguiry into

the methodology of the expert, but rather it involves, quote,

counting of heads, unquote. So, that the inquiry is focused not

‘on gatekeeping, but rather the doctor, or the expert, that

follows the standard procedures for their particular specia1ty.
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and Tastly, befere I begin, I want to point out to your Honor

that the other preva111ng Taw in New York State, on cases that

I ve c1ted in my papers, notab1y the case of mottot v. Ward, 48
- New quk 2d 455 Court of Appeals 197?. “An expert test1mony is

received by the courts of the State.of New York to a reasonable

degree of med1ca] or sc1ent1fﬁc certainty and not to an absolute

degree of 100 percent certa1nty with that, I w111 proceed with
~ the substance.

Q. so, br. §

@ 1 refer you to your report, and pTeese
indicate for the record what is the date of your-report?

A, I have the report with me.

71HE'WITNESS:V May I refer to my report, your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes, Thérone from —— this one?
THE WITNESS: Yes.

A. The date of my report is June 26, 2014.

Q. And on page 2 of that report, do you indicate the
matefia1s that you've reviewed?

A. Yes.

Q. and please tell us, for the record, what is it_that
you've rev{ewed? .

A T have reviewed the Port Authority of New vork and New
Jersey Motor Vehicle Crash Report. I have received color photographs
of the subject 2é04 Chrysler pacifica. T also received a summary, a
Claim Summary and Estimate of pecord. I have received some medical

records pertaining to the plaintiff. I received a verified Bill of
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1}  particulars Tisting --
2 Q pDon't skip over thaf, be specific. what did you get, what
3] did you review?
4 A. in terms of medical records, I reviewed two radiology
5 reports by Dr. EEEEES, an MRI report by Dr. @G and an
6! operative réﬁort by Dr. R
7 Q. . After that, did you review a doéument what's known as a
8 Verified 8i11 of particulars? |
9 A.  That's correct. Then, I received some Notice of Expert
: ]IﬁW witness calling pr. CHEEER and pr. EHEEES as experté, and I reviewed
11 | their repofts. T also reviewed transcript of the Examination Before
12 Trial of the drivers' two vehicles involved in the accident.
13 Q. , DidA;ou review the deposition of the plaintiff, Mr.
14
15§ A Yes.
16 Q and did you review the deposition of the defendant,
17 ‘
18 A..  Idid.
19 Q. No&,rattendant to your report, do you have a
20 bib1iograbhy?
21 | K Yes. At fhe very end of my report starting on Page 13, I
22. have all the references tha{ I've c¢ited and I use to subétantiate oy
23| opinions. |
24 Q. Just for éxamp1e, is one of these references Number 1,
25 is that 2004 chrysler pacifica, features and1specifications?
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A. ‘Yes. Beside the material --

Q Just yes or no?

A. -Yes.

Q. | okay. and there are approximately - not

approximate1y, under a total of 53 textbooks that you have referréd

' t0?

A. Yes. That's correct.

Q. Please te11 us how the biomechanica] engineers go about
their tasks of reconstructing an accident and estimating the forces
applied. in that accident?

A. well, th{s task is not different from any other task
that is being done under scientific methodology. Meaning that the
scientists or an enginéér co11ecting data and facts, and based:oh |
that informatiqn,‘using an established methodology to form specific'
calculations. _And the goal for an accident reconstruction task s
First to determine the severity of the accident. And it has been
established in the fﬁer of biomechanics and accident reconstruction
that‘ca1cu1a£ing or determining change {n velocity of the vehicles
involved, also known as delta-V, is the best indicator of the
sevéfity of an accident. And that would be the first goal for a
biomechanicaI engiﬁeer, 6r an ﬁcci&ent reconstructionist, to perform

those tasks and calculations based on established methodologies and

determine at least a range or hetter a number for delta-v or changing

vélocity of the cars in the accident.

Q.- 1s this methodology somethiing that you made up or is it
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17 sbmethi ng that biomechanical engineers‘ use in their evef"yday tasks?
2 A.  It's somethingrthat is established in this field.
3l That's not something that I innovated or created. I just use
4] established me‘;:hodo“lbgy in thé _ﬁeld of accident reconstruction and
5  biomechanics.
6 Q. . And 1'5 fhe formula known as delta-v, is that something
71 you made up or is that something that biomechani cal engineers- use in
8l their day-to-day scientific analysis?
o A That's what biomechanical engineers use on a daily basis,
10| and I just follow those fdbtsteps.
11, Q. ~ Now, you've also mentioned before physi cs —-
12| A. Yes.
13 Q - as being part of your analysis. Is part of the
,i4 " physics, analysis of an accident, Newton's Third Law?
15 A Yes. -
16 Q gefore we go there, let me just ask this questi.on. what
17}  is Newton's Third Law, for the record?
18 A. Newton's Third Law of motion states that Tor every
19 act"i;n there is an equal and opposite reaction.
205 “Q And s that something that biomechanical engiheers use in
71l  their day-to-day analysis or Ts that something you've decided to use?
22 A. - yNo. Th;ey use it on a daily basis, scientists in
23] general, especially mechanical and biomechanical engineers.
24 Q. when ybu made‘ your condusiﬁn, did you do it based upen
25 all of your experw;ence as both a medical doctor and a biomechanical
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engineer?
A. yYes, sir;
(Theré was a brief péuse in fhe proceedings.)
MR. ANTHON?:‘ Can we have the.1ast Question reaﬂgback.
(Whereupon, the requested portion of the testimony was
read back.) o
Q. “The question is, & ®, vhen you made your

ta1cu1atiohs and came to your conclusions, did you make your
conclusions based upon your experience, knowledge and training as
both a ﬁedica] doctor and a biomechanical engineer?

A Yes;

Q. one of the things that you've reviewed, and I see that
you have told us, is the police and accident report; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q. In the police and accident report, are there

indications of what's known as a VIN, oOr vehicle Identification

Number? _ _ =
7 A. Yes.
Q." Ts that important for your analysis?
A, " ves. Knowing the VIN of the vehicle is like haviné.the

birth certificate of that specific vehicle, which allowed you to
collect information regarding the year, make and model, some
specifications of the vehicle, bells and whistles in that car. All
of those things are associated witﬁ that ViN, the 17—dig1t'énd nﬁmbér

combination that allows you to gather all of that information.
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Q Now, as part of your ana]ysis,:were you also provided with
a copy of the estimator’s --
A. Yes.
Q.- ;— report on the damage?
A correct.
Q. rAndhis that actually referred to in your report?
“A. Yes. C
Q:” I would 1ike you‘to turn to that report, that part of

one of the things that you were given, that estimator's report, and

1'd Tike you to take it out of your folder, please.

A. .. Idid.
THE COURT: T am sorry. I don't know what he is
Tooking at.

T am about to mark it.

. R,
THE COURT: Ts one of the things submitted as
materials reviewed in his report?

of course.

THE COURT: They are not numbered, they just have

dots.

1 will refer you to the exact place
in the report fhat he talks about it. He talks about it, I |
believe, on Page 2 of his report. IT says here, Claim Summary
and Fstimate of Record for 2004 Chrysler Pacificé, four-doar
wagon, dated December.}, 2011.

THE COURT: Okay.
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T would 1ike to have this marked as
the next exhibit for your Honor. May I give it to the officer?
THE COURT: Yes. Court Exhibit 4.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

RS

Q. Now, Dr. @), in reviewing this exhibit, are there
specific -— leave that out of yoUr book, are there indications in
this damage estimate report as to what specific equipment was found

in the particular car that the plaintiff was in on the date of the

accident?
A. Yes. They are listed in this estimate, yes.
Q. Okay. And without reading the whole 1ist, is that the

complete Tist there?

A. Yes, it is.

Can I see it, please?

MR. Sure.
Q. In reviewing this estimate of repair, did you also

factor into the equipment that was specifically in this automobile?

A. _Yes.

Q. And did you—a]so‘;ake hote of the amount of estimated
repair?

A Yes.

0 now, what was the total amount of the estimated repair?

A.. According to this document, it was $f,378‘89.

Q. - and how much of that were labor costs?

A About half of 1t.
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Q. okay. And to your knowledge, do labor costs vary from
region to region?
A. of course.

Q. Now, in addition to this -- so far, we have been

talking about the police secident report and the estimate of damages.

were you able to puli the manufacturers documents regarding this

particular make and model1?

. A . Yes.
Q For this specific year as well?
A. Yes.
Q and were you able to supplement it with the specific

equipment noted in that report?

A Yes.

Q That was ‘specﬁ"ﬁ(': for this vehicle?

A Yes, ;that was specific for this vehicle.

Q. Now, if I were to ask you whether or not you were at

the scené of the accident, what would you tell me?

A. . T wasn't there.

Q okay. And let's talk about some of the textbooks that
you've cited?

A, okay.

Q. " poes any of the textbooks that you've cited in your
bibliography deal with the subje_ﬂct of photogréﬁmetry?

‘A. | Yes, |

Q what is photogrammetry?
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1 A ‘photogrammetry is a technique or methodolagy that allow

2|  you to make measurements based on the photographs of an object; in

3 this caée, a veh;icie. |
| 4 Q. Is that a computer pr‘ogrém?

5 A. ‘Yes. You can use a cémputer to perform that, yes.

6 Q.  okay. And are these part of the things that you do in

7|  every review? | ‘
-8 A, Yes.

9 Q okay. So, can ybu give us an example in everyday er,.
10| maybe one or two, where an investigating engineer or scienti st is not
11] actually __ab1é to measure the particular object that's being
12| nvestigated? | _

13 A. I think a good éxamp'le tﬁat T usually make to my
14 stuge_nts is a meteor crashing into earth miilions or thousands of
15| years ago. Obviously, we did not witness that crash because it
16 happened before our Time. But based on the size of the crate,
17| scientists and engineers can calculate the velocity, and also the
18| mass or weight of that object, that meteor, coming from space and
.19 hitting the grbund. so, it's a gdod example that you don't have to
200 see fhe action itseH;,- the occurrence, but obviously scignce helps
21 you 1:0 find out the specifics regarding that,
22 Q. And just so we uﬁderstand your example, when a meteor hits
231 the 'earth., is 1t destfoyed?
| 24 A Yes.
25 Q. Is it your testimony that based upon the circumference
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of the hole, and the depth oflthe'hOTe, are we able to estimate the
speed and the mass of this object?
A | Absolutely.

Q. | 1s the use of photogrammetry as 4 standard, is that
something you decided-to invent or is thaf something that
biomeghanica1 engineers use in everyday analysis of accidents?

A. It's being used everyday for different accidents-and .
for othér different applications as well, yes.

Q.- " Is there any part of your anajysis that is not bart or
accepted in the field of biomechanical engineering in terms of how
you went about to perform your calculations?

" A. Absolutely not.

objection.

what's the objection?

_calls for alternative conclusion.

No, he has to actually say that.

Because, otherwise, we have to stop, I wouldn't be able to offer

him.

Q 6, Tet's get into two specifics, werhave the delta-Vv ——
A yes .7

:Q fﬁow, just give us a very simple understanding of what the

delta-v is, how it p1ays into what you do as a biomechanical engineer
investigating accidents?
A. As I mentioned, it has been accepted in the field as

the best indicator of the severity of the accident. IT means that
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when two objects, in this case two vehicles, make contact, ocbviously

_one is moving faster than the other one.. and when the target vehicle

js being struck by the bullet vehicle, the velocity of both vehicles

change as it is.a result qf the impact. pecause some of the moving
energy of tﬁe fasfer vehicle {s being.deWivered and transferred to
the other vehicle; and as a result of this transfer of energy, the
velocity of both objects, both vehicles, change. The higﬁér the
change in the velocity, the more severe the accident. Sb, that's why
engineers 1ike to put a number associated with some specific

accidents, SO when they d1scuss or re]ate to others, that would be a

~ good understanding of the sever1ty of the accident in terms of using

~— ipstead of using terms such as heavy impact versus Tight 1mpact
which is not defined, and is nbt necassarily consistently perce1ved.
we use numbers, and its been established in this field that it is a
good indicator of the severity of accidents, and that was the aim for
performing the accident construction for this accident.

Q. Now,rin'addition‘to the delta-v calcutation, is there
another analysis that go part and parcel with. your analysis and
feport?

Aﬂ' ves. The ca1cu1ation of delta-V was the goal, bu;
there s more than one way to ca1cu1ate based on the amount
information you have. For this case, I had more than enough
informatibn-to perfofm not one analysis but Two analyses. S50, Il
ca}cu1ated basically delta-v in twe different ways, and those

analysis and calculations were independent and separate from each

TN
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1l other.
2 Q.  what are they known as?
3 A. The first one is called Crush Energy aAnalysis, and it
4 baéicé?Wy says that if you can observe the amount of deformation or
5 Crush in a vehicle, in a vehicle, then that allows you to use
6 estab1isﬁed methodology to calculate the amdunt-of energy, as I've
71 mentioned, kinetic energy being transferved to that object; and based
© 8| on that, yoﬁ can ca1cu1éfé the change in velocity or delta-V.
9 Q. why is doing that calculation 1mportant to your analysis?
10 A - As I said, that s the first goal of perform1ng the
114 biomechanical engineering analysis to understand the severity of the
“1é accident. ‘We need to know what type of accident it was, we need to
13 understand the location ofrdamage, the point of impacf, the direction
14] of movement, and also the severity. That's the key to proceed with
15  the second part, which would be the injury analysis, based on the
16  severity of the accident, so we'll be able to compare this accident
17| with the stud1es and investigate the accidents that have been done
18| before.
19 Q  Now, the two analyses that you are talking about, is that
20 something Ybu'ﬁade up, is that something that biomechanical engineers
' 71l  use in their everyday analysis of accidents? .
22 A Those methodologies and calculations are being used by all
23| the accident reconstructionists and biomechanical engineers on a
" 24 daily basis
25 |

Q. page 4 -- excuse me, Page 3 of your report, you made
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1l certain initial incident summaries; do you see thé.t?
2 A. Yes. | |
3 Q  Now, do you see, at the time and Jocation, that heading?
4 ” A Yes. |
517 Q. And do you actually have a paragraph starting with
6 Sa\'v::aran singh? A |
7 A | Yes. a
8 " ‘Q. | okay. And based upon the testimony of the p_1a1'nt'iff, in
gl reviewing aﬁ of the materials, do you knov;r where Mr. GEE was
101 sitring in the chrysler pacifica 2004 wagon?
11 . A " He was sitting in the d.r'iver's seat and he was operating
12| the 'vehide. |
13 @ And how did you find that out?
14 A. Tt's coming from his testimony directly, and it was
15| noted 1in the hoh'ée accident report.
16 Q. And in his tesé{mbny, do you also see his height and
17]  weight?
18 A Yes.
19 Q.. okay. And how many other‘peop”le were passengers in
2'0 “that vehicle?
21 A. I‘"béﬁ'eve his brother, his wife, and his two kids were
22 also riding in the car at the time. |
_ 23 Q- Expﬁ 1in the total weight of those five passengers in
‘ZA4 that car in term of any effect on your analysis?
25 A well, T had the exact weight of tﬁe driver himself,
L




195

10

11

12

13

15

16
17
18

19

- 20}
21

S22

23

24

25

proceedings
30

because he teﬁtified fo that, 170 to 180 pounds, and I chose the
Tower number, obviously. |

Q. why did you chose the lower number?

A For the plaintiff's car, seems to be I don't know‘the
exact weight of the participants -- T am sorry, the occupants, we
tried to go with the 16Wer number af all possible, because one of the
goals. for my accident reconstruction and engineering analysis was
aiming for the worse cgsg‘scenariq.' in‘fhéf case, I would Tike to
héve the Tower weight for the vehicle in the range that'is
acceptable. I didn‘t know the exact wéﬁgﬁt of the vehicle at the
time. I have the wewght of the empty car with no occupants com1ng
from the manufacturer based on all of the occupants inside the car'
T assumed it had some fuel in it. And also, I added the occgpants
weight based on their age and gender. X did not know the exact
weigﬁt of those occupants, but I picked the mean or average weight
for that age and gender for those occupants, which has been

acceptable as a reasonable estimate for the actual weight.

Q- Is that something that you accepted or your field in
general?
A. No. Tt's been accepted in the field that if you don't

know the exact number, you are allowed with a feasénab1e degree of
certainty to go with the averége, and its been accepted.

Q. tet's assume the deviation on either side of the mean,
explain how the mean translates to deviation on either side?

Al well, obviously, mean is just the average, and it could
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be a Tittle bit higher or a little bit lower. But the fact remains |
that the range may he Tive ﬁercent above or five percent below. The
fact remains that at the end of the day, up to one hundred pounds of
diffgrence, total, for that veh1c1e, would not make a s1gn1f1cant
différence in the calculations.

Q. whé& if 4t was a six-hundred-pound difference, let's

pick that number, how would that affect your calculation?

A. 1t could affect the‘u1timate de1ta—v by one mile per
' hour. |
q  What was your delta-Vv in this case?
A, Itwm'Mﬁ;ﬂwnsamnmﬂespm"mmr
Q | tet's say it was the case where it was another 600 pounds

in the vehicle, what would the delta-v be in terms of m11es per hour?
A. If it was heavier, it would bring down the delta-v to

something between fwe and six mﬂes per hour.

Q.”_b And in the other direction, would it bring down the
delta-v? e
A. IF it was lighter than 600 pounds, it would bring up

the deita—v to the range between seven and eight miles per hour.

Q. Just stop there for a second. I would Tlike you to tell
us for the record what do you mean by the delta-v of seven miles an
hour or less?

A The point is to describe what happened to the vehic?é as a

result of the impact. It was traveling in the same direction of the

‘other car, we Tike to call the Lincoln as the striking vehicle, the
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1_- bullet véhic1e, becauselﬁt was movingdfaster, obViOUS1y, otherwise

2|  there wouldn't be conmtact between the two cars; and we call the

3] pacifica as the target vehicle, or the struck vehic1e at the time.

4 éo, they are both moving in the same direction. And the Pacifica ét‘
5 one point being struck by the Lincoin; and as_aAresu1t, some energy

6| s being transferred to the pacifica from the Lincoln because it was

71 traveling faster. Tt means that at one point, imnediately, the

8| velocity of the pacifica increased suddenly, that sudden increase in
o| +the velocity of speeds of the vehicle as a result of the impact is
10| being called delta-v, or change in velocity. My calculations show
11| that the velocity of the pacifica increased suddenly by something
kli between six or seyen-mi1es per hour as a result of the rear-end

13l  impact by the tincoln.

14 Q okay. Now, in terms of everyday forces that were exerted
150 din this particular vehicle, on this vehicle, can you estimate

16| comparable everyday activity or force to the force that you

17] calculated? |

18 A; Absolutely. One reason that We calculate delta-V 1s
.19 because it can be tranéjated, and that caﬁ be the basis for the

20 .ca]gy1atjoq of the acce1efation of the_vehic1es and the occupants

21 inside. 1In this vehicle, one way 1o describe it is the relationship
22 Bé;héen that force orrthe acceleration -- and the acce?erationhgf the
23 gravity, or G, which stands for gravity. “pelta-Vv ét Jess than seven
" 241 miles an hour can trans1éte to something around 3G as a resuit of the

25 impact, or three times the acceleration due to the gravity.

L
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1 Q. Is there any activities of everyday Tife where humén

Z|  beings are suhject to 3Gs7?

3 A. For a person in height and weight of the driver of the

4| pacifica, the plaintiff, that force on his Tumbar spine, or the lower
-5 ba.ck, would be comparable to the force if he bendsll for@ard and grabs

6| a bag of grocery shopping, or two gallons of milk, that's the amount

71 of force that is comparable when being hit from behind as a seated

8 dri\@r while the seat bag is holding you back, and you are belted,

9  the amount of motions and forces he experienced in this acﬁident are
10| comparable to bending forward and grabbing a box or a bag of grocery
11} shopping around ten pounds:

12 Q. | Any other type of comparable 3G activities we might do
13| in our everyday life?
14 A As. compared to?
15 Q Like when you are in an amusement park, and ybu are riding
16| a rollercoaster, and it goes down the hill, explain that to us?
17 A It's more than 3Gs, some of them are slower, so it would
18| be comparative to 2 or 3Gs, specifically with the amusement park
- 19 exém[ﬂe. whereas riding the bumper car in an amusement park, you can
20 éasﬂy- gei; 3G or 4Gs of acce1erat;10n as a result of bumping into each
21| other, those are comparable to what he experienced in this éécident.
227 Q. T would 1ike to refer you to speciﬁcaﬂy, did you see
231 any evidence, eitherr pictures or testimony, ﬁs to where the host
Zﬁf_=‘,-.veh1'c1e, where M‘r. o B was sitting in, where was it struck?
25 A. Tt was struck in the rear, on the rear bumper, mostly
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thward“the left corner of the vehicie.

s THE COURTS Then your report is incorrect.
THE WITNESS: That's not my saying, your Homor, it's

‘coming from the police accident report.

He didn't say that his rebort was
incorrect, I am asking him if there is evidence as to where the
impact occurred, and you automatically assumed that I said that
he was wrong.

THE COURT: No. It says, Page 3, that the impact was
on the righ%, and he just testified it was on the left. -Stop |
being hostf1e.

E Q ~ could you clarify Ehét, br. Toosi?

A. The incident summary, as I said, at the top of that

section, has, according to the Motor Vehicle Crash Report by the

police officer, that's what is indicated -~
THE COURT: I wouldn't know, I don't have a copy, 1t
was never put inmto evidence.

He is telling you.

THE COURT: okay. You wrote in here that the pacifica

had an impact area --

What pageAare you looking at,
Judge?

THE COURT: The bottom of Page 3, the third bullet
from the bottom. The Pacifica had an initial impéct area at the

center of the rear, and a princi pal impact area at the right of

R
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the rear. So, this comes_from the police report?

THE WITNESS: That comes directly from the po1icé
accident report. Those are not my ﬁords<

THE COURT: 1t wasn't in evidence. But didn't you
just testify left and not right?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. center and left.

THE COURT;‘ So, this says center and right?

THEIWITNESS: Again, that's what the police officer

noted in his report, and I am just —-

" Q Diq you see the pictures?
A. Yes.
Q. Let's Took at the pictures.
A. sure.
'.Q._ According to the pictures, is your estimate of center

and left correct?
A. Yes.

THE WITNESS: The police officer mentioned right, but
the physicaj evidence indicated that the point of impact is 1in
the ﬁidd1é and thé damaggAis toward the left, your Honor, right '
side intact.

THE COURT: okaQ.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

Q. Now, let's talk about what you stated in your report,

specifically the motion of Mr. @gE; you talked about, on page 10 of

your report, Occupant Kinematics. 1In the second paragraph, you talk
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12

about Newton's taw of motion; do you see that?

A. Yes.

. Q.. Now, explain for the record what 1is the motion, tﬁe
imitial motion, after airimpact such és this, and then what happéns
to the body after the iﬁitia1 motion?

A. According to fhe Newton's First Law ofuMotion, it an
object is moving, it stays at‘the same speed until the external force
is beihg app]ied to it; or if stationed, it remains stationed until
extern31 force is being delivered. when a car is being hit from
behind, before thé impact it was traveling at a certain speed, as'a
result of the impact, it's going fast, because energy was delivered
from behind from the striking vehicle to the struck vehicle.

Q ‘whétfwas the initia]_direction after the rear imﬁact?

A. 1t would move forward faster than it was moving before.

Q we are talking about the body?

A. As a result, at the moment of the impact, the occupants
is inrfhe same speed that it was traveling before. If you Jook from

outside, it is a relative motion of the occupant with respect to the

vehicle that appears to be rear-ended.

Q _ Please address yourself 5pecifi¢a11y to the direction that
the body goes in upon a rear impact?

A. . -4he occupants, as a result of the rear impact, would
initié11y move rear-ward, backward, toward the seats.

Q And‘theg, what would he the reacfion after that?

AL After being stopped by the seat and the headrest, while
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most of the energy is being absorbed by the padding and the frame of

. the seat, up to 70 percent, the remainder of that energy, the 30

percent 1eft would make the occupants to move forward at the
velocity that is one-third of the or1g1na1. S0, they eventually
follow the rest of'the oc;upahts and they move forward; but
imitially, they were moving baclward.

Q.. 5o we understand rear impact. 1In a rear impact, it's
your understanding, and your testimony about the Taws of physics, the

laws of motion of the body, does the body go back initially and then

forward?
A Yes, sir.
Q. okay. Is that your personal opinion, or was that based

upon what's accepted by the scientific community?

A. It's the Taws of physics, not my opinions.

Q. | Arerthe 1aw§-of physics accepfed by the biomechanical
community?

A ' Absolutely. -

Q. ' Are théy used by the biomechanical community in their

everyday éna1ysis and approach in investigating accidents?

A ,Yes, sir. |

Q. There was no pfctures or analysis of the other vehicle,
exp1ain why you didn‘t do that, or why you_didn't need it?

A The focus of this analysis was to understand the amount
motions and forces that the driver of the Pécifﬁca experienced that

day As such, I focused on That vehicle, and T had enough information
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to calculate the delta-V and forces that was delivered te that
vehicle.
Q. And the way you describe how you did your analysis, is

that something you personally came up with or is that what
bfomechanica] engineers do in their everyday analysis?

A They do it in everyday analysis.

Q. and the method that you just described, is that

accepted by the biomechanical conmunity?

AL Absolutely.
Q. Now, did you have a VIN number of.the other vehicle?
A. ves, I did.
Q. And wereryou able to explore and examine the

manufacturer's. information about that other vehicle?

A. Yes.
Q. . what was that other vehicle?

A Tt was a Lincoln Town <ar. And based on the
information from the VIN, we know that 1L was a 2001.Linc01n Town <ar
Executive L, four-door Sedan. We were ahle to get the information

about that car from the VIN, and get the actual weight of that car.

Q: please explain, did you read the‘defendant’s
Heposition? '

A. Yes.

Q pased upon that, or any other information, including the

police report, were you able To ascertain how many persons were

Jocated in that vehicle at the time of the impact?
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A Yes.
- Q. How many people?
A only the driver was iH that vehicle.
Q. okay. Again, if you dq the same analysis as before,

you take a median in terms of the weight of the person and the

~vehicle?

A. That's correct. I didn't have the weight of Mr.

siddique, so I assumed the average weight, or the mean weight, for a

60 to 69 year old male, for him.

Q. Llet's assume, for the sake of argument, that you had

the medical records of every person --

A Yes.
Q. -- involved in this accident, would those weights be
accurate?

A whatever would be the weight at the time that medical
record was taken, but it doesn'{ necessarily mean it would be the
same exact at the time of accident, because body weight may fluctuate
and éhﬁnge.

Q Again, if the weight of the Lincoln Town Car were hundreds
of pounds highér5or Tower, how, if at 3114 would that affect your
héan and calculation?

A It would affect the caiculation by the decimal point.
Instead of six point seven miles per hour, it would be perhaps six
point eight, or maybe six point six, but it would be inéignifﬁcant.

Q. why do you say that, explain that as clearly as you
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can?

A. well, I knew the weight of that specific car but not
the driver; for that, I assume, and it's estimated anlgverage'weight
of a person that age and gender. |

Q. | when you say that age and gender, do you mean the
driver of the other vehicle, my chient?

A ves. Exactly. 198 pounds for him.‘ so, it might be his
exact weight, but we didn’t know. -éq it is just a reasonable

representaxnon of the weight of the driver, it could be higher, it

cou'td be 1ower. There could be £ don't know, a bag in back of that

car, in the trunk, weighing one hundred pounds, or having some other

additional equipment that we didn't know about that, it would change
the we1ght of the vehicle by a hundred to TWo hundred pounds,
perhaps But that wou1d not effect the calculations significantly.
1 have done this before that I have had some information and some
reaéonab1e estimate that eventually down the road I received
add1t1ona1 1nformat1on so I re~ca1cu1&téd' and every single time, at
the end the ultimate goal, wh1ch was the delta-v, did not change
significantly, maybe by a decimal point, six point seven versus S1X
point eiéht. |
Q. Even where it does change,lit could changé‘no-mofe than
a mile ah-hour? A | |
‘A, Exactly. If we have a six or seven-hundred-pound
difference, then instead of six miles per hour, it could he seven

miles per hour, or five miles an hour. So, we go up by one mile,
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1t down, or-g0 up -
2 Q. 1t wouldn't go up by SQ‘miles an hour?
3 A L No.q

l'4 Q. after you apply the biiémechanica'i princip'les,- Newton's
5 Fi .rs;c.Law and Third Law, and based uﬁbﬁ all of the information ttliat‘
6. you had, did you come to a Crus;';i“ Energy Analysis -- Accident Analysis
7l and crush Energy Analysis, on page 7 of jmur report? | 7
8 SAS Yes; sir
9 Q. what is that?

10 A As I said, delta-V was ca1cu1.ated in two ways, they

11l were done separately and independenﬂ;/. one was this Crush Energy

12 _Ana]ysis, that you just asked about, of course the other one is

13| momentum analysis that we may talk about later. But for the crush

14| - energy, as the name says, based upon the amount of cru;h, or residual
15 deformation absorbed in a vehicie, ‘engineers are capable to calculate
16| the amount of energy being tr‘ansferr‘ed_ to that vehicle.

'-.17 ‘Q. ' As part of your calculations, did you also use

i8 photogrammetry?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. pid you explain that before?

) 21 A. - As I said, photogrammetry simply states you <an make

22 rﬁeasuremenfs while using photographs. The other name would be 'image
53| analysis. Wwhen you have the photo, you can make measurements.

-24 Q. Now, on Page 7, 8 and 9, you use various mathematical

formulas; do you see them?

25
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A. ves.
Q.  Are these formulas that you've made up?
A. No. They are coming directly from the text and the

accident reconstruction articles.

Q.  Are these formulas accepted in the biomechanical
community?

A. o Abso1ute1y.

Q. pull out your police sccident report.

Al Yes.

(There was a brief pause in the proceedings.)

May it please the Court, may I give
this to the Officér for the next exhibit? |

THE COURT: Sure. T am just writing on 1t what
exhibit number it is. This isn't eVidence; it's the court
extribit. |

There is no evidence, there 1S No

jury, they are all court exhibits.
THE COURT: Right. This is Court Bxhibit 5.

1 am also going to —

THE COURT: This is not a police report.

It is not. 4
‘“THE COURT: No. This is your client's report, Wwil4,
* Filled out by the defendant.

THE WITNESS: New York and New Jersey authority --

one second. This is the port
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Authority report, your Hondr, it says so here. It is a
different report than the New York city Police Depariment.
THE COURT: Okay. tet me see 1T.
THE WITNESS: Becauséiaf the focation.of the
accident-- .

MR. € It's not an MV104, it's a different

form, but the information is there.
THE COURT: They are not reguired to sign it?

apparently not. But the ledger 1is

in the upper right—hahd corner on the second page, it clearly
shows it's a port authority form.

I will stipulate it's not the normal

report. It was a port authority police officer. I believe
there was a second page, it may not be included there.
THE COURT: I have the second page. 1t's a tittle

hard to read, but it does say near the top Port Authority New

_vork and New Jersey. SO, it is signed, they just signed it at h

the top instead of at the bottom. oOkay.

Thank you.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.

Also, your Honor, may T also give

to the officer, and the Court, various photographs reviewed by

Dr.
THE COURT: Okay. So, this is six photos printed on

white paper.
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MR, § 1t should be color photographs,
your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, color photos printed on white paper.

T owill pﬁt a sticker on them. This is Exhibit 6.
May I proceed?

THE COURT: Yes.

Q. Now, let's talk abouf your Accident Analysis on the top

of Page 7. 1Is there a separate paragraph that begins with that
phrase? Do you see it, Dr. Toosi, Accident Analysis?
A Accident reconstruction research?

Q No. The top of Page 77

A. Accident Analysis, yes.
Q. what is the gist of that analysis that you performed?
A. As I said, this is the very first step of the

bjomechanica] analysis to perform accident analysis, or accident
reconstructﬁon;_to understand a couple of major factors, including
fhe speed, the energy, the forces {nvoived, so that would be the
éeverity of the accident; and also how the cars made contact, so the
pbint of impact and the direction of movement as a result of impact,
and so forth.

Q. And did you next discuss a concept in the heading Crush‘
Energ& Ana]ysis? A |

A. ves. As I said, if you can observe the amount of

deformation or crush in a car, you can retrospectively calculate the

amount of energy that was delivered to that vehricle as a result of
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the “impact.  And based on that, you can calculate the change in
velocity of the car as a resuit of the collision.
Q. Pagé 8, there is a paragraph that begins with a 2004

Chrysler pacifica?

‘A. - Yes.
Q would you read that whole sentence into the record?
A. - The 2004 chrysler pacifica, wheel hase 116 point 3

inches, is beihg considered a Class 2 multi~purpose vehicle, with
wheel base more than 104.5 inches.
Q.. Are_these desinations-that you made up or is it
accepted in the scientific community in which you ﬁractice?
A. ~ They are accepted, they are coming directly from the

paper that has been peer reviewed and accepted in the field.

Q. .‘Finish the rest of that?

A For which the generic rear crusﬁ stiffness coefficients
are.

Q. are there published standafds for comparable vehicles

in terms of crush stiffness?

A. © Yes.

Q.. 'Aﬁd about how many years has Chrysler been
manufacturihg Chrys1er-ﬁacifica, to your knowledge?
AL This ]%ne of the production, if I can take a look.

(There was a brief pause in the proceedings.)

A. My records shaw that from 2004 to 2008, for this

 specific chain of Pacifica.
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Q and how Tong have you heen manufaéturing'chrys1er
 pacificas? |
A . For years.
Q.. 10, 157
A. Absolutely. Yes.
Q. Aand in all that time; has any specific crush depth been |
performed on a chrysler pacifica?
A. ~ Not for a Chrysler pacifica, no.
Q. Has it been performed for comparable vehicles?
A. - ~Yes, 1t has.
Q. | what kind of compafab1e thic]es?
A. Suvs and crossovers are compaﬁative types that can'go
under thé name.mu1ti—purpose vehicles of wagons.
.. Q why haven't they performed any specific to the Chrysler
Pacifica model? 7
A It wasn't needed.
Q. Why wasn't it needed?
A. Because they have very comparab1é numbers for this Vine

- gf pfoduction, <o it didn’'t mean that they had to go and do it one by

one. T mentioned that crush was being done by federal agencies,

nothing has been done on pacifica.

Q. And have fhey done on other suv chrysler vehicles?
A. ves.
Q Are they done on other comparable models of other suvs and

crossovers?
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A Yes.

Q. Based upon your understanding of the standards of your
scientific community, is that a proper analysis? 77

A Yes, If‘s‘a reasonable estimate of the cqéf?icients for
the cars, it be1on§s.tolthat generic Tine and production.

Q- And according to federal standards that you are aware
of, do certain cars have to meet a minimum crush stiffnéss type of
test?

A, Absotutely.

Q. Is that as compared to all cars or is that just the -

uChrysler_Paci%ica?

A. A1l vehicles.

Q Now, you then come to Momentum Analysis on Page 9, do ydu
see that? |

Al Yes.

Q.- 7 and what was your analysis of that?

A. As T said, it was the second analysis that I performed

baééd on the information provided. And it was completely independent
from the Crush Energy Analysis, meaniﬁg that it had notﬁing to do
with the extent of damage to either vehicle. 1t's basically telling
us, based on the conservétionrof momeﬁtum, which is ancther law of
physics, that the two objects made contact, the-momentum, just Tike
energy, 1s being transferréd from one to the other, from the faster
to the siower, and it mékes the s1owéf object to move fast. so, 1f

you have with estimate of the weight of the obhject, and the speed or
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velocity of that object, you can calculate the amount of momentTum
being transferred. Now, it's vice versa if you have the amount of
momentum, then you cah calculate the change in velocity of that
object as a result of fﬁe impact, and that's what I did for thisr
case. |

Q. Here's a very important question, most important
gquestion. In making your calculations, do you need'both of these
ana]yse;ror cou1d you use one or thg other?

A one would be sufficient.

Q. In this case,_were you able té use both.

A ves. Because I had enough information.to perform both,
¥ES. “

Q. A ] Now; what was the -- in your ﬁbmentum analysis on Page

9, did you give a number for closing ve1ocity?_

A ves. Closing velocity is the differgnce beﬁween the
velocity or hetween the speed of the two cars at the time of the
impact. So, if one is stopped, the other one is moving at 10 miles
per hour at the time, the closing velocity will be 10 miles per hour.

Q In tﬁis case, Qhat was the closing velocity?

A gased on the testimony of the plaintiff, both vehicles
were moving. S0 the Pacifica was not stoppgd even though that ?s not.

consistent with the testimony of the d-iver of the Lincoln. BUL I

accepted the plaintiff's testiﬁﬁﬁy that the car was traveling -~ he

did not give us any speed. But based on the facts that no air bag

deployed in the Lincoln Town Car - let's step back for a second. If
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1l a car is being involved in a Frontal collision between 9 To 15 miles
2y per hour, the air bag will deploy. S0, I could estimate 9 or 10 or

3l 11 mﬂes per hour for the difference between the velocity of the

4l  Lincoln; and the pacifica, I chose 15, which is like the upper bound

5| of that closing velocity range. As T said, T aim for the worse case

6| scenario. IT it was anything more than 15 i les per hour d"ifferencé

71 between the two velocities, then the air bag would deploy, which it

8| did not. T‘na_tt's "why you see that 15 as the upper bound for the

gl closing velocity, the difference between the velocity of the two

10| vehicles at the time of %mpatt. ror example, if the pacifica was

11 ,g‘oi ng five miles per hour, the Lincoln could not be going more than

S 12{ 20 miles per ho;Jr. If the Paciﬁca was going 10 miles, the LincoTn-

13 "could not go anything more than 25 miles per hour, the difference is

14| not going to be more than 15. |

15¢- Q. - Let's *gaik about your analytical results at the bottom
161 of page 9, tell us what conclusion you came to?

- 17 A. ' o1 d“id;two anaJysés separate and independent from each
18| other, one gave me six point seven miles per hour as a result of the

19,  impact de1tﬁ—v for the pacifica, and the other gave me six point nine

20 miles per hour delta-Vv as a'resmt of T;he impact for pacifica.

21 N Q. Are those signiﬁ cant deviations in those two tests?

27 ) A.' Al ~ They define a range. and if you even consider five or

231 een perrcent they are considered the same range. sipnce they were

24 both below seven mﬂes per hour, I just rounded up the de]ta-V: of the

25| pacifica in t}ﬂs acc1dent Tess than seven mﬂes per hour as a result

L




- proceedings
50 .

1l  of the activity and impact.

2 Q. ~ Are all of the conclusions that you have given so far a

3| reasonahle degree of scienti fic certainty?

4| A, *‘A_bsrﬂ utely.

5 Q. you then talk aﬁout injury analysis; do see that?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q F1 rst of all, let's go back to Occupant Ki nematics on the

gl top of page 10, you 've already di scussed that in terms of the motion
9| of the body when hit from the rear?

0 . A ves.

11 Q. Just so we are clear. Did you know where the plaintiff

121 ‘was sitting?

13 A, Yes, sir.
14 Q. How did you know that?
15 A He testified to that, and it was consistent with the

16| police accident report.
17 ‘ Q. Now, let’'s talk about your injury analysis. Did you

18 see the Bil1l of Pért{cu“!ars?

19 A Yes. ‘ , o
20 Q. '_ pid jou See the list of injuries claimed?

21 A, “yes. |

22 Q And did you also see the radiology repofrts _g{}d the

23] - dperative report of pr. §

24 A. Yes.

25 Q _Teﬂ us about your analysis of the alleged injuries

L_ﬂ—”—‘f,'/_,
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versus the forces that were released by this impact?
A. well, the whole idea of calculating the delta-V was to

understand the amount of forces and gnergies heing deTivered to that
obiect, the Pacifﬁca, and how it would affect the mot%ons of the
ocCupants inside that car. Wwe talk about a rear-end impact wﬁth-
cars, the initié1 motion of the person going baclward; at that point,
the body is being stopped with the seat belt, seatbag and headrest,
and then buunces forward much Tower speed, one-third of the originaJ.
speed. He testified that he was wearing his seatbelt, wh1ch is
important, because a seathelt is engaged and 1t stopped the body from
moving for@ard significantly. There is usually about an inch of
slack in the seatbelt before it engages as a resuit of fhe movement;
but after that, if holds tight agaihst the torsd and the shoulder of
the person and it stops the body from moving forward, and that's the
design of the seatbelt for safety.

Q;? T am going o read you a line of Page 10 just above the
words "Injury Analysis” in your report. vou have stated: Th1s
accfdent provided no mgchanism to exceed physiological range of
motion of Mr. Singh's cervical or Tumbar spine.

Do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q what did you mean by that?
A, well, as I was talking about the movement of the

person, the lumbar spine, which is the lower back, is being supported

by the seat behind it, which s hav1ng a cushion and frame, and that
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absarbs ehérgy. and then, ﬁhen thé body bounces forﬁard, he is’
be1ted with a shou1dér harness and a lap belt, the lap helt goes
around,your‘hip to stop the lower part qf ybur body from moving' -
forwérd; as_such, the lumbar spine, the lower back, experiences very
Timited movement with respect.to the vehicle, very close to nothing,
because it has no way to go backward because of the seat, and the
seat was not broken, so it performed its function and its job. And
then he was belted, so he couldn't move forward significantly
because the shoulder harness stops the torso, the lap belt stops the
hip from moving forward. As such, the body, specitically the lumbar
épine, d1d not exper1ence any motion such as hending forward
significantly heyond what it cou1d to]erate which we cail
hyperfiexion; or it couldn't go bend1nglbackward more than what it
could tolerate, or beyond the threshold of damage to the body, which
ve caj1'hyperextension. Sb, without hyperextension or hypeff?exion,
there ﬁs no mechanism to cause any injury in terms of disc herniation
or disc bu1g1ng in the Tumbar spine, because it reguires a {eftain
amount of force and a specific type of mechanism, and we did not have
e1ther of them in this accident.

Q. The studies you've relied upon for this information and

conciusions, are they as to the general population or do they do

studies on every individual in the country?
Ay They are for the general population.
Q. are there studies done on every perSon Tiving in the

uUnited States?
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|
A 1t's physically impossible.
Jé;; Nevertheless, do biomechanical eng{neer5 accep£the
general population studies?
A. yes, Becausé the seat belt is for everybody, not just

for a specific height or weight. S0, they are considered the range )
~— the variety of the occupants inside the car, male, female, tall,
short. But they are designed the way to perform their job
considerﬁﬁg the changes or Variation in a popu1ation.

Q. In this case, did you actually know the p1a§ntiff‘s

height and weight?

A, ~ Yes, I did.

Q. How did you know that?

A. From his testimony.

Q _Now, you talk about, at the bottom of page 10 going over

to Page 11, you talk about various parts of the anatomy, they were
discussed in the gill of particulars. Could you elaborate or teltl us
your opinion about each area tﬁét is claimed to be injured in this
case as you've discussed it on page 10 and 11 and up to Page iz, up
to the word "conclusions"?

A. well, based on what I noticed in the verified Bill of

 claims to have sustained muitiple disc bulges

a result of this accident,

Q. what was the nature of the operation performed by Dr.
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A I have éo'take a look at this. I have the medical with
me. He performed a lumbar discectomy, and compression of the L3-14,
and L4—L§Jdiscs undef f1uoroscopy. i

Q. To your knowledge, does this reportnindicate whether
any fusions h;d been performed? V

A, ﬁot to my knowledge. Not based on his report.

Q. okay. Now, getting back to ydﬁr aﬁa]ysis on Pages 10,
11, up to the middie of Page 12, what was your opinion, 1o a
reasonable degree of scientific certa1nty, as to whether or not the
mechanism or forces released in this incident in terms of each of the
areas of the body that is claimed to be injured?

A well, as I said, any specific type of injury requires a
certain amount of force beyond the threshold, beyond the Tine to

cause that injury. aAnd also, it requirés certain type of mechanism,

which is basically the way that force or the Joad would interact with

‘the human body, the way it's being delivered, the way the angle of

the delivery, the object delivering that force, the interaction of

the body and the reaction of the body'through that force, all comes

under the big umbrelia that we like to call mechanism. Since we

don't have a certa1n amount of force, and it's a specific type of
mechan1sm then we are not going to have a certain type of injury; a
different type of injury, but not that one. So, for any injury
analysis, the biomechanical engineer has to discover a certain_amount
oF force to see if the force is beyond what the body part can

tolerate, and also to understand if the mechanism of the injury
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exists in the accident or the set up. and that's what I reviewed in
that section.
Q. pid you also note a finding of spinal stenosis in the

records you reviewed?

A. . Yes.
Q. what is spinal stenosis?
A. spinal stenosis, just 1ike the spine, has Tike a canal

inside that nerves can exist and actually branches out; so if it

becomes a 1itrle narrow, 1t puts pressure on those nerves and can

cause SympLoms.

Q what causes spinal stenosis?

A many things, the most common cause is aging, the_wear and
tear process that happens to all of us as we age, and itAhappens over
Time.

g Do you have an opinion, t0 4 reasonable degree of

s

buffered any of

the ihjuries claimed in his gi11 of particulars due to the accident

that is the subject of this Tawsuit?

A Yes, I have an opinion.
Q. what is your opinion?
A. ~ Since the amount of force, based on my accident

reconstruction, was not significant enough, and he also did not
experience any hyperflexion or hyperextensibn of the lumbar spine, my
opinion was that his lumbar spine bulges were not caused by this

accident.
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1 Q what about a’l“li of the other injuries claimed? 7
2 A. The focus for this report was reviewing disc bulges,
3l and signs and symptoms of thé radiculopathy, whi ch is a Comph'tation
41 of the disc bulge, or disc herniation, and that's what I performed
sl for this accident. |
6 Q. Are there studies that Took at the results of accid'En"cﬂs
? firom, say, cadﬁveré, dummies, live peopie? |
8 MR . & T object t;th‘iS.
9 A Yes.
10 THE COURT: Rephrase. studies on cadavers, dummies,
11 are not proper evidence. .
12 T will rephrase.
7 13 THE COURT: I have a question. S50, pr.t P just
14 said, unless T mi sunderstood, that you did not consider any of
18] the alleged injum’és other than to his Tumbar spine 'm your
16 report, is that what you Jjust said?
17 YHE WITNESS: Yes, your Honor.
18 " THE COURT: Okay.
19 Qr_ Do you have a cépy of the Bill of particulars with you?
20] A. T do-have it.
21 THE COURT: He list it in his report.
2é THE WIFNESS: 1 14st qt in my report, you are right,
23 your Honor. |
24 THE COURT: TIt's in his report. Tt's on Page 4,
25 "claimed Tnjuries.” |
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THE WITNESS:' Yes.
MR. BALSON-COMEN: okﬁy.

Q what area of the body was the operation to?

A The Tumbar spiné, which is the lower back.

g  Is that the area you were commenting on?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. po you also opine on .radiculopathy?

VA. Yes, sir.

Q. what did you say, if anything, about this?

A. well, none of it could have been caused by this
a;cidenf, because of the lack of sfgnificant forcé and lack of the
mechanism.

Q. on tbp of page 12, did you also perform an analysis of
the cervical spine?

A.  Yes,

Q. okay. Did you write it inrany of your reports?

A. ves, it's included.

Q what was your analysis of the cervical spine?

A. The cervical spine, first of all, did not manifest in
the medical records of any type of d%éé bulge or hermiation.

Q. what does it say in the gill of particuiars?

A. Cervical raditu]opathy, wirich is basically nerve pinch

in the cervical spine, which is the neck. But based on the analysis
that T performed, the amount of motion that the neck experienced in

this accident, as the medical records actually are consistent with
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that, did'ﬁot cause any injuries sucﬁ as disc bhulge or herhiation
that can:cause-comp11cation such as radiculopathy. 50, there has to
be some other Causes for that radicutopathy, it's not caused by this
accident, because there was no disﬁ bulge or herpiation in the
cervical spine.

Q;‘ 1 am going toO read you a portion of your ana1y5{s on
thg‘cervicaW spine, on thg top of Page 12, and I ask you to comment
on it. You say: Results of this analysis demonstrate that head
accelerations and corresponding neck Tloads eﬁperien;ed by M™r. Singh-

were also substantially Tower than those experienced during riding

12

13

bumper cars or activities such as hopping, skipping rope, falling-

into. a chair, or runniing with a biunt stop.

14
15
16
| 17
18
19

20

o you see that?
A. " Yes.
Q. _ Exp1§ﬁn that for the record?
A. As I said, the numbers:for this accident show that the

delta-v was in the range of seven miles per hour, and that would
transiate into approximately 3Gs of acceleration for the different
parts of the body. and in those activities, the amount of

accé]eﬁatidn, or G force, could be up O eight of wine Gs, which s

21
22
}23

24

much more of what he could experience in that accident. And those
activities would not cause any disc bulge or hermiation, this
accident did not cause any disc bulge or nerpiation. 50, WY analysis

was consistent with the other facts regarding this accident.

25

Q. Now, did you also review the physical examination
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.report of the defendant's independent medical evaluator?
A Yes, I did. ;
a -15 that or. -
s AL _Yers.

Q. . okay. And jdst so we are clear. 1In your analysis of
wﬁether this force created injuries, did you comment on both the
cervical and lumbar spine?

A. Yes.

Q. ) And are those opinions to a reasonable degree of
scientific certainty?

A.  Yes,

Q- And the manner which you went about your analysis, 15,
Athat accepted analysis, criteria, and study as performed or acceptéd
in your ¥ield of expertisef

A. -ﬂ-AbSO1ute1y;

Q. . 15 there any part of your analysis, or methodology that
you used, alien to, foreign from, or notrgart of the accepted
techniques used by biomechamical engineers?

A. No, sir.

. Q . Now, I would Tike to go tO youf cenc1u$ions oh Page 12. I

would Tike to read to you what you say: Based on the biomechanical |

accident analysis presented above, within a reasonable degree of

scijentific certainty, the 1oads and mechanisms required to cause

traumatic injuries to Mr.

B spine were not present in the

accident of october 24, 2011. Thus, Mr. GEER

ylumbar spine disc
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bulges and his Cervica1.ahd Tumbar radicuiopathies cannot reasonéb?y_
be attributed to the subject incident.
Do you see thé&?
A Yes.

Q. Doctor, can you please explain that for the berefit of

‘this record?

A As 1 saiﬁ, we havgrto ana1yie the amount of forces and
also the mechanisms that are respon$ib1e for such injuries. In this
case, my analyses and calculations show that we don't have
significant amount of force, ﬁé'é1so did not have the right,mechanism_
for-the cervical spine, which is the neck, or the Tumbar spine, which
is the Tower back, to go through injuries that has been c1aimed.
specifically, the 1umbaé spine, the claim of disc bulges, and also
radicu1opathy, which is pinch of nerves of the cervical spine, the
Tumbar sp1ne cou]d not be caused by this accident.

a. T would Tike to read parts of the paragraph betore the
wordh"conc1usions,f and T would ask you to comment on that: Based on

these biomechanical analyses, the subject incident provided no

mechanism or loads for a cervical or Tumbar spinal injury or

exacerbation of any existing cervical or lumbar spinal pathology that

? Tumbar -

Mr. Singh might'haye had before this a;cident~ Mr
spine disc bulges and cervical or Tumbar radiculopathies are due to
degenerative changes compatible with his chfono?ogica1 age, and\or
repetitive loads during activities of daily Tiving, rather than

forces and motions that he experienced in the subject incident. This
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analysis 1s consistent with the reviews of mMr. Singh's spine 1maging

studies in which no acute fraumatic finding was identified but

degenerative changes were found. Tt is notable that the scientific
Titerature has shown a high incidence of abnorma] radiograplhric
f1nd1ngs in the cervical and Tumbar spines of asymptomatic sub]ects.
_ W111 you exp1ann that for the record, p1ease7

A ves. I think the first part is that, and this sounds
reduﬁdant I think that we don't have enough amount of force or the
-r1ght mechanisms to create those injuries. SO what could explain the
presence of mu1t1p1e disc bu1ges in his spine, qu1te simply the wear
and tear process which, scientifically, the degeneration process of
the spwne that happens to all human bodies sconer or later, and it' sl
just a man1festat1on of that Simply because it was found, the disc

bulge was found after the accident, by no way means that it was

‘caused by the accident, if we do not have the amount of force that 1is

rqulggd or the mechanism that would be required to cause that.
Having that said, if_it was an acute traumatic, you WOu1d see other
signs in those MRIs taken and reviewed by the radiologists. I just
relied upon their findings, it's not my op1n1on They didn’t find
any fracture, they didn't Find any dislocation, they didn't fﬁnd any
démage to facet artic]eé, they didn't find any bleeding or
1nﬂanunat10n of the nerves around the spine, they did not find any
acute traumatic finding in those MRIS that's consistent with what T
am saying. I am saying that those disc buﬁgés were pre-existent, and

they were not caused by the accident; if they were, then you would

]




Ity

proceedings - '

67
1]  see other findings in those MRIS.
2 Q. T just want o go back to the pictures , briefly. Based

3| upon your review of the information and the estimate, the damage

- 4| repair estimate, was that damage and repair estimate, and the

5i  pictures, taken before or after the vehicle was repaired?

6 A. My understanding is that they were taken before the
F\ 7 7 repair was done.
8 _ Q. and are the opinions you have just expressed to a

9 reasonable degree of sci entific certainty?

10 A. Absalutely.

11 Q. 1 would Tike -- the final part of my presentation, Dr.
12|  Toosi, I would 1ike to go through a few concepts and challenge you on

13] a few things --

14 ‘ THE COURT: Mr. T was going to take a break
15 5 when you wer;e done. 1 thought you were almost done.

16 we need to have a breakdown of —
17 . ‘. THE COURT: Are you almost done?

18 No.

19 1 have to use the men's room.

20 T think we all do.

21 ' _ THE COURT: Okay.

22 . -(whereupon, a recess was taken, afrer which the

23 following occurred.)

24 THE COURT: BRack on the record. A}l right, continue.

Thank you, your Honor.
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B 1 wou'ld like to discuss with you certain

Q.
concepts, and then I am going to chalienge you with some important
questions. First, I would Tike to get an idea about the population.
studfes that you've relied upen, and whether they included |
individuals of comparable gender and age of the plaintiff in this
case?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And tell us a little hit about that, whether they were

large studies, small, anywhere in between?

A. Both. Some of them are having, you know, larger
numbers, some of them are smaller. But tHe fact remains that for
some specific movement, specifically, and mechanisms, the nﬁmber --
the subjects doesn't matter. Just like when you asked me about how
many apples drop from the tree to prove that, you know, géavity
works;'one or two. But we have some good sample sizes from most of
those studies that show that this type of motion and forcés repeat
again and again and again.

Q when. you say “large sample sizes,” what are we talking
abput in terms of numbers? |

A. I owill have.to check my documents, I have the articles
with me. But we are talking about up to 30 to 40 different Subjects
in-one study, then combine the tofa] up, Tike-huhdreds of different
studies that they are u§ing the same subjects and apbroach.

Q Do they include males of compatible age of the plaintiff
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1} here?
2| 'A. . Yes,
3 Q. pid you make a calculation of the forces released hased
4 upén the information that you've obtained and relied upon through the
5 _information theﬁé was given to you?
6 A. Yes.
70 Q. and from the information that you were given, let’s
gl talk about some other Fa;tors. Were ydu able to discern the make and
gl model of the subject vehicie?
10 A Yes.
11 Qe And;were you able to discern whether the plaintiff --
12| where the p}aint*if% was sitting in thé vehicle?
13 A . Yes. |
14 Q- And you have already told us; correct?
15 A - Yes.
16 Q. were you able to di scern whether the plaintiff was.
17 _wearing_a Jap belt and a shoulder bé1t?
18 A Yes.
19 Q. - "And you have already told us about that?
20 A. Yes,r sir.
21 | Q. And you've -_a_ﬂ ready discussed with us the direction of
22|  the impact and the velocity of the impact?
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. Ana, I would Tike Lo get into another few concepts to
25 challenge you with. Ndw, in order to do your calculations, do you
L
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those pre or post repair photographs?

Al Pre-repair. “

Q. )Ndw, do you need to review photographs of the other
vehicle? |

A Not necessarily.

Q. why do you say that?

Proceedings
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need to bemat the scene of the accident when 1T happens?

A. . No.

Q. 1s that opimion just your opinion, or is that the
generally accepted opimion by biomechaﬁicaT engineers in the
sciéntffic communi ty? |

A. It's generally accepted. ,

Q. And did you examine the plaintiTf himself about thé
medica1 evaluation?

Al ND.

Q  1s that necessary for your calculations?

A Abso?ute1y not; |

Q Ts that your personal opinion,-or is that the accepted
opinion of the biomechanical scientific community?

A TIt's accepted in the field.

Q " Now, you have indicated that you've Jooked at certain
photographs taken after the accident; 1s that cérrect?

A. . Yes.

Q. -‘ and based upon -- so we are clear qu the record. Wwere

A Because the focus was on the motions of the plaintiff, and
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he was riding in the Pacifica, and that was thé fogus.of the
analysis.

Q. and, in terms of your crush stiffness data, would you
say that ybur analysis is flawed or correct?

A. Iit's corréct. It's using comparab1é.numbers not exact
numbers, because they did not exist, but we are using comparable
numbers in a reasonable range.

Q. Are you aware of certain opinions that there may not be

a correlation hetween delta-v and these individual's injuries?

A. No. .

Q. - Do the scientific community, in terms of the
bioméchanica1 community, do they accept the delta-v as an indicator
as to the cause of injuries?

A. yes

Q. one of the things that I waﬁted to ask you about is

that of the 35 times that you've testified, and your reports, how

many have been in Brooklyn, Quéens, or Staten Island, approximately?

A I would say more than half.
Q. Have you ever restified before Judgef
hefore?

THE COURT: That's me.
THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.
~A I.be1iEVe I have.
Q. And at that time, did you éctua11y give your

testimony—-
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A That was my understanding.
Q - after.showiﬁg up to court?
A. That's my understanding.
Q. -and did the police accident report indicate the nature

of the weather, or the testimony?

A, Yes.
Q. what did you learn from that?
. A. ATl resources, the police accident report, the

‘ b1aint1ff and the defendant testified that it was a clear day and the

roads were dry.

Q. And has that had any significance in your revieﬁ of the
case in terms of the surface éf tﬂe roacway?

A Actually, not. Because in noné of those calculations, the
coeffiéients of friction was required to form the calculation. 5o,
it didn't make a difference if it was icy or dry, even thouéh T know
it was dry, but I didn‘t need to uﬁe it anyhow.

Q. " Is that something'that 1s:accepted in the biomechanical
scientific community or is that just.your personal opiﬁion?

A. No. There are methodo1ogigs that you nged to know the
coeffﬁcientsﬁof friction of the road, but none of those were used in
this cése.
| Q. Juét to review. I would Tike to end with a few final
concepts. pid you feel that you had sufficient photographic eyidence
to make y;ur calculations?

A, yes,
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Q pid tﬁe area where the impact occurfed, was that
demonstrated in the pictures that you have reviewed?

A Yes.

Q ‘okay .

THE COURT: Do you meanh the location on the road or on

the car?
MR . & on the car, Judge.
THE COURT: okay.

Al Yas.

Q. vour crush stiffness analysis, is 1t based upon

out-dated or Flawed articles?

A NO.
- Q. why do you say that?
A. The methodology is actually -- can be found in any

textbook of a;ci@ent reconstruction, and 1've cited wo of them in my
report. 50, it's not out-dated, it'svestab1ished, and it's being
used on a daily basis.

Q. Are you actually required under the standards of care

in the biomechanical community to go out with a tape measure and

measure?
A, NO.
Q. why do you say that?
A Again, 1T you have enough information, then you don’t have

to, necessarily, attend the scene 1O inspect the vehicle with any

device, and I did not.
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24

Q. ' In many cases, has it been your experience that the

vehicles have either been destroyed or repaired before the case gets

started?
A. Most of the time, that's the case.
Q. po biomechanical science have to extrapolate and

analyze accid;nts even when the physical structure is not availabie?

A. Yes

Q. - Now, would you say that the following statement is true
or false, fhat the speed of the defendant's vehicle was unknown to
you; if not, was it important?

A. well, the exact speed was unknown. But i‘haye enough
evidence 1o understand the difference between the velocity of the
defeﬁdant's car, and the plaintiff's, and it was recprded by my

analysis, not for ‘both.

Q. pid you give an upward Timitation of 15 miles an hour?
A Yes. |
Q. The difference between the two vehicles?
A. Yas, sir.
Q. Does anything about what you had, prevent you from

perf@rming a valid biomechanical analysis?

A.  No.
Q. why do you say that?
A As you've seen in my reports, I have performed not one but

two analyses based on the documents and facts and information

provided usﬁng the established methodology in the field of accident
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1l reconstruction and biomechanics.
2 Q. those two analyses, are they independent or Tinked?
3 A. they are independent. |
4] Q. ‘Now, you are ndt Tijcensed to pracfice medicine in New
5{  vork; is that true? .
6 A That's correct.
7 Q. _ Based upon your experiencé as a doctor in Iran, did you

8l have specialized knowledge or information as to the workings of the

9 human body?

10 A. ves.
11 o MR. I reserve any redirect, your Honor.
12 . THE COURT: Al right.
13] MR. § Do you want me ta»‘:é%ﬁ'r_it now? I am going
14 o be awhile.
15 THE COURT: I would rather you start now. 1 certainly
16 would not want you to run out of time.
17 : MR ;lfhat‘s fine.
18 CROSS—EXAMINATION
19] BY MR. U
- 20 -Q. poctor, you refer to the -- sir, you refer to the use
21 of a photogrammetry? .7 |
22 A Al  Yes.
23 . q Yoﬁ L;SEd that in this anzﬂys*.is?
24 A. Yes, I did.

25 Q Find me in your report anywhere where the word
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1 "photogramnetry” axist?
2 A. The word is not in the report, hut that's how I
é 3| measured. I have the measurements, the estimate of the measurements

4 of the crush.

5 Q Sir, you knew you were coming to court, }}ou knew there
) gl would be an expert exchange of a document analyzing your analyses;
é 7l correct? .
8 A Yes.
9 Q vou have done this hundreds of times wefore: correct?
10 A. Not hundreds of time, but many times.-
-11 TQ In ybur testimony that you gave within the Jast two years,

12 ycu' said you've prepared over one hundred reports for defendants?

13 “A. It's in general, for my clients, not just defendants.

14 Q. ' Okay. In that same testimony, I Can Jook it up i you

451 want, but you've restified before Judge rothenberg, here in this
16/ county, that you have testified only for the defendants, and you gave
171 a winimal input on one claimant's report; do you remember giving that

181  testimony?

19 A, T agree with the part that I testified —

- 20 ) MR-. e T have to object. This Tine of
21 questioning 1s appropriate for a jury, but nas no basis in a
22.  Frye hearing as to how many people he testified o before.

23 Tﬁét‘s not a Frye ceﬁsider’atﬁon. He can tesﬁfy only for
24 défendants, tha;t is not the basis to keep him out of the Frye.
25 1 am referring fo his repbrt, youyr




gl exist?
10 A The word is not there, sir.
11 Q okay. And it's not in the footnote; is 1t?
12 A. No, it's not.
13 Q. gut in prior report;, you have put the word

14| photogrametry; correct?
151 A cometimes I do, sometimes I don't.
16 Q And photogrammetry is a very specialized technique; is it

17 correct?

18 A. For complex cases, Yes, which this wasn't a complex :
19l case.
20 Q. " sir, photogrammetry involves the use of a special

1 Honor, and what should be kept in his report and what should

4  he testified to in o_ther cases 15 not re"levant.'
MR, { Okay .
6 Q. sir, find me in your report, that was exchanged ta the

21 $15,f)00 camera, and going and marking the car, and ”Icokiﬁg at the

22 car, in _and of itse'i'f; does it not?

23 A For _complex casés that yoﬁ don't know the point of impact,
24| you don't know the velocity, you don'tlf{”how what happened to the car

25| after the impact; yes, you use that equipment because that 1s

proceedings
- 72

not. He referred to photogrammeiry in his analysis here —-

THE COURT: That's fine. But the question about, what

plaintifft's atrorney's office, as part of the expert witness

exchange, find me in the report where the word "photogrammetr'y"
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required.

Q. So here you weré using photographs that were furnished
1o you; that someone took at some repair shop, or other place that
you don't know of; correct? -

A. | That's correct.

0 - You never physically saw the car of which you have seen
the photogtaphs; correct? |

A | That's true.
Q. And you don't know anythiﬁg about the camera that was

used; correct?

A. That'’s correct.

Q $6, you don't know therang1e at which it was taken;
correct?

A. ‘ That's correct.

Q vou don't know the sunlight at which it was taken?

A. :‘ That's correct.

e o You don't know whether it was a 1080 camera, or

sqﬁething of a higher resolution, you don't know the resolution of
the camera?ﬂﬂ.

A. ~That's correct.

Q Yoti don‘t-Ehow if there are shadows that affect the
photdgraphs; do you?

A, 1 don't.

Q.  okay. You.wefe working off of six color photographs?

A Yes, sir.
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_ 1 Q. You never saw the L{ﬁCQWn Town Car?
2 A 1 never did.
3 | Q. You never saw a photograph of the Lincoln Town Car?
4 A. That's correct.
-5 Q. ;ﬁe only description that you saw of the Lincoln Town
6| car and the Pacifica was based upon — the only descripticn you saw
71 of the Lincoln Town Car was based upon a police report; correct?
8 A. and the testimony of the driver, that's correct.-
9 Q | and that police report has an ervor in it; correct?
10 A. That's correctf
11 Q. - so that was suspect 10 begin with, would you agree with
12 | me? |
13 A. T wouldn't use that term “suspect, " buf the police
14 report speaks for itself.
151_ Q. well, the police report says the impact happened to the

16} rear of the right of the car as oppose to the rear of the Teft of the

»17 pacifica; is that correct?

18 A. WeT1 the point of impact was at the center but the
19 damage 15 more toward the left, I agree with that. |

20 Q. were you given the test1mony of Mr. S1dd1que from the
21 liability trial?

22 A | T don't believe so.

23

Objection. This report was
24 prepared before the 1iability trial, so that would be

25 ‘ impossible, judge. I move to strike the question.

Do
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THE COURT: He meant before his testimony.
Q Did you have an opportunity o prepare a supplemental
reporf for today's Frye hearing? |
A Irhave not done such a thing.

Q. petween the day of the Tiability verdict and today, you

were not given anﬁ information about Mr B s testimony?

A T have not received any photographs.

Q. vour estimation of how the accident happened was pretty
much a straight hit in the rear? | v

A it wasn'ﬁua complete head-on, because aﬁ you can see, the
damage is net uniform achss‘the rear of the pacifica. There is
basically no damage to the right corner of tﬁe-car,-but there is more
damage to the left. So it wasn't a comp]ete head-on, it wasn't &
compiete crash between the two bumpérs? the front bumper of the
Lincoin aﬁd the rear bumper of fhe pacifica.

Q. BUL your mathematical analyses took into effect that it
was a ;n't in the rear case? |

A. T¢ was bumper to bumper, yes.

Q Tt was a linear momentum type of a calculation as Oppose

. to an anguTar momentum type of calculation?

A. T agree with that.
Q Linear momentum is where one car strikes the other one
dead-on; correct?
AL That's correct.

Q An angular momentum is where there is @ side swipe or an
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1| angular component to the impact; correct?
21 A. IAgeneraj1y will agree with that, yes.
3 Q- - were you ever told at ahy point, by counsel for wr.
4 , that Mmr. ) testified at a Tiabi11ty.tria1 that the
5 rp1aintiff got off of an gxit and came back onto the roadway, and
6| that's what caused the accident?
7 objection. That has no relevance
8 wharsoever,rii's not the cause of the accident, that's not
9 before the biomechanical engineer, or ény expert in the damages
10 trial, that's been decided by the Tiability tria1. T will say
11 it again, there is no --
12 ' THE COURT: That is not'ihét he asked him.
13 f That's exactly what he asked him.
141 ’ THE COURT: No, it's not.
15 ie said the cause of the accident,
16 ' that's exactly what he just said. Read the question back and
17 1isten to it. It'sjnot a proper question for a Frye hearing.
18 , THE CDUR%: The question, as I understand %t, was, did
19 yau comé to learn that the defendant testified at the trial that
20 ' it was in fact an angular c011i§10n.
- 21 1 would like you ta read the last
22 questién'back, Judgeh +that's not the question.
23 - T will withdraw it.
24 THE COURT: T will withdraw what‘ 1 said, Mr. §
25 can withdraw what he said, and let's moﬁe on.
f4#_,44_,WA__,4___A__.A__,A4__m4__4#__4,__V__ﬁﬁ__ﬁ___f#__ﬁ_ﬁ__,g___ﬁ____#_ﬁ_,
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T will adopt your Honor's question.
'Q.  Were you ever tald that the defendant testified at the

Tiability phase of the rrial that it was an angular impact as oppose
to a linear impact?
A 1 did not see oF review that testimony -

Q. . okay. And you would have had to have used a different

mathematical formulation if there was an angular component to this

contact; correct?

A That's not correct. First of all, as I said, it wasn't
cbmﬁWete1y Tinear, it was more Jinear than angu1ér. second, if you
look at my calcuiations on Page g, you would see that it consider two
twenty degrées of an angle, just pased on what I observed in those
phétographs, pecause it wasn't head-on, it wasn'{ f1ushed,Ayou can
see wore damage on the left side of the bumper, that means that it
was hit at more than 10 degrees, Zo'degrees for the sake of worse
case scenario. It was nota complete head-on, it was a linear
momertum withrséme angle involved.

Q.. pidn’t you tell me in you answer about five questions

ago that you ook at this as 2 straight Tinear momentum probiem?

A. ¢ is a linear --
Q. yes or no, poctor?
A. Sir, I am answering your guestion —-

objection. et him answer the
question.

THE COURT: Okay.
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AL It is a linear moméntum analysis. And I agree ihat it
is closer to Tinear but it has an an§1e to it, it's not a side 5wipe_
| Q. * vhat's not what you told me before. You said you
analyzed this as a linear momentum type problem; correct?
LA _wé%?, my rebdrt is right here. It's a linear momentum

with an angle.

objection.
THE COURT: Can you please both stop talking at the
same Time.

O, HE

where in your report do you say you used a
twenty degree deviation from? "

THE WITNESS: The top of Page 8,-your Honor, if you
see there is a length of 54 inches, which is absolutely
exaggeration of what I observed in the photos. Next, wé have a
tatter, which stands for angle, instead of 180 degrees, which
would be head-on, I use 160.degrees, which means a 20 degree
di Fference from a complete head-on linear momentum. So, it is a
1inear momentum analysis with an angle to 1t.

Q. " Didn’t you tell us before that there are two different
- withdf;;n; I am going to ask you to aﬁﬁwer my questions yeé or
no.

A Iwill try.

Q. If you can't answersgt yes or no, 1e£_me know and T

will rephrase it.

A Yes, Sir.




244

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22

23

24

25

s
proceedings
79
Q. Fair enough?
AL absolutely.
Q. okay. You told me a few minutes ago that there were

wo different formulas to be—used, one is for Tinear momentum and one
35 for angular womertums correct?

A. 7 That's correct.

Q. " and you just said in your answer a minute ago that you
use an exaggeration when considering angular momentum in a linear
momehtum analysis; isn't that correct?

A No, it was not about the angular part, it was about the

Tength of the crush.

Q. put you did say you exaggerated; did'you not?
‘A Yes.
Q; and there is a bit of speculation going on here in

terms of how precise the photographs are, in terms of clarity;

corfect?

A. No. There is no QUeStion about that, fhey are very
clear.

Q. | TDid'you take the phqtographs?

A 1 did not. | )

g  Did you examine the camera’?

A. T did not.

Q. . How were the photographs sent TG you?

Al gxeuse me? |

Q How were the photographs sent to you?
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1 Note my objection for the record.
2 ~ You can make whatever ruling you want.
3 - TﬁE COURT: Yoﬁr objection is for how he got his
4 photographs? R
5 . VR. No. I am objecting-_— just let me
6 finish my objection, your Honor. This 1ine of questioning about
7 what camera was taken, and all of that, has nothing te do with
8 biomechamical science. This is just purely bunk and
9 showm;nship,‘and the plaintiff's personal opinion, which I am
10 Qoing to get to in my summation, about how things should be
1t done, it hés nofhing to do with science.
12 THE COURT: I don’t know about summat%ons, this is a
13 motion.
14 vour Honor, T am entitied to inquire as
15 to-—-
16 THE COURT: Yes. Okay. How did you get the
17 bhotographs by digital, e-mail, by mail? I don't know what hé1p
18 this is going to be to me.
19 THE WITNESS: Your Honor, I received the photographs
20 that I have with me, they are copies of the current photographs,
21 T have not taken them, I don't know the camera. But those
22 photographs c1ear1y depict. the Tocation and the extent of
23  damage, and that was enough for me.
24 Q. _ Tt doesn't show the extent of damage if you had used a
251 photogrammetry camera, a specialized camera; is that correct?
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1 A That's not true. For such a simple imﬁact.that you can
2 see even without any specialized camera, we can'obser\'/e the 1ocat1'qn
3 a}'ld extent of dqﬁage, there is no need for a $15,000 camera.

-4, Q. e You are telling us that the amount of damage to the

5| other car has no relevance whatever to what went on in this accident?
6 A. ‘That's not what T am saying. what I am saying is that
7|  the damage tb that car was not part of my ¢rush Energy Analysis,

8| because simply Y did not hé\/ﬁ photos of that car.

9 Q gut your Crush Energy Analysis, that was part of the

10| photogrammetry, which you claim to have uéed but you didn't put them
11| in the four corners of your report; correct?

12 A It is in the four corners of my report. In Terms of

13|  the photogrammetry, the information is coming from that calculation.
14 Q where is the word photogrammetr& in your report?
15 MR. & objection. Asked and answered mine
16 times already.
17 ‘ . THE COURT: Can you cjarify your Tast answer.
18 : THE WITNESS: Y;)ur nonor, I may have used
1§ . photogrammetry because I have photegraphs that ]: have made
20 meéﬁurements. The term is not necessarily stated in my report,
‘ 21 Eut it is in the references that I have used in my report.
22 There 1s a chaptér‘ in one of those textbooks that I have used —-
23 Q. Tell me —-
24 THE COURT: T don't understand what you are saying.
25 where in 'ycur' report do you talk about reaching your conclusions
_




Proceed{ngs '
N 82
g 1 | hased upon the photographs? '
2 | : THE WITNESS: The top of page 8, your Honor, 1 mention
3] that based on the forgoing jnformation, the crush r;ieasurements
4 wef‘e c0nser*yat1've1y _estima'ted.
5 _ THE COURT: Where is that?
6 THE WLTNESS: At the top of Page 8, the first
71 " paragraph, the third sentence after Figﬁres 1 and 3, it reads:
8 pased on the 1""'orgo1'ng information, the crush measurements were
9 -conservativeTy estimated. That estimation comes from
' 10 ‘ photogrammetry, your Honor . i
11 THE COURT: okay . So,- you are estiméﬁng fron;ll‘thev
12 pichture that fhe 1ength of the damage from side—to_—side was 54
13 inches?
14 . {HE WITNESS: Yes, your Hon(;r.'
15 ‘ THE COQ#T: That the angle of impact was 160 inches
16 __ T am sorry, 160 degrees?
17 ﬂ THE WITNESS: Yes.
18 THE, COURT: what is the 7
-19 THEV WITNESS: The C is the depth of the crush, which
20 o is consi dereci here as two point five inches.
Zi | . MR . what is the number?
22 | THE WITNESS: Two point five inches.
23 Thank you.
24 THE COURT: So, the deepest indentation was two point
25 five inches?
L | |
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes. And I considered acfoss of 54

2 _ inches, your Honor, which is again another part of exaggerating

3 the numbers, that we éan observe rang'i ng, for the worse case

4 scenaribu

5 | THE COURT: where was the'worse points?

6 © THE WITNESS: The worse 15 thé left corner, and you

7 can see it because there is -some crumble on the left quarter

8 panel, which s less than two incheéy but T inc'r;a.se it up to

9 fwo inches, then I add 40 percent off the top of that, and ‘I
10 came up wit_lh- fwo point five inches of the depth for the crush.
11 THE COURT: ~ dkay.' vou mean the left quarter panel?
12 THE WITNESS: Yes, ydur Honor.
13 _ THE COURT: -But, the left quarter panel damage was

14 caused by an impact to the rear bumper.
15 E | THE WITNESS: Exactly. So it's pushed in. And that's
16 the dépth of the crush in that part, which is not necessarily as
70 uniform a érush across the whole bumper, but I considered that
18 ‘the maxirrln;ﬁ crush of deformation for the length of 54 inches,
19 which only actually applies to the 12 inches on the lefr corner
20 . of the car.
il 7 Q. . Now sir, fn prior reports that you have.given, you have
22| referred to photogrammetry -— ' |
23 ”MR. Judge, I object te "prior reports;"
24 '7 it has nafhing to do with this case.
25| THE COURT: Mr. % lI am going to sustain that.

L
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Q. Are you a member of the American Society of
Phofogrammetry and Remote sensing, sir?
A Am T a member —-
Q Are you member of that organization, American society of

photogrammetry and Remote sensing?

A Yes.

Q. Yéu are a member of that orgarization?

A 't have heard about it, yes.

Q Not have you heard about it. Are you a member of that
organ{zation?

A A member? I am sorry. No, I am not a member. T
apologize.

Q. ' and there are, as I said before, special cameras that

are used and special markings have to be placed on vehicles in order

to do a correct photogrammetric analysis; corvect?

MR. § Objection. who is this attorney to
éay what is a correct analysis? He is giving testimony. I
objéct o the form of the question, and ask that it be stricken
froﬁ'tﬁe record. How can he say what's carrect, he doesn't have

“an expert, he doesn't have a degree, he has pothring. And he 1is
telling your Honor what's correct. He used the word correct in

“his question ——

THE COURT: It doesn't matter, 1t wasn't done in this

case.

well, I disagree with that. And
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1. you are going to see an my redirect that 1t was done, a form of

2 it | |

3 - Q. sir. are you familiar with and do you recognize a

4] scientific paper entitled Photogrammétry for pocumentation and

5| vehicles pefamation, 2 Teol in a System for advanced Accident Data v
6l collection?

7 A Yes, sir.

8 - Q. You have referen;ed that paper before in ypur‘text?

al A. I have, that's carrect.

10 Q. But that's net referenced iﬁ‘tﬁis report here today;

‘ 11 co#fect?
12 A. “Rut it wasn't an advanced car accident.
13 Q.- _ Is that a determﬁnationlthat you've made whether or not

14| 4t's an advanced or simple car accident?

15 ‘ A. Yes.
16 Q. How do you make that determination?
17 AL ased on my knowledge, testimony, ipformation,

18| expertise, education, a combination of all —- putting all of thase
19{ pieces of information together, that's solving a puzzle, not just
20] like one piece of information or one piece of testimony, put them all

21l  together, and that's what I have done, that'é my job.

22 Q The pieces of the puzzle that you don‘t need are the

23! photographs of the other car or the phctogrammetry ayidence of the
24|  other vehicle; correct? ' ' R I

25

obiection. Wwho is he to say what
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the piecesrof the puzzle should be. Can't he ask a guestion
without giving us his testimony, his personal opinibn? can't he
Vask‘questions without testifying? Because T ﬁe wants to do
that, I am going to call ﬁﬁm as a witness.

THE COURT: You need {o.stop being so argumentative

and hostile, counsel. Mr. Anthony, please ask the witness a

question --
MR. okay.
THE COURT: ~- without a speech.
Q. | Sir, were thesé photbgraphs taken with a semi-symmetric

camera as referred to -

THE COURT: Asked and answered.

Q. vou have never personally inspected the car; correct?
A T already answered that.
Q Humor me and answer it again. You never inspected either

car; correct?

A I did not.

Q You never went to the scene of the accident; correct?
A, - correct. 7

‘Q And it’s your pos{tion that it's good and accepted

accident reconstruction procedure to not go To a scene of an

" accident? )
A ror thé methodology that I have used, yes, sir.
Q. So, you never measured the grading of The roadway;
corregt?
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A. That's coffect.

Q. vou don’t know the exact speed of the vehicles;
correct? |

A. " That's correct.

Q. " vou don't know the contour of the roadway in terms of
whether or not 1t was curved in one direction or the other; do you'?y

A. 1 don't. |

Q. pid you go on-Google garth to try to 1ook at the scene
of the accident?

A. T might have, but it'dian't have anything to do with my
meth0d01o§y.

Q. well, if you did, wouldn®t you have put that in your

~ report as something that you had reviewed?

A. Not necessarily, because it's not part of my
methodology -
Q. po you know what the roadway was made out of, whether

macata, asphalt, concrete, or any other substance?

A T don't know.

—“Q 1t's your opinion that friction does not matter?
AL For the methodology I have used, it does not matger.
Q.- and your delta-Vv calculation is based on certain

estimations; correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. and you are making estimations based upon vehicles

other than the chrysier pacifica in terms of crash worthiness?

S
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1. A. That's correct. ' o
2 Q. 50, you looked at other Suvs, or other vehicles of that
31 nature, and extrapolated from that information and attributed 1t tO

4] the chrysier pacifica; is that correct?

M'S A ©  Not me, a group of scientists and engineers reviewed all
6 of the vehicles for many members of that group and they came up with

71 the average number for that group, and I used that article, that is a

sl peer review, and published and cCblished in the Field. I did not
o doit. |
10 | CTHE COURT: You Have to stop, this is Tunch time. Can
_ 11 you give us the cité of fhar articie before we stop?
2] - THE WITNESS: Yes. The article is cited as Number 9
13 | in my report, your Honér, aﬁd can be found at the end of Page
i4 _ 13. As T said, Number 9, the article was done by D.E. siddali
15 | and T.D. pay, updating the vehicle class categories.
16 - THE-CdURT: Tt says it was wriften in 1996.
17': ‘ THE WITNESS: That's correct.
18 | ' THE COURT: HOW woﬁ1d that apply to a 2004 car?
19 : THE WITNESS: we11} the numbers don't. change
20t significantly, your Honor, ove; the years, because they are
21 ' stiWi using thg.same tachnology for the rear and front bumpers.
22 THE COURT: You said there was no such thing as a
23 pacifica vehicle unti1 the year 2000.
24 ' HE WITNESS: That's what I am saying. We are talking

25 ~ about the category, and we are talking about the class of the
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1 vehicle. There are some of them that are Crossovers and SUVS
2 tvhat Tall in that category, it's not specific for pacifica. And
3l as T said, pacifica was not rested individually.
4 ' THé COURT:- 1 thought it was listed in the groupihg of
5 the vehicles for equivalent cohorts.
6 | THEJWITNESS: That's correct, Judge.'
7 THE COURT: No, it's not, it didn't exist when they
"8l - wrote that articie.
9 THE WITNESS: .Judge, thé Simi1ar car, maybe not
10 pacifica, but we have SUVS and crossovers pefore Pacifica, whiqh
- 11 .is not a new car, 'if might be a new model for chrysler, but Jt's
12 not necessarily a new type of car. |
13 " THE COURT: I see. Wwe aré going to break.
14 ‘ _ MR. Two o'clock or 2:15, your Honor?
15 ©OTHE COURf: Two-fifreen.
16 , (whereupon, a luncheon recess was taken at this time.)
17 | A .
18 AFTERNOON SESSION
19 o : o ¥ .
20 ) (The following then occurred in open court out of the
21 presence of the Jury:) _
22 | THE COURT: Let's continue where we left off.
23 Judge, just one comment I want to make
24 on the record, iF T may. T know Mr. is objecting
.25 1o my knowiedge of physics or what I know: however, when T
i
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cross-examine the doctor, T use my knowledge of medicine; when X
" cross—examine an economist, T use my knowledge 1in that field.

so, T think the objection ‘s misplaced.

T have no problem with that, Judge.
Thé prob1em'I have is when he phrases a question to say, now
sir, the cofrect way to do something 1is this; that, I think, is
-phjectionable.

THE COURT: Right. And that's what I've sustained.

Q Sir; you;ve enumerated the driver based upon his
deposition testimony; correct? |

A. Yes.

Q when you did not know the weight of the four occupants of
the vehi;1e, so you used the fiftieth percentile for the age of that

person who was in the car; correct?

A. That's ﬁofrect.

Q. ” so, that's an estihation you've made; correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And, did you know that one of the occupants of the

vehicle was going to the airport?

A. 1 believe so.
Q. okay .
A. 1 have to refresh my memory.

will you take my word for 1t?

o

A, ves.
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1 Q. vou don't know the amount of the luggage that person

Z had, the weiéﬁt thereof, or anything with respeét to that?

3] . A. . T don't know. It would just make the car heavier, of

4% course.

5 | Q Obviously. oOkay. Noﬁ, whe We broke for Tunch, you were '
5 talking ab()l;rt an article about crash worthiness of simﬂér vehicles

71 to the 2004 chrysier pacifica; correct?

-8 A correct.

9 Q That was an article that was published in the 1990s; am I
10 right about that?

11 A “You are right.

12) Q And that would have been bef‘ore. the chrysler pacifica was

13 in existence; correct?

14 A. That's correct.
150 - Q and when they do crash worthiness of Ssuvs or -- what was

16!  the other term you used?

17 - THE COURT: Crﬁssovers.

18 | Q. Croséove rs.

19 Thank you.

20 | g - when you use a comparison of SUVs and othér crossover

21l wvehicles, they are going from the high-end of crash worthiness to the
22 Tow—end of crash worthiness; correct?

23 AL - 1 helieve 50.

24 | _ -Q and some of the vehicles are more crash worthy ‘thém

25 others?

e
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That is true.
do, you used the Fiftieth percentile

Q. so, what did you
'1n rerms of what that study found how did you make your ana1ysis?

A. That's what they took, they took the average of all of

those numbers, the highs and lows for that category. I don't use

that average.

Q. o, you don't know where, had they tested the chrysier

pacifica, where that would have fallen into the average; 1s that

correct?
A.  That is correct.

THE COURT: I have a question. Are crossover vehicles

1
ke SUVS are?

12 exempt from the reguirements for cars 11

13 THE WITNESS: No, they are not.
ply with

14 THE COURT: SO Crossovers are required to com

15 ~the automobile requirements but Suvs are not?

16 THE WEITNESS: They are also required.
No, SUV are considered trucks by the

17 THE COURT:

o they have different requirements.

18 federal regulations, s

19|

THE WITNESS: Different, but they have requirements,

Maybe not the same requi rement,

20 that's my answer, Your Honoer .

ith certain requirements for their

21 but they to have 1o comply W

22 category, whatever it is.

23 THE COURT: Right. 50, what defines a crossover

24 vehwcie “and how s that different from an SUv?

well, again, they fall +in the category

25 THE WITNESS.




258

- 10
11
12

- 13
14

15
17
19

20

21

22|

23

24

25

proceedings
_ _ 93

16

18

that ¥s.3n that papef,,you can see, ds --

THE COURT: That paper was written 10 years ago,

THE WITNESS: Correct.

THE COURT: Right now, what's the difference?

TUE WITNESS: The difference between what, your Honor?.

THE COURT: SUV and a crossover vehicle?

THE WITNESS: well, SWvs are a 1ittle bit higher in |
terms of the chair seat. And other than that,lthere might be
some differences in their -- what they call suspension of the
car, so they are a little bit more supporting. BUT crossovers
are.cToser to Sedans when ﬁt comes to the height of the chair
seat, and also the specifications for their suspension. That's
probably the major differences between those céﬁegories. Other
than that, they are 1arge,veﬁic1es with long wheel base, and
they usually, for the same manufacturer, they use the same
technology for the bumpers and the design of the interior.

Q. Following up on the Judge's question. when the
articles to which you refertfﬂ your bibliography Reference Number 9,
when it Says "Updéting the vehicle Class Categoriés," an article from
1996, you said that includes suvs and crossover vehicles? |

A. 1 believe so. |

Q. So then, if they have different requirements, which

~ you've just said yes to the Judge about, which ones did you use, did

you use the -- did the article separate between the suvs and the

crossover vehicles?
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A. In this article, they have like a common term called
multipurpogé, that would cover that multipurpose vehicle. So, it's
not a van, it's not a truck, but they combine that category as a
multipurpose, that is thé term.

Q | so, fhere is even a_wider_range in the amount of
requ1rement5 and the crash worthiness based uwpon the Fact that thers
are severa1 types of vehicies that are being tested for that study;
correct?

A. possibly.

Q; Okay.‘ vou didn't take part in that study?

- A 7 NO.

Q. tn fact, out of your several pages_of footnotes here,
youé 53 ¢ftations, did you author any of these?
| A Not in those articles, no.

Q pid you not take part in any of the studies or research or
any of those 53 things that you've cited? |

A. Not in those articles.

Q. And when you refer to phys1cs textbooks therein, frum

B1b11ography reference Number 10 from Ha111day -Resnick Fundamentals

of Physics gth Edition, 2008, that's an 8-year-old physics book;

correct?

A. That's correct.
q . They are probably up to the 12th or 13th edition by now?
A. T would think so, possibly.

Q in Fact, most physics books are being updated yearly far
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1 rcoﬂege physics courses?
2 A it not yea_ﬂy; every year, or every other year.
3 Q. So there may be old st*ience in the book; correct?
4 A | well, smence is 400 years, since Isaac Newton.
5 Q. when I took physncsg they di dn + know what a proton
6y was-— |
7 - MR € objection. He is testifying as a--
8 " JHE COURT: M. please. |
! , “ 9 Q. okay. Let's talk about Mr. %, if we may. Now, you

10| know he was the driver of the vehicle sitting in the driver's seat;
11 " correct?

121 - A Yes.

13 - Q But you don't know the angle at which his body was turned;

14} correct?
15| AL He didn't testify to that, he said that he was looking
16|  forward.

17 Q- te said he was looking forward put at the time of

; - 18] impact, you don't know whether he nﬂght have been 100k1ng atr the side

19t view mirror which caused his head to i 1t?

20 A He was Tooking straight, that was his testimony, as far as
211 1 know.
\ o 22 Q. - would you agree with me that when most people drive,

23] they per‘iodicaﬂy leck to the side view mirrors?
24 A. That's pOSS"i'iﬂE.-

25 Q. and people 1n cars, is it possible that they are

I
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1l curnd né At'nei r'. heads To engage 1n scme conversation while genér;\11y ,
2 1ool;<ing Torward?
3 A It is pbssﬂﬂe; '
4 Q. YOl; don’t know hov_v high up or down his seat was on the
5 p a)n"s; correct?
6 A - correct.
7 Q and you don't kﬁow how close he was to the steering wheel

gl or back Trom the steering wheel, you don't know how the seat was

g| adjusted in that way; correct?

| . A That is correct.

11 Q. and you don't know the tilt of his seat; correct?
12 A correct.

13 - Q " come Folks have a seat that goes almost to a 90 degfee

141 angle, and other's with a seat that go back to a 45 cegree éngje. or
15| 135 degree angle, depe‘nding upon your frame of reférence?

16 0 A T don't know about that.

17 C Q. Aﬁd that was never asked of him at his depositibn;

18 correct?

B A. That is ceorrect.

20 Q. here is also an adjustment latch, for Jack of a better
21 word, or an adjustment slot for a seat belt usually around the top of

22_ the door of a car?

23 A Yes.,
24t o] So, you don't now where that was set to; do you?

25 A, 1 don't know.

Sy
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1 i Q. vou don’t know how much slack there was irn_ the seat
Z pelt; correct?
3 A. That's correct.
4 Q. you don't know if the seat belt was in good working
5| order on the date of the accident; correct? |
6 A. 1 know he was belted, that's the extent df fny
7 know1e<;jge.1 | |
8 Q. you know thaf the car came equipped with a seat belt,
ol  but you don't Know how much slack or how many problems -~
10 AL That ts correct.
11 7 objection. It's assumihg there
S12F were any problams. The question is improper.
13 -Q vou never examined the seat helt; did you?
14 A. I did not.
15 Q- okay. And there was - no-;v, Jer's talk about what you
16l did examine. You examined the damage estimates for the vehicle,
17t  correct, other than the phbtcgraphs? |
18 A. 1 did.
19 Q. Now, you were relying on the work of someone else in
20l  figuring out what the damage is? |
21 A.  Again, the damage was -
22 Q. ' Just yes or no. You were relying on the work of
23 Soméone alse?
24 A partially, ves.
25 Q. . Now, some of them —- you could have seen thousand; of
U _ o
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photographs; correct?
Al Exactly.
Q. And then there could have been damage to the ‘interior

of the car that there were no photographs of; correct?

A 1t would have been irrelevant anyway.

0 well, if there was some crumble on the inside of-t;e car,
wouldn't it be relevant?

A NO. Becauge‘the methodology is based on the exterior of
the vehicie and what you observe in terms of residual deformation, it
has nothing to with the interior.

‘ Q. | so, if the inside of the truck bendé or the manifold or
the muffier bends as part of the accident, that's not part of your
calculations in terms of delta-v?

A. "No. Again, we are talking about the body of the car,
bumper attached to body, and the damage was observable, so that's
what we negd to see.

- Q. vou are talking the damage that was absorbed by thé
vehicle; are we hat?

CA Going back to the methodology that-is_estabjisﬁed based on
whgtuyou can see on the exterior of the vehicle, it has nothing to do

with the interior.

Q. r don't know if you are answering my question, or maybe

you are not understanding my question. My guestion 1s, when you are

examiming the deita-Vv, you are Jooking at the amount of damage To the

impacted vehicle?
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1 A. That's correct.
2 Q. ' where the damage come from -- comes To; correct?
3 - A ‘the damage that comes from the energy being—transferre&'io

4| the extérior of the vehicle, yes.
Q put there can be damage transferred to the interior of the
vehicle as_well; correct? |
7 A. 1t is possible.
q8' ' Q. ' 50, there is -- have you séen instances, in your vast
9 éXper{ence-as a biomechanical engineer, where, for exampie, there is
10 buck11ng in the truck where the spare tire fits in before an accident

iy but the spare tire doesn't fit in after the acc1dent7

12 MR objection. Now he 15_askﬁng him to
13 specu1ate; I object to this 1ine of [inguiry.
14 - - MR. 1 am asking if he has ever seen it.

15 judge, “ever seen it" is not this
16 ~ case.

17 | : THE COURT: ItAassume facts not in evidence. We don't
18 know if there was a spare tire in the car.

19 ' o MR;T That's my whole point, your Honor He
20 - doesn;t know if there is a spare tire, he doesn't T there is
21 interior damage TO the fixtures of the ;ar.l There are no

22 ' 1nterior pictures of the buckling in the tru;k where the sﬁére
23 . tire fits. |

24 Q. sir, were there any photographs of the inside of the
25 car Showing any damage?

{_ | | | .
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A NO.

Q. okay. So, ﬁf there was any such damage and the person
making the estimate missed it, they missed it, it‘s not based on your
exanination; correct?

A. Again, we didn‘t do anything with my calculations, if

4§t was or iT wasn't, it wouldn't make any difference, that's the

point I am trying to make. The point is that it's based on what you
€an obsérve outside of the car. As good representative of what
damage was sustained by the car, that can be transferred and
translaﬁéd to some damage inside of the car, the trunk, or so forth.
Q. If there.is damage to -- if there is crgmb1e to the
outside of the vehicle, right, that could exist, and you saw that_in

the photographs; right?

A Right.

Q From the perspeétive of which the photographs were taken?

A. | Right. .

Q. There can also be crumble inside of the vehicle;
correct?

A. 1t is possible.

Q And that does not come into youf component, of delta-v?

A o, sir.

Q. But'you did re1§ upon the estimator's costs of the

repair of the vehicle based upon what the estimator saw; correct?
A. . Not the costs, sir.

@ T am sorry?
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A ‘Not the costs. The coét of the repair had nothing to
do with my analysis. Because if it was $7,000, th{s is the number
that T have; it has nothing to do with the cost. Cost can differ
from one body shop to another bhody shop. |
Q. - But wasn't that part OfVYOuf analysis, though, wasn't

it marked as a court exhibit whét the estimate of the damage was, and
how much the labor costs were, and so forth?

A There was a question about that. But the reason I
included it in my report is because it provided all the trims and

bells and whistles of that car, not because of the price of the

damage or the estimate. So, I learned other things rather than the

émﬁunt,_the monetary amount of the damage.

Q. MWhi1e you were learning about bells and whistles and
the trimmings of the car, wouldn't it be important for you as ——

AL Yes.

Q. _ —— as those being part of the car, to know if they were
damaged; correct? |

A. Not for the damage. I am trying to find thé closest —
the right estimated weight for that vehicle. So, the more 1 know
about the equipment, the better I can come up with that estimated
number. |

Q. If certain trims or bells and whistles were knockea off
or dentéd'%n, that might have to go énto your analysis; is that
correct?

A Again, it has nothing to do with the dents, T am just
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1| talking about getting a better understanding of the vehicle that was

2 involved in this accident.

3 Q. so, for the purposes of the primar? point of impact,
4 vyou are interested in the denting and cruﬁb11ng to the yehic1e, hut
5 not to the trimming of the vehicle, or tHe interior of the vehicle;
6l. 1is that what you are telling us?

7 A. Again, The tri& has something to do with the weight,
8 which s important, but not the interior, that's correct.

9 Q. Getting back to mr. @ So, you don’t know his

10 Aexact‘pbsitioning in the vehicle; correct?
11" A. 1 think you already asked, and I said no.
1?2 & And that could have an effect on how the body is moved

131 upon impact; right?

14 A : That wouid be relevant, yes.

1§A Q. - If the gﬁdy was twisted or turned in‘any way, that

16| wouid. also add a rotational comﬁoneht to his body movement, which

17! would change vour analysis of him going straight back in the seat and

18|  then going forward at one-third of the forcea?

154 I am going to cbject, because not

20 " here, or nﬁt even‘at trial, can counsel proffer this

21 A speculation, because the plaintiff %s on record that he looked

22 - straight ahead. so this is counsel’s attempt to inject new
23 © Facgs dinto the cése when they were actually preciuded me from
C 24 doing that. I object to this Tine of questioning.

25 Judge, T didn’t ge into this in the
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1iability part of the trial, we are now in the damages part of

the trial.

MR, & The plaincif testifiéd, under
oath, that he 100ked straight ahead. You can not now say that ‘
he was twisted and looked to have & conversation with somebody
else in the cabin, that is not avidence preserved. The
testimonf is that he was looking straight ahead, that meané his
ayes are straight ahead, fis body 1s stfaight ahead.

THE_CdURT: T am confused. Your'c1iént téstified that
he sfartedrto exit in an exit lane and then changed his mind and

was coming back in, so there is 2 possibility that he would be

1ooking over his shoulder to merge back into traffic.

Not only was 1T rejected by the
jury, tbe version of the facts that is controlling here is the
p1aintiff's version of the facts. My client was nhot in the
vehicle with the plaintiff, and he can't know what he was doing,
other than his vehicle woved from side to side. The venicle

moving from one iane TO the other, doesn't mean that his body is

 twisted, that's an assumption. This s the kind of thing where

T would not be able o do ﬁith an expert, but they'are going to
try to rewrite the stofy in this case.

THE COURT: Nobody is rewriting anything. pidn't your
ciient testify that the plaintiff‘was exiting and then came pack
into the lane?

what does that have to do with




269

10
11
12
5
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24

25

| proceedings
104

where his head was turned? He never saw where his head was.
changing lanes has nothing to do with -~ he was not in the cabin
with the plaintiff, he was.in another car down the road.

MR. Might 1 add —

MR . and by the time his car came back
én the-roadway? that's when the impact happened, not as he was
;hanging lanes, he had already come back into the lane in front
of him. So when he came back dnto the lané in front of him, and

he was looking strﬁight ahead, that's when the impact happenéd.

So this whole nonsense about doing this this way is just

7 inserting garbage facts, which can't come out because they are

not’ true, even on the defendant's point oflview. You change
_1anes, Judge, you aﬁgjfn'the lane, you change lanes, and you are
Tooking ahead, and that's when the impact happens. The impact
did not hdppen in between Tanes.

THE_COURT; No. I don't know how many Teet after --
it you credit the defendant's version of the facts, the
plaintiff started to exit and then changed his mind and moved

=

back into the lane, which is the right lane of moving traffic,

" on the van wyck. So -—-

and he was already in that lane,
that was the testimony.

THE COURT: I don't know.

MR. § Judge, all I can tell you is —

THE COURT: T don't know how many Teet 1t was.
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2 that was, we are free to speeuiate, to make up factual
3 scenarios, which can't bossib1y he used at trial, which can't
4 possibly be used by anybody except the plaintiff's lawyer in
5 this informal setting? I object to this. By your own rules of
6 logic and foundation, this guestion comes from nowhere and Trom
7 no one.
8 MR. The jury found that the plaintiff was
9 negligent, but the plaintiff’s negligence was not 2 substantial
- 10 factor in causing the injury, 1f 1 remember the verd1ct
11 correctly.
12 | TﬁE COURT: I don't remember.
13 MR. <o that's my recollection. we don’t
14 know what the jury opined to. The plaintiff was not
15 spec1f1ca]1y asked wel1l enough time-wise when he was Jooking
16 forward in terms of the impact, he said genera11y he was looking
17 forward.
| 18 | b That's right, generally he was
19 Jooking forward. and from that word, we are extrapolating that
20 he'1ooked to the ¢ige? T don't understand that.
- 21 A11 drivers look to the side.
22 Al drivers 100? to the side, all
23 " drivers, you know, may scratch their eyes, T don't know what
24 that means. This is not a piace to speculate about ninety
25 different fact patterns.‘

.

105

e ————

so, if we don't know how many feet

—
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THE COURT: Didn't we get the verdict?

judge, it was vight, the plaintiff

was found to be negligent but no proximate cause, I can concur

on that.
 THE COURT: what month was it?
March.
THE COURT: Okay. Caontinue, Mr
Thank you, your Honor.
vou have overruled my objection?
THE COURT: I:am going to ask that you change the
subject.
P Okay.
BY MR.
- Q. vou talked about certain population sizes for crash

testing; correct?
A Right.

Q. And ybu referfed to'é number of crash festing articies
within the biblicgraphy of your report that was supmitted as part of
the package here; correct?

vy correct.

Q. © Now, were there any stﬁdies that solely tested folks ﬁn
their mid-fifties? | |

AL hi dﬁn‘t believe s0.

Q. okay. Is it fair to say that you don't know how many

people are in their 50s were part of any of these tests?
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1 . A. 1°d have to lcok back.
2 Q. okay .
3 A. ‘I don't know oFf the top of my head.
4 Q “In some of these studies, T he'lieve ybu said, may have had
5 30 orfl 40 people on “i_:hém, some of them may have had fewér ped;ﬁe;
6, correct?
71 A ‘That is correct.
8] Q. so, some of these studies used cadavers?
9 A pifferent type of studies, but yes.
10| - Q come of the studies used crash test dummies?
11 A © Yes.
12 Q And some-stud'ies. used animals?
13 A. Animals?
14 Q.. - Anmimal S?
15 | A. T don't think I referred to any animals.
16 : Q. " were there a number of these studies that used fotks in

17l  the mititary such as the Navy or the armed Forces?
18 A. ves.
19 Q ‘ and some of these <tudies involved folks being put on

20| sleds where they were either crashed into a wall or crashed inte &

21 solid object?
22 A, That's correct.
23 Q And part of it was for crash testing and wilitary

: 24} operations; correct?

25 A That 1s correct.

E
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Q. and in the crash tests that were done, the subjects had
to sign a waiver?

A. True.

Q. " and in the crash test studies that were done, the folks
who were aware of the fact that a crash was imminent; correct?

A For most of it, but not for all.

Q. okay. But, the ovérwhe1ming majority of these tests;
Tolks knew something was going to be happening; correct?

A Most of them, yes. |

Q. _And we have no evidence anywheré on the record that Mr.

Singh knew that he was going to be struck seconds or moments before

he was struck?

objection. It's irrelevant
inquiry, what Mr. Singh knew. And counsel wants to imply to you
that knoﬁing whether you are going to get hit by a car, o not
knowing,'is a difference —- mékes-a difference in how the
injuries may or may not occur. He has proffered no expert
tastimony or evidence about that, anantherefore he really can't

ask this.

Tt's not my job to do that, it's his
verdict.

Tt's your job -- let me make this

MR.

clear, Judge. This is what I have this whole problem with. The
problem is that counsel —-—

THE COURT: A1l pight. A1l right. Stop fighting.
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wilk carton; correct?

There is o fqundatioﬁ that 1T you brace yourse1f,lyour injuries

are different. so, 1t's an inappfbpriate question. Move on.

Q Sir, caﬁ‘you-te11 us if you brace yourself, are you most
1ikeiy to be injured than if you don't brace yourself?

AL what type of injury are you talking about? You caw’t

just generally put in the word injury. what injuries, sir?

Q.  In any type of injury?
A. - No. You can't say that for any tType of injury.
Q.  You refer to v, 81 , —— the load on his body as

being the same as picking up a.two gallon, or approximately 10-pound

A éending Forward while standing and grabbing two gallons of
miTk at the same time, one in each hand, in comparison.

Q. ~ would you agree with me that if soméone ages, that 1s a
11£t1€ more of a difficult task than someone in their twenties?

A.  Generally. I would agree with that, yes.

Q. Tf somebody has uﬁder1ying spinaj stenosis, that could
cause problems?

Al ) That is possibie.

Q And spinal sfenosis is not only caused by degeneration,

cometimes it's a congenital probien?

A.  That's correct.

Q some Folks are born with narrow spinaﬁ canals; correct?
A, That's corract.

Q. | so, you are making the assumption here that any spinai
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A. it's coming from the observation of the radiology
reports that they d4id not see any congenital, but they observed
degenerative changes. So;rit's.not my diagnosi;.

Q. Rut they said degenerative changes to the spine, they

didn®t say degenerative spinal stenosis: correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And you never saw Dr. repbrt?

A. T don't think so.

Q That was exchanged after your report, that was never sent

to you so that you cou'ld amend your report; correct?

A That is correct.

Q. Now, I know you héve beén trained as a doctor ﬁn Iran?

A. Yes.l

Q. Have you ever‘heard of-the theory of the eggshell
‘p#tient? |

That's a legal doctrine, your

" Honor, and we've Jearned fhat the first week in Taw school. 1
ask that counsel not be allowed to ask this either..” '
THE COURT: Sustained. Rephrase.
Q. Are there some patients who are more-frai1 than others
due to ostedporosis, due to age, due to any number of factors?
A, Yes.‘ |
Q. - Someone could fall down on the ground and hounce right

back up, playing Rugby; correct?
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A. correci.
Q. and another person, taking the same fall, can then
break afhip; correct? |
A. That is possible.
Q It depends on their bone structure and any nqmber of other
- factofé; correct? . |
A Many factors could be invp1ved, yes.
Q- Age is one of those factors, cd;rect?
A. I agree.
Q. Now, your calculations in your conclusions -

withdrawn. I believe you said that y;;r calculations and conclusions
were co-dependent upon both medicine and biomechanical concepts?

A. in genefa1, yes

Q. T just want to get back to one thing about the damages

Feporﬁlfrom the estimate from the pacifica, the summary and estimate.

1f they miss something in that claim estimate, you aren’t able to
examine a car and see iF their claim was correct; is that a fair

comment?

A 1 wou1dn‘t'know. Tt wouldn't have any affect on my
ana1ysi57anyway.
é ' You.said that when you were talking about, photogrammetryé-
am T pronouncing that correctly? |
A. vou are doing a fine job, sir.
Q. vou said when you teach students about photogrammetry,

you use the concept of the meteor hitting the earth to calculate the
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meteoric veltocity?

A. 1t wasn't for photogramﬁetry, hut the general concept
of not necessarily being able to see soﬁéthing but making a
conclusion based on the physical evidence.

Q. -you said you use that with students; correct?

A " oYes. -

Q' and there is scme margin of error involved in that meteor
example; is there not?

A. Yes.

Q. vou don*t know it theﬁe is aftershock that affécted the
size of the hole; correct? -

1 A I am not, obviously, a physicist 1o do that, so 1 wouldn't

Know. But I assume there is some error involved.
Q. vou don't know any of the earth science, of the
erosion, or anything that took place in the thousands of years since

the meteor hit?

A. Correct.

Q. 50, there is a mafgin for error when you are making
determinations as o ve1ocjty from an impact in the example that you
'uséd with your student?

A. sure.

Q. and I am sure you Lrain your students about the margins
of errdr; correct?

A. Absolute??.

Q. and some margins of error are acceptablie, and some

[

e —————



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

proceedings

. 113

f’ﬁ_wﬁﬂ—ﬁ
margins of error are less than acceptable?

A. I generally agree with that.

Q And the more estimates that you pﬁt into any given report,
or a calculation, or a 1ab study, or an analysis, the more that's
estimated, the greater the chance of the margins for error?

A | Generally, I agree.

Q.  You said in your report, and you said here, I believe,
that the cars weré“trave1ing the same direction; is that correct?

A, Genera]1y, yes.

qQ m okay. But you did say,'in response o my guestion about
angular momentum and one of the Judge's questions, that you
considered a 20 degree angle of impact?

A Thatris correct.

Q so, that would mean the cars were not traveling ﬁ}ecise1y

in the same direction if there is a 20 degree angle of contact?

T object on the ground of

conceptual logic. Traveling in the same direction has nothing
vo do with what angle you hit. If you are traveling east, and
you are hit at an angle, the cars are sti111 traveling éast,'ﬁt
has nothing to do with the ang1es.’ 1 think counsel should

" correct the form of his guestion. objection to Torm.

MR. | T will, so that you can understand.

Q. so, is a straight 1ine the distance between o points?

A Yes.

0 11 we draw a straignt 1ine between you and T, that's the




10
11
12
13
14
15
- 16
17
18
19
20
P,
22
23
24

25

proceedings
' 114
closest distance between two points; correct?

A - That's correct. |

Q. And fwo things tan be trave1%ng iﬁ the saire direction,
betﬁeenjyou and T, on that straight line; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. or fhey may be coming at somewhat of an angle from we
to you; correct? .

Al Correct.

" Q. Sg, part of your anpalysis cqnsiders a 20 degree éng1e

between the cars traveling in the same general direction but not on

the same straight Tine; correct?
A. That is correct.

Q aut when I asked you before about if you did as a straight

linear momentum problem, and eariier on, you said yes?

A 1 did say yes.

Objection, Asked and answerad
several times. |
Q. And you indicated that in your opihion the timpact was
somewhere less than seven miles per hour; _correct?.
A. The change in velocity of the pacifica was less than

seven miles per hour.

B

Q. 1f T am correct, you refer to that as being 3Gs;
coryect?
A. Correct.

Q. That's three times the force of gravity?
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A That's correct.

Q so, if‘I were to fall to the floor, that would be 1G,'
correct, because the force of grévity is knocking me down?

A That's correct.

Q. sg, Tor me fo nit the floor at 3Gs, {t wou'ld be instead
of someone throwing me 1o the grbund at 32 feet per second squire,
whéf would the ca1cu1ation‘becbme? | |

A. - Close o 100.

0 one hundred feet per'second.square?

A. second square?

Q. tsn't it closer to 1287 pon't we double it for every
G?

A. ~ No. what do you mean "double it"?

Q. The acceleration of gravity has speed per second square
on it; doesn't 1t? .

A That's correét,u3 times 32 point two, less than 100.

Q. - Now we go from 32 to 54 to 128; don’t we?

A. No, that would be square, not three times. You are

“asking about 3G. 3G would be 3 rimes 32 point two feet per second
sduare.‘ .
| Q ~ Ckay. 1f I throw the ball off a building, the first
second it géeﬁ is 32 feet; correct?
A ‘Correct. |
Q. The second second, bhecause we have to square the feet

25

per sacond square, the sacond second it goes &4 feet; correct?

o

St
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1 Al That's not correct. Tt seems Jike you are confusing
2! the units with the actual number, that change 1n velocity per times,

3] so feet per second, per second.

4 | Q. Feet per second per second?
A, poes that make senée? |
Q. ‘__._Isn"lt gravity an acceleration not constant force?
A It is.
Q. .1t is not velocity at 32 feet per second, but 32 feet

per second square?

10 A. . Exactly, throughout the fall.
1l Q 50, he is doubling every second by the fall; is he not?
12 A - No, that's why you are confused. It's gaing to be a

13|  constant value of 32 poi ﬁt_ two throughout thé free fall.

14 Q gut by your calculations, that would be close to 100 feet
151 per se(___jond', correct?

i6 AL Yes.

17 Q. And you describe that as being on 2 rollercoaster?

“18 A..  Yes.

19 Q.  And you describe that as being on bumper cars?

.20 A. possibly.

'2.1 Q. and you describe that as a sudden stop from running?
22 A.. That's correct.

23} Q when you say a sudden stop from running, would that be

24! Tike a baseball outfielder running into a wall as a sudden stop?

25 A Not rupping into a wall, you are jogging on A sidewalk
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and you hit the red Tight and you stop suddenly, that jolts to your

neck, and brain, and cervical spine is around three or three and a

half Gs.
Q. - So, it's three and three and a half Gs now?
A. May be more. I have to Took at the articles. But

around that, comparison, 1t's a comparab1e number.

Q. vow high would you go? I mean, you've said that
before.  Cou1d it be four? Could it be five?

A 1t could be_fiﬁe, yes.

Q.‘ The more Gs that one sustains, the greater the

whiplash, or the tort, or whatever you want 1o call it, on the body?

No. Objection. Objection to form.

Tt's not whatever you want, it has to be something, it can't be

whatever. |
THE COURT: Please. It's not the same thing.
Q. well, five is greater than three in terms of G forces;
correct?
_A.  That's correct.
Q. and when we talk about bumper cars, have you ever been

to an amusement park?

A. Yes, I have.

Q In bumper cars, are there usually signs up that folks of a
certain age, or folks who have certain physical aﬁnorma]ities
shouldn't ride the bumper cars?

MR.

gbjection to this line of
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guestioning, it has nothing to do with a Frye hearing. Wwhat

warnings on bumper Cars passenger are given?

He opened the doof.

1 didn't open any door. It has

nothing to do with a Frye hearing.
THE COURT: Keep yelling. overruled.

I am trying to speak as -~

THE COURT: He compared it in his written report to a
bumper car.

MR what does a warning, when you go

jnto a bumper car, have to do with a Frye hearing? That's what |
T am objecting to.

THE COURT: Well, when you use a compariéon with
something that can he dangerous, it needs to be exp1ained.
overruled. |
Q. - Sir foiks.with degenerafiﬁe -~ degenerative back
" conditions, or neck conditions, or osteoporosis, or glderly folks, or
Folks who are more fraii, sﬁou1dn'f be riding bumper Ears; correct?

A. 1 don't know about the wéiver. Two days ago, for my
-daughter's bifthday; ﬁe were 1in the amusement park, we drove the
bumper cars, and we didn't sign anything.

Q.- I am not aéking you about a waiver, I am asking you
about the signs being up near the bumper cars?

A T am sorry? N

Q. signs.
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1 MR Signs?
27 A. Signs. It could be signs, 1 didnit see any.
3l Q. How about rollercoasters, have you ever seen signs at

4 rollercoasters about people with certain conditions shouldn't be

5 riding on the rollercoasters? |

6 AL I don't ride the rollercoaster, SO I can't say anythi ng
7 .‘ Q. - You sa{d that the driVer of the vehicle would have went
3l  back at a certain force, however man;l/' Gs it was, samewhere between

9/ three and five, based on your prior answer -=

10 MR, & No. No. No. Objection. Three to
- 1Al ﬁQe has to do with the person running to a stop, he said
- 12 nothing about Gs, about there is more wiles per hour when
E _
' ‘ 13 someone is hit in the back. S0, stop mixing app]es and oranges.
14 : THE COURT: Correct. Rephrase.
15 Q. pidn't you say the impact on Mr. would be similar

16| to someche coming to a sudden stop from running?
17 A I'said there would be comparable.
18 CQ. vou said someone coming to a sudden stop from running

19|  would be <omewhere between three and five Gs; correct?

20y A.  pPossibly.

&5 would have, upon jmpact, gone hackwards

21 Q. .- So, MU EEe

221 into his seat, somewhere between three and five 6s7

23 AL actually, less than 3G, hecause we calculate it for
24l him. ~That range is for all of these activities that I gave you. BUt

25 for this case, we calculated the Gs nhased on delta-V, and it's less

-
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1]  than 3Gs going back less than 1G moQing forward.
2 Q. s the comparative to bumpérs cars and rollercoasters
31  coming to a short stop while running incorrect?
4 A They are still in the range of 3G going back. If your
5 bumper car runs inta -- someong runs into you from behind, you
6 experien;e something around 3G or SO.
7 Q. And by the way, you don't know if that was the original
8| seating that was in the car; do you?
g9l * A. 1 don‘t kﬁowu
16 - Q. vou don't know the thickness of the seating, the amount
.11 of padding, you don't Kknow anything about that?
12 A. I don't,
13 Q. That would have an impact upon how much his hody motion
14| = would bave been absorbed by the seat back;.right? |
15 | A. W Generally, it's about three-thirds of energy,
16| generally, in average. gut exactiy, for this case, no, 1 don‘t.
17 Q. vou don't know where the headrest was located; do you?
18 A " No.
19 Q. vou don't know if the headrest was attached; do you?
20 AL This car comes with a headrest.
21 Q. You don’t know if the headrest was on the seat?
22 A T don't think you can remove the headrest from the

530 driver or the front passenger seat.
24 G. ~ Didn't you read the biomechanical article a week ago

25 how you <an remove a neadrest and break the window T the car

wwﬁ_ﬁﬁ_
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-_l submefged? | |
2 ' MR . ; Judge, really, really. A submerged
3 vehicle, that came out a week ago —-
41 THE COUﬁT: sustained.
5 ' Q. pid you subscribe fo the Journal of piomechanics, sir7
b A ves, I have.
7 Q. ves or no. bid you cee that article there?
g A. | Na. |
9 MR. objection. It-came out a week ago.
10
11 Aﬁtu;l1y, ™o ﬁeeks ago.
12 I am sorry, two weeks ago. My
13 mistaké.
14 _ | THE COURT: sustained.
151 ‘-Q. and T wight have‘COVéred this, but you considered 20

18! percent of a rotational componeht in terms of your calculations?
17 AL Yes. |
18 Q. 1 think that wﬁs your tangent calculations in terms Qf
19t the mathemétﬁca] formulation that you used?
20 Al . That’s correct.
21 Q. | That's not your own mathematical formula, that was
272l something drawn up by physicists?
A;? ves. Its been in the texibooks I just used.,
Q. The éWder edition of textbooks; correct?

Note my objection, Judge. Physics
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doesn‘t change. I don’t know where this whoje Tine of thoﬁght
is coming from. Physﬁcs hasn't changed since Isaac Newton '
demonstrated in his laws of motion. Really, this 1s beyoﬁd me.
Q Has physics.changed over the years, siy? Ha; it changed
over the years?
A Newtonian physics, Laws of physics, those principles don't
change, no, not_rea11y, in the last 400 years.
Q. So, one science is re1evant;hr1"ght? '
A. But that is not —- that wasn't Newton.
THE COURT: Now you are being argumentative.
Q. ASO; what do ydu.do, you plug these things into é
c'omputer,‘ or you do it by pen? I am not being sarcéstic. Is- there a
computer program that you use to plug numbers into, or do you do it

by pad and pen, or by hand calculator, how do you come up with these

calculations?
A. I put them in Excel sheet, Microsoft Excel.
Q. and then, when you put it on the Excel sheet, does that

go into a program that's in your computer ta come up ~- td give you
the data?

AL Not the program, the program is Excel, I already put
the formula that's coming from thertextbqok‘ so when you plug the
nutnber, thé length, the angie, the depth, then it re-calculates based
ofn tﬁe formula that is there.

Q Ti's based upon the variaples that you phug in,'some of

which are exact and some of which are pstimates?
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A. That's correct:

Q. - vou testified that no air bags deployed in the bullet
vehicle, which is the striking vehicle; correct?

A. That s correct.

Q Now, we don't know, becaﬁse we don't have no information
ébout the bullet vehicie, whether or not the air bag sensors were
working on that vehicle; correct?

AL “well, it was a vehicle on the road, so it would be
reasonable to assume that it's in working condition, and it passed
inspection; so I had no reason to be1ieve,otherwisé, Basicaiiy.

Q - You don't know if that vehicle was inspected a month age,

A Usually inspections are annual. But either way, 1 don't
know. That's correct.

Q. Actually, they are not annual anymore. But you don’t
knéw when it was inspected; fair enough?

A, That is correct.

Q. Yod.don‘t know 1T the 1nspectionjwas overdue?

AL T don't know.

Q. - and if the side of the vehicle, as oppose 1o the front
of the vehic1e7 comes into conmtact with the struck vehicle, 1T may

not trigger the air bag sensors; correct?

A. _well, if there i< Frontal or longitude in our

components —- anyway, even iF it's a side impact, if there 1S

Jongitude in our component, that can trigger the air bag to deploy.

L
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G It can, but it doesn't have to; correct?
A Corréct. gut this one was a front for sure.
Q. well, that®s based on your not seeing any photographs,
. that's based upon the deﬁcription of the accident that you had?
A 1t's based on the testimbny of the two drivers that were
involved in the incident.
Q. But not thé trial testimony, which said one vefricle was

swerving from side to side?
A. At the —-

I object. Again, we are recasting

the testimony, it was not side to side.
THE COURT: I don't think that was what was said.

That was absolutely not what was

said. But it was a mice try by counsel.
THE COURT: Okay.

" MR

Can we just stop with the nonsense and
the comments.

THE COURT: You live in Pennsylvania?

THE WITNESS: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: So, you've just testified that the.New
vork State City vehicle inspection 1is required to inspect the
air bag, what is the basis for that conclusion?

THE WITNESS:V Not -- no, your Honor, I didn't say
that. Inépectiﬁns are either annual or every other year. They

go through all of their equipments in the car, air bégé are
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THE COURT: Do you know if they do that in New York?
- THE WITﬁESS: Not for sure; no.
. THE COURT: You are just assuming?
THE WITNESS: Based on what wé have in Pennsylvania,

that's correct.

MR. § »  Let the record reflect that every
inspection in New York State, I know this for a fact, has to
inspect the sensors of the thing. So —— that was counsel's
questioh. sensors are mandated to be inspected. In New vork,
in 2011, when this accident‘happengd, it had to be annually.
BeCause my ciient‘s vehicle was a commercial vehicle, it must be
done annually, not every five years. 50, we know about thé |

sensors, and we know when the inspections OCCur.

Now who is testifying.

THE COURT: well, that's very unhelpful, because you
are an attorney.

Rut that's the law. T know the

1aw.
THE COQRT: 1s it possible for a vehicle to have
working air bag sensors if there is no éir bag in the vehicle?
'TﬁE WITNESS: NO. Becausé they have to sense
sqmething. So,_they are going hand-in-hand, basicaily, you have
to have the air bag, and then you have to have sensors tﬁat work

and trigger the air bag deployment.
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THE COURT: So, the sensors are sending the existence
of the air bags? I thought they weré seﬁging the impact on the
car- |

THE WITNESS: That's correct. vou are correct, your
Honor. They sense the impact and the impulse, which is the
deceleration of the vehicle, and if it's followed by a hit, 1f

it's triggered, the sensors, then it's going to Cause

deploymert. But they have to be connected to the air bags to

cause the dep1oymeht. 1 don't know if I've answered your
queétion. | | |

‘THE COURT: - If somebédy removed the air bags after an
accident, the censor would not work?

THE WITNESS: Wwell, they may work, send a signal, but
if they are not connected to the air bag, there won't be any air
bag debioyment. |

THE COURT: That's not what I asked you. Wwould a car
whose air bags were reﬁoved still be able to pass inspection

with working sensors?

THE WITNESS: Nao.
THE COURT: Because the sensors would not pass the

test?

CTHE WITNESS: That's correct.

~ THE COURT: okay.

- MR. May I, your Hpnor?

THE COURT: Yes.

//J
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BY MR.

Q. T thought a couple of questions ago you said that
sensors. may work even tholugh there were no air bags in the car?

He never said that. That is

absolutely ridiculous. He said at the point of the impact, it
may or may not trigger the sensor. He never said that..

THE COURT: Wwould you et your witness take care of

himself? That's not what he said, Mr.

okay. My mistake.
‘ Q;i ‘ Now, you aré not~1icensed to practice medicine in the
United States;icorrect?
A. . Carrect.

Q. . And back in wﬁere you completed medical school,

you were not an orthopedist?

A No, I was not.

Q. vou were not a radiologist?

A Correct.

Q.  _ You were not a neurologist?

A No.

Q. . vou did not work in an acute trauma center?

A. True,

Q. vou never gave an epidural injection?

A That's correct.

Q.  You never gave cortisbne and steroid injection?

Note my objection. cortisone and
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steroid injections have no place in this Frye hearing. None of
;thié has anytiring to.dorwith a Frye hearing;

THé COURT: Did you practice medicine after you
finished medical scheol?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: You got licensed int

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: How many vears did you practice medicine
before you came to the united Statesf

THE WITNESS: Five years, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Continue.

Q. vou worked in a general practice facility; correct?
A. correct.
Q. . And you dealt with common colds, and simple —- people

coming to the doctor®s offjce for‘——
AL ror anything that they needed, if they needed help,
ves.

Q. And if they neleded orthopedicror neurcliogical or
radiological heip;'you would send them g1sewhere to a specialist?

A~ T would refer, exactly.

Q. okay. So, if someone came to you and you suspected
that he had Tumbar, or cervical, ar orthopedic, or neurological
pathology, you wéﬁ?d forward them to a specialist; édrrect?

A _ ?es, sir.

Q. vou are not a member of the American mMedical
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Association; carrect?

A‘ Correct.

Q. You never took any courseé to become licensed in the
united States; correct?

A. T did not.

Q. Tn fact, the united States did --'up until a couple of

weeks ago, did not recognize, due to economic sanctions —-

‘Let's get into what the Secretary

of state did for the last eight years, by all means, that will

decide this motion.

I am getting somewhere, your Honor. if
we are done with the lectures.

THE COURT: T am going to overrule the objection.

Because Mr. | is going to prove that he could have been a

. . } . i
doctor if it weren't for government policy.
Q. well, my point is that there is now a government policy

where you can become a doctor; correct?

A. * That's not correct. Many of my colleaques from
took that test 20 years ago, or 15 years ago, and they are practicing

medicine right now. I didn't take the test.

Q. vou have chosen not to take the test; correct?
A. 1 Correct. -

Q. ' And yéﬁ have been in this country for how long?
AL Seventeen years now.

Q. So, when you came here, You could have taken the test
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1]  and done your residency and internship, and pass your medical boards

2| here; is that correct?

3 A Yes.

4 | Q. " you chose not to do _tﬁat, and you chose. to change

-5 careers; right?

6 A Yes.

7 Q. and are you famﬂiaf with the fact that in this

8 country, you are not suppose 10 give medical opinions 1T you'are not

9l a licensed medical professional?

10 objection. Judge, we are at a Frye
11 _ " hearing, not a medical hoard in Albany.

12  THE COURT: overrul éd.

13 A. " can't treat patients, but actually I give medical

14| opinions, almost on a daily basis, to my other colleague that work as

15 4 team in the V.A. hospital in

so T am part of the

16} treating team, but T am not a treating physicién.

17 Q; Are youraﬂowed to write prescriptions?

18 A. No. That's what I am saying, I am not treating amyone.

19) You asked about medical opi nioﬁ, those are different.

20 © Q. You .ar‘é not suppose To give medical opinions; correct?
21 | objection. That's counsel's

22 ~ opimion, and I chject to it. S

23 THE COURT: Rephrase.

24 Q. Are you telling this Court that you give medical

25| opinions in 8 without the status of patients?
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1 AL yes.

2 Q. without being a Ticensed doctor to practice in the

3| united states?

4 A. ves. Again, I am not treating any patients. But I am

51 capable of giving a medical opinion, and T have. And my medical

6 credehtia"ls have been accepted hy the U.S. Ggovernment.

7 Q. what branch of the u.S. Government has accepted your
g  credentials? |

9 A The National Institute of Health awarded me not once but

10| twice with a fallowship and & <cholarship to perform wedical research

11 in this cQuhtry, which T have, partially for my Master's degree in
12| science, and partially for my ph.D., based on my M.D.. gack then, I

13] did not have the ph.p, SO post Doctor of Fellowship was based on my

14 wedical degree, which was accepted, and my credentials were accepted
' 15 by the US Gov_ernment and the V.A. Administration.

16 Q. vou are telling us that the U.S. Government —— You are
17 not telling us the U.5. Government aﬂéws you to treat pat'ient's.;

18 correct?

A9 A That's correct.

20 o THE COURT: No, Mr.E , he said he did research.
21 Are we almost done here? “

22 1 am close to being done here, your

23 ~ Honor. Letme just check through my notes.

24 (There was a hrief pause 1D the proceedi ngs.)

25 Q and you were never shown D § report, on pehalf

- )
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1 of the p1a1'n1:1'ff-‘s attorneys, who indicated that Mr. 5 Injuries
2l were caused by this accident; were you?
3 objection. It has nothing to do
4 with a Frye heaﬁng, once again. It has nothing to do with thié
5 hearing or the criteria by which your Honor admits or doesn't
6 admit this doctor's testimony.
7] He brought up the documents for the
8 . doc;tor's feview.
9 vou are not permitted to ask him
10 ' about these documents for a frye heariﬁg, that's my point
11 That's a good question for the jury, it's not a good question‘
i 12 for yourr Honor. |
13 It's a yes or no question, your Hanor.
14 ~ THE COURT: Overruled. |
15 A, No, I have not
16 1 have‘ no further questions.
17 THE COURT: ~Redirect? |
18 o MR. Your Hoﬁor, T would 1ike to refer
19 you to Exhibit K on the plaintiff's deposition, on the
20 A piaintiff‘s papers. K as in Kahsas. |
21 | THE COURT: One second.
22 officer, can you give this to the
23 judge to mark it as the next extibit.
24 _ THE COURT: I don’t have the repair estimate, I have
25 ' never seen ii.
.
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we've marked it. It's in evidence.
" {HE COURT: I gave it to the witness to talk about and
1 never got 1t back.

Give it to the Judge. anything

that we've marked, give it back to the Judge.

THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

Give the whole thing back.
THE COURT: This isn’t the one I've marked.
THE WITNESS: Maybe the pages are replaced, your
Honor. But this is the same document.

THE COURT: I wrote court exhibit at the top -— there

13
14
15
16
17

18

we go. This is seven. This is ¥ in plaintiff's motion?

That's correct.

THE COURT: Do you want me 1o <how it to the witness?

pPlease.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

. when was this article written?

A. - 1994.

0. | okay. The date on the top, look at this date here.
A actually, received by 1992.

Q. 1f T do the math, hetween 1992 and today, is how many

A. © 1 would say about 24 years.

e

e ——
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3| Q. in 24 years, has computer sciences advanced?
2 A Absolutely. | |
3 Q. Now, I want to show you the computer that's Tisted in
4l this article; do you see that?

5 A. ves.

6 Q. If T was to go out, Dr.{ % and try to buy such a

7 computer, I would have to go to the Smithsonian and look for it;

gl wouldn't I?

9 o MR. EEREEE objection.
10 © JHE COURT: That's a Tittle sarcéstia
11 BUL true.

12 objection.

13 Q. . Now, in this case, we've already established that you

14| didn't use a $15,000 camera, but did you use the photogrammetry

15| process in .your office with the pictures that you got?
16 A. Absolutely. Otherwise, T wouldn't have those numbers.

170 Q. okay. And describe how you do it, do you insert it in

18| - the machine, how do you do it?

19| Al well, we ha\;re thelphotographs, we upload them into the
20|  computer, an'd then we have photographs of the intact velricle, the

21] same year, make and model, we- compared them, we draw 1ines, and there
221 is some process in between, iriQoWed_, the estimates, we figure that
23 the computer rakes care of itself by calculating the angles, the

24 Jength, and the depth, and _usuaﬂy increase it by up 1o 20 percent,

25 just o make sure that you are talking about mistakes, the margin of
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1l error, or inciusiveness, 10 jnclude more to make sure that L am not

2| missing anything.

3 Q okay. The two point five, is that inches?
4 - A Yes.
5 - Q. okay. aAnd is that the end result of your using the

6 photogranmétry process?

7 - A yes,

8 Q. Now, the photogrammetry program in your computer, is
9 that. something you deve{oped or is t-hat something that's a;cepted
10| generally in the scientific invésﬁgatién by the bicmechanical

11]  commumity?

12 A.  Generally accepted in the field.

13 Q. I would Tike to talk to you about the fact that it was

14!  brought up that reference number 9 was drafted before chrysler

15 Paci fica went to production.

16 A, Yes.

17 Q. pemember that Tine?

18 | A. yes.

19 0. Now, the crash stiffness requirements, are they set by

20 fhe Federaﬂ Government?'“:

21 A. Yes, they are.

22 Q.  Were tﬁey .set 'at the time that that arti cle was
23 wrr“itten, Number 97 |

24 A © actually, it was set way before that.

25 Q. #ad it changed By the time the Chrysier pacifica came

G
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1 dnto being? -
2 A No, because further regu1at1ons are still effect.
3 Q.—V 1s that why the cChrysier pacifica was never tested
4l among other reasons?
5 A. Among,other reasons, yes, because they were tested, 1t
6] wasn i needed to be tested.

7 - Q. and, the crash test stiffness of criterion, an the

8 artic1e‘which you denominate Number 9 in your b1b11ography, would

9| those have beeh the same criterion aﬁpiicab1e to the Chrysler

10| Pacifica in this case?

11 A. Abso1u£e1y.

12 | Q. and was the chrysler pacifica, was that denominated a

- 13| crossover?

14 A. Yes.

15 | Q. ~ Just to be épecifﬁc. As you have testified before,

16| it's éﬁérossover because 1t a;és nave room for a lot of people,

17| there's a bgmper, pasically it's the same height within margin of the

181 - passehger cars?

19 A Yeas.
20 Q. As part of the treatment of patients, as a medical
21l  doctor in Iran, would you see patients who suffered from trauma?

22 - A I have seen, Yes.

23 Q. . and T know this may seem 1ike a silly guestion, Doctor,

94| but for the record, can we just have you opine, does human physiology

250 change between @

y and the United States?
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1 A. | It doesn't. It's unmiversal.
2 Q. and you were asked about Dr. s report. I want
3] you to assume that Dr.§ is‘not and has never been a
4 biome;ﬁanica1 engineer. Did you use any af fhe reports that you've
5| got to make your calculations?
) | A. No. None of those mediéa1 recards have anything to do
7|  with my calculations. |
8 Q. And let's talk Jinear versus angular.
9 A Yes.,
| 10 Q.- That subject was brought up. Now, wg‘ta1k about thg
11} 160, is that a cbnsfderatﬁon of an anguiar approach?
12 A. The Tinear mdmentum is the name of the methodo]ogy.v
131 And 1inear_doesn't necessarily mean —- 7 |
14 Q. T meant to say angular. Is it in recognition of an
15 angu1ar'approach to two vehicles that are in contact?
16 A 1t brings 1ﬁto account that they were in an angle, yes,
171  but not necessarily angular calculations.
18 | Q. But, putting fhat into your calculations, 1T it were
19| not an angular consideration, what wou1d the 160 be?
20 AL one-hundred-eighty degrees, that would be head-on,
21 comp1eté1y matched. | |
220 Q and is the angular calculation that you did based upon
23 somé of the physical evidence that yéu saw, the point of impact?
24 Ao That's correct
25 Q. | Now, altheugh the Chrys1e;.Pacificéiﬁas -~ fid come out
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about 1999, 2000, the chrysier Corporatidn had manufactured the podge
caravan prior to that; hadn't they?

A That's correct.

Q. And many of the features of the Dodge Caravan, are they
similar to thé pacifica in terms of the number of people that they
can hold and the height above the ground?

A. ves, sir.

Q. and is the Dodge Caravan, also manufactured by the )
Chrysier Corporation, part of the overall crossover, OF analysis, in
that 1994 article of the number of thicies'that were looked af?l

A They were included, - yes.
_ Q. Now, counsel gave you & number of_exampTes, for lack of
a better word, used his own —- he said throwing himself to the floor.
Do you remember those questions?
A ‘ves, sir.
Q. well, throwing oné self to the floor, was that the same

thing or is that di fferent than being protected by an automobile

" that's a number of tons?

A. That's a hard comparison, actually. It's different.
Q.- My question is this, we do know that you've seen the

evideﬁce in the recohd that Mr.§ ell out of the car?

A. That's correct.

Q. Did you ever see any evidence that he fell out of the

A No. There is nothing.
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1 Q. Did you see any evidence that he was belted?
2 A. Yes.
3 Q. . okay. And let's talk about this one hundred feet per

4l second. Tell us how shoutd we, as a lay person, how shall we look at

5| that?
.6 A. At the concept of G7
A Qo Yes?
8! A We11; the ﬁumberHone hundred feet per second, when you

9| compare Gs, it's -—- first‘of_a11, jt's accepted as a nice measure
10|  indicator of the acce1erat1on and force. And second, you have 1o
11} compare it to act1v1t1es that arve associated with that number.
'iz That's why I brought those si1ly examples of the bumper carg or

131  rollercoasters, that you would experience up to three, four, five Gs,

14| maybe for some of them seven Gs, put I have to take a look. But the
15|  fact remains for this car, that because fhe car experienced 3Gs, it
16 doesn t necessarily mean that it was exactly the acce1erat{0n of the
17 7person. Because, when you are seated and you are surrounded by the
18]  occupants' compartment, the friction between your body and the seat,
19 the seat belt, the headrest, and the seat back, they all have an

50l affect to minimize your motion. SO, 36 would be like the maximum

21 number of acceleration of forces for the vehicle in genéral. As T
22 goes for the occupants inside, i1t would basically vanish and decrease
23l because of those factors that are 1nvo1ved fr1ct1on and seat belt
24 heing the most important ones. Again, the ﬂumber one hundred may

951 sound big, but the fact remains that 3G, again, is just something

S
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that you are running and you are stopping at the red light. So, that
acceleration of your head and crane and neck wou'ld experience around
three, three and a half Gs easy.

Q. Whén the avefage person ascends a staircase, are they
subject to the G forcés?

A Absolutely.

Q. The G forces get stronger as you walk further heights?

AL well, no, these are two different concepts. We are

ta1king about energy and we are talking about the acceleration.
acceleration of the gravity 1is going to be 32 point two ajmost'évery
where on earth.r gven if you are on top of the Empire State suilding,
it's the same gravity. But coming down from a higher height, then it
is going to be associated with transfer to more energy. BY the tTime
you hit the ground, it's a different concept.

Q. gy the way, on the gill of particulars talks about

T

depression, anxiety, fear, and emotiomal of second shock, you have no

opinions about that?
A absolutely not.u
Q. pecause the calculations you are talking about can't
measure depression, correct?

A. That's correct. calculation s about external force to
the physicajwparts of the human body, X can't talk about anxiety or
depressiorn.

Q. I want to make sure we are clear abeut, the 1992

photogrammetry article the plaintiff attached that was 24-years-old;

e
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the type of technology that was availahle then, is that the same or
is it different today?

A. 1t is different. Actually, there are other equipments

- that have been added to the system, obviously I mentioned about the

computer and advancement of technology. Actually, there is a better
version of that article in the chapter of one of my references,

textbooks, there is a whole chapter about photogrammetry and how we

. can use it, and many people use it. S0, the technique is still the

same. The concept is that when you have the technigue and you krnow
how to use it, you can calculate and take measurements out of the
photo, that is the concept. And obviously, for the more complex
cases, more complex and complicated equipment is required.

otherwise, you can do it with this system.

Q. --Now, did you prepare your report in a particular year?
AL This report? |

Q .Yes .

A. - It was in 2014,

Q In 2014, did you have to use 2 $15,000 camera like you did
in 1992, or were computer programs available where you can stick a

photograph in and have it ready?

A 1 didn't have to use that $15,000 camera.
Q. - why is that? -

AL sirst of all, it wasn't a complex case.
Q. Technological ly-wise, tell me why not?

A - Tachnologically, it wasn't required. Begause I had the
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~1| © right photdgraphs to upload into my computer and feed the system, and

2| that's what I did.

3 Q. The method you are using, the phofogrémmetry, is that
4] an accepted method in the biomechanical commﬁnify or is that your

5 personal opinion?

6 A. No. It is absolutely accepted iﬁ the field of

7 biomechanics, and even in others. "

8 =~ Q. counsel mentioned something about there was an article

g/ in 2008, and he said its been eight years since then, one of the

10! articles that you refer to.

11 A Okay.

12 CQ. ut the 2008 article, relative to the 2011 accident,

13! was only three years; correct?

14 A. 1 think we were talking about the texthook.
. 15 | Q. That's correct, the textbook?
16 A. That's the textbook, it’s published in 2000.

17 Q. so, the textbook, the physics book, might have gone
18 throﬁgh one or more -- ‘l i

19 A. editions.

20 Q.  _- editions between 2008 and 2016. The time-period we

21| ~are talking about s 2008 to 2011; correct?

22 A. Ccorrect.

23 Q. and béfween 2008 -~ have they revised Newton's First
24 Law?

25 | A. absolutely not.
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Q. And between 2008 and today, have they revised Newton's
Third Law? |
A. NO.
Q. - And between 2008 and today, have they revised any of

the physics principles that you have been relying upon to make your

calculations?
A. Absolutely not.
Q. one Final area. Dr. Toosi, the point of the asteroid

example that you give to your students is that the asteroid is
destroyed and can never be exempt, is that one Qf your points?

. Absolutely. X hentioned it, yes.

Q. and, even though an asteroid, or the bullet, as we call
jt, is destroyed, can we tell the depth and the éﬁeed based upon the
hole left in the earth? |

A. & Yes. That's the point.

Q And- comparing to here, based upon the accepted method of
tHe biomechamical comunity, although you have never seen the
vehicle, do you actually know what the vehicle was?

AL Yes.
q. and is the VIN number of the bu1Tet, myrc11ent's

vehicle, in the police accident report?

A. That is correct.
Q rrom that, were you able to ohtain certain information?
A, yes.

Q. Although there may be variances up or down, are the
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11 conclusions that you have given to a reasonable degiree of scientific
2 certainty? | o
3 A Absolutely.
4 Final guestion.
5 Q. poes the biomechanical scientific community require
6 Qm'n'ions to be to a reasonable degree of scientific certainty, of do
7l they require all opinions to be 110 percent gofr’ec_t?
8 o A w¢1_1, in the scien;é Cmunity -
9 There is no such thing as 110 peréenf.. A
| 10 Q. 7 one hundred percent? 7-
11 A One hundred percent wou1d‘ be, 1in science, practically
12 inﬁpossibie. So, it has to be in the range that is reasonabie ana
13|  accepted by the rest of the comunity. So, yes, to a reasonable
- 14]  degree of scientific certainty. So, 100 percent is out of reach,
15 unfortunat& Y. |
16 Tna_nk you.
Y A few follow-ups, your honor, based on
18 what was covered. |
19 THE COURT: Go ahead.
20 RECROSS-EXAMINATION
21
22} Q. Si r'-, the more recent article on photogrammetry that you
23 said is referred to in your refefénces, which reference number 15
24{ that?
25 A, There are two of them. They are not articies, sir,
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they are textbooks of accident reconstruction, and they are numbered
five and six. vehicle Accident Analysis and.Reqonstruction methods,
thaf's the second edition, and it's pub1ished in 2011.

Q. okay. You don't have any of either those with you here
today; do you? | W R |

A Unfortunate1y, T don't. The reason I didn't bring them

with me is because the references are, and the textbooks, they are

big and heavy. I am sorry.

Q. understood. with photogrammetry, there are certain

margins of error, correct, when using any sort of camera?

A. Yes.
Q Even today?
MR s Just note my objection. “Any sort

of camera.” No camera was used here. where are we going with

this line of guestioning? No Camera was used.

Q. sir, did you Took at the photographs?
A. I did not.
Q. Did somebody draw pictures or did you use photographs

taken by a camera?

A. © Taken by a camera.

Q- | vou looked at six photographs; correct?

A. “ That’s correct.

Q okay. You don't know what the distance away from thé

object was; do you?

A That's correct, I do not.
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Q. You don't know what the fbca1 was; do you?
A No, T don't.
Q- vou don*t know what the speed of the film was; correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. vou don't know whether or not focusing'on one portion

the car might have blurred ancther portion of the car, which is part

of the focal point determination; correct?

A. They seem clear to me, they are‘not blurry.
Q. Nor the 1ighting condition under which they were taken;
correét?
| A. That's correct.
" Q. ' vou are telling us that iﬁ almost the exact replica of

the pacifica was the Dodge Caravan?

A No. No. No. I never said that. counsel was asking

‘me that —

WR. BALSON-COHEN: I never said that either, just so
we are clear for the record. I just have to object to —- 1T's
cne thing to give his own opiﬁion, but then to be Steven
Balson-Cohen, I never said that.

THE.COURT: My notés indicate fhat the witness
téstified that vehicle at issue is similar to a Dodge Caravan.

Similar. But he didn’t —-

5. 1 will rephrase the question, your
Honor .

q  sir, the vehicle in question, the pacifica, which was
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1] involved in the accident, was _simﬂar toc a Dodge Caravan; correct?
2 A . Yes.
3 Q. ~ They are both Chfys1err-véh1'c1es?
4 A They are poth made by the same manufacturer' yes.
5 _Q and different branches of Chrys1er use the same prototype
‘ gl for vehicles but théy hold different names, they may be Dodge, or
7l Plymouth, or whatever the case may bé?
8 A, Right. chrysler has fown and country, which is a
g - versmn of the Dodge Caravan.
AlO Q. Instead of looking at the Dodge Caravan 1o make the
11l calculations in this case, you Jooked at the generic study, footnote
12l  Number 9, that shows an overarching range of vehicles, crossovers as
13| well as SUVS;, correct? |
14 A, Correct.
15 Q. As oppose to comparing to the c;losest car possible to
16l the one involved in the subject accident?
' 17 A. That's correct.
18 Q. a follow-up with one question about seat helts, and I
19) just want to ask you. "Seat helts protect you from forward motion ;J
20! correct? 7.
21 A. That's correct.
22 G. seat belts do not stop sideways motions; correct?
23 A  That is correct.
24 Q Sideways accidents are unprotected by seat belts; is that
25 correct? |
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A. 1 agree, in general.
Q So, for the rotational component of an impact, a seat bé1t
doesn't help with the sideways; corirect?
A. | The motion you.are indicating is side by side, it's not
rotational. Some rotation can be_stopped‘by the shoulder harness.
Q. There are Vector analysis involved, there is a forward
vector, and there is a sideways Vector; correct? |
A correct.
Q. you don't know what -- you estimated 20 degrees angle,

but you don’t know how the plaintiff was turned or how the car was

angled?

MR.

objection. We went over this
ninety times, and I didn't go into this on my redirect.

_THE COURT: Sustained.

I am done.

one last question.
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR.

Q. T think you said this before, but I think some of us

here need to hear it again. The Number 9 -—-

A Yes.
Q. - fhat articie —-
LA Yes.
S G | o dogs that include the Dodge Caravan study?
MR objection.

#-—1———_——-—‘———“'—-—%—._—-———__,____._——-———’_/,’_’_\
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| |
1! Q vou said it before. what's the ansﬁer?
2 A. Tt is included -
| 3 - objection.
-4 THE COURT: T didn't rule on the obj'éction, and the
5 reason, and the answer, and everything was said at the same
6 time, so we are not goihg to have a record. SO, T don't
7 understaqd. what 1s the basis of your abjection?
8 This has been gone over four tTimes. And
9 the comment that some of us who don't understand --
10 T will rephrase.
11 THE COURT: We are comparing the car in question to
12 the Docige Caravan, even though you have just testified that it's
13 really the Town and Country that you should havelcompared it to?
| 14 He never said that. |
15 THE WIrNESS: 1 did not say that, your Honor.
16 THE COURT: T don’t understand.
17 He said the Town and Countrly was
18 the chrysier versioﬁ of the caravan. He didn't say that was the
19 closest one,
20 Q Just s0 We are clear, Doctor, Number 9 in your
71l  bibliography, did that study include the Dodge'Cara\Jan?
22 | A. T believe so, yes. The answer is yes.
23 Q vou believe so or you know 507
24 A 1 would have to defimitively check the Tist. — But that
251 s dincluding the most common one,- the podge Cafa\/an'bei ng the most

< o
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1| - recent.
P Q. S0, when you say 'ydu helieve s0, you are giiessi ng?
3 A, No, that's my testimony, it is included.
4 | T would like to make a final couple
5 of points on the record.
6 | THE COURT: Are we finished with the witness?
7 we are.
8 THE COURT: You may go, sir.
9 THE WITNESS!: Thank you, your Honor‘.‘
10 poctor, I will speak to you
11 outsi de;, | |
12 THE WITNESS: All right.
B THE COURT: We are not going to get a copy of Nurﬁber
14 97
15 Hold on.
16 (Thereﬁ was a brief pause in the proceed%ngs.)
17 T have Page 5 of Class 1 referring
18 to fhe podge Caravan.
19 THE COURT: Can we mark 1t7
20 Do you have any objecti‘ons o
21 giving it to the Judge?
2_2 | Ng. Can I get a copy of it? Because it
2l3 wasn't included in this packet. IF I can geta copy of it, that
24 will be good.
25 MR T only have one Copy.
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1] | THE ColRT: AT right. we'Tl meke copies.
2 ' MR po you want to mark it, Judge?
3 THE chRT: Sure. Eight.
4 MR . I will E-mail it to you. Tell him
5 ' to send me one, and you will have it within 24 hours, counsel.
6 ' Pége 5 has the reference to the Dodge Caravan, for the
7 - record.
8 | THE COURT: you could aisc Took it up on
9 the S.A.E. website.
10 Judge, they charge you $35 per article.
! 11 1 will provide it for free, Judge.
-12‘ | _ THE COURT: Okay. oOkay.
13 7 vou use to be able to look all of those
14 ‘ things up. |
15 THE COURT: wWrite a letter to Lexus. I don’t know
16 . what to say.
17 MR. Final thoughts, your Honor. Liet me
18] back into it in an interesﬁng way. I've recently
w190 cross-examined the ptaintiff's orthopedic expert; as a matter of
20 fact, last week I cross-examined one in front of Judge Billings,
21 it was a biomech case. An Qrthopedic surgeon said he didn'f
} ‘ - 22 " know the mechanism of the 1"nj'ury, didn't read the plaintiff’s
| 23 " deposition. Aﬁd 1 pointed out to the Jury that although he
24 didn't kﬁow how the accident happened, or whether the shouider

25 hit the side, because in that case it was a shoulder injury, he
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was abfe to teétify and give his opinion that the ‘accident was a
causal connection even though the information showed otherwise.
Th%s is what ﬁe have in all of these biomech cases. Counsel is
saying he doesn't know enough, or it's too much of a guess, or
any number of one hundred differeht thingsé to use some of thé'
words he used, it's not exact. 50, in terms of the
biomechanical, they are scientists like medical doctors. m
this case, whatever doctor is called by the plaintiff, 1
guarantee you that their opinions will be to a reasonable degree
of medical certainty and not to an absolute degree of medical
certainty; just 1ike I call biomechanical experts to a
reasonab1e degree of scientific certa1nty not to an absoWute
degree of certainty. But he says, in h1s papers, he doesn t
knoﬁ tﬁe exactrspeed, and T agree, we don't know- the exact
spegd, and we don't have to know exactitude. The ‘question 1s
whether or not, even with using the median, whether we have
enough information on either side, and if it affects anything,

if it affects it by a lot, which the doctor said it doesn't,

" that is sufficient, reliable ccientific evidence. The sine qua

non, the hallmark of the nye standard, isn't to sacond-guess
what the doctor did, or the'expért. the controlling point ot
the Frye standard was, and has been since the 1920s, does the
opinions elicited, or statad, by these so-called experts, are
they in conformity with the medical or scientific commumity in

which they are on behalf, and counsel has offered no ayvidence
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i} from anywhere to contradict that proposition. Now, Yes, they
2 have to know the make and mode] Qf the vehicle, the weight, the
3 ‘curb weight, the proximate weight, they have to know how many
=4 people, all of these things are discussed. Some of the pivbta1
5 points that your Honor tade in her article, are they belted, are
6 they not belted, all of those areas we have gone into with great
7 pain over this entire day. whatever counsel crié%cizes, T would
8 ‘suggest, is his own personal criticism, and hot based upon
9 anything that the scientific community, in the biomechanical
107 field, does or does not do. And I am willing to concede thst
11| whaﬁ he has brought up today, 1T at all, is proper
12 cross—examination, just like I've cross—-examined His orthopedic
13 surgeon; in this case, or in any case, who doesn't know all of
14 . the facts, doesn't know the Histofy of the patient, doesn't.know
15 the pre-existing conditicns or anything. So, the question s,
16 is our doctor exact, no, and no expert can ever be. No expert
1? can be standing on the street corner in the hopes that thers
18| would be an accident. We have a three~yeér statute of
19 Timitations, cars are repaired or destroyed, either in the
20 accident or after, and it is not possible to get to every one.
pAN * The standard is, are there scientific basis in the biomechanical
22 community to make these calculations. None of the calculations
23 vhat Dr. Teosi made are formulas that he made up himself. Tthe
24 information on whether or not he has enough information,
25 ult{mateiy, is left to the jury. BuUt, a5 a matrer of law, he

S

|
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has all of the requisites that biomechanical engineers use. And
what counsel didn't do, which I am sure you've noticed very

clearly, is that he never asked him assume this weight or that

assume that, and I even gaye h1m an example of 600 pound heavy
or 600 pound Tower, the degree of fluctuation is not
significant. SO, in terms of his ability, does he have the
knowledge and the training to give opinions which may invade on
the hedica1 providence, yes, I would suggest that he does. He
has spec1a11zed knowledge and tra1n1ng, he has treated patients,
some of them in traum. I should note that I think it's at
Jeast one departmént that says that you don't need to have a
medical degree to give such an opinion. 1In this case, we
actually have an expert who has a medical degree, who has
prac;iced medic{ne. The fina] point T will make is that, is he
trained as well as a_neﬁro1ogist, no, but that's grits for the
mill, that'’s cross-exammnation, and that is stuff for the jury

to consider. It's not a basis to totally preciude this expert.

It's not junk science. My expert is well-trained in both
medicine and biome;hanics, and he does the same calculations as
everybody in the community; And T am sure you can point to one
hundred things he didn‘t know, rhat counsel says 1s important,
hut there is no evidence before your senor that anything that he
didnit have would be viewed as a Kihosh on his opinion ffom the

hiomechanical community. and on the 1992 photogrammely
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artﬁcﬁe, T can oﬁ1y-say this to your Honor, is that, as the

doctor testified, he no longer needed a $50,000 camera; we have

compufers programs if the office that can do that. 5o, for att

of those reasons, I wou}d suggest to your Honor that we have

more than met our burden. lAnd 1 respectfully ask that you woqu
_ adwit or. Toosi, subject té the full parameters of whatever

counsel’s cross-examination may be.

May be heard, your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes

MR. Okay. Number one, 1t is not incumbent

upon me to call any sort of experts to disprove Dr. g

is a proper witness. Dr.

their burden to show that Dr.

ad dozens of areas where he was speculating, where he was
_estimating. He referred o studies, he referred to taking a
fiftieth percentile of studies, he referred not knowing how many
Soﬁyearao1ds,rsuch as-the plaintiff, were in the studies. He
knew nothing about the plaintiff's positioning‘other than
Tooking forward. And he was ambivalent about whether 1t was a
straight hit in the rear or an angular hit in the rear. He
finally conceded that he used the 20 degreeé, although that may
not compﬁrf with What was stated at the Tiability trial. He
also used a generic —- the reference Numbef 9, he used a generic
study of the whole grouping of SUvs and crossove?s, where he
could have just looked up the data of the car that was similar

to the chrysler pacifica, the poaGge Caravan,'which he testified
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was just about similar toréhéwéaf. while it's included within
that study, it's not the exact.car. on the one hand, he wants
to say that ph&s?cs hasn't.changed in the Tast 400 years, but
then he wants to say that photogrammetry has changed over the
Tast several years. There ié just too much estimation and too

many of his beliefs. He said "I believe™ a number of times.

when T tried to corner him on whether that's something he knows

or something he believes; on several occasions he said, Qé11
that's what X beiieve, and not something that's steeped in
science. So, for all of those rea§§ns, and for all of the
answers that he didn't have to guestions about weights, about
positiqning, about how the plaintiff may have been turned, or
seated, or what angle the seat was at, these are all factors
that, frankly, he did not know the answer to. So, there is too
many holes in his testimony for him to testify as to the field
of biomechanicstl As to medicine, he said they are co-dependent,
his biomechanica1'know1edgé and his hedicai knowledge. Courts
{E_thét-depértment found that he 1s.ﬁot permitted to discuss
medicine, he is not Ticensed to practice medicine 1in New York
State, or anywhere in the United States for that matter. He was
not a neurologist, an orthopedist, a radiologist, but he is
giving opinions. And the fact that he says he gives medical
Op{nions, I think, is a breach of protocol, but T will look that
up; and if he is allowed to testify, I will ask him on

cross-examination. Based upon the gaps in his testimony, and
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the fact that he is not a Ticensed practicing medical doctor, he
shoﬂ1d be precluded, or echQded;

THE COURT: Okay. So, I am reserving decision. I
have to read this large pile of stuff that you have admitted,
and the exhibits. I will send ynu.my decision.

Thank you, your Honor.

Thank you, your Henor.

T will accept the decision by E-mail.

THE COURT: Okay.

I concur.

THE COURT: Okay.

Do you want my card? My E-mail is on my
- card.
THE COURT: I have your card from the trial. May I

ask one thing?

MR. @ Off the record, your Honor?
THE COURT: The record is closed. Off the record.
(wWhereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

AEETRAXAETINIHAANA AT HErdhrvdd

The preceding transcrwpt is cert1f1 d to be a
true and correct record of the proc_ ¢ iy this matter.
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- by Defendant - Cross

the witness stand.)
THE COURT OFFICER: Jury entering.
{(The jﬁry entered the courtroom and
the following occcurred:)
THE COURT: Please sit down.
We are missing a couple. There you go.

Mr .

crogs-examination.

MR. O Thank vyou, your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR, Yl
Q. Just some preliminary matters.

The first time we met was dutside in the hall when

I introduced myself. I am
AL Yes.

Q. Thank you.

I represent @ okay (indicating)?

A Yes.

Q. Sorry. You have to respond verbally.
A, Okay. Yes.
Q. You gave your address to this jury. It was one of

the firét Questions out of the ga£e- You gave your address
in New York, correct?

A. T did.

Q', Okay. But actually where your voter address is,

ig in Connecticut, right?
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Al Yes.

Q. So really your address is in Connecticut. that's
like New Havenfcouﬁty, right?

MR. Objection.

Q. Right?

| THE COURT: Overruled.

A. That 's éorrect_

Q. So your address -- you have two office addresses.
One of youf office addresses is in New York City, right?

A; Yes.

Q. And another office address is in Connecticut,
correct?

Al Yes.

Q. But you chose to only give to this jury when asked
what your addressAwas, was your New York City address; ié
that correct, Doctor?

AL Yes.

Q. So now with respect to what you reviewed, your
teStimony_before this jury is predicated upon the records
that Were.generated during the course and the care of Mara
Goldstein, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, the person who is in contreol of creating that

iga the individual

record with respect to

physician that's writing about that patient, correct?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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A. Yes. |

Q. So then, therefore, you are relying upon the
truth, the veracity, the completeness and the fairness of
the record that is created by Dr. correct?

- A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And same guestion, so I dom'‘t have to ask
them of every physician, the same thing with the other
Vphysicians, riéht?

A Yes.

Q. So, therefore, when you're giving your opinion,
yvou are relying upon what was written in her office notes,
corregt?

A. Yes..

‘Q. You're rel?ing upon what was written in her
operative note, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. VYou are assuming a}so that everything writtemn
therein is contemporaneous, as stated by Mr. by br

¥ treatment of

A. - Right. Yes.

Q. You also are assuming that what was dictated or

£y

was typewritten was fully done by the physician, correct?

A. Yes.
Q. Not some prescribed formula, right?
A. Righﬁ-

9840
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Q. It's not some template of what happened before,
. right?

A. -Correct,

Q. Well, you know by virtue of reading everything

that a template was used with resﬁect to office notes,
right; you understand that?

A. -Yes.

Q. And you also know that -- do you know what else,
what other:témplates were us;d in this case?

‘A. - No.

Q. I thought that Mr. when he wasg leading you

originally in the questions --

Objection.

Q. - he asked you, you reviewed X, you reviewed Y,

and you said you reviewed the trial testimony of Drx.
A. I did.

Q. So, therefore, when you read the testimony of Dr.

¥ then you know for a fact that she was using templates in

her operative report then, right?

AL Well --
Q0. Right, Doctor?
A, Well, she would use a template as a basic

beginning of the operative report.

Is that --

I am sorry?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Let her finish.

THE COURT: Let her finish. Otherwise, you
don't get a proper record. :

A. .ﬁwemplates are very, very commonly used, but Ehey
are adjusted as the opérative report is completed to
specifically address whét happened to that patient, what
sutures wé?e uséd, how much blood loss occuired, the end of
the surgery, what transpired from the anesthesia, to the
discharge, to the recovery room. 8o the template includes
the name of the patient, date of surgery, date of'birth,
typé of anesthesia, it depends if it's géneral anesthesia,
if it's mbnitoréd anesthesia care. Those are things that
are changed."Blood loss is.changed, sutures are changed
from patient to pafient. 'The amount of tissue removed is
altered_from.papient to patient.

So a template means that it's a guide. You don't
have toc retype or redictate what questions are being asked.

The template defines that.

I move to strike.

THE COURT: Overruled. I'll let it stand.

Q. So you use templates?
A. I do.
Q. So with regard to this though, you weren't aware,

you ﬂust said before in your testimony to this jury that you

weren't aware that Dr.

used templates outside of the

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Réporter
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2| patient record that she writes, the progress note? You

3| weren't aware that what she did was use a template in ﬁer

4 operativé{report, right? Right? It's a yes ér no.

5 AL T don't know_what you are asking me.

6| Q. Okay. What I am asking, you said before in ydur

7 sworn testimony that outside the'pfogress note, you Gere'ﬁot
8 aware of anf other templates that were used, right?

9_ A Well, if I answered that that way, I know that she

10| used a template for the operative report.

11 Q. It*s a yes or mo, Doctor.

12| A. It's not a yes or mno.

13 Q. Yes, it is.

14 | Objection.

i5 . THE COURT: If she can't answer it yes or
.16 no, she can't answer it yes or no.

17 Q. If you can't answer anything yes or no, would you
18 ﬁdnd letting me know?

19 A. DNot at all.

20 Q:: ‘This is not the first time you have testified,
21| correct?

22 A. Correct.

23 Q. I mean, in court over the years since the early,

241 what ig it, 19 -- late 1980s you have been testifying; is
25 that right?

26 A. Yes.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Q. ‘And as a matter of fact,.you‘ﬁe been testifying
each and every vear almoét since then. That's correcf
statement,ﬂié it not?

A. No.

Q. So with regaxrd to your - you gave testimony on
Aprii'lé, 1996 in the matter of & Do
yvou recall that case?

AL No.

Q. Do you recall that case being in the Superior
Coﬁrt of New'Jersey?

A.w ‘No.

Q. So you've testified in the Superior Court of New
‘Jersey, you've testified in Connécticut, and you've
testified in New York, have you not?

B Yes.

Q. You not only have testified in court, but you have
also testified with respect to the Department of
Professional Medical Conduct, haven't you?

A. Nof

Q. Did you ever give an affidavit to the Department
of Professional Medical Conduct on behalf of someone?

A. I did, yes.

Q. Okay. So you're saying that you didn't testify

before the Depértment of Medical Conduct, but you gave an

affidavit in support of a doctor who was being chérged with
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- misconduct, right?

A. T don't recall.

Could vou please advise the

witness to speak louder? He is blocking her and T

can't hear. I don't mind the blocking --

THE COURT: If you would, speak up.
THE WITNESS: Sure.
MR. I am not trying to blockrhim.

THE COURT: All right, gentlemen. If the

witness speaks up, it will satisfy everybody.

Thank you.

Q. In the matter of Dr. B

do you recall that?

A No.

Q. Do you recall that that was in the State of New

York, Department of Health, State Board for Professiomnal

Medical Conduct?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Do you recall that in that case you testified or

gave an affidavit on behalf of a doctor in which it

concerned mammoplasty reduction?

A, T don't recall.
Q. Do you recall that in that case --

_

Thig iz objected to in light --

THE COURT: Sustained.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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2 Q. Do you recall at all -- tell me if this refreshes
3| wvour ;90011ection or not, in that case also templates were

4 used?

5 ' A T don't recall the case.

6 Q; Lastly, to see if-this can refresh your

7i recollection --

8 MR. & This is objected to.

'8 THE COURT: Sustain.

10 Q; So now with respect to this case, you not only

11 testify in court on behalf of defendaﬁts, but you mostly do
C 12 defendant ﬁork, right?

13 A. Yes. )

14 Q. The percentageris what? T am talking about

15 medical malpractice cases. What is the percentage?

16 A, It's a low percentage.
- 17 Q. Sorry?

18 A It's a low percentage for the plaintiffﬁ

1.9 Q. Is it 99.9 percent thét you testify in medical

20| malpractice cases in court on behalf of a defendant doctor;
21| 4is that a correct statement?
22 A, No.

23 Q. Well, in looking at your -- you've testified in

24 1994, do you racall, the case of That

25 was in New Jersey, Hudson County,-

26 A No.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Q. Do you recall that was for the defendant?

A. I dont't recall the case;

Q. How aboﬁﬁ , New Jersey, Bergen
Coﬁhty; do you reacall thast?

A. No.

-Q. Db you recall answering certain guestions under

cath in that case with interrogatories?

A, I donft recall the case.

Q. I will get there.

# New York, Richmond County, vou testified on
behalf of the defgndant in that case in the medical
malpractice case; do you recall that?
A. No.
Q. ‘That was with regard to, see if it refreshes your
reééllection, removal of a cyst from the right cheek?
| A. I don't recall.

Q. Okay. And the other case, the case, does it

refresh your recollection that it was nasal surgery?
‘AL I don't recall.

Q. . What about the case of

New York County, in 20007 You
testified on hehalf of the defendant in a medical
malpractice case.

AL I don't raéall.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Q. And the neéiiéeﬁt use of staples to close a wound,
dbes thatrreffesh your recollection at all?

A, ‘Not at all.

Q. | ‘ Wew York County, a medical
malpractice caSe”on béhalf of the defendanﬁ?

” A. ‘I don't fecall.

Q. It:was a negligent performance of a breast
reduction case. Does that in any way refresh your
recollection?

A. No, it doesn't.

Q. What about § You

testified on behalf of thé defense in 2001 in Richmond
County. Do you remember that?
A ” No.
Q. Improper circumcision on an infant.
Does that refresh your recollection?
A. No.

Q. And how about, maybe this one rings a bell for

you, please, 2001, the case is

P New York County, Bronx. Do you remember that

one?

A, No.

Q. It was a medical malpractic;;. You were noticed as
a witmess in this case. Do you know if you ever took the

stand in that case?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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A. I don't remember.

Q. Do you know that you were retained by

in that case? Does that refresh your

recollection?

A It doesn't.

Q. Can you tell me, please, 2001, the &

ase, New York State, Richmond County, 2001, you
testified for the defense in a medical malpréctice case; do
you recall that? -

A, No.

Q. What abouf the fact that § was
the defense counsel? Does that refresh your recolleétion
now? -

A; No.

Q. Now, I know you may not recognize Ms.

Do

you recognize her?

A. Who?

Q. Ms. @B

A No.

Q. I'm sorry?

A. t I mean, I met her outzide, but --

Q. But the partners from her firm, you know,

AL Yes.

Q. And you review many cases for them, do you not?
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A. Not many.

le. Well, what db vou say?

A I have no idea.

Q. Oh, it's not that it;é nof:many, vou just doﬁ’ﬁ
have any idea? |

A. I don‘t.

Q. So you reaiize that's two different things, right?

How can you say not many if you don‘t have an idea?

Objection. Argumentative.

MS . R

Cbjection.
THE SEiEss Sustained.
0. Now, with regard to the case of

New York County, New York, 2002, that was a

medical malpractice case regarding a facelift and eye

surgery. Do you recall testifying in that case?

A. No.

Q. .How about the & B case, Federal

District Court? Do you recall testifying in federal
District Court?

A No.

May I ask Mr.
private guestion on this? 1t may save me some trouble.
THE COURT: Sure.

Do you want to go into the hallway or --

MR. 1 No, I will chat with him here.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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THE COURT:  Great.
(Discussion off the record.)
THE COURT: Gentlemen, remember that there
is a jufy sitting right there. If I can hear you - -
| Ydu will clarify that?
T did.

Thank vyou, Judge.

Q. With regard to the P case, do you

recall -- let's say it this way so that -- whether you

testified in any of these cases or you gave an affidavit or

'yOu were retained to be consulted, in any of them, in any

way, in anything I read before, do any of those ring a bell?
- Al No.
Q. Either way, whether you testified, you gave an
affidavit or were consulted, in any way?
A, No.

Q. Okay. Now, the (@&

B case, that federal
case, do'you‘recall whether you gave testimony‘on behalf of
the defense or you wrote an affidavit or what you did?

A i don't recall.

Q. The ¥ gh cace, that was in
2006. Was that with EHiE
AL T don't know.

Q. And that was a Labor Law case. That's unusual.

You were called as a witness on a Labor Law case on behalf

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reportex
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of the defense?

MR. Judge, these comments ~-
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. With regard to this Labor Law case -- in other

words, you teétify also not in just medical malpractice
cases, but some law firms retain you to do an examination of

an injured plaintiff, right, and then you render a report,

right?

A. I have examiﬁed injured patients and rendered
reports. )

Q. And then you're called sometimes to testify in

court contradictory to the treating plaintiff's testimony,

right?
7 ”Objection.
A.:“_I_don't recall.
| THE COQURT: She dcesn't recall. That was
r the answer. I will let that answer stand.

I will ask you to speak as 1oud1y as you can

because I am just not sure our jurors are all hearing

you.

I am almost done on this
line.
Q. In the § case, New York‘County, do

you remember in that case being retained by

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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A.  No.

Q. So I don't know whether you testified in that. I
am asﬁing, do you recall whether or not you testified in
that case? |

TA. I don't recall the case.

Q. 'And Qas that, let's see if this refreshes your
fecollection, exééssive administfation of propofol and
feptanyl prior to facial anesthetic [sic.] surgery.

Do you recall—testifying in that kind of case or
giving a report or an affirmation? |

A. No, no.

Q. And the @ ) case, that was also for
a defendént, do you recall that case in 2011?
A. No.

Q. All right. Do yéu recall it being a bilateral

_breast reconstruction leading to some nipple asymmetry; do

youbrecall that?
A No.

Q. Dé(you recall whether or not you gave an affidavit

"or a report or anything like that?

AL I don't.

Q. Letfs finish it up with the

B case versus |

. Do you recall being asked to give an affirmation
in that case?

AL I don't recall.
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Q. . Do you remember §

:time the partner of Dr. do you remember that?
A. “No.

MR.

This is objected to.
THE COURT: She said no. I will let that

answer stand, but let's move élong-

Q. The iast:one is 2016, New
York, Nassau County; do yvou recall that case?

A. No. |

Q. Aﬁd that was a -- does it refresh your
reqollection thaf you'aiéo testified as to the failure to
proﬁerly perform breast reconstruction in that case?

A; | ﬁo.

Q. So with respectlto these matters, you have
téstified approximately how many times in a ﬁedicai
malpractice case?

A', I don't know.

Q. all right. And so is it more than 507

A. I doubt it, bﬁt I can't say ves or no to that.

Q. All right.

So you earn a certain percentage of money doing

these defense cases for medical malpractice case defendants,

correct?
A. Yeas.
Q. Now, you read Dr. daily copy. did you not?

. Texry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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2 A. Tes.
3 ' Q. And did you read that basically she does, you

4 know, when she reviews cases, it's 50 percent for the

v

5 plaintiff, 50 percent for the defendant?

.6 MR. Objection. I can't hear.
7 ] N THE COURT: You are speaking so fast. I try
8 to sometimes take notes on what you are saying. If I
9 can't get it, how are they getting it? I am not trying
101 . to gtt‘ﬁord for word. I am trying to get generally.
.11 ‘-56; please, slow down. |
44l | MR._Q“F_,¢J¢_ Yes, your Honor. I
'13 apologize. I apologize to the jury.
14 Q. Can vyou tell me, please} you read Dr.

15 record. You read Dr.

3 s record, and you read that she
16| reviews éases, and sometimes it's aboutua %0/50 spliﬁ; do
- 17 you recall that?

18 A, Neo.
19 ' Q. So, with regard to the amount of money you earn
20' per year with.respect to testifying in these cases for thése
21 deferidant doctors and these law firms or all defense law
22 firﬁé, how much do you earn per year?

23 A Some years nothing. Some years maybe 20, $25,000.

24 0. In this case you're paid -- you heard mr. ETTHER
25 say that you spent time,kyou met with each other over the

26 course of this trial, right?

. Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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AL Yeas.

8396

Q. 2And how mdch.time did you spend with him over the

course of the week or two weeks?

A, Well, last night I met with him for an hour.

Please, a little slower.

THE COURT: Last night she met with him for

an hour.

A. And when I reviewed the medical records, it was
seven to eight hours.

Q. You charge how much an-hour?

A. 350. -

{(Continued on next page.)
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.‘ CROSS-—EXAMII&'ATION
BY MR. §

Q. You said 350?

A. Yes.

Q. And what else -- for today you're charging how
much?

A.  5,000.

Q. So -- and when were you first retained?

A. Several years ago.
‘ Q. .'When you"éay several years ago, when?

A. Three, two.

0. Do you‘have your notes when you were retained and
when you reviewed the records? ’

A. I don't have any notes with me today rega:ding.the
 casef

Q. You did mnot bring any notes?

AL No.

Q. Do you have your record s0 we can see what records

you reviewed?

A Well, I tesFified initially as to what records I
reviewed.

Q. I know that bu£ I'm asking do you have them here
in court,'thé recdrdé that you reviewed?

A Do I have a copy of the records I reviewed?

Q. Here in court, outside or with your lawyer?

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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,_A-

"y

No.

When you reviewed the records, did you highlight

anything, make any Post-its, take any'notes, write something

on the computer?

A.

Q.

No.

So with all of these records that yvou reviewed,

the bill of particulars, thousands of pages of transcript

with regard to the medical records, no notes whatsoever?

- A, No.
Q. No highlighting, no tabbing, no nothing?
A. Right. |
Q. Lgt me ask thiz: With regard to texts that‘
concern the Héll—Findlay.technique prior to August 25, 2010,
do you -- have you reviewed any texts with respect to the

Hall-Findlay techniqué?

AL

0.

No.

- Are there any journals or articles that you rely

ubcn or did rely upon on or before August 25, 2010, in order

to learn how to do the technique?

A.

Q.

No.

Did you attend any lectures at any point or at any

time prior to August 25, 2010, in order to see how the

Hall-Findlay technique is done?

Al

Q.

I go to medical meetings.

S0 back in August 25, 2010, would you say that yvou
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wera experienced in doing the Hall—Finalay_technique?

A. That's seven years ago. You're saying 2005 -=
20107 |

Q. Yes, Doctor.

A. Well, I was familiar with the superior vertical

lollypop incision which was pioneered bler. so I
don't know exactly when there was a modification made By
Dr. Hall;Findlay, but the basic principles of the

development of the medial supefior £lap is very familiar.

Q. Wait a second. I asked you if back on August 25

2010, if you were familiar with doing the Hall-Findlay

technique. Is the answer yes or no?

A, I don't know.

Q. But you're here giving testimony about what the

'standard of care is at that time in doing a Hall—ﬁindlay

technique. Do you realize that?

A Yes.

Q._ Do yoﬁ know when the Hall-Findlay technique.was
introduced to the.community?

AL It was several years ago. Exactly what year, T
don‘t-rééali.

Q. So you don't know as you sit here today whether

was 199857

999

x

it

A. It's a modification of the Lejour and I don‘t know

when the modification --
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I didn*t hear. Modification of?
THE WITNESS: Dr. Lejour, who pioneered this
particular fla? and modifications come in. There are
several modifications‘thaf keep appearing, some have
credibility, some don't, but exactly the date when I

waé,familiar with Rall-Findlay I don‘t recall.

Q. Doctor, you understand that Dx. P testified that
she did the Hall-Findlay tecﬁnique here?r

A; Yes. . )

Q. And Yoﬁhunderstand -
| | MR— Withdrawn.

Q. When was the first time that Dr. EFmet

Dr. Hall-Findlay and heard her lecture?
- MR. SEEEEE® Objection.

.. Ms. @@l Objection.

THE CQURT: Overruled.

Al I don't recall.

Q. You read her'testimony?

A. I did.

Q. Doctor, there is sworn testimony here that in

1999, during her residency, Dr. @@ heard a lecture of

Dr. Hall-Findlay. Can you please assume that.

Al I recall it now that you stated it. I recall

reading that in Dr. | festimony.

Q- Very good.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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So some 11 years before August 25, 2010,
physicians like yourself were doing the Hall-Findlay
technique, right?v. o
A -Yes.
Q. But you're saving heré to this jury that you don't

even know if you were doing it at that time August 25, 2010.

_That's your testimony, right?

A. I'm not sure when T began doing it but pedicle
flaps are something that form the foundation of
reconstructive sﬁrgery. So whether it's the Hall-Findlay,
the Lejqur, the scoop, the Wise, thié is a work in progress,
so I am familiar with pedicles, I ém familiar with the
anatomy and I am very comfortable doing procedures based
upon fundamental principles.

Q. Are you saying on Aﬁgust 25, 2010, that the

Hall-Findlay technique was evolving?

Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.

AL I'm saying pedicle flaps afe constantly evolving.

Q. That's not my Question. 'My question is are you
saying to this jury that the Hall-Findlay technique on
Augﬁst 25, 2010 was evolving?

Al Yes. According to Dr. Hall-Findlay it has
evolved, she has perfected her method, she has changed her

methodology, she has refined the technique. That's part of

- Donna Ewvans ~ Official Court Reporter
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the process.
Q. Doctor, not in August 25, 2010, she introduced it
iﬁ the iate "90s, right?
MR . (R I object to this. Is he
testif&ing?
TﬁE COURT: It's fine on cross examination,

T'11 allow it, but let‘s move along.
You can answer that last question, or not.
Are you withdrawing it?

MR. (ENSEEP: I am. your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. (EEP: I think I've established the

point;

Q. Now, with respect to the healing issue here, it
your opinion, as you said to this jury, that when someone
makes én incision using the scalpel and using the bovie
cautexry that the natural tissue of a human bddy immediate
starts to form scar tissue, during. the surgery in fact.

That's your point?

A. No.
Q. No?
A No.
Q. S0 -- I'm sorxry. Right after the surgery and

there's a closing, are you saying that scar tissue and ba

are forming right then and there at that point?

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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A. I'm saying that during the surgery., the body
reacts by poqring healing factors intp the area injured, but
as the process is ongoing there's no formation of scar. The
wound is approximated, and usually ﬁithin six hours the
Wound is closed. And that's éﬁ acceleration of the healing
proéess, but the completion of the healing process is

ongoing. It usually takes six to 12 months before it's

stable.
Q. Six to 12 months before these bands form?
A. - Six to 12 months befofe the scar tissue ié stable.
Q. Séﬁnpw'——
A. And I'm saying not that the bands form, I'm saying

there's contracture of the fibrous tissue of the breast.
Q. You're saying the contracture of the fibrous

tissue and --

Withdrawn.

Q0. You're saying that sik dayé later that these
fibrous tissue of these bands are what is pulling down and
retracting tﬁese nipples?

Objection.

. THE COURT: Overruled.
A. I didn't say six days later, I said at six hours,
at the completion of the surgery, generally the wound edges
are bridging, they've sealed. That's not always the case.

But I'm not saying six days.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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B - by Defendant @&EH

- Q. You're not saying that -- if the nipples were
retrécﬁe& gix days later, you're not saying bands in these
fibrous tissue are what is pulling down on these nipples,
right?

A. I don't know. T don‘t know when the bands start
pulling dowﬁ on the nipple.

Q. You read the testimony of Dr.iﬂﬁh as you said
before, didn't you?

A. I didn't read it completely. It was given to me

late last night, but I did read a significant part of it,

but I didn't read all of it.

Q. When Mr. B asked you did you review X and
review Y, did you just say -- you said you reviewed it, you
didn't say you reviewed it partially or skimmed it,
whatever?

A.. I reviewed her examination before trial. But I

was not given her trial testimony until late yesterday

evening.

-Q. Would you agree with me that trial testimony is

i

important to you?

MR. § Judge, what day? I can only get
it at a certain -- what day?

THE COQURT: The guestion was --

Read it back.

' Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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= - by Defendant

BY MR.

trial testimony is

Q. Do you agree, Dr. §&
important to yvou, yes or no?

A.  Yes.

Q. Now, fou.met with Mr.§ right?

A. Yes. i
é- | Did he and you speak?

A. Yes.

Q. Did he and you speak about the trial testimony?

A Yes.
Q. Did he impart to you what you thought was
important? “
. A. Hes.
lQ. So really what happened here with regard to the

trial testimony with Dr. @l is that you didn't actually
reviéw her testimony because you got it late last night, you

heard her trial testimony as summarized by Mr. Habian?

A. Both.
Q. You only skimmed it?
A. Depends. what you say by skew -- I skimmed it. I

spent a couple hours, but by 11, 11:30 at night I felt it
was wise to sleep.

Q. With regard to this meeting from Mr.-- with

tell you what Dr. |

as to the healing process and when the scars and bands

Donna Ewvans - 0Official Court Reporter
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2 formed, yes or no?
‘3 o B I doﬁ't recail that.
4 - Q. I'm asking YQu-did he tell you that, what She
5 said?
6 A, No. Not gspecifically with what bands formed. I

7 dqn't recall that.

8 Q. How about was Ms. @B there in that meeting?
‘9 A, No.
10 *'_ Q. Was Dr. @ there in that meeting?
i1 A. No.
12 Q. Have you ever spoken to Dr. (i
13 A No. |
14 Q. You said you were retained some several yeaxrs ago,

15 right?

16 A, A couple of years.

17| Q. .A couple to you is two?

19- - '_A. | Two or three.

19 Q. Fair enough. During that two or three year period

20|. of time, did you ever meet Dr. (G

21 A. - No.

22 | Q. Did yoﬁ‘ever talk to her about it?

23 AL I do not know Dr.

24 Q. That's not my question. My gquestion is did ycﬁ

25 ever have a meeting between vourself, Mr. {

26| talk about what you did?

Donna Evang ~ Official Court Reporter
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(Reporter requestéd clarification.}

THE COURT: Read me back the last thing &ou

havé.
| (Record read.)
THE COURT: Finish your question.
MR. j: I°11 rephrase it.
ZQ. During the meeting, did you ewver ask for a meeting'

to discuss what

between yourself, Mr. §

happened with regard to the care of {§fEE

A. No.

Q. ‘Now, I'm going to read to you what Dr. (il
testified to, then I'ﬁ going to ask you some questions,
okay?

MR.

Is this Tuesday or yesterday?
. -need to know.

I'm going to tell you the

MR . G
page.
MR. i Please.
e :  It's July 13, 2017.
Yestérday.
Page 704.
Q.  That was yeSterday'é testimony.

Agaiﬁ, you may mot have had an opportunity to

review the entire thing;:but you and Mr.

told you What.he thought about the day's testimony, zright?

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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V- by Defendantf
MR. - Objectiom.
THE COURT: Overruled.’-
THE WITNESS: What was the question?
MR. | @8- Can I have it read back?
THE COURT: Yes.
(ﬁecord”read;)
A. Yes.
Q. Let's go to page 704, starting line 21.

“ﬁQ Now, you're saying with regard to healing and
the formation of fibrous tissue bands, things like
that, are you saying those things form beﬁpré six
weeks?

"A ﬁo. b

Going on to the next pége.
Sl ) - They don't, right?
"a I dontt know. I don't know.™"
Going to line ten.
"0  Doctor, you agiee with me like as you -- with

your expérience, edﬁcation, training, background, you
know that bands do not form before six.wéeks, right?
| WA Prébably not.‘
"o S0 bands would not explain why six days later
her nipples are retracted,‘right?
“A Correct.®

Did you hear that testimony that I just read?

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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2 A. Yes. | o
3 _ Q. Do yvou agree with Dr. m
4 A. -In six daYs bands have not develoﬁed, is that the
5 question? M
6 Q. T read to you multiple things. Here's the
7 question. I asked her -- T 11 repeat it again, Doctor.
8 "Q Now, you are saying with regard to healing
S| .and formation of fibrous tissue, bands, things like
10 ' thaf,rare you saying those things form before six
11 ‘ weeks? A |
12 ' A No."
13 : Do you agree with Dr. [P
14 A. . Before six weeks or sgix days? Because I thought

15| wvou mixed the days with the weeks. Do they form within six
16| weeks? That's the héaling process, and it's well

17 established at that time fibrosis is occurring.

18 Q. Before six weeks is the question?

19 A, Before six weeks?

20 ' Q. Not at six weeks before six weeks?

 21 ‘ A How much before the healing process begins

. 22 immediately;

23 Q. So in other words, you disagree with what Dr.

T 24 tegtified undexr oath?

25 Objection.

26 . ) THE COURT: Overruled.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporkter
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- by Defendant

I don‘t feally grab a concept of what you're

trying to explain to me.

Q.
plastic
A.
Q.
A
0.

A.

Q.

Doctor, would you agree that you are a top class
surgeon?

PI do#'thiike that term.

How about top fiight plastic surgeon?

I just don't 1like that terminology.

#ékéy. How about first class?

Again, i don't like that térmihology.

How about the degree of your education, training

and background, would you agree that you are a very

competent plastic surgeon?

A.

Q-

success

A.

Q.

Yes.

Woul; you agree that you have nearlf a 100 ?ercent
rate in the things that you do?

No.

Would you agree that your success rate approachés

100 percent?

A.

No. I don't know anyone who approaches

100 percent.

MR, G : May I take the opportunity now

to do that?

Q.

THE COURT: Yas.
{Pause.)

Before I begin asking you some questions, we --

Donna Evansg - Official Court Reporter
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B - by Defendant Crossi
outsidé the presence of the jury we watched these videos,
did we not?
| A. Yes.

Q: There's two videos, are there not?

A. Yes.

Q. They are part of your website, are'they not?

A fes. |

Q. This is, like, something where somebody clicks on
your website, they. can click dﬁ it and iisten to it and
.thatfs one segmenﬁ; right?

lA. Yes.

Q; There's another segment, which if they want to
they can click on and listen to it too, right?

A. fes. . -

Q. It's a two stage process?

a. fes."'

Q. What you said in this promotional -~ whatever you
want torcgll it, this video, is it full, fair, accurate and
complete?

A. In this particular video? It's a video that was
edited so it was --

Q. It wasn't edited by me, right?

A No.

Objection.

THE WITNESS: It wasn't edited by me, it was

Donna Evansg - Qfficial Court Reporterx
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by the person who did the video.

Q. But you approved to it being on your website, |
right? o

A, ~ Yes.

Q. It's what if anvbody wants to they can go on your

website and lock at it and listen to it, right?

s

A Yes.

i For the record, on the bottom

- right-hand corner it says: Dell update. I don't know
how to get rid of it. It's on my laptop.
'THE COURT: It has nothing to do with the

video?

doing anything wrong.

(Video played for the jury.)

Q. Did I play that ¢lip in full, to youxr best
tecollection?

A. Yés;

Q. It's not that‘anyhody, including myself, edited.

That's a full version, is it not?
A. To the best of my knowledge, yes.

(Second video played for the jury.)

Q. That was the second portion of the video, correct?

A Yes.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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B - by Defendant|
2 Q. ' This is the video that we watched together with

3 all counsel and the Judge, oﬁtside the presence of the jury;
4| disn't that right? '
5 A. Yes.

6 - Q. So if we can, you fortunately have a success rate

7. that is very, very high and it approaches 100 perxcent,

8 right?
9 "A. In some instances.
10 Q. You don't say in some instances in the video,

~11| right?

T12| A. 'I didn‘t say in some instances, correct.
13 Q. So are you saying Fo thisrjury that you left that
14 out? |
15 A, No. -This is a sﬁmmary.
16 Q. It's a‘yes or no.
17 | MR. { It wasn't a yes or no. May she
18 answer it? | |
‘_19 . LR THE COURT: Let's read back the'quesgion,
20 please.
“21 | : (Record read.)
22 | THE COURT: Yes or no?
23 A, I left what out?
24 THE COURT: Apparently shae doesn't underétand
25 the guestion.

26 Q. You said teo this jury that it*s a hundred percent

Donna EBEvans - Official Court Reportex
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Crossjg

' in some instances. So you're saying that people watching

vour video, you left out a hundred percent in some instances

on your wvideo, xright?

A Yesf
Q. You did that on purpose? _ .
A. ‘What did T do on purpose? .
Q. To take out that it's a hundred percent in some
instances?
Objection to foxrm.
THE COURT: Overruled.
A The success rate approaches a hundred percent.
Q. I know ﬁhat's what I said, but you said in some

ingtances. You didn't say that on your video, but you said

- that here teo this jury.

A. I didn't say it on the video.

Q. 80 are you saying that your video is misleading?

Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
A: Tt's a video. It's a marketing tool. It's been

edited. It's not a consultation. It's information for the

patient. Each patient is unique. This is not sexving as my

consultation with the patient.
So the goal of cosmetic surgery, the goal of

all surgery is to improve the patient. So that's what this

"
1

implies. If there was a failure rate of a portiom or a

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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significant complication rate, then it would not be
acceptable.

Q. So vou're telling ghis jury, then, that actually
you have mény, many, many times where you have to have
revisions of your pafient?-

A. ©No, I don't.

0. You laughed?

A. Because you're putting words in my mouth that are
contrary to fact.

Q. So you don't havé many, many, many times where you

have to redo your surgery?

A, Correct.
Q. I mean to say that would kind of be a little

silly, right?

A. I didn't use the word silly.
Q. It wouldn't be right?
A. It would be inappropriate.

Q. So if Mr. @S told this jury that many, many,
many times that fevisiops have to be done after a suxrgery,

that would be inappropriate, right?

Respectfully object. I said
many surgeons, not many times.
THE COURT: Thank vyou, thank.you, fthank you.
Again, what the aﬁtorneys say is not

evidence.

Donna Evans - Official Court Reportex
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i by Defendantf;

Q. Right?
THE COURT: There is no question.

May I rephrase the question?

THE COURT: Yes.

had indicated during his opening

Q. so if vr.
words to tﬁé effect that many, many, many tiﬁes, yvou know
revisions have to be done after surgery, that would be
inappropriate, right?

MR . GNP objection.

THE COURT: Overruled. o
‘A. I have no idea.

Q. You just said when I said many, many, many that it

would be inappropriate, so if Mr. G says it it doesn't

~matter, does it?

MR. HABIAN: Judge, objectiomn.

THE COURT: Let me just give this
instruction. I have repeatedly said what the attorneys
say is not evidence in the case. What the attorneys
say in their opéniﬁg statements is nof evidence in the
case. What the attormneys say in their'summations is

not evidence in the case.

‘Ask a question based on the evidence, please.

Yeas.
Q. So with regard to your patients, when you talk to

them about the risks -- let's say it this way -- do you tell

Donna Evans - Official Court Reporter
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ﬁhem mény, many, many times there's a risk that you're going
£o need otheér surgeries; do you tell them that?
A. I don't use adjectives, I say there are risks and
I describe the risks.
Q. But do you -- whath‘ﬁ asking vou is, do you tell
them the percentage of your revision rate?
A. i ddﬁ't knéw anyone who talks about percentages to
a patient. |
Q. That's not my question. I'm asking you what you
do. I dom't care what anybody else does.
MR—: I object to that.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Ask a question, please.
.Q. Can you tell us, when you're talking to a patient,
you téiked about how important the consultation is in your

video, right?

A.  Yes.
Q. And to educatelfbur patient, right?
W Yes.
Q. And for yoﬁ ta have the-aegree of education,
right?
A. I have the what?
Q. The degree of your education, you and your

¢olleagques, you spoke about how you keep up-to-date on all

this information as being a medical physician, right?

Donna Evans -~ Official Court Reporter
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2. A. Yes.
3 Q. So in this situation you're talking to the

4 patient} do you tell-the patient, at all, anything other

5 than what's in your wvideo, which says that your success rate
6| is nearly or reaches a hundred percent?J

7 A. The consultation with the patient is nét a film

"8, clip. It's an intense dialogué- The medical history is

9 obtained, the patient's goals are reviewed, the patient ié
10 examined, the comnsultation allows the patient time to_ask

11! and have all of their quesﬁions asked and answered; the

12| risks, the benefits, the altermatives, the possible

13| complications are explained. So it's not a few minutes of a
14, wideo élip.

15 (Continued on next page.)
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2 - Mr. @ I ﬁove-to strike as not being
3 responsive. |
4 - Can I have it read back?
5 - THE COURT: Overruled. I'll allow it to
6 stand.
7 R ‘Doctor, all I'm asking you is, wheﬁ you sit down

8| with the patient, your patients see your video, it says your
9 success rate reaches nearly 100 percent. Do you tell them

10| anything else other than that?

11 A. Oh, I tell them a lot of things other than that.
12 Q. I mean, about youf_success rate.
13 A. I tell them what the risks are, and if they're at

14| greater risk or lesser risk, and the care is taken préparihg
.15 the patient for minimizing risk, but riské exist. So I

16| don't minimize the risk which meané the possible

17 complication and compiications can happen. That is

18 axplainéd to the patient.

13 Q. My question to you is, do you tell the patient
.20 that the coﬁplication rate is nearly iﬁ your experience less
21 than, because you're almost at nearly 100 pércenﬁ suécéss

22 rate, do you tell them it's less than one percent with me?

23 A.  You are taking everything out of context.
24 0. No, I'm sorry, I don't think I am.
25 I object to this.

26 THE COURT: Sustained.

Terry-Ann Volberg, (S8R, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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~ by Defendant - Cross

MR. {8

- Withdrawn. Withdrawn.
Withdrawn. | |
Q. With reépect to the discussion that you have about
the risk, you're saying that you tell your patients then
that there's aArisk of_nipple retraction whén yvou are doing

a breast reduction, right?

~MR. Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
‘A. I discuss the pbssible complications, and I

address the nipple, particularly in a younger woman, and the
variations can be énywhefe from an inverted nipple, which is
unus;al, it's not a common event, to necrosis of the nipple
where the entire nipple could be lost, where there could be
an open wound and excessive scarring can happen. That is
explained thoroughly to the patient. .

| ‘ Q- Do you know that in this case Dr. @@ didn't tell

P about retraction or inverted nipples?

A, Well, not everybody does. They discuss the

nipple.

Excuse me.
Q. So with respect --

Excuse me.

THE COURT: We will break here for lunch.
Don't talk abeout the case among yourselves or

with anybody else. Don't do any independent research.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Thank you, your Honor.
With your permission.
Q. Doctor, I left off with the guestion, and the
question was, you kﬁbw‘from the testimony that you réviewed,

and the testimony

and what you were told by Mr.ﬁhmf
specifically of Dr."ﬁthat she never told Mara or her
mother specifically that retracted nipples could happen as a
result of this surgery; you know tﬁat, right?
~ Al Yes.
Q. 0kéy.
THE COURT: I just want to tell the jury
. that there is no claim in this action for failure to

obtain informed consent.

Correct.
Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: ﬁaﬂscmmhm&'

Q. Now, you gaid this was a meticulous surgery,
correct?
TA.T Yes.
Q. So meticulous, you said it takes sometimes

three-and-a-half to four hours, right?
A, Or longer.
Q. Or longer, right, that's what you said.

Sometimes it could take five ox six hours, you

Terry-ann Volbérg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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said?
A. Yes.
Q. And I assumé by wvirtue of that because this is a
meéiculous surgexy, %s you testified to, right?
AL Yes.
Q. It's complex, it's difficult, correct?
A. Well, it's complex, but it's a standard approach
to a breast reduction.
0. Okay. It's a complex surgery?
A. Right. It's not a difficult surgery.
Q. But, again, you read Dr. i testimony.
Going to pgée 114, line six:
"Question: Do you recall it being complex?-
. "Answer: No, I don't specifically recall it

beingrcomplex."
Do you recall reading that question and answer?
A I don't believe I read ghat portion.
-Q. ' 8o your opinion then differs from Dr. WSS opinion
whoraid this surgery,-right? |
A. I'm talking about Ehe surgery in general, that it

is a complex operation, in my opinion.

Q. _.So‘your opinion differs from Dr. 5 opinion
then? |

A Apparenktliy.

Q. Now, with ;éspect to taking two, two-and-a-half

Terry-ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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hours, you'read_a lot, of tegtimony about that aspeét to do
this surgery, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And vou are aware that Dr. @&

testified in this case about the length of time that it

~would take to do that type of surgery like that was done on

Mara, right?
A. Yes.

Q. And it would be fair to say that your recollection

‘of the testimony is that you said it would take

two-and—aéhalf, three hours something like that?
MR. — 0Obij ection.
THE WITNESS: 'She’said two-and-a-half.
THE COURT: Overruled.

Q. “wa—and-a—half. Thank you so much.

Do you alsc recall the testimony of T

" A. irdon‘t recall that case at all.

. “ﬁhat case?

_.I thought -- I misunderstood. The way you phrased

the question, I thought it was sdmebody else entirely.

Q. Do you know who S

A

Q. do you know who that is?

Terry-Ann Volberqg, C8R, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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AL, I believe it's her mother.
Q. ?és.
" 8o did you read her testimony?
AL I éid, but not recently. |
Q. " ‘How abcut‘ger daily copy testimony from triai?
A I did'noﬁ read that.
Q. . But you did read what she stated in her testimony

at her deposition, you're saying?
Al Yes.

0. So did Mr. SHEEEP te11 yvou what Dr. @i told her

and {8 2s to how long it would take to do this surgexry?

A. I don't recall him telling me.
Q- Okay. So, you're not aware that Dr. & told SN

and her mom that it would take about two-and-a-half to three

hdurs?'

vs. | Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.

AL I'm:not -~ could you repeat that, please?

Sure; Can we read it back?
THE COURT: Read it back, please.
(The testimony as requested was
read by thé reporter.) |
AL No.
Q. So you said you don't anybody who can do this

surgery in two-and-a-half, three hours, but now you have two
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370

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18]

19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26

Proceedings
people that can; do you understand thatf
— . . dbjection.

. THE COURT: Overruled.

A. Yes.

Q. - Do you undérstand that?

A. Yes. .

Q. So you are saying to you-that's something new éhat
you jﬁg%Alearned from this trial?

A. No, I know that some people do reductions in fwo,
two-and-a-half hours, but it's a different operation than
the one that Dr. il ﬁerformed. -

Q. Butryou'te_not really familiar with the
Hall-Findlay technique as of August 25, 20107

A, | I am familiar --

vr . S Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.

A, T am familiar with tﬁat procedure as fo when it
was introduced, and I don't know the exact date that Dr.
Findlay introduced her take on the superior pedicle, but-I
am very familiar with the procédure since its inception.

Q. But you don't know Qhen it was inhépted, is that
the word?

Al i don't know. I névér heard it.

Q. You-don't knoﬁ_the date of inception. So you

don't know if it was 1995, *'93%, 2000, 2011, 2012; vou don;t

1032
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Proceedings
know.~~
MR . s Obﬁectioﬁ.
Q. -- righf? |
THE COURT: Overruled.
,A, T don't -- I don't know whe; it was introduced,
mbut I am very familiar with it. I am extremely familiar
with it. |
Q. 'fou said in your video that you have there on your
web that it's incumbent uponvfou and your colleagues to
remaiﬁrcurregt with the medical education that's necessary
to perform your job, did you not? |
i A. I did. y
Q. And would you agree that it*s not only incumbeﬁt
upon you, it's incumbent upon all physicians who weré doing
bra;s£ reduction on or about August 25, 2010; wouid you
aéiée‘ﬁith me?

""A. T don't know about the date bécause I am still not
familiar with the date, but taking your word for it, if 2010
ﬁas the beginning of Dr. s education and her refining
over the course of the years, then that's when I was
introduced to it. But do I remember the exact date? No, I
donft. |

(Continued oﬁ next page.{
L
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Withdrawm.
Q. What is the date of the surgery here?
A. The date of the surgery goes back to when the

patient was 16 years old. Soc today I think she's 20, 21
vears old.

.@% That's not my question.r I'm asking you the date -
of the surgery? .

A. August 15; I have to'do the arithmetic to go back
seven years, so that would be about 2010, Aﬁgust 25, 2010.

Q. So you understand when I'm asking about August.25,
2010, I'm not asking you aboﬁt Hall—Findlgy apd whgn she

. developed her procedure, I'm talking about the date of the
surgery. Do you understand that?

A, Well, you're jumping around, which I understand
you're not focused on each item. One minute it's the
rsurgery, the next is the technique. |

Q. So you're testifying you're getting confused abput
the dates? 7

A. I'm not confused at all.

wﬁ.. My questions to you havé been on or before
August 25, 2010, whether or not you were familiar with the
Hall-Findlay technique, and your answer was I don't know

about that at that time?
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B - by pDefendant@l

Objection.

and the time that I'm --

« - THE COURT: Sustained as to form.
Inn the begiﬁning of my cross-examination of you we

talked about your testimony is in reliance upon the medical

‘record.

Do you have Dr. GEiP

you, Doctor?

A

Q.

Yes, I do.

Would you mind going -- we have the Bates stamp in

the right corner, it kind of makes it easy. It's at paée

8/14. 1It's a fax imprint. Do you see that?

A. Page eight of 14.
iR : May I approach, please, your

Honor? .

THE COURT: Yes.

(Pause.)
Q. We're talking abéut this page in the right-hand

cbrﬁer? h

A Yes.
0. Doctor, I want to ask you, can you take a look at

this, take your time. You've seen this before haven't you?

A
Q.
seen it

AL

I've seen the record before.
That's what I mean. As a matter of fact, you've
several times?

Yeas.
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_ bY Defendant

2 __ Q. VCan you tell.ﬁe where on this page -- and this is

-3 the first poétoperaﬁive visit some six days iatéf, after the
4| sﬁrgery, August 31, 2010, right?

-5 A Yes.

6 Q. Where does it say on this page there were

7 retracted nipples? -

8| | A. It says nippleé viableAwith sensation, and it does

9 not say retracted nipples.

10 S MR_.-: ﬁove to strike the beginning
11 part and ask if the rest of the answer stand, pleése.
12 : | THE COURT: Yes.

13 Q. Now, Doctor, mow what I'd like to do is, you see

14, vyou're felying upon the medical record that_says positive
15| sensation, left greater than right- Right?
16 A. Yes.
17 Q. - Now, do you know if any part.of this record used
18| by Drx. @i o template?
18 . A. I don't know.
20 Q. You never consulted her daily copy about that,
21| right? Right, Doctox?
22 A. Yes.

sabout that, right,

23 Q. And you never spoke to Dr.
24 Doctor?
25 A Yes.

26 Q. So therefore, you're relying upon a medical record
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i - by 7Defendant- Cross /8

that's generated by Dr. - Would that be a correct

statement?
‘A. Yes.
Q. And just so you know, Dr. 'testified that she

typed everything here and that she used her template. I'd
like you to please assume those facts. Can you do that?

A, Sure. | |

Q. Now, with pc-asitive gensation, do you know from
Mara's festimony, whether it's daily copy from this trial oxr
from EBT testimony, whether or not she ever had nipple
sensation; do you know?

A That was variable.

Q. You're saying from-s testimony that you read,

our daily copy from this trial --

A. I didn't see the déily copy from-s trial
testimony. '

Q. rYou weren't sﬁpplied that?

AL No.

Q. So did Mr.5 you what she _said about
‘that? | | |

A. Said my -- yes.

0. So he told you that -- let me finish, Doctor,

please, the question.

 told you that § Js testimony

before this jury was that her nipple sensation was variable?
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s - by Defendant 8 Ccrocs /(T
A. No. Her -- she did not have nipple éensation.
Q. Oh. Sc with regard to this fact, you know then --
do you have any reason to disagree with what @0 testified

to and what Mr.-¥ ¥ told you? Do you have any reason to
disagree with that?
VAL No.,

Q. So again, you, as an expert physician -- and you

have to go by the trxuth and veracity of what you read,

correct?
A. '?es.
Q. So your understanding when you're reviewing this

case, so to speak, the giasses that you're looking through
or the prism that yoJ're looking through, are thesé récords
generated by Dr. E&p |
. AL t\&es.
Q. Now, you're saying complications are from surgery,

that happens, right?

AL Yes.
0. You agree with me that you, as a phjéician, if
‘there's a complication -- I'm going to use your word,

complication, but if there's a complication you want to

learn fram it, do you not?

A Yas.
Q. You want tc become better, correct?
A, I want to do my best to avoid a complication.
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1 - by Defendant @®- Cross/§
2| | Q. Cofrect, and that's by virtue of your planning,
3| your education, training aﬁdlbackground and experience,
4 right?‘
5] Al Yes.
6 0. So that before you‘start a procedure, fou want to

7| make sure you have all those components in place, would you
8 agree?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. We go to the next date, October 12, which is page
11 7_9 of 2014, right? _ . "
12 A. Yes.

.13 — Q. Now, yéz haﬁe an understanding as to why this is
14 handwritten, right? - |
.15 AL Yes.

"16 | - Q. Crown is down, the computer is down sc she hand

171, quté her note, correct?

18 A Yes.

19 Q. Now, we have here a complaint about the Crown in
_ 20 the first two lines. Then it talks about nipple still

21 retracéed?

22 AL Yes.

23 Q.  Now, still to vou meanslstill - - meaniﬁg it's
C 24 present on this day, right?
25 a. Yes!

.26 Q. But it's still means that it was from before,
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1 - by Defendant .— C:;-oss s

2| right?

3 A. Yes.

4- ' Q. And yvou're aware 6f an e-mail that was sent from
5 about that, right? |

6 A. Yes. |

7 Q. You've read that e-mail, correct?

8 A, Yes.

9 Q. ﬁﬁw, when a patient of yours makes an inquiry to
1d ‘you; would you agree that you try as best asvyoﬁ can to

11, respond to that ingquiry, correct?
12 " A, Yes.
13 Q. Would it be correct to éay if a question is asked

14| of you that you give a reply which is thoughtful, would-you
15 agree?

116 a. Yes.

17 QTV That you try to make sure that you give that

18| patient enough”information g0 ag to satisfy that patient_
19 Woﬁld you agree?

.20 A. Yes..

2L "Q. And with respect to that e-mail, you saw that a
22 redﬁest was made, there were two guestions, one about

.23 | Steristrips, you know, do they fall off or not, what should
24 I do with them? There ié a second question about the fact
25| that T can't still see the nipples, is that normal? You

26 read that, right?
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@ - by Defendant Cross / i -
HAlh.‘Yes_
Q. And you also read that the éecond part was never
re5§6ﬁded—£o by Dr. G right?
A Yes. | ~
Q. So in that fespect, would you agree with me that

the -- Dr.§

B wac not thoughtful in her response to the
patieﬁt's inquiry:; would you agree with that?

AL No.

lQ. For you, the fact that Dr. -decided to

respond to the Steristrips but not respond to something

agree? That's your point of view?

A. I can;t say yes Or no to that.

Q. So 1et‘é put this in your shoes. Patient makes an
ingquiry to yéu, sq@ething about retracted nipples. |
Retracted nipples, that's something that's important, would

you agree?

A Yes.

Q. Something that should not happen, right?

A ﬁight- |

Q. And you say, right, it shouldn't happen because

it*s not supposed to happen, right?

A Yes.
Q. Has it ever happened to you in the Hall-Findlay

technique?
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i - by Defendant@iid

AL No. o o

Q. That goes to -- would you agree with me, tell me
if I'm wrong, that goes to because of your experience in hqw
to do it,'WDuld you agree?

A, Yes;

Q. Would it go qu_your planning in how you do it,
would you agree? | |

A. Yes.

Q. Would you also agree that you have made sure that
you were educated in how td do that procedure properly,
ﬁould you agree?

A.  Yes.

Q. Now, you said you can't respond to me yes or no

did.not reply.
Let me follow through with théé a little bit. '
| On that point, if a patient has a cShcern_

3bout something that's impo?tant, like retracted nipples,
you agree with me that that should be a concern to the
phyéician, wouldlyou égree?

A. Yesz.

Q. Aﬁd you, T think; reiterated very articulately in
your video that how a patient feels is important, right?

Al Yeé. |

Q. And you talked about the trust between you and

your patient, did you not?
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y -~ by Defendant (s
A. I did.
Q. That is a critiqal component to the
physician/patient relationship, correect?
A, Yes.
Q. Aﬁd if someone has a question, ydu want to try the

best you can to answex that guestion because then thatfs
going to make the patient ﬁeel better, would you agree?

A. Yes.

Q. And that the goal is that you don't want to kéep
the information to yourself, you want to impart your
edﬁcation, tfaining and.experience te that patient when that

patient has a question?

A. Yes.

Q. And you saw that that was not done in that e-mail
by br.: L riéht?

A. Yes.

Q. 5o now, would you agree with me that if
somebody -- if a patient has a question about someﬁhing

that's wvery important} and it's something of a concern,
would you agrée that not responding to that patiént and
answering that question is a départure from acceptable
medical practice?

A No.

Q. You're just saying it's not good but not a

departure from accepted medical practice, right?
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A. Yes.

Q. ﬁecause by not responding, you're depriving
information to the patient, right?

lA; Not ﬁecessarily.

Q. Now, complications, the bestvway -- you know that
when you --

P: Withdrawn.
Q. You know that when you generatera medical record

thét maybe one of your patients may go seé spmebody else for
a second opinion, right?
A. Yes. T .
Q. And that the other doctor may rely upon your
medical record, right?

AL Yes.

Q. What you saw, right?l

A. Yes.

7Q. What your opinion is, correct?

AL fes.

0. And so you try to create a medical record that,

let's say you're not even there that day. You have

partners?
A, No.
Q. You're by yourself?
A; Yes.
T 9.7 80 it is impossible for you to remember every
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patient;‘isn't-that right? ‘

A Y&s.

Q. You have a lot of patients, do you not?

A &es.

Q. fou‘re a very successful plastic surgeon, are you
not? N -

| A, Yes.

Q. _ So how many patients do ydﬁ see in a given day,
would you say? |

A. It'= variéble.

Q. Between what and what?

A Fifteen to 20.

Q.. You see patients how many days a week?

A, VA couple.

Q. Again, I apologize, is a couple two or three?

A. Again, itfs wvariable. Dependé on the surgical
‘schedule, depends on morning or afternocon, so‘it‘s a
variable.

Q. So ycu‘have a surgery day., right?

A, I have surgery‘days. So sometimes itjs a Monday,
sometimes it's a Friday. It's variable.

Q. Igﬁaepends upon what your surgical suite can give
you or what the hospitél can give you, right?

AL Both, yes.

Q. So it is impossibie for you to remember each and
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- by Defendant{

every patient, so that's why you want to create a detailed
record, so that you can refer back to it youféelf,‘doﬁ’t
you? 7

A, Yes.

é. So what you_segyon day six versus what you see.on
gsix weeks later, or three and a half months later, you will
then ha%e a picture, so to speak, by the virtuehof youxr
written word,"would you agree?

A, Yes.

Q.  So therefore, with regard té jﬁst the‘ﬁfitten
word, let's ﬁake the written word. Now, we established that
let's pu; that aside. Let's go to photographic evidence.

One of the things that is iﬁportant for you
as a plastic surgeon is to document postoperativé results,
would you agtee?

A; Yes. ‘ }

”Q. Let's say if you have a complication, you*re going
to want to document that complication, are you not?

A. Yes.

0. You do that not only for yourself so that you can
learn from the complication, but you also do it because you
waﬁt to document it for the chart; you agree?

A. ﬂ%es.

Q. Tn addition to that, in the event that you want to

do a revisement sometimes, there's been testimony about
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*fﬁ- by Defendant

this,‘fhaélyou need photographié evidence for the health
insurance cbm;an&;'you know that, right?

A Yes.

Q. Because they don't want to pay for something if
itts not necessary. Fair statement?

A. Yes.

Q. ‘So therefore, there's‘two methodologies fof you to

. document what happens to yvour patient. There's the written

document and then there iz the photographic document, right?

A. Yes.

L

Q. So on August 31, 2010, six days after, you do not

~have anything v&ritten with respect to -- by Dr. -

concerning what she visualized concerning the nipples, other

than her saying no positive sensation left greater than

right. 1Is that a fair statement?

Al Yes.

Q. Now, the second day it says nipples still
retracted. T think it's inverg}on -~
| MR. ¥ Incision.

MR . @

I'm sorxy, wait a second.
Thank you.
Q. Nipple still xretracted. Do you know what that
sayé after that, Doctor?
A. Tncisions -- I think it's clean.

Q. Okay. Now, where it says left slightly greater
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- by Defendant SR

than-right, what is thét talkingrabOut? It'é talking ab§u£

symmetry, right? ” 7 |
A. Left slightly smallex. Right,fsomeﬁhing gquite

balanced. Right -- but -- left slightly larger but quite

balanced. Left slightly greater than right but guite

balanced.
Q. Is that talking about symmetry of the breast?

A. Yes.

Q. 'The ones you talked about that you say are
beautiful postoperatively, right?

A. Yes.

Q.- . Can we go back up here, nipple still retracted.
What's ﬁhe word after? |

AL I cannot make that woxrd out.

Q. Did you ever ask Mr. {8 Dr. §@@ to tell

- you what that word is?

: Objection. It's -- object to
this.
THE COURT: _Sustéined.
Q. Which nipple is more retracted, do you know?
A.  From this note I don't.
Q. How deep is th;‘retraction?
A It just says retracted, it doesn't give any

measurement as to depth.

Was that the question?
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1
2 Q. Well, I was going to ask that and thank vou for
3 gnticipatiﬁg my question. Sorwhere are the measurementsz?
4 . A. , I've never heard of measuring a nipple retraction.
5 Q. XQQ-iﬁst said measurement?
6 Objection.
7 THE WITNESS: I said I don't see any evidence
8 éf measurement, if that was your question.
9 Q. Why did you say that?
10 A. Because that was your question.
11 ' Q. Doctor, ifryou could listen to my question.
12 ' | Again, if you can't ansﬁer my question please
13 ﬂﬁéiirmé to rephrase it, I absoclutely will.
14 ggn ybﬁ tell me, please, what about the
15| areola complex, is that described here?
16 A, | The areola is not mentioned.
17 Q. Is there any description whatsoever of the areola
18 aéomplex? |
19 A. No, but as I ﬁentioned before --
20 Q. The answer is no. Thank you.
21| - ~ So now with respect to thelvisual picture of
22 what we've éot here frdm this October 1, 2010 hangwritten
23 statement, ybu don't have much other than nipple still
24 _retraéted, righf?
25 A Yes.
26 Q. That's not the way you would do it, right?
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Objection.
THE COURT: Susﬁained.
Q. S50 now, ieﬁ‘s go -~ oh, also it says here on the
bottom -- what does it say on the bottom?
A. The bottom of what?
Q. fhe bottom of the page, séarting the two lines

down on the bottom before the signature, do you know what
that says?
AL I will. Revision of nipple. Return to ofﬁice
Februéry 2011,
 Q. -ﬁo you think that it says I will?
A. I thought that's what the writing is. That's my

impression.

Q. Do you recall me asking Dr.'at her deposition

what it says, and theﬁ she told us what it says?

A. T don't recall that.
Q. Do you think that you being able to know what this

gays is important in order for vou to give testimony to this

,jury? )
A. | Well, I think my -- yes.
Q. And you don't know all tﬁe words?
A. It's revision of nipple. She's recommending the

revision of a nipple.

Q. Are you saying that she recommended the revision

of the nipple tof or her mother?
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B - by Defendant &S
That's what thié note indicates.
Good to you?

Yes.
Could you be wrong?

Objection.

Objection.
" THE COURT: Sustained.

- {Continued on next pagé.)

1051
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@k - by Defendant -~ Cross
Q. The nipple being one, fight? | o
AL Yes. |
.Q, What about-the other nipple?
obﬁe;tion.
THE COURT;' Overruled.
_Q. ﬁhat about the other nipple, Doctor?
A. It could be just the way she documents her record.
Q. You mean faulty?l
. “R. Gl objection.
MS . . Objection.
A. -I am not saying faulﬁy.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. VYou mean she made an error because she said it in
:the singular?
A.  No.

Q. You said that the nipple issue of retraction was

important, right?

A. Yes.
Q. You said it was conceraning, right?
"AL Yes. |
didn*t think much of the

Q. Did you know that Dr.

nipple retraction?

AL Well, she was observing the patient.
Q. It's a yes or no; do you know?
. A. . I can't answer that.
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i - by Defendant - Cross

- Doctor, --

I cannot answer that question.

Okay. 8o let’s read it. Let's'go to page 221.

MR. § Can you identify what you are

reading from?

MR. (i @@'s deposition, please.

Okay.

"Question: Is it corréct'to_say that you

f as set forth in the

September 30 2010 e-mail concerning, alsoco I can'‘t see

any nipple, i=s that normal?

"Answer: I did not specifically address

that, but she was telling me that the Steri;strips were
still on her, so I didn't think much of the fact that
éhe couldn't see her nipples at that time, and X
7£ﬁOught that, you know, if she thoughtAi didﬁ't
adequately answer her questions, she would e-mail me

back.™"

8o, did you hear me read that question and that
Now?
Yes.
Yes.

Do you understand that that is the testimony of
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- by Defendant - Cross

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. So mow it's important to you and it's
concerning to you, as you just testified, correct?

A Yes.

Q. But with regard to.Dr,ffﬂ“'"M' she didn*'t think
much of it? |
A. Wéll, she explains it in her answer that she had
Steri-strips applied_tq_the nipple areola comﬁlexzwénd it
was, as I interpret this, her sense that the Steri-strips
were camouflaging the inversion if it was four days later.
Q. Can y&hiplease assume the following: That Dr.
— teétified to this jury that the Steri-strips were
only‘on the incision, not over the ﬁipple; can you please
asgume that? Can you assume that, please?
7 A; Yes;

Q. So ﬁith regards to that, whether she pulls them
off and mavbe she bleeds or not, or the nipples are |
inverted, you agree with me that the nipple inversion,
rghraction; is much.more significantly important than
Sterimstr;és? Would yoﬁ agree with me?

. A. ﬁo, because --

0. Wouldryou agree with me? That's all I want to

know; yes or no?

AL No. No. No.

Q. To you the fact that whether or not the

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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e - by Déféndant - £
Steri-strips fall off of not or should fall off or not is
more important than retracted nipplg§; that's your
testimbny? - |
Al No.
Q. Ckay. Do you agree that it*s not your intent as a

plastic surgeon to have the nipples above a bra line?

A Correct.
Q. Okay. And if that -- when you were asked that
question --

MR . S - The photos are right in fromt
of her.

Tﬁank you SO much..

Q. With regard to the height of the nipples, would
yvou agree with me that theré's a rule of thumb that you
plastic surgeons follow which is if your nipples are just a
little 1OWer; it's gétter than being a little higher; would
you agree? )

A. Not necessarily.

Q. Well, Doctor, would you agree with me that in
order to lower the nipples then you are going to have scars
that are going toc be seen abéve the nipple areola complex,
and that‘*s why it's easier to move them up because then the

scars would be underneath the breast rather than moving them

dowﬁ; would vyou agree with me?

Form.

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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- by Defendant - Cross

THE COURT: I'll allow it.
0. With regard to the height of the nipple areola,
and you can see from the photographs there are two different

bras that are being used; you see that, xright?

A. I have to find that picture.

Q. One pink, one black. There are two pictures.
A. Yes.

Q. You have those two pictures in front of you?
A, Yez, yes.

Q. | Would you agree with'me that that is not the way
the nipples are supposed to be on a human being? Would you
agree with that?

‘.A. No.

Q. So what I heard you say though when Mr. {

' asked you was it could be because of the bra?

A. Yes.
Q. So, in other words, is it your testimony that what

b did was like put on a smaller sized bra to

push up her breasts in order to shove the nipple out so we

can take a picture of that to show to the jury; is that what

you are saying?

MR. § Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. When you are saying that the bra could do it, you

Terry-~Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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{54;5& Defendant - Cross

have two separate bras there, okay.

A, Yes.

0. 1$ét me ask you, Doctor, if we came into court, if
T had three bras, different bras, would that make a
difference to you?

'ﬁ&,' ‘No..

Q. If I had five differént bras, would that make a
difference ta you? -

| A That doesn't matter.
Q. How about this, how about if I came in here, into

court, and gave you 100 different pictures of a bra showing
the nipples above it, would that satisfy you?

MR.- Objection.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. Would that Sétisfy you?
" THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. If I had 100 pictures of 100 different bras with

her nipple above the bra line, would that satisfy you that
the height of the nipples are wrong?

ATTY objection.

THE COURT: Sustained.

T didn't hear that.

THE COURT: Sustained.

I am sorry, Judge.

Q. Now, so with regardrt0: _;"; you are saying the

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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1 Bl - by Defendant - Cross
2 héight of the nipples are fine?
30 A, Im Dr. @B - post-op picture they are.
4 beautiful. |
5 : VQ.' That's not my questioﬁ.
6| | A. I am saying they are fiﬁé,
7 Q. - I am asking you about -- the height of her mnipples
8| are fine? | |
9 , Objection. Asked and answered.
10 Q. -7 I didn't ask you about Dr. _
11 - THE COURT: Enough, please.
12 B o Ask your question.
13; Q. Is it your testimony to this jury that the height

14 of Mara'svhipples are fine?
15 "A. Yes.
16 Q. So you've had then other patients come to you with

17 their bra where their nipples are above the bra line?

18 " Objection.

19 _ ‘ THE COURT: Overruled.

20 . A. The bra is not part of the physical examination.
21 | -Q. That's not my questionf

224 THE COURT: But that's the answer that you

23 | got. Let's ask another question.

24 Q. -I am not asking you if the bra is part of the

25 physical examination.

26 g THE COURT: Ask another question, please.

Tarry—Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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- by Defendant - Cross
Q. What I am asking you is, please, YOur patients,
when they come in to see you, do they tell you, hey, Dr.

Moynahan, mf_nipples are above the bra line?

MR. § Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
Q. With regard to this particular procedure, would

you agree with me that there was a retraction of the nipple

areola complex-bh the right breast?

A. “Which picture are you referring to?

Q. I am not referring to any picture.

A, Yes.

Q; Would you also agree that there is an indentation

laterally along the inframammary fold of the left breast?

A Yes.

Q. unld'you agree with me that there was also
retraction of the nipple areoia complex of the left breast
with depression of the wﬁole nipple arecla complex?

A, Yes.

Q. Would you aléb agree with me that there is an
indentation inferolatefal of the left breast?

AL Yes. |

Q. Would you alsc agree with me that there was
irregular contour inferiorly of the xight breast and.tha
left breast?

A Yes.

- Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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F?~ by Defendant - Cross

Would you also agree with me that you have learned

that the outer side of both breasts are numb?

A. I remember hearing that, reading that,ryes.
Q. That's not supposed to happen,rright?
A. Well, it could happen.
0. Okay .
A. That's one of the risks of surgery.
- I can}t hear an answer.

THE COURT: That's one of the risks of
surgery. |
A. Loss of sensation.
0. You are'séying that's what you tell your patients?
A. That sensation is part of the discussion.
Q. éeqsation of the nipple?
A, And the entire operative sité.
Q. Okay. So that‘s what you tell your patiénts?
A. Yes.
Q. Because you know that can happeﬁ?
A fes.
Q. Sao, you‘ﬁnderstaﬁd though thaf ! has no

sensation in her nipples?

THE COURT: Since.
A Yeg. |
Q.

From the date of the surgery until today's date,

- you understand that?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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@ - by Defendant - Cross

AL Yes.

Q. You also understand that one of her complaints,
fou may disagrée, but one of her éomplaints is that her
nippies are too high?

A, Yes.
Q; - Now, that's nine separate things, would you agree
-with me,'that T just read to yoﬁ?
A. I‘wasn't'counting-
Q. I did. Iﬁ's nine separate things that you agreed

to that happened, and you agreed that they happened as a
resuit of this surgery, right?

A. Yes.

Q. I mean, these things, these nine things that I

have just mentioned, she didn't have before the surgery,

righﬁ? o "~
A. Yes.
0. And you understand, like what you said in yoﬁr

video, that a woman and her breasts, it's not just the fact
tﬁa£ yvou want to make them smaller, and you want to make
sure that she feels good about herself; would you agree?

A. -It's one of the goals, but this was a
reconstructive surgery so that -~

Q. Did you say reconstructive surgery?

A. Yes, breast reduction is a reconstructive surgery.

The patient had the surgery done because of significant

"Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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pliySical complaints.
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1062

So reconstructive, not reduction, reconstruction,

you are saying?

A
Q.
A-.

Q.

that

o,

Reduction is reconstruction.
Soc you use the words synonymously?
In this instance, yes.

Do you know if Dr. ‘ did?

MR. SRR Objection.

‘T don't know.

A

THE COURT: She doesn't know.
answer gstand.

So with regard to this undertaking,

I will let

would you

agree that when ybu take, undertake to operate on a woman's

yvou know, it's important to the patient, correct?

that

that

A.

.Q'.

A.

Q.

Yes.

Especially to ol ear old, correct?

Yes.

-breasts, that that is something that is wery important, and,

Right. And you make sure that each and every time

you, when you take this undertaking, that you make sure

you do it right; would you agree?

A.
Q.
A

Q.

Well, my goal --

To the best of your ability?

My goal is to do it to the best of my ability.

With your education, training and experience at

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, 0Official Coﬁrt Reporter
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- by Defendant - Direct {
Ehe'time that you do it, correct; Doctor?
A. Yes.

Thank you for'your tiﬁe; vour

Honor.

 Very, very short, your Homor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

By mR. (S

Q. When you got the records several years ago, and

‘then you and I had been speaking about the breast surgery,

and the standard of care, and the gquestions that T asked

you, as well as Mr. {jjilP. did vou assume that this was a

‘memory contest on your part as far as the particulars of the

visits and the ins and outs of the notations?

MR. Ohjeétion.
THE COURT: Sustained. Leading.
Q. When you review a case like this in relationship

to retaining—all fhe, let me say, particulars or nuances of
things, how do you review a case with that focus on the
particulars, I don't mean the surgery, I mean the incidental
things he is asking you about? |

A. Well, I had to pay attention ﬁo whaﬁ the
c0mp1ain£s are of the patient and focus on that.

Q. Let me ask you, the nine thihgsy the last one was
thé height of the nipéles, the numbness, the nipple

retraction, for all the time it lasted, from August 25th,

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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gk - by Defendant - Direct i

August 31st, up until finally the resolution of that after
January of 2012 with Dr. il . did all of those eight or
nine things in your opinion require revision?

b - Objection.

THE COURT: | sﬁstained.

Q. Doctor, what Qas the neceséity for revision in
this case given the breast reduction that happened? Why wés
this pérson a revise candidate?

A. To improve the appearance of the breast.

Q. Now, éounsel asked you about the e-mails, the
August 31 situation, the October 10th, and the --

MR. CEEEE): 2 What's the mattexr?

MR . G

It's leading.
THE COURT: No, no, no. He is giving a
foundation for his question.

Q. Counsgel asked you about the e-mails, the first

'pbstoperative visit, the October 1, where the computer was

down and the doctor is using her handwriting, and the
January. January was from August, September, Octcber,
November, December,-roughly four months and two-and-a-half
or three weeks until January 11, not even six months.
According to proper practice, should this patient
be operated upon for whatever revision she needs within that
sho;t period of time according to the standard of care, in

your opinion?

Terry-Ann Volberg, CSR, CRR, Official Court Reporter
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Proceedings
Oﬁjection.

THE COURT: I:11 allow it.
A No.
Q. Why not?
A, Because the wound is still healing, the fibrosis

is ongoing, the collagen is remodeling. It would be cutting

into cement;'you couldn't mobilize the tissue to affect a
proper repair.

I have nothing further.

Thank you, Doctor.

MS. S No questions.

Thank you, your Honor.

No questions by me.

THE COURT: Thank you.

You can step down.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, your Honor.
(Witness excused.)

§. on behalf of pr. GE

THE COURT: Mr.

do you have other witnesses?

I do.not.

THE COURT: Do you rest?

I could say that I want to

spend some time, but I want to rest.

THE COURT: On behalf of

Your Honor, I have no witnesses

Terry-Ann Volberg, (SR, CRR, 0fficial Court Reporter
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Impeachment of someone who has made a
prior statement inconsistent with his trial
testimony.

Q. Sir, you testified on direct that you saw that
the light was red for my client, true?

A. True.

Q. You have no doubt about that?

A. Correct.

Q: In fact, you have a specific recollection as
you sit here now of the color of the light?

Now let the jury know that something is awry.
Let them know that the battleground has been
set:

Q. Sir that wasn't always your position, was it?

A. Yes it was.

Q. Isn't it a fact that you never, ever saw the
color of that light?

A. No it is not.

Now, establish the existence of that prior
statement:

Q. You spoke to an investigator on the day of
the accident, true?

A. True.

Q. You told him you never saw the color of the
light, correct?

A. No.

Q. He was writing down notes as you were
talking, wasn't he?

A. Yes

Q. He prepared a statement as to what you said,

right?

It is very important that you next establish the
accuracy of the statement:

Q. You signed that statement didn't you?
A. Yes.

Q. You were aware of the importance of that
statement, weren't you?

A. Yes.

Q. You read it before you signed it, true?
A. True.

Q. You checked it for accuracy, right?
A. Right.

Q. It was accurate, true?

A. True.

Q. You would never sign a statement that
wasn't accurate, would you?

A. No.

Now, have the document marked for
identification. Ask to approach the witness, and
drive your point home:

Q. I show you this document marked as
plaintiff's one for identification and ask you,
isn't it true that on the date of the accident you
said you didn't see the color of the light?

A. Yes.

Q. There is no question about that, right?




-
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A. Right.

Notice the total control you can have over the
witness. There was no room for him to explain
away the inconsistency. You did not even have
to offer the document into evidence. This is
particularly important where the statement has
additional information which hurts your case.
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SUMMATIONS IN A CIVIL CASE: PIECES OF THE PUZZLE

By Jesus M. Zeno, Esq.

Summation is trial counsel's last opportunity to convey to the jury the facts
of the case in such a way that the verdict will be rendered in his client's favor. An
outline of the summation should be made before the note of issue is filed. In
some cases, the closing arguments may be outlined at the time the investigation of
the case is completed and prior to the commencement of the action. Creating an
outline to the closing argument at the inception of the case will allow you to better
prepare your case, your witnesses and better conduct depositions. In addition, the
outline will facilitate trial counsel's presentation of the evidence during trial. And,
it will enable counsel to put together all of the pieces of the case in a succinct and
clear fashion during summation.

The outline should have a beginning, middle and an end. Each of these
parts may be modified as the trial moves along without drastically changing the
gist of the argument. The beginning should address the key conflicts (comparative
negligence compared to no negligence) or (causally related injuries compared to
an exacerbation of a prior latent condition). The middle part of the outline must
point to each testimony, pleading, photo, video or document that relates to the
strength of the client's case. However, do not forget to address any alleged
weaknesses in the evidence. Use the evidence to perform the balancing test by

explaining the problems in the case against the strengths of the case. Try to
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diminish its effect on the case in chief. Thus, the strength of the case must
outweigh any alleged weakness inferred by the proof. However, do not spend too
much time explaining the bad evidence because the jury may forget the strength
of your case. The end of the outline should contain catch phrases that relate to the
evidence and strength of the case. The intent is for the jury to remember the
phrases during the deliberation. The phrases should be tided into the facts in
evidence that are highly likely to support the party's contentions.

Deliver your outline to the jury as objectively as possible with the
evidence in support thereof. Do not express your opinion. The end result should
be that the jury believes that trial counsel presented the truth in an objective and
fair way.

In addition, utilize the interrogatories that the jury will read and answer
during deliberation. Marshal the facts in your outline to each question that the jury
has to answer. For example, in the attached interrogatory, | read the question
" Was the Defendant Peralte Bros., Inc. negligent ?" to the jury and recommended
that the answer should be "Yes" because the landlord replaced a steady light in the
staircase with a sensor light in direct violation of the New York State Buildings
Department Code which requires that a light be illuminating the staircase 24 hours
a day seven days a week where no windows are available. The landlord's actions
also created a hazardous condition because the sensor light did not remain on long

enough to allow the plaintiff to complete her walk down the staircase in the
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predawn hours on her way to work. Thus, it was also the proximate cause of the
accident. This was a simple and concise way to tell the jury the defendant's
negligence was the proximate cause of the accident. The jury rendered a liability
verdict in favor of my client.

The use of the interrogatories during summation will allow the jury to
better understand how to answer each question regardless of its degree of
difficulty. The jury will appreciate the way trial counsel marshals the evidence in
arriving at the answer to each question and will likely render a verdict in favor of
your client. In conjunction with the interrogatories, use language of the law that
the judge will charge the jury. If jury charge PJI 2:77, Duty Towards Others, will
be made to the jury, you may use similar language in your summation without
charging the law to the jury. For example, you may say that the defendant driver
failed to see the other vehicle that was already in the intersection immediately
before the accident.

More importantly, maintain as much eye contact with the panel as
possible. Refer to but do not read from your outline. If you read from your
outline, you will not maintain any connection with the jury; the summation will
not be conversational and will not be fluid. Trial counsel must demonstrate
knowledge of the evidence, confidence, a sense of comfort and passion when

presenting the truth to the jury. Instead of the outline, use the deposition transcript
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to point out the strength in your case or a problem with the adverse party's proof.
Use the pictures, videos and documents to support your outline.

On April 4, 2017, the Court of Appeals held that a party is not deprived of
a fair trial if the adverse party during summation utilizes PowerPoint slides of the
evidence. See, People v. Anderson, 29 N.Y.3d 69 [2017]. The court held that a
visual demonstration during summation is evaluated in the same manner as an
oral statement. The PowerPoint "slides depicting an already admitted photograph,
with captions accurately tracking prior... testimony, might reasonably be regarded
as relevant and fair ...commentary on the ....evidence, and not simply an appeal
to the jury's emotions”. I1d. The Court held that when the jury has been properly
instructed by the trial judge that what the lawyers say during summation is not
evidence and that in finding the facts the jury must consider only the evidence, the
PowerPoint slides can be used. Id. Although the Anderson case was a criminal
trial, the decision also applies to civil cases.

Trial counsel can use the Power Point slide to prove to the jury that the
defendant was negligent. The Power Point slides will allow the jury to understand
the depth, width, height and length of the defect to decide on the question of
constructive notice- negligence. See, Taylor v. New York City Transit Authority,
48 N.Y.2d 903[1979]. Each department of the Appellate Division has consistently
followed the decision of the Court of Appeals in the Taylor case that a triable

question of fact on the issue of constructive notice exists that can only be
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determined by the jury when a photograph of the defect that was taken at or near

the time of the accident is submitted. The rationale is that a jury can infer how

long the defect existed prior to the happening of the accident. See, Salvia v.
Happauge, 47 A.D. 3d 791 [2d Dept 2008]; Sotomayor v. Pafos Realty, LLC, 43
A.D.3d 905[2d Dep't 2007]; Degruccio v. 863 Jericho Turnpike Corp., 1 A.D.3d
472 [2d Dept 2003]; Leventhal v. Forest Hills Gardens Corp., 308 A.D.2d 434
[2d Dept 2003]; Degiacomo v. Westchester County Healthcare Corporation, et.
al., 295 A.D.2d 395 [2d Dept 2002]; Atkins v. Francesca Realty Associates, 238
A.D.2d 457 [2d Dept 1997]; Farrar v. Teichol, 173 A.D.2d 674[2d Dept 1991];
Ferlito v. Great South Bay Associates, 140 A.D.2d 408[2d Dept 1988]; Calderon
v. Noonan Towers Community LLC, 33 A.D.3d [1st Dept 2006]; Karten v.
Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc., 109 A.D.2d 126[1* Dept 1986];
Moons v. Wade Lupe Constr., Inc, 24 A.D.3d 1005[3" Dept, 2005]; Kniffin v.
Thruway Food Markets, Inc., 177 A.D.2d 920 [3" Dept 1991]; Reardon v.
Benderson Development Co., 266 A.D.2d 869 [4th Dept 1999].

Place all of your proof in power point software as soon as you obtain them
before trial.

The style trial counsel utilizes varies according to his or her personality
and level of comfort. The novice should shadow a trial counsel who has similar
personality and a style that is of interest to you. Preside as a judge in Mock Trial

Competitions or develop your own style as you go along, The important factor to
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remember is that you put together the pieces of the puzzle in a cohesive and clear
way in order obtain a verdict in favor of your client. However, regardless of the
style trial counsel exercises, counsel should be completely aware of the do's and
don'ts of summation. Otherwise, a mistrial, violation of the Code of Professional
Responsibility, contempt of court or a reversal on appeal will be the likely result.

RULES TO KNOW AND ADHERE TO

Wide latitude is given to trial counsel in presenting arguments to the jury
during summation. See, Acosta v. City of New York, 153 A.D.3d 765 [2d Dept
2017]. The Court in Acosta held that during summation, an attorney "remains
within the broad bounds of rhetorical comment in pointing out the insufficiency

and contradictory nature of a plaintiff's proof' without depriving the plaintiff of a
fair trial”. /d. [Citing, See, Selzer v. New York City Tr. Auth., 100 A.D.3d 157,

163 [1st Dept 2012].

In fact, trial counsel can comment to the jury that the defendant did not
prove that the plaintiff was negligent. Likewise, defense counsel can say that the
evidence did not demonstrate any fault on the part of the defendant. Similarly,
either party may comment on the percentage of fault of a party. Thus, counsel
may properly make comments concerning the evidence provided that the
comments do not deprive the adversary of a fair trial and the comments are not

intended to distract or falsely sway the jury away from the truth.
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In addition, trial counsel may comment on the value of the plaintiff's
injuries provided that the court makes curative instructions to the jury as specified
in C.P.L.R. § 4016 (b) (1-3).

However, counsel is forbidden to mention anything concerning insurance
coverage for the accident in question if the purpose of the comment is for the jury
to find the party liable. See, Peters v. Wallis, 135 A.D.3d 922 [2d Dept 2016];
Grogan, et. al. v. Nizam, et. al., 66 A.D.3d 734 [2d Dept 2009]; Alben v. Mid-
Hudson Medical Group, P.C., 31 A.D.3d 471 [2d Dept 2006].

Comments of insurance during summation can be made by trial counsel
provided that proof of insurance is in evidence for the purpose of demonstrating
ownership and control of the instrumentality or to prove bias, motive or interest
on the part of the IME physician. See, Dominicci v. Ford, et. al, 119 A.D.3d 1360
[4th Dept 2014] [Citing, Salm v. Moses, 13 N.Y.3d 816, 818 [2009]. A case by
case basis approach is made by the trial court in allowing counsel to comment on
insurance. Thus, unless it is absolutely necessary for the insurance information to
be disclosed during trial, you can be setting yourself up for an appeal and a
reversal of the verdict. See, Peters, Supra at 923.

More importantly, a thin line exists between prosecuting or defending a
case zealously for your client and violating the court rules, the canons of ethics or
the code of professional responsibility. See, Smith v. Rudolph, 151 A.D.3d 58 [1st

Dept 2017]. In Smith, the defense counsel engaged in conduct that deprived the
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plaintiff of a fair trial. The Appellate Court began its opinion by stating "We will
admire the work of an advocate who performs his or her duties with competence
and diligence on behalf of a client. Competent and diligent representation,
however, does not mean a lawyer should strive to "win™ a case at all cost, if that
means harming adversaries and their clients unreasonably and unnecessarily in
the process and undermining the authority and integrity of the court.” 1d. at 58.
The Court in Smith affirmed the trial court's decision to set aside the verdict and
grant the plaintiff a new trial although the jury returned a liability verdict of 70%
against the defendant and 30 % against the plaintiff.

The Court held that the fact that the jury returned a liability verdict against
the defendant did not cure defense counsel's misconduct, which constituted
fundamental error that deprived the plaintiff of substantial justice and likely
affected the verdict. Id. The Court emphasized the more egregious conduct of
defense counsel included denigration of two doctors that treated the plaintiff for
the injuries she sustained in the accident. Defense counsel made unsupported
assertions that the doctors provided unnecessary treatment as part of a
moneymaking conspiracy; defense counsel's assertions of his personal view
that the plaintiff was pursuing the lawsuit only because she wanted to *‘take the
rest of her life off'* were also egregious. Id. The Court held that defense
counsel's denigration of plaintiff's witnesses and unsupported inflammatory

comments throughout the trial appear to have been calculated to influence the jury



417

by considerations which were not legitimately before them and cannot be
dismissed as inadvertent, thoughtless or harmless. Id.

In Sanchez v. Manhattan and Bronx Surface Transit Operating Authority,
170 A.D.2d 402 [1st Dept 1991], the conduct of the defense counsel during
summation swayed the jury to render a defense verdict. The Appellate Court
reversed the verdict and ordered a new trial because of the improper conduct of
the defense counsel. Counsel for the defendant referred to MABSTOA as "we"'
and "us’ and in summation referred to the defendant's case as "my side of the
story™ which placed her own credibility on the side of her client and made herself
an unsworn witness. 1d. [Citing, Caraballo v. City of New York, 86 AD2d 580 [1st
Dept 1982]. Defense counsel also characterized the plaintiff's case as a "bunch
of crock, ""bunch of bunk" and "hogwash™'. Defense counsel further referred to
the plaintiff's medical expert as "Here comes Howie" and misstated that the
expert had his privileges at New York Hospital revoked.

In Chappotin v. City of New York, et. al., 90 A.D.3d 425, 426 [1st Dept
2011], Iv denied, 19 N.Y.3d 808 [2011], the trial granted the plaintiff's motion to
set aside the verdict. Justice Friedman held that defense counsel's entire
summation was "suffused with improper and highly prejudicial remarks™ whose
purpose was to prejudice the jury against the plaintiff. Id. Defense counsel's
references to plaintiffs ""playing the system' and being on disability benefits so

contaminated the trial as to deprive the plaintiff of a fair trial. 1d.
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Trial counsel may not bolster his case by accusing the witness of being a
"liar". Gregware v. City of New York, 132 A. D.3d 51 [1st dept 2015]. Counsel
cannot engage in an unfair and highly prejudicial attack upon the credibility of the
adverse party's witness or attorney. See, Berkowitz v. Merriott Corp., 163 A.D.2d
52, 53-54 [1st Dept 1990]. In Berkowitz a new trial was ordered because defense
counsel repeatedly referred to the plaintiff's experts as "hired guns” brought in to
"fluff up the case". 1d.

However, the court in Gregware held that although some of the comments
made by plaintiff's counsel were highly inflammatory, they did not create a
climate of hostility that ""so obscured the issues as to have made the trial unfair".
Gregware, Supra at 61-62. The court further held that although referring to the
defense witnesses as *'liars" was highly improper, the remarks were isolated and
constituted "fair comment on the evidence" and the "cumulative effect" of the
remarks did not deprive the defendant of a fair trial. Id.

PRESERVE THE RIGHT TO SET ASIDE THE VERDICT OR TO

APPEAL.

During summation, trial counsel should preserve the right to set aside the
jury verdict or to appeal by objecting to any improper comments made by the
adversary. The objection should be made immediately after the improper
comment is made with the request to the Court to make a curative instruction to

the jury. The objection must be made regardless of the magnitude of the improper
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comment. The failure to make a timely objection may result in a verdict that will
be sustained by the Appellate Court.

In Chappotin v. City of New York, et. al., 2010 N.Y. Slip Op 31845(U)
[Sup. Ct., New York County, July 9, 2010], the trial court granted the plaintiff's
motion to set aside the verdict. Justice Friedman held that defense counsel's
entire summation was "suffused with improper and highly prejudicial remarks"
whose purpose was to prejudice the jury against the plaintiff. I1d. Defense
counsel's references to plaintiffs "*playing the system' and being on disability
benefits so contaminated the trial as to deprive the plaintiff of a fair trial. 1d.

However, the appellate court reversed the decision of the trial court and
reinstated the verdict. See, Chappotin v. City of New York, et. al, 90 A.D.3d
425,426 [1* Dept 2011], Iv denied, 19 N.Y.3d 808[2011]. The Appellate Court in
Choppotim held “plaintiff failed to object to 13 of the 15 comments of which he
now complains™....” Plaintiff failed to preserve his objections and the verdict
should be reinstated™. 1d.

Justice Manzanet-Daniel’s dissent states “Given the egregious nature of
the remarks, however, | believe that this Court should reach the issue in the
interest of justice”. The dissent further stated defense counsel’s remarks were not
isolated, but constituted a “seemingly continual and deliberate effort to divert the

jurors’ and the court’s attention from the issues to be determined” Id.
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The Chappotin case is a textbook example of what will happen to trial
counsel if he or she fails to object to improper comments made by the adversary
during summation. Although the trial court may grant counsel’s motion to set
aside the verdict, the appellate court may reverse the decision. Do not let this
happen to you.

Counsel should keep in mind that the purpose of summation is not to make
improper comments to the jury but to clarify to the jury the issues presented and
marshal the important facts from the evidence in a logical and persuasive manner.

IMPROPER COMMENTS

The following are examples of an improper comment or improper conduct
of counsel during summation that should be timely objected to on the record.
1. Race- Dunne v. Lemberg, 54 A.D.2d 955[2d Dept 1976], appeal denied, 40
N.Y.2d 809 [1971].
2. Nationality- Reyes v. Arthur Tickle Eng Works, Inc, 2 A.D.2d 703[2d Dept
1956], aff'd , 3 N.Y.2d 837 [1957].
3. Religion. Giuamara v. O' Donnell, 96 A.D.2d 1049 [2d Dept 1983].
4. Personal knowledge or opinion of attorney. Rule 3.4 (d) of the Rules of
Professional Conduct;. Doody v. Gottshall, 67 A.D.3d 1347 [4th Sept 2009].
5. References to facts not in evidence. Rule 3.4 (d)(1) of the Rules of
Professional Conduct;. Stewart v. Olean Med Group, P.C., 17 A.D.3d 1094 [4th

Dept 2005].
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6. Appealing to the jury's sympathy. People v. Holiday, 142 A.D.3d 625 [2d
Dept 2016].

7. Attacks on any witness. Smith v. Rudolph, 151 A.D.3d 58 [1* Dept 2017];
Maraviglia v. Lokshina, 92 A.D.3d 924 [2d Dept 2012].

8, Attacks on adverse party. McArdle v. Hurley, 51 A.D.3d 741 [2d Dept 2008].
9. Attacks on opposing counsel. Pareja v. City of New York, 49 A.D.3d 470
[1st Dept 2008].

10. Calling a juror by the juror's name. People v. Creasy , 236 N.Y. 205
[1923].

11. Insurance. Peters v. Wallis, 135 A.D.3d 922 [2d Dept 2016].

12. Making speaking objections: Smith v. Rudolph, 151 A.D.3d 58 [1* Dept

2017].

CONCLUSION

The purpose of summation is not to make improper comments to the jury
but to clarify to the jury the issues presented and marshal the important facts from
the evidence in a logical and persuasive manner.

Use the evidence to tell the jury what the case is about and why the jury
should render a verdict in favor of your client. Although trial counsel has wide
latitude in connecting the pieces of the puzzle to the jury, trial counsel should

know the comments that are improper and maintain your summation within the
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defined latitude. Make timely objections to the opposing counsel's improper
comment to preserve your client's right to a new trial or right to a reversal of the
verdict on appeal. Also, respond to any objections that opposing counsel may
make during your summation in order to prevent a reversal of the verdict or a new
trial. Use your outline.

Delivery is just as crucial as trial counsel's style. A strong and effective

delivery will produce greater and better results.
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF QUEENS

MARIA ESTELLA HERRERA and GABRIEL HERRERA
Plaintiffs,
-against-

PLAINTIFF’S JURY
QUESTIONS

INDEX #: 23493/08
PERALTE BROS. ASSOCIATES, INC and “JOHN DOE”

Defendants.

We, the undersigned jurors in the above-entitled action concur and answer
the following questions in accordance with the instructions of the Court herein
mentioned, and report our verdict as hereafter set forth:

1. Was the defendant Peralte Bros. Associates, Inc. negligent?

Yes NO
At least five jurors must answer to the above question.

Juror#1 Juror # 4

Juror # 2 Juror#5

Juror # 3 Juror # 6
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I, the undersigned juror do not concur in the above:

If your answer is “NO” skip to question “3”

If your answer is “Yes”, proceed to the next question.

2. Was the negligence of Peralte Bros. Associates, Inc a cause of the accident?

Yes NO

At least five jurors must answer to the above question.

Juror# 1 Juror # 4
Juror # 2 Juror#5
Juror # 3 Juror # 6

I, the undersigned juror do not concur in the above:

PROCEED TO THE NEXT QUESTION.

3. Was the plaintiff Maria Herrera negligent?

Yes NO

At least five jurors must answer to the above question.
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Juror#1 Juror # 4
Juror # 2 Juror#5
Juror # 3 Juror # 6

I, the undersigned juror do not concur in the above:

If your answer is “NO” and your answer to questions “1” and “2” is yes go to
question “5”,

If your answer is “Yes”, proceed and answer question 4.

4. Was the negligence of the plaintiff Maria Herrera a cause of the accident?
Yes NO

At least five jurors must answer to the above question.

Juror#1 Juror # 4
Juror # 2 Juror#5
Juror # 3 Juror # 6

I, the undersigned juror do not concur in the above:

If your answer is “YES to both questions “1” & “2” and/or if your answer is
“YES” to both questions “3” & “4”, PROCEED TO THE NEXT QUESTION

Otherwise, REPORT TO THE COURT
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5. What is the percentage of fault to the defendants?

Defendant Peralte Bros. Associates, Inc. %
Plaintiff Maria Herrera %
Total Must Equal 100%

At least five jurors must answer to the above question.

Juror# 1 Juror # 4
Juror # 2 Juror#5
Juror # 3 Juror # 6

I, the undersigned juror do not concur in the above:

REPORT YOUR VERDICT TO THE COURT

Dated: Brooklyn, NY
June 1, 2010

Respectfully Submitted,

Jesus M. Zeno, P.C.
Attorney for the Plaintiff
53 5™ Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11217
(718) 636-1600
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WILLIAM PAGEN, ESQ.
BIOGRAPHY

William Pagan is a 1987 graduate of the St. John's University School of Law. He obtained in
undergraduate degree from Fordham University in 1984. He was admitted to the New Y ork Bar in
1988.

He is admitted to practice in the Federal Southern and Eastern District Courts of New Y ork and
has been admitted pro hac vice to the United States District Court for the Districts of Puerto Rico
and Hawaii, as well as New Jersey Superior Court. His professional memberships include the
Puerto Rican Bar Association, American Association for Justice, New York State Trial Lawyers
Association, New York County Lawyers Association, New York City Bar Association, and the
Bronx, Kings, Queens and New York County Bar Associations as well as the Dominican Bar
Association.

He's a member of The Pagan Law Firm, P.C. and has accumulated over twenty-five years
experiencein trying highly complex medical malpractice cases, seriousinjuries from construction,
lead paint poisoning, municipal premise and general accident cases in State and Federal court in
all boroughs of the City of New Y ork, statewide in New Y ork and pro hac vice nationwide.

He'samember of The National Trial Lawyers, “Top 100 Trial Lawyers.”
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HEATHER M. PALMORE, ESQ.
BIOGRAPHY

In 20 years of practicing in New York, Heather has established herself as a solid trial
attorney, having tried cases throughout the New York metropolitan area. She has tried
over 100 cases throughout her career and has had favorable verdicts during her tenure.
She has tried high exposure cases in the following areas: construction/Labor Law,
auto, commercial premises, property, and discrimination claims. Most recently, she
obtained a defense verdict in Kings County against a nationally known plaintiff’s
firm, after a three week trial. She began her career in the Queens County District
attorney’s office, where she quickly rose through the ranks as a trial attorney, trying
and obtaining convictions in some of the most difficult cases to prosecute, including
homicide, sexual battery, robbery and assault cases. Heather was a partner for a
number of years at Conway, Farrell, Curtin & Kelly, P.C. before joining CNA as a
Senior Litigation Attorney.

Awards: Elsie Van Buren Award for Public Speaking-Cornell University Top 40
Under 40 Awardee, Drum Major Award, Long Island Business News Top 50 Women
in Business, New York School Board Association Awardee.

Juris Doctor: Syracuse University College of Law, 1995, with Distinction (Dean’s List,
Moot Court);

Bachelor of Science: Cornell University, 1992 with Honors (Dean’s List, Ford
Mellon Scholar — Yale University)

Admitted: New York 1995; U.S. District Courts (2000)

Member: New York State Bar, New York State School Boards Association
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HONORABLE SHAWNDYA L. SIMPSON
BIOGRAPHY

Kings County Supreme Court
320 Jay Street
Brooklyn, NY 11201
(347) 296-1081

Judicial Offices
Justice, Supreme Court, Kings County, Elected, 2017 to 2030
Acting Justice, Supreme Court, Kings County, Appointed by Chief Administrative Judge, 2011; Re-appointed 2014-2016

Judge, Criminal Court of the City of New York, New York County, Designated by Chief Administrative Judge Ann Pfau, 2004
to 2013

Judge, Civil Court of the City of New York, New York County, Elected, 2004 to 2013; Re-elected, 2014 to 2016
Other Professional Experience

Kings County District Attorney's Office

NYS Unified Court System, Court Attorney

Admission to the Bar

NYS, Appellate Division, Second Department, 1991

Education

J.D., University of Pittsburgh School of Law
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HONORABLE CARMEN ST. GEORGE
BIOGRAPHY

New York County Supreme Court
80 Centre Street
New York, NY 10013
(646) 386-4613

Judicial Offices

Judge, Court of Claims, Appointed by Governor Andrew Cuomo, 2017 to 2023

Acting Justice, Supreme Court, New York County, Designated by Chief Administrative Judge Lawrence Marks, 2017 to
Present

Other Professional Experience

Weitz & Luxenberg, P.C, Associate, 2014 to 2017

Levy Phillips & Konigsberg LLP, Associate, 2003 to 2014

Queens County District Attorneys Office, Assistant District Attorney, 1997 to 2003
Admission to the Bar

NYS, Appellate Division, Second Department, 1998

United States Supreme Court, 2010

United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, 2010

United States District Court, Eastern and Southern Districts of New York, 2002
Supreme Court of New Jersey, 1999

Supreme Court of New York, 1998

Education

J.D., Fordham University School of Law, 1997

B.S., St. John's University, 1993

Professional & Civic Activities

Member, Hispanic National Bar Association

Member, Long Island Hispanic Bar Association

Member, Nassau County Bar Association

Member, New York State Bar Association

Member, Hellenic Lawyers Association

Commissioner, Nassau County Commission on Human Rights, 2004 to 2008

Legal Analyst/Legal Commentator on various TV networks, 2001 to 2016
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PETER S. THOMAS, ESQ., P.C.
BIOGRAPHY

CAREER PROFILE:
Peter is a highly talented, skilled and knowledgeable attorney with 24 years

experience in both civil and criminal law with a demonstrated track record of
providing unmatchable legal service. Peter has over 375 combined Civil and
Criminal jury trials to verdict in the Supreme, Civil and Criminal courts of the
City and State of New York to his credit. Peter recently secured a $13.5 Million
dollar verdict in a wrongful death case in Queens County. Peter is an expert in all
aspects of Trial Practice, Personal Injury Litigation, Labor Law, Medical
Malpractice, Criminal Defense, Commercial Litigation, Evidence and Appeals.
Peter has outstanding research and documentation skills. He is adept at
investigating complaints, preparing responses, trial notebooks and interviewing
potential clients and witnesses. With particular skills in evaluating the
appropriate value of a case, preparing court documents, marked pleadings, jury
charges, verdict sheets, memos of law and subpoena requests, he is always

prepared. Peter has excellent presentation and communication skills.

EDUCATION:
J.D. - C.U.N.Y at Queens College, 1992
B.A.-S.UN.Y at Stony Brook, 1989

PROFESSIONAL LICENSES:

State Bar of New York, 1993

State Bar of Connecticut, 1993

Federal District Court - Eastern District of New York, 1995
Federal District Court - Southern District of New York, 1995

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:
American Bar Association

Association of Trial Lawyers of America
Board of Directors of the Brandies Association
New York State Trial Lawyers Association
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New York State Bar Association
Queens County Bar Association
Queens County Bar Association Judiciary Committee

AREAS OF PRACTICE:

Personal Injury Litigation, Plaintiff and Defense
Medical Malpractice Litigation, Plaintiff

Labor Law

Products Liability

Criminal Defense

Commercial Litigation

Family Law

Contract Law

Real Estate

Per Diem of counsel to more than 40 different law firms

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:
1995 - Present Law Offices of Peter S. Thomas, P.C.,
108-18 Queens Blvd., Forest Hills, NY 11375,
1993 - 1995 Law Offices of Rubenstein & Flatow,
16 Court Street, Brooklyn, NY 11241

CLE SEMINARS TAUGHT AT QUEENS COUNTY BAR ASSOCIATION:
Jury Selection in a Civil Case

Trying Liability and Damages in a Motor Vehicle Accident Case

Trying Liability and Damages in a Trip/Slip and Fall Case

Nuts and Bolts of a Civil Trial

Digging Up Dirt on your Adversary’s Witnesses

LECTURES:

Lectures on starting and maintaining a solo practice given at CUNY Law School
at Queens College, Cardozo Law School, New York Law School and Hofstra Law
School.

Additional Skills:
Oral and written fluency in English, French, and Spanish
Windows, WordPerfect, PowerPoint, Word, Westlaw, Lexis-Nexus, and Excel
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MICHAEL C. TROMELLO, ESQ.

TROMELLO, MCDONNELL & KEHOE

EMPLOYMENT:

CNA Insurance:

Director/Managing Trial Attorney — CNA - Méelville Staff Counsel (2001 to Present)

| supervise and direct all aspects of insurance defense litigation from pleadings through trials and appeals for CNA and its
insureds. Our team presently consists of 11 attorneys, 3 paralegals and 7 support staff. We are defending approximately
650 tort cases and 350 WC cases venued in Queens, Nassau and Suffolk Counties. 1n addition, we prosecute
approximately 75 subrogation cases per year.

Director/Managing Trial Attorney —CNA - New York City Staff Counsel (1996 to 2001)

| supervised and directed all aspects of insurance defense litigation from pleadings through trials and appeals for CNA and
itsinsuredsin New Y ork City. Our team once consisted of 28 attorneys and 14 support staff. We defended approximately
1600 tort cases venued in New Y ork, Kings and Richmond Counties.

Director/Managing Trial Attorney — CNA - Syracuse Staff Counsel (1992 to 1996)

In addition to handling an individual tort case load of over 200 cases, | supervised and directed all aspects of insurance
defense litigation from pleadings through trials and appeals for CNA and itsinsuredsin all countiesin "Upstate” NY'.
(North of Rockland Co.) Our team consisted of 4 attorneys and 3 support staff.

Senior Trial Attorney - CNA - Long Island East Staff Counsel (1988 to 1992)

Asa Senior Trial Attorney, | was responsible for all aspects of insurance defense litigation from pleadings through trials
and appeals. | regularly handled 125 to 150 tort cases and 40 to 50 premium collection cases. | was responsible for all
large subrogation cases and monitored subrogation cases assigned to other staff attorneys. In conjunction with the
Managing Attorney, | developed a manual to assist in the processing of large volumes of Affirmative Litigation.
(Subrogation & Premium Collections)

New York State Attorney General (1987 to 1988)

Asthe Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Civil Prosecutions Bureau for Suffolk County, | conducted and
supervised civil litigation on behalf of NY Sto collect money owed from individuals, insurance companies, private
agencies, estates, vendors, outside laboratories and hospitals. | trained and coordinated the efforts of a unit of 12
individuals (attorneys, paralegals and support staff); prepared and monitored the unit's budget and submitted periodic
reports on the unit's activities to the NY S Attorney General.

Office of the District Attorney, Queens County (1983 to 1987)

Asan Assistant District Attorney, | was assigned to the Supreme Court Trial Bureau where | conducted over 30 felony jury
trialsto verdict. | conducted all related pre-trial hearings and non-jury trials. Other assignments included the Criminal
Court and Grand Jury Bureaus.

The City University of New York (CUNY) (1975 to 1983)

Asthe Assistant Director for Governmental Relations, my primary responsibility was to provide the Director with written
memoranda on Federal, State and Municipal legislative proposals concerning education, labor, civil rights, pensions, torts,
and contracts. Other responsibilities included assisting in the development and implementation of legidative strategy and
acting as the unit's liaison to the Chancellor, his Cabinet, the 18 CUNY College Presidents and the Student Organization
representing the University’ s 160,000 students. In addition, | prepared and monitored the unit's annual budget and handled
all administrative matters for the unit’ s multiple offices which were located in Albany, Washington, D.C., & NYC.

Education: B.A., Political Science, Queens College (1974)
M.S., Urban Affairs & Administration, Hunter College (1978)
J.D., New York Law School (1982)

Bar Admissions.  New York State - Appellate Division, 1st Department (1983)
U.S. District Court - Southern and Eastern Districts (1987)
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THOMAS P. VALET, ESQ.
BIOGRAPHY

Thomas P. Valet practices with the Long Island based firm, Rappaport, Glass, Levine &
Zullo, LLP. Before joining RGLZ in 2017, Tom was a founding member of the
Rheingold, Valet law firm, where he practiced for more than 30 years.

The majority of Tom’s legal career has been devoted to representing plaintiffs in
medical malpractice and mass tort cases. Tom is the Past President of the Trial Lawyers
Section of the New York State Bar Association and continues to serve on its Executive
Committee. He is a current Officer of the New York State Trial Lawyers Association.
Tom also served for many years on the Special Committee on Medical Malpractice for
the New York City Bar Association, on which he served as Chair for three years.

Tom graduated from Hofstra Law School in 1985 and lives on Long Island with his
family, including two sons who are lawyers practicing in New York.
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HONORABLE MICHELLE WESTON
BIOGRAPHY

Justice Michelle Weston is an Associate Justice of the Appellate Term for the Second,
Eleventh, and Thirteenth Judicial Districts. In addition to hearing appeals at the Appellate
Term, Justice Weston presides over medical malpractice trials in New York State Supreme
Court. Justice Weston’s judicial career began in 1989, when she was appointed to Criminal
Court. In 1990, she became the first African-American woman elected to Supreme Court in the
Second Judicial District. Justice Weston served in the Criminal Term until February 1995,
when she was assigned to the Civil Term of Supreme Court. Since then, Justice Weston has
presided over matrimonial, guardianship, and medical malpractice actions. Prior to joining
the bench, Justice Weston served as an attorney for the Legal Aid Society, followed by private
practice.

In addition to her judicial duties, Justice Weston has served as Chair of the Judicial
Section, and as Chair of the Committee on Procedures for Judicial Discipline of the New York
State Bar Association. She is also an adjunct professor at Brooklyn Law School, where she

teaches the Judicial Seminar. Justice Weston is a lifelong resident of Brooklyn.
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JESUS M. ZENO, ESQ.
BIOGRAPHY

Mr. Zeno has been litigating civil cases since 1986. Since 1990, his law firm in Brooklyn, NY/,
has specialized in civil litigation. Ninety five per cent of the cases involve al types of personal
injury, products liability, medical malpractice, police brutality, 1983 cases and labor law matters.
Five percent of the cases involve contested matrimonial, contract, and real property litigation.
The firm's work also entails motion practice, conferences, framed issue hearings, arbitrations,
jury trias, summary jury trials and bench trials. Mr. Zeno has tried cases to verdict in most of
these areas of law on behalf of hisfirm and other law firms. Mr. Zeno has appealed and argued
casesin the Appellate Division.

Prior Employment:

Paul S. Mirman & Associates, associate attorney, personal injury litigation.

Gutman & Mintz, associate attorney, housing litigation.

Law Offices of Peter A. Mc Kay, associate attorney, criminal, matrimonial and immigration.
Education: Baruch College (CUNY) BBA, Syracuse University College of Law JD.

Bar Admission: New Y ork State, Eastern District of New Y ork, Southern District of New Y ork;
United States Supreme Court, Washington, DC; State of New Jersey, United States District
Court, District of New Jersey.

Bar Association:

Puerto Rican Bar Association - Board Member, Co-chair of the litigation Committee, Co-chair of
the Tria Academy Committee, Nominating Committee, Judiciary Committee and Social Media
Committee.

New York State Academy of Trial Lawyers

New York State Bar Association- Trial Lawyers Section
Former Member of the New Y ork State Trial Lawyers Association
Former member of the Association of Trial Lawyers of America

Pro Bono: Brooklyn Bar Association; Volunteer Lega Program: Uncontested divorce.

Panelist — Nuts & Bolts of a Tria: Prima Facie Case and Ethicsfor the Trial Lawyer. Puerto
Rican Bar Association two day seminars.

Other Activities: Since 2009 Presiding Judge and scorer in the Empire City Mock Trial
Competition; Empire City Mock Tria Championship Competition.
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